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61 50 41 37 29
53 43 30 21 10
61.8 - - - -
80.8 - - - -
2 70.8 69.5 66.1 - -
44 - - - -
40.0 40.0 14.3 - -
31.3 28.9 - - -
52 - - - -
61 - - - -
Tier 1 16.0 15.5 13.5 12.0 11.8
BIS 3 26.6 26.2 25.0 23.2 21.3
4 6.4 6.0 5.5 5.1 4.9
200,531 198,269 211,226 213,092 211,870
153,223 160,407 188,862 203,218 216,529
3 65.9 71.3 70.9 65.2 66.3
63.9 65.3 64.8 63.5 -
rotc © 7.4 6.9 5.2 6.0 -
7.3 6.7 4.9 5.5 -
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ESG 1 _ ) ) )
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2018 2017
12 31 12 31
5,575 5,581 0
1,434 1,398 3
92 74 24
7,101 7,053 1
1,158 1,430 -19
3,025 2,959 2
84 98 -14
4,267 4,487 -5
2,834 2,566 10
-150 -259 -
237 270 -12
2,747 2,555 8
712 659 8
2,035 1,896 7
-5 -9
63.4 67.4
61.7 66.0
280.7 285.9 -2
276.1 280.0 -1
236.7 228.8 3
10,943 12,466 -12
1,126 1,169 -4
12,069 13,635 -11
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2,388 2,367 1
461 432 7
486 655 -26
3,335 3,454 -3
938 939 0
845 1,194 -29
40 56 -29
1,823 2,189 -17
1,512 1,265 20
300 95 216
169 171 -1
1,043 999 4
333 412 -19
710 587 21

29 9

59.7 68.3

59.5 59.4
140.2 131.9 6
109.0 101.5 7
7,211 6,966 4
473 357 32
7,684 7,323 5
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12 31 12 31
986 1,008 -2
106 75 41
274 207 32
1,366 1,290 6
487 487 0
224 208 8
27 28 -4
738 723 2
628 567 11
105 106 -1
25 22 14
498 439 13
99 -66 -
399 505 =21
34 36
55.9 57.8
55.3 57.8
2018 2017
12 31 12 31
33.5 30.8 9
4,610 4,302 7
416 335 24

5,026 4,637 8
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2018 2017
12 31 12 31
-7 57 -112
10 59 -83
571 479 19
574 595 -4
131 180 -27
73 151 -52
5 7 -29
209 338 -38
365 257 42
-15 -116 -
2 4 -50
378 369 2
70 74 -5
308 295 4
BPD 240 130 85
29 101 -71
39 64 -39
-287 -521
36.8 57.5
35.4 52.6
2018 2017
12 31 12 31
0.3 1.8 -83
10,142 10,897 -7
569 1,091 -48
49 87 -44

618 1,178 -48
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BIM 10 2017
2
59 RNHB  FGH BPD
19 571 2017 479
2018 30 FGH N.V.
2017 BPD 2017 BPD
38
2018 209 2017 338
FGH BIM 49 131 2017 180
BPD 48 618
2018 73 2017 151 2017
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
* *

6 73,335 9,243,877 66,861 8,427,829
7 17,859 2,251,127 27,254 3,435,367
8 2,876 362,520 1,760 221,848
9 157 19,790 1,194 150,504
10 2,134 268,991 n/a n/a
11 22,660 2,856,293 25,505 3,214,905
12 436,591 55,032,296 432,564 54,524,692
13 18,730 2,360,917 n/a n/a
13 n/a n/a 28,689 3,616,248
14 2,374 299,243 2,521 317,772
15 966 121,764 1,002 126,302
16 4,455 561,553 4,587 578,191
17 193 24,328 193 24,328
243 30,630 175 22,059

27 1,165 146,848 1,733 218,445
18 6,431 810,628 7,961 1,003,484
19 268 33,781 992 125,042
590,437 74,424,584 602,991 76,007,016

1 1IAS 39
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31 !

* *
20 10,397 2,444,992 18,922 2,385,118
21 342,410 43,160,781 340,682 42,942,966
22 130,806 16,488,096 134,423 16,944,019
23 400 50,420 581 73,235
24 6,614 833,695 13,792 1,738,482
11 23,927 3,015,998 28,103 3,542,383
25 6,342 799,409 8,271 1,042,560
26 1,126 141,932 1,537 103,739
229 28,865 248 31,260
27 452 56,975 396 49,916
29 16,498 2,079,573 16,170 2,038,229
. . 256 32,269
548,201 69,100,736 563,381 71,014,175
31 27,264 3,436,627 25,376 3,198,645
32 7,445 938,442 7,440 937,812
33 6,493 818,443 5,759 725,922
13,938 1,756,885 13,199 1,663,734
33 164 20,672 166 20,924
v 33 389 49,033 394 49,664
34 481 60,630 475 59,874
1,034 130,336 1,035 130,462
42,236 5,323,848 39,610 4,992,841
590,437 74,424,584 602,991 76,007,016

1 1AS 39
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31 .
* *
2 36 15,960 2,011,758 16,275 2,051,464
36 321 40,462 296 37,311
36 7,722 973,358 7,728 974,114
36 8,559 1,078,862 8,843 1,114,660
37 2,106 265,461 2,101 264,831
37 175 22,059 186 23,445
37 1,931 243,403 1,915 241,386
38 2,547 321,049 2,347 295,839
38 1,964 247,562 1,825 230,041
38 583 73,487 522 65,798
39 243 30,630 245 30,882
14 1,765 n/a n/a
40 238 30,000 84 10,588
13 n/a n/a 158 19,916
112 14,118 n/a n/a
41 340 42,857 234 29,496
12,020 1,515,121 12,001 1,512,726
42 4,278 539,242 4,472 563,696
43 2,780 350,419 3,176 400,335
44 388 48,907 406 51,176
7,446 938,568 8,054 1,015,207
45 n/a n/a (190) (23,950)
45 190 23,950 n/a n/a
46 478 60,252 505 63,655
3,906 492,351 3,632 457,814
47 902 113,697 958 120,756
3,004 378,654 2,674 337,058
1,894 238,739 1,509 190,209
484 61,008 484 61,008
530 66,807 586 73,865
14 1,765 15 1,891
v 22 2,773 22 2,773
34 60 7,563 58 7,311
3,004 378,654 2,674 337,058
1 1AS 39
2 2.1
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31 )
* *

3,004 378,654 2,674 337,058
31 134 16,891 (1,161) (146,344)
31 n/a n/a (129) (16,260)
31 (152) (19,160) n/a n/a
31 30 3,782 n/a n/a
31 (€)) (126) 28 3,529
31 (84) (10,588) 11 1,387
31 - - 35 4,412
31 76 9,580 - -
31 ®) (1,008) n/a n/a
31 4 504 (6) (756)
31 111 13,992 (322) (40,588)
110 13,866 (1,544) (194,621)
3,114 392,520 1,130 142,437
2,007 252,982 (O) (504)
484 61,008 484 61,008
530 66,807 586 73,865
14 1,765 15 1,891
v 22 2,773 22 2,773
57 7,185 27 3,403
3,114 392,520 1,130 142,437

1 1AS 39
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2017 12 31 25,376 3,198,645 13,199 1,663,734 560 70,588 475 59,874 39,610 4,992,841
IFRS
1 (26) (3,277) - - - - - - (26) (3,277)
IFRS 15
1 41 5,168 - - - - - - 41 5,168
2018
25,391 3,200,536 13,199 1,663,734 560 70,588 475 59,874 39,625 4,994,731
2,944 371,091 - - - - 60 7,563 3,004 378,654
31 113 14,244 - - - - 3) (378) 110 13,866
3,057 385,335 - - - - 57 7,185 3,114 392,520
(484) (61,008) - - - - - - (484) (61,008)
v (22) (2,773) - - - - - - (22) (2,773)
(539) (67,941) - - - - - - (539) (67,941)
14 (1,765) - - - - - - 14 (1,765)
33 (79) (9,958) (275) (34,664) - - - - (354) (44,622)
33 - - 1,000 126,050 - - - - 1,000 126,050
- - (6) (756) - - - - () (756)
(56) (7,059) - - - - - - (56) (7,059)
10 1,261 20 2,521 () (882) (51) (6,429) (28) (3,529)
2018 12 31 27,264 3,436,627 13,938 1,756,885 553 69,706 481 60,630 42,236 5,323,848
2017 25,821 3,254,737 13,584 1,712,263 504 74,874 525 66,176 40,524 5,108,050
2,616 329,747 - - - - 58 7,311 2,674 337,058
31 (1,513) (190,714) - - - - (31) (3,908)  (1,544) (194,621)
1,103 139,033 - - - - 27 3,403 1,130 142,437
(484) (61,008) - - - - - - (484) (61,008)
v 2) 2,773) - - - - - - 2) 2,773)
(592) (74,622) - - - - - - (592) (74,622)
(15) (1,891) - - - - - - (15) (1,891)
33 (439) (55,336)  (1,894) (238,739) - - - - (2,333) (294,075)
32 120 15,126 1,500 189,075 - - - - 1,620 204,201
12) (1,513) - - - - - - 12) (1,513)
(104) (13,109) 9 1,134 (34) (4,286) (77) (9,706) (206) (25,966)
2017 12 31 25,376 3,198,645 13,199 1,663,734 560 70,588 475 59,874 39,610 4,992,841

1 2.1 1ASB
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2017 12 31
2018 12 31 1
* -

3,906 492,351 3,632 457,814
44 388 48,907 406 51,176
16, 17 602 75,882 536 67,563
45 n/a n/a (190) (23,950)
45 190 23,950 n/a n/a
16 42 5,294 48 6,050
15 2 252 31 3,908
14 - - - -
5 630 40 5,042
39 (243) (30,630) (245) (30,882)
(119) (15,000) 3) (378)
40 (238) (30,000) (84) (10,588)
13 n/a n/a (158) (19,916)
41 (112) (14,118) n/a n/a
(14) (1,765) n/a n/a
26 276 34,790 688 86,722
(118) (14,874) (130) (16,387)
7, 20, 45 9,459 1,192,307 (4,426) (557,897)
9, 40 (872) (109,916) 952 120,000
11 2,872 362,016 16,867 2,126,085
9, 24 an (2,143) (2,644) (333,276)
10 709 89,369 n/a n/a
12, 45 (7,360) (927,728) 9,042 1,139,744
13 n/a n/a (3,687) (464,746)
13 (4,861) (612,729) n/a n/a
13 n/a n/a 7,707 971,467
13 14,139 1,782,221 n/a n/a
16 (1,152) (145,210) (1,087) (137,016)
16 435 54,832 165 20,798
14 176 22,185 125 15,756
11 (4,636) (584,368) (19,921)  (2,511,042)
23 (181) (22,815) (158) (19,916)
21 (786) (99,075) (6,950) (876,048)
25 (1,853) (233,571) (115) (14,496)
(182) (22,941) (302) (38,067)
2,169 273,402 1,408 177,478
C ) 12,626 1,591,507 1,547 194,999
14 (43) (5,420) (113) (14,244)
14 182 22,941 214 26,975
16, 17 151 19,034 (170) (21,429)
16, 17 (41) (5,168) 118 14,874
C ) 249 31,386 49 6,176
22, 35 63,164 7,961,822 71,398 8,999,718
22, 35 (69,203)  (8,723,038) (88,121) (11,107,652)
35 - - 413 52,059
35 (21) (2,647) 4) (504)
32 (1,038) (130,840) (913) (115,084)
32 1,043 131,470 905 114,075
994 125,294 - -
v (1,059) (133,487) (1,113) (140,294)
(86) (10,840) (86) (10,840)
33 (354) (44,622) (1,894) (238,739)
- - 1,608 202,688
C ) (6,560) (826,888) (17,807)  (2,244,572)
C ) 6,315 796,006 (16,211)  (2,043,397)
66,861 8,427,829 84,405 10,639,250
159 20,042 (1,333) (168,025)
73,335 9,243,877 66,861 8,427,829
15,693 1,978,103 16,095 2,028,775
7,180 905,039 7,537 950,039

1 1AS 39
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IFRS

1ASB

IFRS
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS

2018 2018

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS
IFRS IFRS 2021

IAS 39

IAS 28
2021
©) IFRS IFRS
(b) IFRS
IFRS
2018
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2018 IFRS BV
IFRS IAS 39
BV IFRS
IFRS 15
2018 IFRS 15 IFRS 15 IAS 11 18 IFRIC
13 15 18 SIC 31 IFRS 15
IFRS 15
IAS 18
IFRS 15 2018 41
59 18
IFRS
2018 IFRS IFRS 15 IAS 40 IFRIC 22 IFRS
2014 2016
1ASB
IFRS 16
2016 1ASB 2019 IFRS 16
IFRS 16 IAS 17 IFRIC SIC 15 SIC 27
IAS 17

IAS 17
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2019
IFRS 16
610
IFRS
IAS 28 IAS 19 IFRS IFRIC 23
1ASB
IFRS 17
2017 1ASB 2021
IFRS 17
IFRS 17
2018

IFRS 16

IFRS
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IFRS

IFRS 16
2019

2015 2017

IFRS 17



IFRS

12

SPPI

ECL

12

credit impaired
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ECL
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IFRS

ECL

PD

IFRS

EAD

90

IFRS

IAS 39

ECL

PD

12

EU

ECL
ECL

PD

ECL

2.16

ECL
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ECL

LGD X

ECL

PD

PD
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2018

IFRS I1AS

36

177/506



EDINETOOOO
O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)

ooooooo
IFRS
IFRS 227 IFRS
201
IAS 39 2017 12 31 IFRS 2018
IFRS IAS 39 2017 12 2018
31
1AS IFRS
! 39 ECL 2
AC AC 66,861 - - - 66,861
AC AC 27,254 (390) (@) 2 26,864
FVPL FVPL 1,760 7 - - 1,767
3
FVPL FVPL 1,194 (850) - 4 348
FVPL n/a a n/a 3,923 - (224) 3,699
FVPL FVPL b 25,505 27 - - 25,532
AC AC a 432,564  (2,788) (134) (234) 429,408
n/a FVOoCI 28,689  (28,689) - - n/a
FVOCI n/a - 28,867 (©) 50 28,909
n/a n/a 2,521 - - - 2,521
n/a n/a 1,002 - - - 1,002
n/a n/a 4,587 - - - 4,587
n/a n/a 193 - - - 193
n/a n/a 175 - 51 (50) 176
n/a n/a 1,733 - - 3) 1,730
n/a n/a 7,961 (83) 24 (©) 7,893
n/a n/a 992 - - - 992
602,991 24 (69) (464) 602,482
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IFRS IAS 39 2017 12 2018
31
1 1AS ) IFRS
39 ECL
AC AC b 18,922 29 - (6) 18,945
AC AC b 340,682 2,830 - (317) 343,195
AC AC b 134,423 2,827 - (275) 136,975
FVPL FVPL 581 - - - 581
FVPL FVPL b 13,792 (6,118) - 5 7,679
FVPL FVPL b 28,103 473 - (13) 28,563
n/a n/a 8,271 an - (6) 8,248
n/a n/a 1,537 - 107 - 1,644
n/a n/a 248 - (€) 4 249
n/a n/a 396 - (©) - 393
n/a n/a 16,170 - - - 16,170
n/a n/a 256 - - - 256
563,381 24 101 (608) 562,898
25,376 - (170) 144 25,350
7,440 - - - 7,440
5,759 - - - 5,759
13,199 - - - 13,199
166 - - - 166
v 394 - - - 394
475 - - - 475
1,035 - - - 1,035
39,610 - (170) 144 39,584
602,991 24 (69) (464) 602,482
1 AC FVPL FVOCI
2
3 2018
856 2018
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@

37 SPPI

IAS 39
WRR
156
67
304
®)
IFRS 1AS
39 IAS 39
IFRS
FVTPL
594
2018 2.3 2018
136 2018 12 31
5,442 124
IAS 39 2017 12 31 IFRS
2018 IAS 39
IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS 12 ECL

ECL
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IAS 39 IAS 37 IFRS
IAS 39
1AS 37
IFRS
2017 12 31 2018

17 - 2 19

5,446 (1,304) 134 4,276

- - 8 8

26 - (24) 2

85 - - 85

20 - 107 127

5,594 (1.304) 227 4,517

1 1 17 19

320 287 3,754 4,361

3 5 - 8

- - 2 2

33 12 82 127

IFRS 2018

357 305 3,855 4,517

181/506



EDINETOOOO
O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)
oOoOooodn

12

2.16

ECL

PD  x LGD x
EAD

PD
EAD

LGD
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4.9
11

15
14

IAS 37
SME
26

53
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2.2
2.2.1

100

2018 12 11
2018 12 11
B.V.
B.V. B.V.
B.V. B.V.
B.V. B.V.

2.2.2

20 50
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SPE
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2.10

90

2.11

2.26

2.12
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2.13

2.14

2.15
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2.16
12
credit impaired
ECL
IFRS a 12
b 12 ECL ECL ECL
a
ECL
PD x LGD x EAD
ECL
b
90
PD
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PD PD

SICR

30
ECL

ECL

90
90
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ECL
SICR
ECL
ECL SICR
ECL
SICR SICR
ECL
PD
LTV
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2.17

2.18
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2.19
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2.20

40

2.21
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2.22

198/506



EDINETOOOO
O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)
oOoOooodn

2.23

199/506



EDINETOOOO
O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)
oOoOooodn

2.24

projected unit credit method

2.25
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2.25

2.26

2.27
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2.30

2.31

2.32
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2.33
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Tier CET Tier
CRR v CRD IV
2010 2014
Tier
Tier Tier
2014 CRD IV CRR
2016 2019
CRD IV CRR
CET Tier
4.5% 6.0% 8.0%
1.75% 1.75% 1.75%
2016 - 2019 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
2016 - 2019 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
11.75% 13.25% 15.25%
CET 11.75 4.5 1.75
2.5
15.25 1.75
2.5 2.5

2019
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CRR
2018 2017
28,062 26,777
(46) (54)
7,445 7,440
- 26
(798) (1,401)
(2,553) (2.,050)
12 525
Tier 32,122 31,263
3,721 2,728
3,325 3,590
- 6
(100) (88)
- (295)
Tier 39,068 37,204
14,274 14,896
- 7
(83) (89)
- (95)
53,259 51,923
200,531 198,269
Tier 16.0% 15.8%
Tier 19.5% 18.8%
26.6% 26.. 2%
! 17.7% 17.3%
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4.2

2015

IRB

EDINETOOOO
O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)
oOoOooodn

CRR

2014 2018

IRB

Tier CRR

206/506



EDINETOOOO
O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)
oOoOooodn

4.3

4.3.1

KYC
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CRR 181 1.(e)
CRR
Central Credit Committee Rabobank Group CCCRG CCCRG
CA LB LQC OLEM
CA WRR LQC
OLEM DLL WRR
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CC-FRE&R LQC
FRER

Country & Financial Institutions Committee CFIC CFIC

LLPC LLPC
CC-FR&R

ToR
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4.3.2
2018
2018
25 28
10
2018 2017

436,591 432,564

1,853 2,319

12,929 12,895

5,784 6,386

416,025 410,964
294,628 71% 298,583 73%
31,337 8% 28,493 %
44,255 11% 41,831 10%
14,067 3% 12,467 3%
8,887 2% 8,076 2%
22,589 5% 21,191 5%
262 0% 323 0%
416,025 100% 410,964 100%
194,897 47% 197,990 48%
118,022 28% 115,192 28%
103,106 25% 97,782 24%
416,025 100% 410,964 100%

210/506



EDINETOOOO
O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)

oOoOooodn
2018 2017
13,517 14,925
13,892 11,618
11,386 11,102
8,918 8,689
9,441 8,852
6,305 6,317
4,742 4,647
6,827 5,378
9,648 9,188
4,293 4,417
3,049 2,428
1,021 1,190
1,283 1,217
23,700 25,224
118,022 115,192
2018 2017
19,686 18,767
16,717 15,376
22,486 22,175
10,675 10,251
11,089 9,243
5,226 4,727
2,733 2,915
1,581 1,662
2,817 2,539
1,357 1,231
8,739 8,896
103,106 97,782
1SDA

211/506



EDINETOOOO
O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)
oOoOooodn

4.3.3
PD
21 RO- R20 D1- D4
D1- D4 D1 90
D2
D3
D4
2018 12 31
12 ECL ECL ECL
RO- R7 12,069 42 - 12,111
R8- R20 5,456 15 - 5,471
- - 34 34
265 - - 265
17,790 57 34 17,881
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2018 12 31
12 ECL ECL ECL
RO- R7 57,520 582 - 58,102
R8- R20 336,406 15,273 - 351,679
- - 15,993 15,993
8,677 91 - 8,768
402,603 15,946 15,993 434,542
2018 12 31
12 ECL ECL ECL
AAA- A 16,800 574 - 17,374
BBB- B 761 - - 761
ccc- C - - - -
D - - - -
13 - - 13
17,574 574 - 18,148
2018 12 31
12 ECL ECL ECL
RO- R7 10,777 4 - 10,781
R8- R20 40,381 1,102 - 41,483
- - 572 572
9,500 28 - 9,528
60,658 1,134 572 62,364
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4.3.4
2018 2017
12 ECL ECL ECL

IAS 39
1 1 17 19 18
n/a n/a n/a n/a 1
- - - - n/a
- - - - n/a
1 - 2 3 n/a
€)) - 1 - @

2018 12 31
1 1 20 22 17

2018 2017

12 ECL ECL ECL IAS 39
320 287 3,754 4,361 7,487
n/a n/a n/a n/a (38)
68 6 276 350 n/a
(59) (50) (577) (686) n/a
(50) @ 835 783 n/a
12) () (998) (1,012) (2,019)
3 - (64) (61) 16

2018 12 31
270 239 3,226 3,735 5,446
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2018
ECL ECL
12 ECL
3 5 - 8
2 - - 2
@ ® - ®)
@ 1 - @
2018 12 31 2 1 - 3
2018
ECL ECL
12 ECL
33 12 82 127
3 - 17 20
29 (©)] (43) (81)
18 11 34 63
- - @ @
3 @ (20) (19)
2018 12 31 28 12 69 109
12 ECL ECL ECL
396,816 14,842 15,773 427,431
(5,957) 4,530 2,856 1,429
117,531 3,962 2,199 123,692
(103,787) (7.328) (4,388) (115,503)
(15) @ (493) (510)
(1,985) (58) 46 (1,997)
2018 12 31 402,603 15,946 15,993 434,542
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4.3.5

2.11

IAS 32
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IAS 32
2018 12 31

17,859 - 17,859 - (6,756) 11,103

81,402 (58,742) 22,660 (13,531) - 9,129

443,093 (6,502) 436,591 - (12,131) 424,460

6,640 (209) 6,431 - - 6,431

548,994 (65,453) 483,541 (13,531)  (18,887) 451,123

20,666 (1,269) 19,397 - (79) 19,318

344,504 (2,094) 342,410 - (13) 342,397

85,807 (61,880) 23,927 (13,531) - 10,396

6,551 (209) 6,342 - - 6,342

457,528 (65,452) 392,076 (13,531) (92) 378,453
2017 12 31

27,845 (591) 27,254 - (17,537) 9,717

87,237 (61,732) 25,505 (15,984) - 9,521

439,587 (7,023) 432,564 - (12,861) 419,703

8,245 (284) 7,961 7,961

562,914 (69,630) 493,284 (15,984)  (30,398) 446,902

20,496 (1,574) 18,922 - (350) 18,572
343,958 (3,276) 340,682 - (108) 340,574
92,599 (64,496) 28,103 (15,984) - 12,119
8,555 (284) 8,271 - - 8,271
465,608 (69,630) 395,978 (15,984) (458) 379,536
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2018 12 31
34 20 14 -
15,993 3,226 12,767 10,044
16,027 3,246 12,781 10,044
IFRS
2018 12 31
2,806 -
157 -
1,680 744
22,660 6,851
27,303 7,595
Q)
(i)
2018
398
2018 12 31 15
2017 89
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4.3.6
ECL 12
ECL 2018 12 31 32
ECL
ECL
2018
217
2
219
4.4 FX
FX
FX (i)
FX (ii)FX
FX
FX
FX FX
CET FX FX
FX

FX
CET
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IFRS

FX

FX

IFRS
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EaR 12
4.5.1 4.5.2
4.5.1
12
2018
2018 12 31 EaR 109 2017 EaR148
ALCO
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
109 148
76 104
32 37
4.5.2
MD
BPV

BPV
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
% 2.80% 2.00%
% 3.20% 2.30%
% -2.20% -3.40%
4.6
VaR
VaR
97.5
VaR VaR
2018 VaR 1.9 3.9 2.6
2018 12 31 VaR 3.4 VaR
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VaR 97.5 )
2018 —12 31 2.3 2.9 0.1 0.0 0.2 (2.1) 3.4
2018 — 2.2 1.5 0.1 0.0 0.1 - 2.6
2018 — 3.4 3.0 0.6 0.1 0.7 - 3.9
2018 — 1.7 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.1 - 1.9
2017 —12 29 2.9 0.8 0.2 0.0 0.1 (0.8) 3.1
2017 — 3.4 0.8 0.2 0.0 0.2 - 3.8
2017 — 4.7 1.3 1.2 0.1 2.4 - 4.9
2017 — 2.6 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.1 - 3.0
VaR
0.01
2018 12 31 0.6
2018 12 31 2017 12 31

0.4 0.5

0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1

0.0 0.1

0.6 0.7

VaR
2018 12 31 128
103 157
129
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2018 12 31

2,916 675 4,492 4,900 634 6,052 19,669

280,453 13,309 10,305 14,921 24,994 1,135 345,117

4,470 17,184 25,675 64,934 30,316 - 142,579

2,038 1,967 309 544 20 826 5,704

- 400 - - - - 400

17 191 397 3,681 3,342 - 7,628

31 58 1,624 8,275 13,204 - 23,192

289,925 33,784 42,802 97,255 72,510 8,013 544,289

3,377 - - - - - 3,377

32,583 - - - - - 32,583

2017 12 31

5,005 996 1,748 4,410 1,340 5,683 19,182

272,804 19,971 11,258 16,810 21,770 3,363 345,976

7,352 19,361 31,301 63,191 24,161 - 145,366

2,742 2,639 1,202 657 35 402 7,677

- 581 - - - - 581

73 196 849 4,258 19,382 - 24,758

- 86 620 6,813 15,831 - 23,350

287,976 43,830 46,978 96,139 82,519 9,448 566,890

3,406 - - - - - 3,406

32,965 - - - - - 32,965
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2018 12 31
72,301 99 7 - - 838 73,335
9,180 4,422 1,345 194 168 2,550 17,859
158 178 115 880 1,475 70 2,876

- 127 7 - 23 - 157

9 24 36 518 643 904 2,134

1,009 1,100 1,552 5,300 13,699 - 22,660
31,867 17,834 35,687 103,680 242,136 5,387 436,501
222 629 2,430 10,865 4,009 575 18,730

349 2,027 1,444 1,673 113 819 6,425
115,185 26,440 42,623 123,110 262,266 11,143 580,767
2,914 667 4,428 4,753 584 6,051 19,397
280,681 13,292 10,224 14,399 22,679 1,135 342,410
4,449 16,926 24,814 60,125 24,492 - 130,806
1,099 1,334 1,500 6,166 13,792 36 23,927

- 400 - - - - 400

2,076 2,082 478 576 50 826 6,088
17 176 364 3,372 2,685 - 6,614

- - 1,007 5,804 9,687 - 16,498
291,236 34,877 42,815 95,195 73,969 8,048 546,140
(176,051)  (8,437) (192) 27,915 188,297 3,005 34,627
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2017 12 31
65,700 23 28 - - 1,110 66,861
15,779 6,150 1,169 616 233 3,307 27,254

54 51 213 754 625 63 1,760

- 150 19 167 505 353 1,194

877 895 1,810 5,930 15,993 - 25,505

29,688 17,053 32,556 97,912 248,792 6,562 432,563

317 987 4,242 18,707 4,002 434 28,689

626 2,609 2,297 770 258 1,395 7,955

113,041 27,918 42,334 124,856 270,408 13,224 591,781

4,991 991 1,716 4,262 1,279 5,683 18,922

272,765 19,924 10,707 16,036 17,887 3,363 340,682

7,326 19,220 30,618 58,132 19,127 - 134,423

1,058 1,187 1,817 6,996 16,963 82 28,103

- 581 - - - - 581

2,755 2,787 1,351 636 48 402 7,979

72 181 791 3,794 8,954 - 13,792

- - 21 4,248 11,901 - 16,170

288,967 44,871 47,021 94,104 76,159 9,530 560,652

(175,926)  (16,953)  (4,687) 30,752 194,249 3,694 31,129
2018 12 31 LCR 135 2017 123

DNB
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oTC
CVA CVA

CVA CDS
CDS
0TC
DVA DVA CVA CDS
FVA
FVA

Euribor Libor
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2018 2018 2017 2017
73,335 73,335 66,861 66,861
17,859 17,878 27,254 27,190

436,591 443,867 432,564 443,249
19,397 19,333 18,922 18,929
342,410 345,719 340,682 344,783
130,806 132,397 134,423 137,392
16,498 17,220 16,170 18,042
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2018 12 31

73,298 32 5 73,335
18 17,232 628 17,878

850 124,438 318,579 443,867
2,382 431 63 2,876
126 23 8 157

- 571 1,563 2,134

23 22,381 256 22,660
14,453 3,813 464 18,730
- - 268 268

18 19,164 151 19,333

) 95,824 249,904 345,719
19,920 105,418 7,059 132,397
17,197 23 - 17,220
41 23,763 123 23,927
400 - - 400

- 6,614 - 6,614
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2017 12 31
66,861 - - 66,861
10 26,409 771 27,190
38 116,467 326,744 443,249
1,481 216 63 1,760
143 529 522 1,194
8 25,182 315 25,505
24,645 3,512 532 28,689
- - 992 992
- 18,861 68 18,929
25 101,318 243,440 344,783
16,115 111,728 9,549 137,392
17,984 58 - 18,042
12 27,832 259 28,103
581 - - 581
- 13,742 50 13,792
145 2017 70
2017 16
142 2017 64
2017
16
ACC
2018 IFRS
1,245 2017 525
EBITDA 6.4
ACC
62 48
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2018
2018 ocl
2018
12 31
68 6 - - 11 - - 63
23 1 - - - 16) - 8
1,668 54 - 162 @17 (224) 20 1,563
315 18) - 82 - (123) - 256
471 10 19 20 (56) - - 464
259 (10) - 1 - @27 - 123
6 - - @ - - @ -
ocl
2017 2017
12 31
89 ®) - - (23) - - - 63
514 42 - 138 (98) - ) - 522
535 50 - - - (331) - 61 315
540 22) 31 13 (30) - - - 532
524 46 - - - (318) - 7 259
13 @ - - ®) - ®) 44 50
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2018 12 31

2017 12 31

4.10
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6 - 6
1 - 1
50 4 54
40 (58) (18)
11 @ 10
44 (54) (10)
©) - ©)
37 5 42
61 11) 50
22 - 22
52 (6) 46
o - o
2018 12 31
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50

@
not probable ()

more likely than not

(i) (i)
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2018

30

316

532

2016

EDINETOOOO
O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)

ooooooo
Euribor
2016
SME
2016
2016 12 19
Euribor
Kifid 2015
SME
2017 450 2018
2018
N.V.
10

2018 12 31
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Libor Euribor
2013 10 29 Libor Euribor
2013
USD Libor GBP Libor
JPY Libor Tibor Tibor Euribor

Libor Euribor

153

197
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5.1

WRR

WRR

ACC

DLL

BPD 2018 BPD B.V.
BPD 100 58

B.V.

10

2018
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WRR
2018 12 31
5,575 2,388 986 a (383) - 8,559
1,434 461 106 10 (35) (45) 1,931
92 486 274 571 108 @ 1,530
7,101 3,335 1,366 574 (310) (46) 12,020
1,158 938 487 131 189 1,375 4,278
3,025 845 224 73 88 (1,475) 2,780
84 40 27 5 49 183 388
4,267 1,823 738 209 326 83 7,446
(150) 300 105 (15) (50) - 190
237 169 25 2 46 (@)) 478
2,747 1,043 498 378 (632) (128) 3,906
712 333 99 70 (281) (31) 902
2,035 710 399 308 (351) (€] 3,004
63.4 59.7 55.9 36.8 n/a n/a 65.9
2
) 29 34 (287) n/a n/a 5
280,691 140,158 35,227 2,979 131,382 - 590,437
322 125 72 - - - 519
276,140 108,972 30,309 301 303 - 416,025
1
2 12
WRR
2018 2,693 1,297 257 270 - - 4,517
134 208 30 - - - 372
(489) (230) (48) - - - (767)
361 324 170 (12) - - 843
(459) (290) (141) (123) - - (1,013)
27 21 (©) (128) - - (83)
2018 12 31 2,267 1,330 265 7 - - 3,869
12 ECL 132 114 55 - - - 301
ECL 168 39 46 - - - 253
ECL 1,967 1,177 164 7 - - 3,315
2,267 1,330 265 7 - - 3,869
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WRR
2017 12 31
5,581 2,367 1,008 57 (170) - 8,843
1,398 432 75 59 (10) (39) 1,915
74 655 207 479 (207) 35 1,243
7,053 3,454 1,290 595 (@387) @ 12,001
1,430 939 487 180 173 1,263 4,472
2,959 1,194 208 151 7 (1,343) 3,176
98 56 28 7 54 163 406
4,487 2,189 723 338 234 83 8,054
(259) 95 106 (116) (16) - (190)
270 171 22 4 38 - 505
2,555 999 439 369 (643) @n 3,632
659 412 (66) 74 (100) (21) 958
1,896 587 505 295 (543) (66) 2,674
67.4 68.3 57.8 57.5 n/a n/a 71.3
2
([©) 9 36 (521) n/a n/a )
285,894 131,888 32,466 5,598 147,145 - 602,991
322 119 75 - 3 - 519
280,028 101,506 27,159 1,807 464 - 410,964
1
2 12
WRR
2017 3,317 3,099 259 797 15 - 7,487
ar2) 118 145 (114) (15) - (38)
(632) (1,047) (136) (204) - - (2,019)
31 (60) (24) 69 - - 16
2017 12 31 2,544 2,110 244 548 - - 5,446
1,656 1,896 93 544 - - 4,189
559 19 67 - - - 645
IBNR 329 195 84 4 - - 612
2,544 2,110 244 548 - - 5,446
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5.2

2018 12 31

DLL 24,129 25,516 2,268 493
BPD

DLL 529 334 116 13
BPD

DLL 118 104 25 5

DLL 855 645 116 36
BPD

DLL 72 138 28 3

1 - - -

DLL 606 188 140 4

DLL 7 10 2 -

DLL 3 3 1 -

DLL 12 16 4 -

DLL 52 132 15 4
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DLL 698 671 81 18
DLL 29 38 7 2
DLL 49 122 9 2
DLL 32 26 6 1
DLL 5 6 2 -
DLL 39 64 20 4
DLL 34 86 7 2
DLL 8 40 2 -
DLL - 3 - -
DLL 37 55 23 4
DLL 3,709 4,053 577 128
DLL 245 213 33 9
DLL 22 65 5 1
DLL 548 708 191 72
DLL 71 141 13 13
DLL 5 17 @ @
DLL 69 445 3 6
DLL 219 194 ®) @
58 707 (60) ©)
7 3 2 -
DLL 82 138 2 5
DLL 341 186 46) (8)
DLL 12 22 2 -
DLL - 2 - -
DLL 1,150 1,059 211 64
DLL 510 310 111 32
3 1 - -
(12,485) - - -
21,881 36,461 3,906 902
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2017 12 31

DLL 22,104 27,787 2,297 510
BPD

DLL 672 501 79 31
BPD

DLL 117 106 27 8
BPD

DLL 763 631 81 25
BPD

DLL 72 131 33 5

DLL 546 208 142 9

DLL 6 8 2 -

DLL 2 2 1 -

DLL 8 13 1 -

DLL 46 122 12 4

DLL 658 660 122 25

DLL 24 34 6 1

DLL 44 126 4 1

DLL 30 24 6 1

BPD

DLL 5 6 2 -

DLL 36 60 4 3

DLL 33 87 10 -

DLL 7 38 2 -

DLL - 3 - -

DLL 37 59 21 4

DLL 3,245 3,970 121 121

DLL 225 211 60 16

DLL 19 64 5 2

DLL 616 684 221 87

DLL 64 172 8 -

DLL 4 13 1 -

245/506



EDINETOOOO
O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)

OoooooO

DLL 57 268 @ -

DLL 176 200 an ®)
65 776 @ 2
4 4 2 -
DLL 90 164 6 1
DLL 292 188 32 3
DLL 9 24 2 -
DLL 1,177 985 228 68
DLL 546 294 122 34
3 1 - -
(10,062) - - -
21,740 38,624 3,632 958

2018 2017
2018 2017
728 238 765 237
1,852 2,796 2,221 2,559
3,720 2,711 5,062 2,899
255 13 282 710
6,555 5,758 8,330 6,405
2018 2017
811 732
72,524 66,129
73,335 66,861
2018 12 3,066 2017 12 3,202
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7
2018 2017
8,007 8,533
8,743 17,286
1,080 1,308
51 144
17,881 27,271
(22) an
17,859 27,254
8
2018 2017
1,055 496
1,602 1,008
149 193
70 63
2,876 1,760
9
2018 2017
126 126
31 700
n/a 333
n/a 35
157 1,194
14 2017
14 2017
25
10
2018
38
1,642
454

2,134
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11

11.1

0TC
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CDS

11.2

11.3

IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS

CDS
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IFRS

2018 12 31
51,852 7,553 31,990 12,309
1.89% 1.18% 1.87% 2.38%
62,604 3,954 18,797 39,853
2.30% 2.90% 2.02% 2.51%

2018 12 31
101 4,014 305
19 457 (148)
3,156 699 636

174

2018 12 31
43,013 5,784 (285) 6,309
8,188 463 159 412
37,935 1,375 841 1,077
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IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS
100
2018 12 31
19 1 9 9
n/a 1.00 1.37 1.31
25 - 17 8
n/a n/a 0.79 0.80
43 13 23 7
2018 12 31
1 15
9 27
3 (33)
13 9
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31

2018 12 31
9 2 (42)
2018 12 31 2018 12 31

5,848 5,724 124 -
n/a 0.93 0.00 0.00

2018 12 31
32 1,706 119

31

2018 12 31

(119) 230 213
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11.4
2018 12 31
3,395,342 19,379 18,745
114,541 3,281 5,182
3,509,883 22,660 23,927
388,686 3,949 5,116
3,437 47 30
5,582 7 6
296 - 8
398,001 4,003 5,160
oTC 2,828,432 12,908 11,108
oTC 72,417 2,212 2,238
91,454 1 1
2,992,303 15,121 13,347
1,071 2 2
- - 1
3,967 253 235
3,395,342 19,379 18,745
108,606 3,243 3,463
87 6 13
5,848 32 1,706
114,541 3,281 5,182
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2017 12 31

2,851,309 21,109 21,158
116,644 4,396 6,945
2,967,953 25,505 28,103
336,792 3,556 4,021
3,694 29 48
3,718 2 3
241 2 4
344,445 3,589 4,076
oTC 2,375,700 14,800 14,088
oTC 77,409 2,593 2,758
49,676 1 -
2,502,785 17,394 16,846
1,580 - 4
63 8 7
2,436 118 225
2,851,309 21,109 21,158
110,033 4,128 5,674
4,777 299 1,271
1,834 (31 _
116,644 4,39 6,945

254/506



EDINETOOOO
O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)

ooOoooOoo
2018 2017
15,758 17,535
190,651 194,521
18,772 16,932
186,563 179,204
8,009 8,186
202 196
1,658 2,069
12,929 12,895
434,542 431,538
5,784 6,386
(3,735) (5,446)
436,591 432,478
n/a 86
436,591 432,564
2018 2017
6,116 6,302
13,026 11,584
1,292 621
20,434 18,507
1,626 1,561
18,808 16,946
5,962 6,097
11,574 10,393
1,272 456
18,808 16,946
2018 12 31 166 2017 182
2,227 2017 1,914 2018

2017
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13

13a

2018

13,514
4,502
214
500
18,730

2018

104
CRUA 230
166
500

2018 24 2018
31

13b

2017

1,362
22,418
4,342
567
28,689

2017

34,580
(1,133)
3,687
(7,707)

(670)
(68)
28,689
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14
2018 2017

2,521 2,417
5 m

43 113
187) (214)

242 246
(149) (78)

(80) 5

1) 39

2,374 2,521

14.1
2018 12 31
B.V. 30% 30%
37 2017
2018
2018 2017

1,466 2,884

70,948 72,702

9,402 10,259

- 5,101

81,816 90,946

55,065 57,293

15,197 16,755

1,849 1,947

- 5,002

72,111 80,997

21,336 22,065

315 216

(266) 20

49 236
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2018 2017
9,705 9,949
1,350 1,350
350 350
8,005 8,249
30.00% 29.21%
2,401 2,410
(719) (700)
1,682 1,710
2018 2017
168 203
168 203
- 11
168 214
14.2
BPD 2017
BPD
CV-BV
VOF CV-BV
VOF
CV-BV

VOF
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2018 2017 BPD
2018 2017
31 22
31 22
31 22
BPD 2018 12 31
2017 23
23 2017 115
15
2018 12 31
519 371 112 1,002
3 - - 3
- 80 41 121
@) an (13) 32)
- 18 1 19
- (95) (49) (144)
€Y) - @) (©)]
519 357 90 966
1,136 1,286 444 2,866
(617) (929) (354) (1,900)
519 357 90 966
2017 12 31
537 420 132 1,089
(19) (€] ) (25)
- 115 49 164
- (40) €©)] (43)
1 21 (6) 16
- (113) (55) (168)
- 1) - (31)
519 371 112 1,002
1,127 1,517 573 3,217
(608) (1,146) (461) (2,215)
519 371 112 1,002
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RNA 125 2017
119 RNA
2017 12 11.0 2017 15.8
17.0 2017 12.6
RNA 0.5
322 2017 322
10
10
2018 2017

2017 31
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16

2018 12 31

1,546 387 2,654 4,587

5 - 36 41

35 87 1,152 1,274

©) (10) (435) (454)

1) - - 1)

(85) @ - @n

45 - - 45

(95) (149) - (244)

- - (594) (594)

® o (13) (22)

12 31 1,343 312 2,800 4,455

2,628 1,137 4,001 7,856

(1,285) (825) (1,291) (3,401)

12 31 1,343 312 2,800 4,455
2017 12 31

3,140 1,314 3,532 7,986

(1,413) (863) (1,120) (3,396)

1,727 451 2,412 4,590

1,727 451 2,412 4,590

(16) ©) (196) (221)

68 91 1,087 1,246

(73) (15) (165) (253)

1) - - 1)

42 1 - 43

(110) (128) - (238)

- - (528) (528)

@ ) 44 39

12 31 1,546 387 2,654 4,587

2,912 1,239 3,816 7,967

(1,366) (852) (1,162) (3,380)

12 31 1,546 387 2,654 4,587

2018 12 31
85 2017 91
45 2017 42
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17
2018 2017

291 627
(98) (334)

193 293

193 293

28 11
(22) (30)
- (52)
® ®
@ o

2 -
2 (20)

12 31 193 193
259 291
(66) (98)

12 31 193 193

208 2017 230
RICS
2018 2017
100% 100%
0% 0%
IFRS 13
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18

2018 2017
2,325 2,370
1,041 1,211
445 833
1,694 2,273
393 430
28 6 6
527 838
6,431 7,961

2018 2017
1,200 1,154
463 1,090
31 29
1,694 2,273

2018
89 2017 15
2018 2018 12 31
536 (89) (36) 411
80 ©) () 65
8 - ) 4
624 (96) (48) 480
2017 2017 12 31

593 (15) 42) 536
133 an (36) 80
8 - - 8
734 (32) (78) 624

2018 2017
957 1,069
13 107
(507) (83)
- (€))
463 1,090
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19
268 2017 992
138
B.V. 108
20
2018 2017
986 1,139
18,280 17,384
91 396
40 3
19,397 18,922
21
2018 2017
85,511 77,914
71,203 74,536
175,932 178,162
13 108
9,750 9,961
1 1
342,410 340,682

20 2017 23
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22
2018 2017
19,927 26,749
9,802 10,978
86,793 85,458
14,284 11,238
130,806 134,423
23
400 2017 581
24
2018 2017
5,906 9,803
708 3,989
6,614 13,792
IAS 39
IFRS
41 2017 833
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318 2017 5,223 IAS 39
IFRS
25
2018 2017

4,241 5,843

1,894 2,117

28 254 292

(47) 19

6,342 8,271

26
2018 2017

318 332

469 591

4.3.3 109 20

230 594

1,126 1,537
2018 332 591 594 1,517
213 109 108 430
(134) (214) (415) (763)
(93) Qan (57) (167)
2018 12 31 318 469 230 1,017
2017 461 770 244 1,475
309 149 448 906
(288) (300) (90) (678)
(150) (28) ) (186)
2017 12 31 332 591 594 1,517

151 2017 192
2019 2020
SME 52
2017 51 4.10
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2018 12 31
2017 12 31

917
1,421

267/506

207
116

2 1,126
- 1,537
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27
1,458 2017 1,544
2018 12 31
2018 12 31
42 ©) 8 -
296 (16) (52) -
33 @ 9 -
105 - (6) -
187 (113) (39) -
121 (68) 28 -
14 - - -
(35) 2 (26) (35)
- 11 - @) 3
- - 8 - 8
8 i - 40
58 647 199 -
325 0 92 -
1,165 452 211 16
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2017 12 31
50 @ 7 -
229 (23) 72 -
25 17 35 -
37 - (51) -
582 (32) - -
154 (8%) 8 -
13 @ 4 -
(86) 1 9 50
- 11 - - )
208 - - 107
95 487 (71 -
415 32 131 -
1,733 396 144 148
28
2018 2017
] (6) (®)
- 254 292
248 286
118 152
130 134
248 286
28.1
68
2013 500
2014 2020
217 2017 200
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IAS 19
2018 12 31
IFRS 2018

2017 ACC

2018 2017
487 748
369 596
118 152

2018 2017
748 758
@ Q)
16 14
(22) 24)
(232) -
3 5
@ ®)
@ @
(23) 9
12 31 487 748
11 596 600
@ (©)
9 11
30 10
2) (29)
(240) -
@ -
- @
@ 3
12 31 369 596
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2018 2017
16 14
® 11)
6 @
13 2
2018 2017
2.0% 1.7%
1.6% 1.8%
1.6% 1.8%
2018 2017 2018 2017
0.25% 12) (25) 13 26
0.25% 6 17 (6) an
0.25% - 7 - ©)
12 21 12) 1)
2019 2018
17 2017 17
28.2
37 2017 35
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2018 2017
16,485 16,137
13 33
16,498 16,170
2029 2024
500 4.00% 2017
1,500 3.75% 2016 2026
2025 2020
225 5.00% 2015
2025 2020
475 2015
1,500 4.375% 2015 2025
1,250 5. 25% 2015 2045
1,000 4.625% 2014 2029
2026 2021
2,000 2.50% 2014
50,800 1.429% 2014 2024
1,000 3.875% 2013 2023
1,750 4.625% 2013 2023
1,250 5. 75% 2013 2043
1,000 4.125% 2012 2022
500 5. 25% 2012 2027
1,500 3.95% 2012 2022
1,000 3.75% 2010 2020
1,000 5.875% 2009 2019
10 4.21% 2005 2025
10 5.32% 2004 2024
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30
2018 2017
3,377 3,406
32,583 32,965
20,273 18,154
56,233 54,525
197 2017 74 4.10
2019 29 29
a EU 575
2013
2019
2015 2018
2015 2016 2018
1.5 5.5 1.25 6.625 1.0
4.625 140 2017 96
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2018 2017
120 124
361 394
233 259
714 777
2017
30 2017 41
2018 2017
589 714
1,132 1,244
107 84
1,828 2,042
518
2017 784
31
2018 2017
@817 (938)
n/a 464
240 n/a
(40) 42)
30 n/a
(35) (35)
(145) (225)
(3D (625)
28,062 26,777
27,264 25,376
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2018 2017
(938) 203
(16) (1,239)
132 197
(16) (11)
21 (88)
(817) (938)
464 571
(464) -
- 12
- 22
- (67
- 6
- (75)
- ®)
- 464
- n/a
243 n/a
(@) n/a
(68) n/a
(62) n/a
(88) n/a
- n/a
23 n/a
- n/a
225 n/a
(€)) n/a
- n/a
(6) n/a
(€)) n/a
- n/a
217 n/a
(42) (70)
3 -
8 -
(16) (594)
7 622
(40) “42)
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2018 2017
- n/a
- n/a
(€D) n/a
31 n/a
30 n/a
(35) (70)
- 35
(35) (35)
(225) (219)
4 (6)
20 -
56 -
(145) (225)
(625) (303)
483 -
111 (318)
- @
(€1)) (625)
26,777 25,709
(475) -
2,944 2,616
(1,059) (1,113)
(79) (439)
- 108
(56) -
10 (104)
28,062 26,777
27,264 25,376
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32
Tier 2014
297,961,365 25
AK
2018 1.625 2017 1.625
25
2017 1.5 60
25 108
2018 2017
7,440 5,948
- 1,500
5 ®)
7,445 7,440
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33 v
v
2018 2017
6,493 5,759
164 166
v 389 394
v 7,046 6,319
33.1
1,000
4.625 2018 11
2018 12 29 2025 12 29 2025 12 29
4.098
1,250
6.625 2016 26
2016 29 2021 29 2021 29
6.697
1,500
5.5 2015 22 2015
29 2020 29 2020 29

5.25
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500
9.94 2009 27 2010
27 2019 27 Euribor 7.50
2,868
11.0 2009 2009
12 31 2019 30 Libor 10.868
250
6.567 2008 10
2008 12 10 2038 10 Libor 2.825
33.2
350
2008 27 350
2018 27
323
2008 14 323

2018 14
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33.3
280
3.75 2009 25 8.7864
2009 27 2009 18
2014 18 3.75
2019 18 90
3.75
33.4 v
2004 v
v
350,000 2019 12 31 5.556
Libor 1.4600
350 2019 12 31
2018 2017
394 409
®) (15)
389 394
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34
2018 2017
475 525
60 58
® @D
9 7
(58) (81)
@ ®
481 475
AGCO SNC
B.V. 51
60 2017 75
B.V.
2018 2017
57 55
13 13
13 13
7 7
22 -
693 686
152 168
697 670
25 31
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AGCO SNC 51.0
106 2017 97
AGCO SNC
2018 2017
36 39
16 18
16 18
8 9
3 10
1,536 1,412
55 54
1,348 1,237
34 29
35
2018 12 31
134,423 16,170 150,593
(6,039) 1) (6,060)
272 342 614
2,150 7 2,157
130,806 16,498 147,304
2017 12 31
159,342 16,861 176,203
(16,723) 409 (16,314)
(7,750) (1,119) (8.869)
(446) 19 427)
134,423 16,170 150,593
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2018 2017

347 275

295 319

15,001 15,343
(320) (414)

n/a 752

637 n/a
15,960 16,275

36 39

1 26

49 n/a

152 149

83 82

321 296
16,281 16,571

173 382

2,587 2,158
3,026 3,053

10 21

758 615

199 461

713 741

259 289

(©)) 8

7,722 7,728
8,559 8,843

2017 19
2017

485 2017 168
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2018 2017
726 699
564 543
326 328
276 270
8 21
6 6
200 234
2,106 2,101
56 63
61 41
9 10
49 72
175 186
1,931 1,915
2018 2017
1,754 1,645
1,352 1,279
402 366
768 684
601 534
167 150
25 18
11 12
14 6

583 522
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39
2018 2017
242 246
1 @
243 245
40
2018 2017
225 127
5) 13
21 n/a
(©)) (35)
- (21)
238 84
2017 34
i) ii)
2018 2017
(310) (538)
24 43
538 684
(1% (105)
238 84
14 2017 248
41
2018 2017
(10) n/a
119 3
231 231
340 234
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42
2018 2017
2,698 2,814
348 320
- 400 570
- 13 2
8 3
811 763
4,278 4,472
41,861 2017 43,729
CRD 111
20
100
50
50 DRN
DRN NYSE RC
DRN DRN NYSE
DRN
DRN
DRN

IAS 19

286/506



EDINETOOOO

O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)

OooooOodd
100,000
DRN
2018 12 31 14 2017 14
34 2018 12 31 2017 35
16 2017 12 180
2017 177 DRN
2018 2017
1,412 1,370
455 415
(348) (353)
(35) (20)
1,484 1,412
DRN
2018 12 31
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
DRN 181.0 13.4 3.5 1.7 0.1 0.1 199.8
DRN 10.2 15.8 10.6 3.2 1.7 0.1 0.1 41.8
191.2 29.2 14.2 4.9 1.8 0.2 0.1 241.6
2017 12 31
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
DRN 175.6 10.1 12.2 1.9 - 199.9
DRN 11.6 12 9.7 10.6 1.8 45.8
187.2 22.2 21.9 12.5 1.8 245.7
43
2018 2017
262 721
I 809 751
420 395
206 190
151 152
66 119
866 848
2,780 3,176
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44
2018 2017
244 238
144 168
388 406
45
45a
2018
315
®)
117)
(©)
190
45b
2017
1
(38)
(152)
@
(190)
46
10
0.044 0.022 2017 12
2018 139 2017 161
2018 20 2017 2018
11 2017 11
2016 SRF
SRM
SRF 2018 190 2017

184
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2015 2016
0.8 2018
118 2017 142
47
2018 2017

727 833

(26) (11)

(10) ®

211 144

902 958

23.1 2017 26.4
2018 2017

3,906 3,632

25 b 977 25 b 908

2.6)% (101) G.1)% (112)

1.3 % 52 0.8 % 29

1.7 % 65 1.8 % 66

0.3)% (10) 0.2)% ®)

(4.5)% (174) 0.1)% ®)

(0.5)% (18) (0.3)% 11)

1.3 4% 51 (1.6)% (59)

1.5 % 60 4.1 % 148

23.1 % 902 26.4 % 958

2017 RNA
48
IAS 24
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50
28
2018 2017 2018 2017

397 503 - -

- 372 44 -

(378) (478) - -

12 31 19 397 44 -
12 31 19 397 44 -
6,946 7,181 - 29

263 654 38 -

(1,017) (889) - (29)

(130) - - -

12 31 6,062 6,946 38 -
262 416 - -

6 10 - -

237 260 - -

15 18 - -

258 288 - -

244 332 - _

- ) - -

244 327 - -
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49

PwC 2018

2018 2017
PwC PwC

PwC PwC
9.8 7.5 17.3 9.5 7.1 16.6
0.5 0.5 1.0 0.4 0.4 0.8
- 0.3 0.3 - 0.4 0.4
- 0.6 0.6 - 0.2 0.2
10.3 8.9 19.2 9.9 8.1 18.0

PwC
EU 537 2015 10
2.9
TLTRO 11
3850N
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50
55
42
2018 10.2 2017
8.6
2017 10

884 26 188 75 1,173

884 26 188 - 1,098

800 26 168 2 996

980 26 211 - 1,217

750 26 156 11 943

750 26 156 - 932

884 26 188 3 1,101

884 26 188 - 1,008

650 26 132 50 858

650 26 132 23 831

2018 8,116 260 1,707 164 10,247
5,717 175 1,216 14 7,122

1,178 34 252 8 1,472

2017 6,895 209 1,468 22 8,594

2019
CRO CRO 2019
884,000
2018 DRN 2,761 78,554
2017 DRN 1,963 486
2018 99,384

2015
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1.2 2017 1.3
VAT

2016 10 VAT

2016 10

90,000
20,000
20,000
30,000
220,000

VAT

90

90

2018 18 33

104

110

110

220

90

140

2018 12 12 5

2018 992
2017 1,050

2018 2017 2018 2017
5.8 4.1 1.9 1.3
- 0.8 0.4 0.7
(0.5) 1.3) (0.3) (0.1
- (1.8) - -
- 3.9 0.2 -
12 31 5.3 5.7 2.1 1.9
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2018 12 31
0.5 2.6
0.2 4.6
0.9 2.1
1.4 3.9
0.1 5.8
1.2 2.0
0.9 2.3
%
2017 12 31
0.5 2.6
0.2 4.0
0.9 2.1
1.8 4.3
0.2 5.8
1.2 2.0
0.9 2.3
%
2018 12 31
0.2 5.2
1.3 1.7
0.6 2.5
%
2017 12 31
1.4 2.0
0.4 2.1

2018
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B.V.
2018 23,001
2018 12 31
14,995
4,836 B.V.
2018 12 31
800
2,370
51
2018 12 31
2018 12 31
DLL B.V. 100% 100%
BPD B.V. 100% 100%
N.V. 100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
2018
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52
52.1
2018 12 31
2018 2017
8,743 17,286
12,928 12,847
21,671 30,133
2018 12 31 18,887 2017 30,398
52.2
12 31
2018 2017
91 396
13 108
104 504

2018 12 31 92 2017 458
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52.3
2.15
80,842 2017 76,803
78,880 2017 74,819 72
2017 76
4,938 2017 4,252
4,938 2017 4,252
52.4
2018 2017
82 43
2,536 3,297
27,499 13,509
77 92
126 126
- n/a
n/a 4,195
4,223 n/a

34,543 21,262
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53

53.1

STORM  GREEN STORM
STRONG DLL LEAP Warehouse Trust No.1 DLL Securitization Trust 2017-A DLL 2018-1 LLC
DLL 2018-2 LLC

ABCP

ABCP

53.2

RMBS ABS CDO
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
7 52 59 2 63 65
- - - 106 106
2 267 269 n/a n/a n/a
131 - 131 246 - 246
798 - 798 501 - 501
142 - 142 n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a 28 28 56
98 253 351 - 290 290
1,178 572 1,750 777 487 1,264
26 - 26 (€H) - @
182 - 182 213 - 213
208 - 208 212 - 212
2017
54
2019 15
2019
PRA
PRA FCA
ECB PRA FCA
2018 WRR

2018 12 31 2019 13
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2018 12 31

2019

13

C0S0

C0s0
2018 12 31
2018 12 31

404
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2013

241



56

CFO
CRO

2019

13
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
* *
1 72,786 9,174,675 66,233 8,348,670
2 330 41,597 498 62,773
8,238 1,038,400 16,786 2,115,875
20,994 2,646,294 24,879 3,135,998
3 29,232 3,684,694 41,665 5,251,873
1,556 196,134 1,938 244,285
369,461 46,570,559 363,777 45,854,091
13,120 1,653,776 13,076 1,648,230
4 384,137 48,420,469 378,791 47,746,606
5 67,299 8,483,039 76,384 9,628,203
6 253 31,891 220 27,731
7 13,555 1,708,608 13,536 1,706,213
8 1,722 217,058 1,745 219,957
9 419 52,815 437 55,084
10 1,451 182,899 1,700 214,285
11 4,180 526,889 4,557 574,410
12 25,252 3,183,015 28,947 3,648,769
905 114,075 1,103 139,033
601,521 75,821,722 615,816 77,623,607
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
* *

80 10,084 359 45,252

19,497 2,457,597 18,701 2,357,261
14 19,577 2,467,681 19,060 2,402,513

135,441 17,072,338 135,248 17,048,010

13 1,639 107 13,487

191,202 24,101,012 192,074 24,210,928
15 326,656 41,174,989 327,429 41,272,425
16 111,171 14,013,105 123,008 15,505,158
17 58,784 7,409,723 59,409 7,488,504
12 24,225 3,053,561 28,461 3,587,509
1,767 222,730 1,961 247,184
18 1,100 138,655 1,215 153,151
19 16,875 2,127,094 16,532 2,083,859
560,155 70,607,538 577,075 72,740,304

7,445 938,442 7,440 937,812

6,657 839,115 5,925 746,846

199 25,084 386 48,655

(252) (31,765) (359) (45,252)

24,373 3,072,217 22,733 2,865,495

2,944 371,001 2,616 329,747
20 41,366 5,214,184 38,741 4,883,303
601,521 75,821,722 615,816 77,623,607
28 64,342 8,110,309 62,035 7,819,512
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
* *
21 14,070 1,773,524 14,393 1,814,238
21 8,333 1,050,375 8,585 1,082,139
21 5,737 723,149 5,808 732,008
22 1,856 233,949 1,818 229,159
22 135 17,017 126 15,882
22 1,721 216,932 1,692 213,277
23 1,889 238,108 2,344 295,461
87 10,966 (165) (20,798)
(465) (58,613) (1,132) (142,689)
236 29,748 263 33,151
(142) (17.899) (1.034) (130, 336)
336 42,353 343 43,235
9,541 1,202,643 9,153 1,153,736
24 3,233 407,520 3,392 427,562
2,237 281,974 2,259 284,747
332 41,849 337 42,479
5,802 731,342 5,988 754,787
o) (378) @172) (21,681)
25 428 53,949 446 56,218
3,314 417,730 2,891 364,411
26 370 46,639 275 34,664
2,944 371,001 2,616 329,747
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Tier Tier Tier
2014 CRD IV CRR
2016 2019
CRD IV CRR
CET Tier
4.5% 6.0% 8.0%
1.75% 1.75% 1.75%
2016 - 2019 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
CET 16.0 2017 15.5
50
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@
not probable ()

more likely than not

)
(i) (i)

307/506



EDINETOOOO
O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)

ooooooo
Euribor
2016
2016 SME
2016
2016 12 19
Euribor
Kifid 2015 SME
SME 316
2017 450 2018
2018 532
2018 30 N.V.

10
2018 12 31
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Libor Euribor
2013 10 29 Libor Euribor
2013
USD Libor GBP Libor
JPY Libor Tibor Tibor Euribor

Libor Euribor

92

101
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2018 2017
35 2
295 496
330 498

2018 2017
16,648 25,746
12,584 15,919
29,232 41,665
11,277 19,945
4,958 8,705
4,916 4,452
5,349 4,921
186 345
2,546 3,297
29,232 41,665

6,756 2017 17,037
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2018 2017
1,556 1,938
369,461 363,777
13,120 13,076
384,137 378,791
60,451 61,160
229,094 231,540
147 762
205 4
1,659 -
382,126 378,025
384,137 378,791
44,000 40,564
15,526 16,504
25,280 23,327
81,897 80,353
211,099 212,028
4,324 5,249
382,126 378,025
17% 17%
29% 29%
54% 54%
100% 100%

12,131 2017 12,861
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2018 2017
11,414 20,438
55,885 55,946
67,299 76,384
2,693 1,499
64,442 74,630
164 255
67,299 76,384
51,030 51,104
15,479 24,594
51,820 51,790
67,299 76,384

2018 2017

242 220
11 -
253 220
11 48
242 172

253 220
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7
2018 2017
3,630 4,555
9,925 8,981
13,555 13,536
13,536 15,179
55 800
(©) (435)
(1,240) -
1,816 2,288
(332) (3.,082)
(84) (1,175)
(193) (39)
12 31 13,555 13,536
8
B.V.
2018 2017
1,722 1,745
1,722 1,745
1,745 1,699
8 1
€Y -
68 35
(61) 12
@GN @
12 31 1,722 1,745
9
2018 2017
- 2
419 435
419 437
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- 2018
2 435 437
- 102 102
@ (44) (46)
n/a (116) (116)
o - o
1 42 43
12 31 - 419 419
3 977 980
- 2017

2 475 477
- 149 149
- (41) (41)
n/a (131) (131)
- (31) (31)
14 14
12 31 435 437
3 1,250 1,253

10

2017
1,212 1,397
239 303
1,451 1,700
- 2018

1,397 303 1,700
30 64 94
® @) (13)
(91) - (91)
(90) (126) (216)
(85) @ @7
45 - 45
12 7 19
12 31 1,212 239 1,451
1,188 654 1,842
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1,393 361 1,754
57 55 112
(62) ® (68)
(103) (103) (206)
1) - 1)

4 1 43

161 G) 156

12 31 1,397 303 1,700
1,230 677 1,907

11
2018 2017

252 156

727 1,017

3 4

3,198 3,380

4,180 4,557

12
2018 2017

22,393 25,747

2,859 3,200

25,252 28,947

23,794 28,025

431 436

24,225 28,461
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2018 12 31
2,984,214 15,165 13,319
0TC 2,894,546 15,164 13,319
89,668 1 -
388,586 3,917 5,068
0TC 388,586 3,917 5,068
1,071 2 2
3,629 251 224
0TC 3,629 251 224
114,455 3,052 5,169
105,633 1,621 4,684
8,822 1,431 485
86 6 12
86 6 12
3,492,041 22,393 23,794
2017 12 31
2,496,409 17,882 16,819
0TC 2,447,319 17,882 16,819
49,090 - -
338,889 3,550 4,037
0TC 338,889 3,550 4,037
1,580 - 4
2,307 123 221
0TC 2,307 123 221
111,867 3,893 5,673
58,129 2,361 5,668
53,738 1,532 5
4,777 299 1,271
4,777 299 1,271
2,955,829 25,747 28,025
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13
2018 2017
35 2
147 762
2,693 1,499
11 -
2,886 2,263
295 496
64,442 74,630
242 220
205 4
65,184 75,350
50,993 51,103
75,350 80,687
71 (314)
1,741 1,604
(11,688) (5.185)
(812) (665)
522 a0
12 31 65,184 75,350
129 300
325 479
1,410 3,305
9,787 15,979
53,300 55,076
233 211
65,184 75,350
164 255
1,659 -
1,823 255
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2018 2017
15,883 15,709
3,671 3,343
23 8
19,577 19,060
4,580 5,122
507 2,121
5,410 1,369
2,635 3,747
393 1,018
6,052 5,683
19,577 19,060
20 2017 23
2018 2017
313,000 313,226
7,628 7,276
6,028 6,927
326,656 327,429
2018 2017
276,748 268,525
7,264 13,727
5,858 6,025
12,872 14,863
22,758 20,920
1,156 3,369
326,656 327,429
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16
2018 2017
81,477 83,035
29,694 39,973
111,171 123,008
4,414 7,320
11,645 14,223
23,277 29,671
47,168 48,062
24,667 23,732
111,171 123,008
17
2018
56
2018 2017
56,206 55,767
31 28
2,547 3,614
58,784 59,409
18
2018 2017
178 185
2 11
105 20
815 999
1,100 1,215
76 2017 84 102 2017
101
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2018 283 557 159 999
197 62 96 355
(90) (204) 112) (406)
(92) ) (34) (133)
2018 12 31 298 408 109 815
2017 418 730 127 1,275
276 139 94 509
(268) (293) 37 (598)
(143) (19) (25) (187)
2017 12 31 283 557 159 999
19
2018 2017
v 390 395
16,485 16,137
12 31 16,875 16,532
500 4.00% 2017 2029 2024
1,500 3.75% 2016 2026
2025 2020
225 5.00% 2015
2025 2020
475 2015
1,500 4.375% 2015 2025
1,250 5.250 2015 2045
1,000 4.625% 2014 2029
2026 2021
2,000 2.50% 2014
50,800 1.429% 2014 2024
1,000 3.875% 2013 2023
1,750 4.625% 2013 2023
1,250 5.75% 2013 2043
1,000 4.125% 2012 2022
500 5.250 2012 2027
1,500 3.95% 2012 2022
1,000 3.75% 2010 2020
1,000 5.875% 2009 2019
10 4.21% 2005 2025
10 5.32% 2004 2024
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20
2018
7,445 7,440
6,657 5,925
199 386
(252) (359)
24,373 22,733
2,944 2,616
41,366 38,741
Tier 2014
297,961,365 25
AK
2018 1.625 2017 1.625
25
2017 1.5 60
25 108
2018 2017
7,440 5,948
- 1,500
5 ®
7,445 7,440
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1,000
4.625 2018 11
2018 12 29 2025 12 29 2025 12 29
4.098
1,250
6.625 2016 26
2016 29 2021 29 2021 29
6.697
1,500
5.5 2015 22 2015
29 2020 29 2020 29
5.25
500
9.94 2009 27 2010
27 2019 27 Euribor 7.50
2,868
11.0 2009 2009

12 31 2019 30 Libor 10.868
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250

6.567 2008 10
2008 12 10 2038 10 Libor 2.825
280

3.75 2009 25 8.7864
2009 27 2009 18
2014 18 3.75
2019 18 90

3.75
350

2008 27 350

2018 27

323

2008 14 323

2018 14

2018 2017
5,925 7,821
75) (1,894)
1,000 -
® -
13 0)

12 31 6,657 5,925
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2018 2017

(40) 42)

24 205

185 223

30 n/a

199 386

386 431

7 -

5 9

(122) (633)

5 (©)

(82) 582

12 31 199 386

IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS 100
2018 2017

214 228

351 351

817) (938)

(252) (359)

(359) 752

14 30

121 (1,141)

12 31 (252) (359)
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2018 2017
(145) (225)
(31) (625)
24,549 23,583
24,373 22,733
(225) (219)
80 (6)
12 31 (145) (225)
(625) (303)
483 -
111 (318)
- *
12 31 (1) (625)
23,583 23,200
(475) -
2,616 1,960
(1,037) (1,091)
14 (30)
) -
(79) (439)
- 120
- 12)
(69) (125)
12 31 24,549 23,583
3,004 2017 2,674
2,944 2017 2,616 60 2017
2018 2017
41,366 38,741
\Y 389 394
481 475
IFRS ) 42,236 39,610
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2018 2017

341 269
515 549
11,007 10,863
(320) (414)
n/a 885
778 n/a
12,321 12,152
36 38
1,504 2,014
- 26

26 n/a

172 158

11 5
1,749 2,241
14,070 14,393
145 370
4,090 3,783
2,896 2,904
10 21

199 461
729 756
271 297
™ )
8,333 8,585
5,737 5,808

2018 2017

698 668
512 492
304 312
274 267

7 21

61 58
1,856 1,818
52 60

39 21

9 10

16 14

19 21

135 126
1,721 1,692
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23
2018 2017
5 20
1,816 2,288
68 35
- 1
1,889 2,344
24
2018 2017
2,006 2,084
249 222
349 520
629 566
3,233 3,392
34,400 2017 36,503
3,340 2017 3,106
32,330 2017 34,043
25
10
0.044 0.022 2017 12
2018 120 2017 136
2018 20 2017 2018
11 2017 11
2016 SRF
SRM SRF
2018 161 2017 152
2015 2016
0.8 2018

116 2017 140
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26
2018 2017

371 343
(©) (15)
2 (53)

370 275

11.2% 9.5%

25.0% 25.0%

2018
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27
12 31
2018 2017
8,238 16,786
13,120 13,076
21,358 29,862
12 31
2018 2017
80 359
13 107
93 466
2018 2017
2,536 3,297
18,667 8,020
3,286 4,195
24,489 15,512
28
2018 2017
7,712 7,412
33,839 33,967
22,791 20,656
64,342 62,035
15,667 14,975
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2018 2017
67 93
225 312
178 233
470 638
2017
2017 12
2019 29 a 29
a EU 575
2013
2019
2015 2018
2015 2016 2018
1.5 5.5 1.25 6.625 1.0
4.625 140 2017 96
403
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.

B.V.
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B.V.
FGH N.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
N.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
LLC LLC
LLC B
LLC 180
2018 12 11
2018 12 11
B.V.
B.V. B.V.
B.V. B.V.
B.V. B.V.
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29
2018
N.V. 2018 12
2018 12 31

DLL B.V. 100% 100%

BPD B.V. 100% 100%

N.V. 100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

30
33
2018
10.2 2017 8.6
884 26 188 75 1,173
884 26 188 - 1,098
800 26 168 2 996
980 26 211 - 1,217
750 26 156 11 943
750 26 156 - 932
884 26 188 3 1,101
884 26 188 - 1,098
650 26 132 50 858
650 26 132 23 831
2018 8,116 260 1,707 164 10,247
5,717 175 1,216 14 7,122
1,178 34 252 8 1,472
2017 6,895 209 1,468 22 8,594
2019 CRO
CRO 2019
884,000
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2018 DRN 2,761 78,554
2017 DRN 1,963 486
2018 99,384
2015
1.2 2017 1.3
VAT
2016 10 VAT
2016 10

90,000

20,000

20,000

30,000

220,000

VAT

90

90

2018 18 33

104

110

110

220

90

140

2018 12 12 5

2018 992
2017 1,050

2018 2017 2018 2017

5.8 4.1 1.9 1.3

- 0.8 0.4 0.7
(0.5) 1.3) (0.3) (0.1

- (1.8) - -

3.9 0.2 -

12 31 5.3 5.7 2.1 1.9
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2018 12 31
0.5 2.6
0.2 4.6
0.9 2.1
1.4 3.9
0.1 5.8
1.2 2.0
0.9 2.3
%
2017 12 31
0.5 2.6
0.2 4.0
0.9 2.1
1.8 4.3
0.2 5.8
1.2 2.0
0.9 2.3
%
2018 12 31
0.2 5.2
1.3 1.7
0.6 2.5
%
2017 12 31
1.4 2.0
0.4 2.1

2018
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B.V.
2018 23,001
2018 12 31
14,995
4,836 B.V.
2018 12 31
800
2,370
31
2,944 1,029
32
2019 15
2019
PRA
PRA  FCA
ECB PRA FCA
2018 WRR

2018 12 31 2019 13
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33

CFO
CRO

2019

13

336/506

EDINETOOOO
O000DO00oDO000o0Oo00oOodnoE.s23)
oOoOooodn

2019 17



Tier
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Comsolidated Stotement of Financlal Position

December 11 Decpmiver 31
iy i b of paros Wate 2008 amr
Aggin
Cath srud unh equivalmiy [ JERET ok B
LLsans wnedl adfwvances 80 credi instiutiony 7 1785 e
Firwnoiad assey held for irading 8 1878 170
IFruncilal ansets deabgrated o fair value * 17 (RT]
Firucial anety muinelitenly ot bair value 1 LiM im
esthaatives. n T2 T5.50%
s el a1 FUIDMETy [F} £36,590 Ax}554
Foruueil aasets ab e vadum harrgh ot smpralurmbos s 1 10,718 ik
dergilabde dor aaly Bnarcial aneet Lk} 4] fagan
Irsvestmentts b asscatates and ot venniney L} 23m 1521
Coptneh il e ot il el asuets 3 et 1,002
IPripend by and it 113 aas asar
Irvesiment propertie; 7 ] AL
Cuarveri tan avwsts 243 7%
Dberort Lun Bl n 1L (R1]
Osther misti " BALE T
Hon-CuTrend asets held for sale % 3 |z
Total asiats 590437 02,091
Liabilities
Dol o cred institutions. o LA T ALLFH]
Depoui fom custsmers 1 MIA BT
Dot savcusiibes bin bass o1 | 31,04 34,40
Fruncis Lisdbties heid o fraing n 409 ]
Trwrnial Latilies desgrated ot i valoe ol a1 13,798
Dot bwatives, i il 0
ot Wkslites 5 BT axm
Proviakom L (A, ] 1397
e tas lahad ey s ] HE
Dbt 1w lintelrrion n f14] 1
‘Subordrated batile & iLE ] 18100
Liahaities Pt T aciler - 58
Total Rabilithes S4B201 563,381
Equity
Ierteret and retained parmings mw IR A
Erpaty inainarments (ssed by Rabobank

Rabeckuand Cemcntes ¥} TALS a0
- Capitl Seaumine 1 AAT1 e
10408 W1
Bon-conirolbng inteers
ey inv s i by vorbdiasies
Capital St " 2] LT
= TrusPrelerred Seouriies IV n R 194
Oritver racafi-conioling e 14 45l 7%
1814 1,055
Totsl squity ALIIG pLEAL
Total ety and Babili e 590,437 802,991
1 A reporied uraded 145 39
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Consolidated Statement of Income
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Corvpolclriect gl Cowrpmew Frang gl
Slatermel Statgrmamnia

Comsolidated Stotement of incame

AT i e of Fafos

Wterettincome deoen b lasacts the o,
Other interest incnme

e EnpeTa

Rt inbivail income

inmteret P

e v commisson ing ome
e il COMMELSON FOpET
Hat faw and commisiion incoma.

fincome from ot oeeraiing acTviies
Expmrmias lom ot operating activile
Hert income from ather cperating activithes

Income hom imeesmenis in asocates and joint vens e

i ool il i Ay s o it il Fruanielal it § rinei ol 31 Armor e fo 4l
Gra§ fowses) on Francisl ssset snd liabiitie st Terwalue thiough profi o losy

Garnal Soases) on avalable fo sale fran el sasens

i o) on fnanci assets at i wadue thiough ot oomgeeheim oo

ot e

Income

Salf coana

Ot mEmanirative eepernie

(D e tiery il @imeod Lzabian
Opriating expsnses

Laan impaimment charge

impaerrrae chaige on francial sset
Rsquiniony levier
arating profit belars tas
lncoma b

Hat prafit for tha pear

O which attribiutod i Rabicbank

106 which attréuted b Rababank Cerfthtatey

0o wehih anribruted vo Capital Seouiters e by Rabobank
0 which e Cageiiad & sl by snstrtieilaid
O which sttribiuted 1o Trust Preferied Securiem &

o which stibuted towther non-commiBing inteei

Mot profit fas the year

4

4

Ar

For ot pror mdes Decemiter 11
2018 anr
15 e (L% LY
i 190
T T8
BA% LEL
FAL: m
ITS 186
1841 1,015
2547 FXTE]
1.4 1435
m1 L2
P HE
14 L]
I L1
4] 158
e nE

E 138
13830 §2.0010
43T 447r
Fh 1,178
38 LU ]
Tads 8,054
L] [LL ]
3] s
aTa 505
1504 LR H
[ L1 ]
ooy 6748
el 1400
Al B4
53 -]
14 Is

b aw
[ 58
Bo04 L

1 Ad reporied under IAS 35

2 Prosentation sdumied fiee nooe 2,17
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Comsolidated Stotement of Comprehensive income

sty in il of Faros ot 21 e
et profit for the year 1004 2,674

Ok compER e e inosee boesfemed to svalit o low F spenie conditaong ane e, e of Lo

Enchaarugss & Womsvativi &ofi tanalilion al heroegr egeaticr i (173 1081
ey (decrmd s in the far vaiye of svalable-lor e franoal s 1 L] (EF ]
Inrewia idecrease] in the T value of debi imirarrents ai fai value thogh othey comprehensse " 15m niw
InCoime

Gt of hesdgang ] ] Al
Eanh o hesiges 1] i EL]
Shane of other Comprkwenidar inCome of maoClabes and joint vmbues 3 B4 n
L] in - 1%
Db W el 4 b A 10 peoit o b, et of tor

i oip i Dyee Denetr obigy L] ™ .
i rman Gckpcrmaen] i Lot e v ] rquity i Irrmenty of Lar vabase Svougt other bamiasbmn " ” -
Income

Share od oiher comprebensie incne of maociates s joint vertures ] i 15
Doy i s e R w122 v £ 1 oty erae o LRI, irtnproan ot o e vk 1] T 125
Cithar comperehenshve incoms (AL 11,5045
Total comprehanalve income L SRE] 1,108
o whith attrbiuted to Rabobank, Ly L)
£ which attributed to Rabobank Certthcate ani s
O which attribubed o Capial Secermies ivissed by Rababank 53q 584
e whibch e tend b Captad § koo by waiteiield T 15
0 which sttritiutid o Trust Prefecred Sacuritien i n EH
08 which atiribubed to other non-comofing inteesiy 57 r
_‘Hﬂwm il 1,188
1 As reporied under A5 30
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Bqulty

NOT eI rng i eres
R Ol AU PR

A in millnsi of pur Nofe oo e mﬁrw e Munr; fither i

dpidiarien
Balande oo Decembesr 31, 2017 FER T 13,199 £ arsy BT
hanigr i S Couiiling poldy IFRE W' ) el
£hanges i accounting pollcy ITRS 15 ai = ~ . W
Restated balance om lamsary 1, 2008 .09 115 o) ars M
Bt prertt it hie v EXT] a . i A064
Oher comp eheneve iIngome: an L1E + [k} 131]
Total opmprehanslve income 1,057 . . 8T 114
Parprmertii ey Rababank Certileatoy |ana| . [t
IPaymments o Trust Prafesed Sacuritie i el | . . [ 3]
Parpthieiils o Cagital Setur et il Ly Rallsik 53 ‘ . . 3
Py v Cagital Sesenreation Iutussel by tustriiclianied L] ! 14
Reclemnption of Capital Secur e n iy [riet] - - [11.25]
s olf Capital Secunfties. # 1.060 1009
St ol st of Capital v - ] i
Sl bermeni peniion plin 15l . - - (32 5]
Orther 1] m m (] [ri3]
Balenas oo Docombetr 11, 3018 37,264 15,958 f131 aat ALY
Balance oo Jarvugry 1, 2077 pe ¥ ki 13,584 R b Fi] W05
Pt gresht ot Khe ot 1ae 548 ETY
Cother comprersniive incnme: n 511 ‘ - [vij 115443
Total cosmprehanalve income 1,168 . - ar 1,000
Faprnenily o Raliobank Crrtibeales Jasa) ! . . [
Parmariis o Trust Prafeered Securtie B [Fri] - - an
Fapments om Caphtal Securties isused by Rabohank 5521 ! . . 580
vt e Capltal Socustio niusd by wrldiae 5] . . . [1L5]
Theddermption of Capital Securtism i (a3 (LAn4) [FAEE:]
o Rabobank Ceriifcabes n 10 1500 - - a3
et of b of Rabobank Certifcanes (\F1] . . . nan
ey [idai Ll a4 (F ] [Fiih]
Balande oo Decombuar 11, 39T 1A 13,189 o] aTH WA

| S pote 11 Tew s amended tantards Kausd by the LASE and sdopted by the Curopean Urdcn which apply m the cument framcal yaar
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Comsalidated stotement of cash Tows

For ot pror mdes Decemiter 11
Ut in o of eeros Mole 2018 anr
s i fr ¥ -"'._ it
Oiparysieag provka berlore 1o 1908 1E07
Relpsted Yo
Mgvn-enh e resgeed im cpeming profe belone Fis
Depeeciaticon and amortizstion Al kLT ang
Dsnprvciation of Dpeuaring be b A5 And iTEmsnT peopee. 1817 ik -+ T/
Loan impaliment charges 4 Al [
Imparree chagee on financial sty A% Lo nis
tReveral] im [ popesty =T " L H] a5
(vl Irmsdisrend I on ot intengilse sl 15 2 n
Inpairrit lniisy ongoodvill and invetirsents in atiod b LE] - -
Ganar $od sea) on dapoial of property and squipment ¥ L
o from irstarments i asocees and jont vt i {233 [F21H
lnatiarrian [roem: dinpaisd ol suliidisie (1G] in
Gwna foases) on Frarcis ssses snd liabittie st fsirwalue thmugh profit or losy Ay [ralsl [L15]
Ganaiioiae o Sealitie for 1a% Anancial sy 13 (4] {15E)
camim [t oo o e ol ke at Fair wabuas thougm other comprehenshe income Al nn nm
G fom e} drfrig ez U e agiiition of Fnancial marti medwesind 4l smoiied woil 381} L]
Frovasionn. e FEL .
Caprulived cosn il devsboped 1oltware s other et (1L 1] [LE ]
It rhimge in apemiting st
Loans @ advanoes 10 and deposits irom (reciit irali stons T, D3, a5 RAS¥ [LE ]
Frsnokal siser held for tradieg W, 80 &N Wi
Tsrtwathory. 1] I ] 16847
LT ¥ e fr | aawety anct habiitie deigruled o for valor w4 nn [FI2 T
Mt Increaser (darmease)in francial aaseny mandaosaly at (e vilue L1} b i ]
Lzans sl sbvande 1o cuvlomesy 12,48 LAt -] w02
ot ool wregilalsle-for-iale Enancial gty L} ] M 5aan
dnrpusition of Anancisl sty at tale valus sheough other comprehensys ncoms " s nim
Priodeich B L i e epupmierl of awaililde o Labe Anardid Geietd 13 i Tz
mhwm-ﬂwmdmunmﬂumﬂwwm 1" 1919 i
Aruishticen ol opeatonal lease aseets 113 MmisH 1087
Progsech Seoen Lhe dugariall of opsraliznal e avisis 113 415 185
Dvicderis recesed bom saanclates ard Snancial aasets Lt L] us
vt g i skt pelaiing {0 opeuning ecTivilies
Dbt 1 FLLA ] ety
Trwrial Fatubine held or trading n nan {158
Depvsdrs B CUSIBTIE n {TaE) 89500
crther bl il (L] s
Income Ly paald R wn
Omher charges FRL 1408
Wt gk Mo 8058 D tieg arthitia 12426 0, 54Y
ol i B i g -
et of inweirnenis 0 arsocienes net of cash end cank equiniberns aoquired L[} [LEE] inam
oo bomn deiposl of ewerilents i sisea e met ol cash s dasdi squivalenta i4 E&} T4
Frocescn fom dipodal of weibtickaries rel of tant and cash oo % *
Axpuisition of proper . equipersend and e tmen properies LR L1 [ ]
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For the pror madnd Beormder 11

Procepcs feoem ha diapesial of (IOpSTTY, SOUPIMETT B eI propertiey 1817 g LIE:]
Hat cash Mo from i mreatisg activitio 248 o
Canly Do frowm Bnasging aotivities
Privceeech Broen dhobn securmes in v I 58 =R ] FLE
Welemptnmn of debn sbcuntiey m s wn RN IBE1210
Proceech fom the lnue of whonk | iabilities. EL1 . AT¥

jemp of 15 (FAL] L]
Puirchass of Rabotuink Cartifeansy 12 [LF-LLE) Wy
Sy of Hatmihark Cnbficate. L] 1) W
e o Capital Securities inchuding coat of iswes | a5 -
[Paprrenii ons Ralehank Cerribes es, TR Prodeinad Seoommie [V nd Capined Seoommiey 1058 {1118
Paprhietils e Sasniot Coriegen Muley [8ad L)
Feschermpiion of C apital Seturities " nsa E]
sue of Rabobaek Cevtificates (nchasing cost of inue) " 1,608
ek cash M frass Rnancing sct vities (e ] s
st changs im cash and cank squivalents 6313 ez
Lash ared cash equivalents. at the begrrnirg of the yesr ey B4 A0
Emchanegss rate diffenencey on caah and cash equvalens 1] [REES
Cawhi srwd sinh suivalenti it the sl ol the e pa KR [ A

The cath finws froe irteresd s irciudied in the net cash flew iom openting activitis:
sl reteived 15,663 18,095
e FAL ] raar

1 As roponed wunder GG
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements
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1. Corporate Information

Thee Comsolidared linancial statements of Rabobank include the
Siranicisl indormastsoen o Codperalivve Rabobunk LA dand its

congol idated subnidiaries
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2. Accounting Policies Habobank applies IFRS % as of January 1, 2018, Achmea BY, an

The primary accounting policies used in prepating thess
cornlidated finsncial statgments sne set out below,

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The Consalidated Financial Statements of Rabobank have besn
prepared In sccordance with interrational Financial Repoming
Srandards [IFAS) as ndapted by the European Unlan. The
consolidated finsncial staternents have besn prepared on the
lasis ol the accounting policies sl oul i this section,

New and Amended Standards Issued by the
Intermational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and

Adopted by the Eurapean Union Which Apply in the
Current Financial Year

RS 9 Firancial natrarienils
IFRS 9 MNinancial Instruments replaces 1AS 39 Financial

Instruments: Recognition and Measutement. (FRS © became
effectve on January 1, 2018 and Rabobank appies the
clasification, measurement snd impaiment redquiiementy
et pectively by adjusting the opening balance sheet and
opening retamed earnings a per lanuary 1, 2008 with no
restatement of comparative periads, The adoption of IFIS 9
Fimancial instruments resulttad in changes in accounting policias
and adjustrments 1o the amounts recognized in the inancial
statements, The nw accounting polickes arg set-aul in note
*Changes In accounting principles apg presentasion” and the
adjusted ameunts are set out bn nate Key Impacts of the
Implementation of IFRS 9.°

Amendiments toIFR 4
The amendments (o (FRS 4 permin amities that predominamiy

undertake induranie sCtvities the option 1o deler the elféctine
date of IFRS @ until Jaruary 1, 2020, The effect of such o deleral
&5 that the entities concerned may cantinue 1o repat wnder 1AS
39 Financla! Instruments: Recognitian and Meaturement

A5 28 Investments In aspociaies ard Joint Veniues reguire an
entity 1o apply undorm accounting policies when uing The
equity mothod, Neverheless, far anmal petisds beginhing
baloie Janaaty 1, 2021, an entity s pémmitted, but nat rquired,
o retainThe felavant accounting policies apgled by the associate
oF joknt wenture as fofiows: (a) the entity applies IFRS @ bu? the
astoclate ar joint veature applies the temporany exemptian from
BFRS 5 on (b} the entity applies the 1emposany exerrption fom
EFRS G lviah Ve associate of jolnt ventute applies IFRS B Theie
amendments ade effective for annual periods beginning onor
after lanuary 1, 2018

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

associate of Habobank, undeftakes insurance activitles and uses
the option 1o defer the eflective date of IFRS 9 and therefore still
appliss A4S 39, Rabubank uses the ternporany emgton 19 no
apply IFRS B when measuring Achmen BY accasding 1o the equity
methad.

MRS 15 Revenue from Coatrcts with Cugamers
Hababank applies FRS 13 as of Janwary 1, 2008 IFAS 15 replaces

LAS 11 ard 18, IFRIC 13, 15 and 18 .and SIC-31 and pravides a
principhed-based appaaach for reve o recognition, and
introduces the concept ol iecognizing tevenus lor oblgationsas
they are satalied, The standard does not apply to Tnancial
nstruments, Insurance contracts or lease contracts. The kmpact
of IFAS 15 for Rabobank cansts of 3 chamge o revenus
tecoaniton of some propery develooments whene revediue 15
recognized tung the tenm of the contract, Uinder (A5 18, revenue
wins recognlzed upan complrion of the cantract as the riks and
tewarnds towarnds cwrershio are transfemed at the end of the

ploject

Hababank used the transitien option 1o retaln the pior period
figuires a8 repormed under the previous vandards and recognized
he curulative effect of IFRS 15 a5 an increase 19 the opening
balance of equity as per fanuary 1, 2008 for an amouant of

LR 41 million. Furthermaee, real estate projects classified as
other asse1s increased by EUR 59 million and the deferred ras
liabilities increased by EUR 18 milion. Contiact assets and
liabilities have ot been sepamely presented in the slatemen
of fimancial potition a5 the amorts are Inslgnificant,

Othes Amwndvnents o MRS
Asof January 1, 2018, Rabobank appdes the mingr amendments

1o IFRS 2, IFRS 15, 540, IFRC 22 and the Annual improvements
1o (FRS Standards 2014-20016 Cycle. The implamentation of thess
changes has o impsdl onprodit or éguity.

Mew Standards lssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board {IASE) and Adopted by the European
Union Which De Not Yet Apply In the Current Financlal
Year

RS 16 Leases
In Lanuary 2016, the 1ASH Raued IFRS 16 Leared with an effective

diale of annual petiods beginning on or alter Janusy 1, 2009 FRS
16 replaces W5 17 and the telated inferpretations IFRIC 4, 5C-15
and SIC-77 and rewdlts In lessees acoounting for most leases
within the scope of the standard ina manrer simila 1o he way
iy wbich finange leaes ae cubtgntly acounted lof unde: RS 1T
Leases’, Rabobank will recognize a right of use’ asset and a
cosrespand|ng financlal labllity on the balance sheet. The asset

346/506



Lhuderiury
Fawwon|

will be amontized over the length of the kease and the financial
Habiliry will be measused at amonized cost. Lessot accounting
remais substantially the wame as It was under A5 17,

fabobank has finlshed it IFRS 18 program 1o collect all lease
contracts af Rabobank and to ensune mplementation of IFRS 16
calculations. Rabobank will apply the modified retrospective
approech which retains the prion period ligures as reported under
the previos standand and recognize; thie cumulathee effoct of
RS 16 a4 an incseais 1o the opening balanes af squity i per
January 1, 2008, The introduction of IFRS 16 doss nat Bayve an
impact gnequity of Rabotank and will leed 1o an increass of
assiety and liabdnkes as per Januany 1, 2019 for an amount of
approwimately EUR 610 millkon,

COrher Amendimenis to IFRS

Minor smefedminity have begn made 10 1A5 28, IA5 19, IFRS 9,
EFRIC 33, and the lisee al the Anaual Impravements 1o (FRS
Standards 2015-2017 Cycle. Although these new requlremants
are currently being anafyzed and their impact is not yet known,
Rabobank coes not expect that the implementaton of these
amendmerits will sigrificantly affect prafit or equity.

New Standards lssued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board (IASE] But Not Yet Endorsed by the
European Unlon

AFRS 17 innvance Contracts

inMay 2017, the W38 ssued RS 17 Imsutance Contracis’ with
an eflective date of annual periads beginning an or after laruary
1, 21, IFRS 17 establishes the principbes for the recognitian,
measurement, presentation and disclosee of Insutance contracts
within the scope of the standand. The objective of IFRS 17 510
enkare that an entimy proviges relevant information that faithfuly
tepresents thase contracts. This informanion ghves a basia Tar
i Gl financlal statements to asiess the effect that imurance
contrects have on the entity's financial podition, inancial
performance and cash Aows, Rabobank s currently assessng the
Impact af this standasd

Changes in Accounting Princples and Presantation

Chassification

From January 1, 2018, Rabobancclassifes iti financlal ausets in the

following measurement categaries:

+  thirse 1o be measured subsequently af falr value (ether
Uiy OC1, of thiough pealit o lossl, and

= thiovie Do be meaiuied 8 amortised codl

The crassification cepends an

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements
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1, Buminiess model assessment; Rabobank assesses its business
madais at 3 level that reflects how financlal assets ane
managed sean fram.a wwategic paing of view, Rabobank
coniders sl relevant evidence malable sl the ssesament
date, such as how the perfosmance of the business madel and
the financial assets beld in that moded Is evaluated and
reported and how the risks affecting the perdformance of the
busness mode| are managed. This assessment fesults in the
Talloweing business madels
+ Hold to colfect: where the financial asset ks hela within 3
busimess model whose objective is to hold financial assety
i gedied i collect contractual cash Naws; o

«  Hald 1o coliect and sell: where The financial asser (s held
within a business model whose objectve is achbeved by
bath collecting com actusl cash fows and selling financial
assots; o

+ Caher business model,

. Contraceual cash fienw ansoisment; Rabobank asictses
whaether the cash flcie of the financial assets ane solely
payment of principal and indarest on the principal amouant
oulstanding (3PP tes1) and, hence, conskstent with basic
lending amangements. In basic ksnding arangemenis, the
conibdarmtion far the time valus of money snd cedlt Ak ae
typically the mou significam elements of intenst. However in
wuch avangemants, intenest may st include consideration
far other batic lending risks (such as liquidity risk) and costs
[suchas adminisrative costs) associated with holding financial
astets for a paicular perad of time, Additvonally, interest may
inchude a profin margin consistent with a basc kending
arrangement.

]

Measurement

AL initial recognition, Rabobank measures a financial asset at ity
fair valee plus. in the case of a financla asset not 3t falr valoe
thanugh peafin o loss, transsction costs thar are daectly
attiitmtable (o the scqubition of the financial ssset Traniaction
corts o francial sssets measured at lai value through profit or
koss are cxpensed In profitor loss, Financlal sssetywithembedded
derhatives are consioered in theirentivety when detemmining
witiethar their cash foves are solely payment of princigal and
imengst Dervative linancial iInstruments ane inially ecognized
ardd subsegquently measued at fair value through pealin or loss

Impairment Allowances on Financlal Assets
The tules inchuded in IFAS 9 governing impasmaents apply (o

financial assets 3t amortized cost and financial assets at fair value
thaough GCH, as well s 10 ease recehvalklas, contract assers, trde
tecetvables, cemain boan commitinems and financial guatamess,
AL Initlal pecogniion, an allwande b recogrised for the srount
of the expecied onedit losses from possible defaults Inthe caming
12 manths {1 2-maonths expected credit loss' (ECLEL § credit risk

132

347/506



has increased sighificantly since arigination of a financial asset
(Bt remalns non-cedit mpaired), an sllewance s equined for
the armoand that equals the expecied credin losses from possible
delaults duning the expected lifdene of thie financisl s

1 Lifetime ECLY, If the fnancial instrumant becemes credit-
impakred the allowarce will remain at the Lietime ECL Howe'ser,
for thesa instruments the inferest income will be recognized by
2pplying the effectve interest rate on the ret camrying amount
iincluding the allowance) instead of the qroms carying amaount.
Firanc al Inuruments become coedit-impaled when one or mose
events have occured that had an advena impact on edtimated
future cash fova

Twa fundamental divers of the IFRS @ Impalrments requirements
are a) the methodalogy for the measuremant of 1 2Maonth and
Liferime Expecied Credit Losses and i) the crteria used to
detetming whether 2 12-Manth ECL, Wifetime ECL nan-ceedn
impakted, arl fetime BCL eredt-impaleed should be applied lals
meferred to as stage determinstion oiteral. In general, the
mettadotogy o determine expected cred 1 'osses s descrbed
lbelow. Further detasts ase included in section 2,18 Imipainmen
allowances on financial assets and the section ludgements and
Slimates.

a) Methadology fo Dennrrune Fxpectod et Lot
in order to determine BCLs Kabobank utilizes polint In time

Probabifiny of Default (PO) x Loss Given Default ILGD) « Exposuse
&t Defauli (EAD) modals for the majority of the portolio in waps,
Three glotal macroeconoma scenanos (consisting of o baseing,
a baseline minus and a baseline plut scenarial are Incofparated
Into these models and probabllity welghted |n cader to determine
the expected credit lodse. For stage 3 fimanclal assets that ane
assessed on an indivicual basis, a discounted cash Mo
calculielon is perfiormed which i based on the welghted average
of the net present value of expected future cash Ao in thres
différent seeniation a witalnable cuig, an oplimlring and &
Npuaclation scenario,

When unexpected external developments or data quality hisees
are ot wifcertly covered by the outcome of the ECL modsals,

an adjustmien will Be made.

i) Stage Derermination Critevia
In oider bo allocate fnancial insttuments in cope betwesn the

calegories | 2-month ECL (s2age 1], Lifetime ECL Mon-Credit-
impaired (stage 2) and Lifetime ECL Credit-tmpaired (stage 3)a
framewark of qualitative and quantitative factors nas been
developed. The crites for allocating a linancial Instiument 1o
ibagie 3 aie lully slicprieed vtk Chie Cilliia for psagning a delaulted
status, for eaimiple 90 days past due status, of If 3 debiot 4 likely
o become urable to pay its credit obligatians without liguidation

Annud Aeport 2008 - Consoldated Financial Starements

Maragement oot AppEnian lavormate

EDINETOOOO
O00OO00O000000000000040d0(ee5923)
Oooooood

Em—

of collateral by the bank la order 1o allocate financial instrumants
between stages 1.and 2, Habobank uses criteria, such as days past
dwe s1atws, special asser management staius and deterkalion

e the PO sibce odigination.

Far pantfolios without Individual PO ar with POD¥s that are nat
updated on alrequent bash swch that an assessment of the
change m PO s not possible, & collective assessment on Qroups
of financial Instrurments winhs shared credit risk charactadistics is

ififde.

Hedge Accounting

Hedge accounting 15 an optien IFRS offers 1o mitigate profit o
Izss wolatility caused by measurement differences between
granted lsans and isuead debi secueitles meatured at amortized
cot, assets measured an fair value throug® OC Medged vems)
and related hedging derhaatives measured at s value 1hrough
pradit or loss thedging Instrumentsl. Rabebank applies BRSO far
nign-portfolio hedge accounting. IFRS @ does not offer # solution
for fain value hedge accounting los @ podtfolio bedge of Intenest
rate risk Rabobank opted to use the accounting policy choloe of
EFHS to continue to apply the 1A% 39 EU caree-out for such

paitfalia hedge accounting

For nonepontioko hedge accounting an economic relationship
between the hedged fem and the hedging Instrument |5
requirad withcat the possiblling of a voluntarny de-designation of
tha hedge ielationship afterwade. Rabobank designates effective
no-port ol hedge sccounting relaionships with crok-
curtency vwaps by bifureating falr value changes resulting fram
thee crerss curpency basis spread, The fale value changes caused by
the bifurcated crom curmency Basi will be considersd oy costs of
hedging and ae sepasately recognized in other comprehensive
income. Rabobank has implemented this change prospeciively

a5 fram kanuary 1, 3018

Changes in Presentation of interest Income

As arcsult of a change In 1A% 1 due o the implementation of B-RS
2, interest Income an Ananclal assets wing the effective interest
imethad should be presentad separataly kn the statamant of
income. inlenest income on financal assels using the effective
Emeres] mesthiod incledes inverest income on Tash and cath
equbralenty, Loans and advances 1o credil inwitutiony’, 'L aans
and advanced to cutomen’, Financial assets at fal value through
other comprehensive income’ ard ‘Dervathees used for fale value
hedge-accounting’, The line-item 'Other ivdersst income telers
o inteeest incame on allorhers financial instruments. Refer 1o note
36 Met inberest income’ lor an overview ol all intesest Income

Wgiig,
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following table shaws a recondiliation between the consolidated
statement of financlal positian as repored per December 31,
2017 wder 145 39 and the restated amounts per lanuany 1, 2018

Key impacts of the implementation of IFRS 9
Thee implementation of IFES 9 resulted incan Increase of the

impasrment alowance of financia assers of EUR 237 millon

wfene tax, The impect of other movismerts due (o the FAS 9 wrigher IFRS 9
smplementaion b positve EUR 201 million before tax. The
Consolidated Statement of Financlal Position
Deperdes A1,
LT L S T Rep—— joruarny T, 3088
Amouney in mukons of euros oategoy VIS & iy Diher
gy LS M
' A ) R emesTeEenn’  (FRT
Ansrts
Caph g canh squivalerh L' M (L - - - eRAL
Lrans serefl addvanoes n banks ac I's 77354 ] al ] TAsL
Fruaniid gt hirkd For Ladedg Pl Pk 1.8y ] LI
okl i et Pt P 1194 w0y 5 i 1
I:“mmmlm- L -y ™ wa 1921 Qa4 50
Dertwathers ¥l L, b 255405 g + # 1AW
Loans e sdvances 1o
. a M a 12564 {2,788 RE"T] [FE*H ArRADE
Avallatae-for- sl Branchl nis g EITT (28009 - - A
asuety
Fewnoisl ansers ar tair value
Hwough ather comprehanam L] nis - rase? [} o] b
Income
Inv T in A aoriatet and
etz nia i 2570 . : 15
Goodwil aned olhes inlargitis
e i s ] L
Propedy and soupmen na AP s a = FEY
I i propertie nin e 1% - - - It
Cigrreni taw avusiy niw ns 175 . 51 = Vi
Deefersed Las Faeth nin i 1753 . . ) LT
Erther miseti i L rusl mn s ] ranl
Bn-ciment aniety hekd for uale i e w2 - - - vy
Total assets HO2991 E 168 |4y BOL 480
Lishilitias
Doty boam banks. ' M b 18922 = i) 18045
Deposits feosm customen A ''s t M0GE2 1B - o MIIE
Dol sl iy buin AL A L 184874 a7 “ [FH] 138,975
Plrmrckal Nekiieer held lor FeFL B L21] - - - 51
[P Wabelithes deslgraied m
T b L L0 b LEN, ] 510 1 L rary
Lestwatiee FeFL By b FLAL] an - ny 1541
O latslines i i LFH] n [ a3
Proedilern. LU na 1.5 - nr - L
Caarrert Lan liahiltiey i v T - ol i 24
D st 1w uabilrmies nis na S @ 193
Suilristitieatiec Lalalitses i na 1E1T - . - [LYE ]
Lisbiliyis Febd o nale L] LU 258 - - - Pt
Tartal Babilities 561,381 M 1@ |eaay 561498
Ecpty
Beérem and retaingd pammingt 2507 - [vmj red Hasm
EQMATY LTI e by
At 4
LEL e T T P40 1A
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m thui r.h-nn‘\ . gt Comonse i wm Lo pery Fransul
December B,
ot bl ol m’ m“ﬂ' - gt mﬁ:‘lmm o oy 1, 018
! Lo LFL] K et foastein madereeerity’  AFRS W

fapital brgurten T8 = g = A
REAL ] . . . JLRL

o fen roling SRR

gty inihrumiy s by

wstnigioriey

Capdtal Seomties 16 . . . 18

Truvt Predemed Sacurities i oa L]

Urher mon-cuntiolimg imeeily 4T3 - - - ars

1,035 - - - 1008
Total daisity fL T B nral 1 EeT
Total equety and liabilitias sanee % (LU |44 207,402

1 AL = drmpri b ¢ond, PV = R saiue thaooagh piolit or foss and FYOC) = Faie saboe Thicnsgt ofher ooempehemsisie inoome

3 Amcuints in the ook seiate o semsmrerens cssd by cdhanges n the measurement catpgery of eclevified franad nsouments

3 The colamn Reclisuheation” fun been sdutied o compated with the Intesim hnardal oaiemrerts 2018 due 1o hnandlal assets mandasacly a1 tar valud
thisiagh pedht o loas Bhat were presenied od Sraodisl ety designated ot lai wabee through piofit of ki o per 1 Janciscy 2018 Far an smours of
ELIR @56 reallon.

() Reciassifications and Remeasurements of Financlal Assers  Symmetis valuation and pitientation of the smbedded lang
The combination of the assetsment of 37 separate business bifurcated) derivathve and the edtermal hadging dervathee whilst
models and conttaciual cash flow characterstics (SPPI test) simutaneously exempting the funding host contract from ary
resulted in some differences in the compasition of financlal assess falr value changes that would previously have been accountad for
measured a1 amartired coat and at fals vadue, a5 compared to [AS  in ather compreheniie incame. Anbobank has decided 1o do
10 The mait signilfican change wa the meaturement of wome thii for callable nates anldy ard not o ather nates included in the
legacy, non-core petfolos in the business segments WRA and struciuied lunding postfolio, Since the callabhe baana creatie the
el estate. These portfolios were undergoing a pre-sales process  majarity af the fair value movements in the total comprehendive
ardd thenofone have been classified as *Other business modei®and  income. The total impact of this change Is pasithae ELR 554 million
21 maasurad at faif value through profit of loss. This resuleed In befare tax. The effective imerest rare of the reclassifed callalile
2 neagative impact of EUR 136 million before tas The ather notes determined an Jerwary 1, 2008 ik 3.3% and the interest
classilication changes of financial assets revulied Logether ina expense Tha has been recogriged m the statement of income in
positive Impact of EUR 67 milllon befane ta. The atered way of 2018 amoured 1o EUA 1 36million. As per December 31, 2018, the:
falr valse of these reclassified financial labilties is

ELAR 5442 milllion. An after tax gaby of EUR 124 million would have
beenrecognizedin total comprehensveinoome if these kabilities
haed pot been reckansifieg

accaunting for prepayment penalties and interest averaging
iresults i @ negative impact of EUR 304 million before tax.

b} Reclassifications and Remeasurements of Financial
Ligsbailities

The clasification and measurement of financial Fabilites under Reconcillation of impaimment Allowarnces

FFRS 9 remaing the same as under 145 39 with the exception of The following 1able econciles the impairment alzwances
financial liatdwies designated at falrvadee through profitand loss,  determired in accordance with KAS 33 a5 a1 December 31, 2007
fabobank has electad to reclassify the callable notes included in.~ 1o the Impalment allowances in accordance with IFRS § as per
the structured funding portfolio measured undes IAS 30 at fai lamuary 1, 2208 Tha 1AS 39 impakment methodology was based
walue 1o amortiged cosl under [FRS 9. The puipeie of this i to o an Tirgurted loss” model, meaning Lhat an slgwance s
further reduce the wotatility due 1o own credd standing detearrined when an insrument I8 credit-impabed, Next 1o the
mevements In total comprehenskbe Income resulting lram allmwance for these coedit impalred Instruments under BAS 38 also
callabbe notes. The reclassification of the callsble notes from fair an allowance was recognized for assets that wene in difficu Ries
walue theough profi a4 loss 1o amortized cost esulted n the It ot et reported as such (intumed but rot regarted], The
Eifurcazion af the embedded derreatives whilstat the same time allowance for instruments thar e credi impaired will gencrally

Oooooood

the funding hedt cantact b messared at amonized coe. The
amartized conl meansiement alue better rellects the purpose of
he [utikeng traniaction, This sccounting treatment cieales &
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align with the Mage 3 categary of IFRS 3, However, within the
expected credil lows amework of RS 9 the entire poitiolio of
finuncial lisstruments will be assigred an impairnent allowaice
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theough the additions of the 12-month ECL category (stage 1) and
e Lifetime BCL Mon-Credit-impaked (sago 2], generally leading
10 MCieases i overal impaitment alowances

Mdmm_ﬂﬂm Under IAS 39 and Provision Under 145 37 to Expected Credit Losses Under IFRS 9

Aoy m ko of rarcs roriegi i o | Mt alomis B

prapiersd amortsed coir danary 3, 3008
Losans wrsdl arbeances 1o barky 17 - 1 %
Loans sl advances fn cusomens A {03044 1] aam
Ferwnarial Bt it Faer valus INough cther comeesherive Inooms. . B ]
ther maeh m [F o) i
Teeasry relaied asseiy &5 . BS
Coedfit et conurgen Habsine n WT 17
Tatal 5404 1304y FE) as?

Sipge 1 Sioge ? Sioge Fustusl
Liarna | acvsnoe 1o buicy I ] w w
Lot el achvances 16 Eustomery i 27 e aser
TFrunciall sty st far value thiough other comprehenive income: ] ] L]
Outer sty . 2 1
il s rlatecd covtingent lulslilie n 12 |+ (k1)
Total impairmant slowances BRS 9 se sl lanwsry 1 2018 as7 aos prLt 57

Gaing Concern

The Managirg Board considers It approgeate 1o adopt the going
concern basls of accouming in peeparing these financial
tatgments buted on aforecain analyilswhich wippots the going
ONCErn AssUmptian

Judgments and Estimates

In preparing the conseldated firancial statements management
applied judgement with respect to estimates and assumptions
wnat affect the armoums reparmed for assers and liabilities, the
reporting of contingent assets and llab@nes ob the date of the
conolidated financial statements, and Lhe amounts reposted for
income and cupenses during the reparting perad.

The accounting principles listed below reguine critical estimates
st are based on assessments and assumptions. Athaugh
Management estimates are based on the modl caselul
asseasment af curment cifcumstances and activities on The batk
of mvallable firancial data and infonmiation, the actual resutts may
aheviate [rom these estimales.

Impoivment Aloeavices on Fnanciol dssers

Nabebank applies the thiee-stage expected credit low
impairnent models lor measuting and recognizing expicisd
credit losses which irmvale a significant degree of management
Jiedgemant. The impaimment methodology resuits inihe
recognition of allowances measured at an amount equal to 12-
month expacted credit losses (stage 1]; allowances meatured at

Anncs Aeport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Statements

an amount equal to lifetime expected credit kosses for financial
assos for which oredit sk has increased signiflcant'y since initlal
tecognrition but that are rot credit-impaied nanglsl assets
{isge 2 wad Arancial aksets that are credit-imgpained (stage 3).

Aabanank wies extimates ond management fudgement in the
detmmination of the expected credit los for the lollowing
altributes (refer to saction 216 impaliment aliowances on
financial assets for fenher datalk):

= Significant increase in credin ke judgment i required 1o
tramer asvels from stage | Lo stage 2

= Forward-laoking information: the estimation of expected
cred® kases for each stage and the assessment of significant
Increases incredit iskconsider infomation about past events
and current canditions & well as reasonable and suppanable
Todecans ol futune events and econamic conditians [forwasd
Inaking information], The eaimatian of forwarnd i
Inlormation requires judgment

= Maco-economic stenarios: Rabobank uses three globa'
macrgeconomic scenatos consiting of a baseline, a baseline
minus and a baseline phes sconadie, which are probahiliny
weeighted) |n thest BCL models to determing the expected
crudit ogbes. The expectied Credit loss ona financial asset 5
based on an unbiased probabil ty-weighted amaunt that &
determined by evaluating a range of possible and reasanable
outcames and neflects information avallabée on current
conditions and forecasts of tuture ecoromic conditions for the
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diffeeerd reglons. mpoiant variables ame gross domestic
prodect growth, unemployment rates and Inberest rates, These
forwarnd-ooking mactoeconomic forecasts reguire judgment
anid ane partly based oo imernal Rabobank reseerch,

« Mezsurement of expected credit losses: The prebability of
defaule (PO o loss gheen default (LGD]  exposure &t cefaull
[EALH Inputs are wsed to estimate expecied credit losses These
Inputs requine estimates in the follcwing way:

FI3 = The probabiling of defautt 5 an estimate of the
likeedibood of defaust over a given time horlzon,

+  EAD - The exposwre 3t default is an estimate of the
expoture 3l a fulure default date. 1aking into account
eupecied changes in 1he cxpasure ofter eoponing date,
LD = Ther ko cpitven chefault |5 an estimabe of the loss arsing
Im the cave where a delaull ocoursat agiven time s based
on the difference between the contractual cash Raws dus
ind thase that Habobank would expect 1o necetve,
Inchuding cash Ao expected from collateral and orher
credil enhancemernts

+  Measurement of Individually assessed linancial assat For
credit-impaired firancial assets that are svsessed on an

Individual basiz, a discounted cash flow cabou‘arion is

pefformed. [n many cases, judgment 14 reguied for the

etimation of the expected futuse cash (lows and 1the
welghting of the thiee soenanos.

Fair Watue of Finangial Assets and Liabifties
Indformateoe tegarding the determ:naticn of the fal value of

financial assets and linbikties is included in Section 49 Fair value
of financial sssots and labilities’ and Section 11 Demvatiees’,

Imparment of Goodwill Other intangilie Assets ard lrvestments i

Ansorigtes dnd Joinl Veatues
Goodwill and ather intanglbde assets e assessed for impalrment

- At least once & year - by comparing the recoversble value tothe
catiylig amaunt, whils investrmenty in asaociates snd oin
ventures are lested (o impairment when specific trigoess are
kdontified, The getemination of the recoverablo amaunt in an
impakment assessment of these assets requines estimates based
on gusted malket prices, prices ol comparable businesses,
present value or sther valuation 12chnigues, of 3 ComBanation
hereal, NeCeiIalng Management 1o make subjecime
jidgments and adsemptions, Because these eatimates and
avumptioni could resdt in dignificant difetenced to the
amaunts reported [T underlying cecumstances wene Lo change,
Thase estimates are considered to be cntical. The important
assumpaions far determining recovemble value of goodwill ane
setout in Section 15 and lor Invesiments in assoclates and joind
wenturs i bie seb oul in Seclion 14,

Anncs Aeport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Statements
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Esttmates ae wsed whendeterminlng the income tax charge and
the related curreny and deferred tan asses and labdiees Tay
el ment of fransactions b nol abwayscleer o certain and, in &
i ber of countiies, prios year tax returns often remaln open and
subject to taxauthority appeoval for lengthy periods. The tax
aszets and llabilities reported e based on the best avallable
imformation, and whee apolicable, on external advice.
Diffarences benwesn the final outcome and the estimates
odighnally mpde are accaunted for in the duient and defined no
autens and liabilities tn the pedod in which reatonatie cenainty
i obtamed

Clrher Provisions
I apphyirg 1AS 37 judgement i invahed indetermining whether

& present abligation exiss and In estimating the paobabilivy,
timing and amaunt of any cutflows, More nfsrmation on
jugements regarding the pravdilon for SME dervatives and the
restructuring prowision s included in Section 26 Provisions.

Seuactuned Enritioy
The consalidation of structured entithes is a oritical estimarte that

reulnes judgment and 1 describad In Section 53 Structured
entities,

2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Ther panticipating interests oves which Rabobank has control are
s sumsicliades fncluding structured entitied) snd theds ae
conolidated. Contiol b exercised over a pasticipating interaest i
the imvestor is entited o receive varable retums fom its
mwolvement in the paricipating nterest and has the abilty to
influence these retun thraugh its contral ower the panicipatirg
et Th ansets, Rabiies and profil and lons of theis
companies are fully consolidated,

Subsidearies are consolidated a5 from the date on which
Rabobank acgulires efféctive control and sulbsidiaries ase de-
conolidated as of the gate on which this contred  ceged
Transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on
trandactiont between and among Rabobank Group and It
subsidlaries are ¢liminated on conselication

Cimsi-guarantes Syitem

Following approval by the Dunch Cental Bank, the cross-
pusatandes systenm [ remnam of the previous cooperative
strudbuie of Rabobaik Group) was temminated on Dicember 11,
2018 There are no outstanding, residual and/or cantingont
fabilithes.
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Up until the system’s termination on December 11, 2018, the
remalning participants wiene:

= Codperatieve Rabobank LA

~ D Lisge Lanwden interrationa BY,

« Fabo Facteting BV, {previously named De Lage Landen Trade
Finance BV

= Rabo Lease BY. (peeviously named De Lage Landen Financlal
Services BV

« Mo D rect Fimancninag BV (previously named De Lage Landen
Firanciering BV )

2.2.2 Investrents in Assoclates and Joint Ventures
Evwestmiends In associkates and joink ventwes s initially

recognized st cost (including goodwil] and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, Its share
of poit-scguiition profits and kosses ae recognized in (e
Iregami ssement and its share of post-acquiiition mavemints
in reerves are recognized dinsctly In ather comprehershe
Income. The cumiulathie post-acguisition movements ae
incheded in the carrying armount of the investment.

Assoclates are entities aver which Habobank can exorcise
sigrificant influence and Inwhich igenenally holds between 20%
and 505 ol the voting rights but does not hase control, & jaint
wenlure i an sgreement belween one or more parties under
wihich the parties Jalntly hivee control and ane jolntly entiticd to
the net assats under the agreement. Unreafzed profits on
trandactions bepween Rabobank and 4 associates and joint
wentunes are eliminated in propartion o Rabobank's intenes) in
the respocthe astaciates and joint ventunes Unqealiped brsees ane
alsa eliminated unless the tranwaction indicates that an
Impairment loss should be recognited on the asseth) undeiiving
e Lransaction

2.3 Derivatives and Hedging

Derivativis ger iy compaise foreign #xc hange conlacly,
cunency and Infomest rate futures, fonwang rate agroments.
cumency and [ndenest @ate swaps and currency and Interest mie
options fwritten or acquited), Desivatives are recoqnized at fair
wvalue {excluding tramsaction costs) determined on the basis of
lrsped rrarber prices (with mid-prices being used fod EUR, LISD and
GAP derbrathoes that hinee 4 Bid-atk range), prices offered by
traden, discounted cash fow medelt and aption valuation
imodeh baved on cwrent mazkel prices and contract pices lor the
wndertying Instruments and refiecting the time value of monay,
wield cumves and the volatility of the underlying assets and
labilities, Dervatives are inchuded undes assers i their falr vabus
i presibiveg ared wische Tilebtins o thea Lalr vibue Iy negative.

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

Dertetives Nar Lled far Hedging
Reallzed and wnrealized galns and lossas on derivatives held for

nading are recognized at fair value in ‘Gainss Bosses) on financial
assets and |labilnes at lad value through pralis or loss’

Deregtives Lsed lov Hedging
Derivatives areused fior asset and llabdlity management of inflerest
12te rinks, credit risks and foreig n cusrency rsks. Rabobank agplies
iFRS @ for non-porfola bedge accaunting. IFRS 9 does ot offer
& walution fed (e vk hedos ecaunting for i partfalia hedge

of Interest e sk Rabobank aptedd towse the sscounting policy
chuke of IFRS % 1o contimae o apsly the 145 39 EU carvie-out for
such portfolio hedge accounting.
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At the time of iInception, deriatives are dasdgnated as one of the
following: (1] a hedge of the Tair valee of an asset, a group of
avsets o a Bability in the staement of inancial positian (fai value
tedgel, [} a hedge of future cash flows allocable to an asset or
labllity In the statement of findnclal position. an expected
tnsaction or a firm commitment [cash Now hedgek or (312
hedge of a net mvestment in a forelgn operation (et investment
hedgel. Hedge accounting is applied for dervatives designaned
Inthils manner provided that éamain critedis are met, including the

follewing:

Thete st be formal documentation ol the hediging Instrument,
the hadged item, the abjective of the hedge, the hedging
strategy. and the hedge relanionship; Documentation of the
asessment and analysis of the sources of hedge inefieciieness
and haw the hedges ratio 1 dotermined (FRS 9% The hedge mist
e expected to be effective, within B0% o 125% (IAS 39, In
coveting changes inthe hedged [bem's fale value of the cash Nown.
aliocable to the hedged ks during the antine repoting period;
The hedge must be continuously effective from the mament of
it Inception, Thers i an econamic relationithip bepsesan the
hedged tern and hedging instrument (IFRS 9,

1, Derivaties Uied for Falr Ve Hedge Aceounting
Changes In the fak value of derbathees that are designated as falr

walue hedges and are effective in term of the hedoed sk ae
tecognized in the siaement of income in 'Gaing/ (ledses] an
financial assets and Babilnies ar fair value thaough pealin o lass’,
1gether with the cornespanding changes in the faif values of the
astets of labilitied hedged,

Az ard when the hadge no konger meets the oiteria for hedge

accounting (apphying the tir value hedge madel}, the cumulat e
adjustrient 10 the lai value of 8 hedged imsrest-beating linancial
tmariend 4 amartbed thioagh profi amd ks over the iehseant

intenesl nepricing period
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2 Derrearnoes Used for Canh Faw Medge Acoournting
Changes In the falr valse of derivatives that are designated (and

ipuality) as cash flow hedges and that are effectve inoelation o
ihe hadgped risks are recogaided in other comprehenibe Income:
Ineffective tlemenisof the changes inthe falr value of dedvatbees
ame recognined In the statement of income. If a farecast
transaction or & recognized |lakiity results in the recognitioen of a
man-financial sset or llabilty, any deferred prolits or losses
Inclutied in ather comprehanuye incame ane transfered 1o the
Entisl enrrylng Armesisnt (eodt] af the st af Uabilicy. 7 all athes
cates, defemed armguntt included in atler compriahenshe
income ang Baken bo the staternent of incame in ‘Gaimy lloswesh
on financial assets and labilities at fair value theaugh peofin o
Eoss’ in the perods inwhich the hedged recognized Eability or the
forecast transaction was recagnizad in the statement of Incomsa

1 Dertearives Used for Ner investment Hedge Acoounting

The hedging Invttuments iied 1o hedge net investments In
forekgn aperations ars measured at falr value, with changes in the
fair value being recognized in clhar comprebensive noeme for
the portkan that (s determined o be an efectyve bedge. Changes
in the hedged eguity instrument resuliing from exchange-rate
fluetuntiond ane aho recaqnaized In ather comprehendhe Ineams.
Gaing and fogies accumulated in other compreheniive incarme
are reclassified to profit or losses when the equity instrurnest b
dispased aof.

4. Conty of Hedging
Th £ross currency basis spreads of Closs ouirency interesl rare

swaps in hedge accounting relstionships detgasted wath issued
by in foreign curmency ivescuded from designation. The cross
cwirency basls spread volatility Is Laken thraugh OC) a8 costs of
ledgirg and s reciassified to profil of loss in Uhe same periods as
when the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss
1l it iy of the fsued bond itime period of the relsted hadged
Aemi,

Although derhatives are used & cconomic hogges under
Rabobank's managed rsk positians, certaln dervative contracts
da nat gualify for hedge accounting under the specific IFRS rles.
Interest on devivatives held for econamic hedging pueiposes ame
shownunder interest expense, both theregeve and pay leg el the
derhative

2.4 Financial Assets and Liabilities Held for
Trading

Firang lal assers beld For trading are financlal assets scquired with
ke olifectbe of generating proflt liam short-lenm Buclusions in
jpifces of Wading mangins or thay are financial assets that fomm
jpart of portfalios characterized oy patiemns of short-term profit

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements
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participation. Financid assets held for trading are recognized a
fals value based on listed béd prices and 2l realized and unrealzed
tesubhs therefrom ae recognized under Galrg/ (lossesh on
financisl sssets and bl at Lair value iwough peali g losy’
EInterest eained on financial assets Is recognized as intenedt
Income. Dividends received from financial assets held for trading
ame reoognized as Gainsd (osset) on financlal assets ard Eabilities
at fadr value through profit or loss’

Financial lakiinkes hakd for tiading ane malnly negathe (i valuet
of disthvarives and dellvery ofiligations that arke on The the:
selling of securithes, Securites are vold short to realive gatns from
shorterm price fuctuations. The secwiies needed to settle
shiort sallas ane acquied through seouritkes kending and
1epurchasing agreements. Sacurities sald short are recognized at
Hair valuz on the reporuing date.

2.5 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Designated at Fair Value

O inltial recogniton, certain fimancial assets (ndluding direct and
Indirect investments in venture capltal and excluding assets hvid
for traaingh srd codain BEabilities may be ncheded as Flrancil
astets and liabifes desigrated o Lie valee' il this accounting
eliminates or significantly reduces any inconsistent freatmen
that would othenwlse have afsen upon messurement of the
assefs or liabllities or recognition of profits or losses on the hasks
of diffetant accounting palickes.

Intenest eamned and dise on sech assetsandliabilisies s recagnized
as interest income and sxpense, respectively, Other realized and
undealized gaing and kosses on the evaluation ol these financial
anstrumeniy o fair value are iInchided under Gains fedses) on
financial assets and Rabiltles at falr value theough profit or loss'
except for Falr value changss due o ewn coedit ik of financial
Msbilitiess desigriated at Mair walue Theds i vilue changes alted
Nao e pietdanied in other comprebernsive income under ling iem
Falr value changes duc 1o own credit rak on financial labllites
chesignated at fale valus'. fresenting these effects of changas in
credit risk in gther compeehanyive iIncome does not oeate of
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profi od e,

2.6 Day One Gains/ Losses

‘When wing falr value accounting at the inception of a firancial
Enstrument, any positive ar negatse difference between the
wmndaction price and the fair value refermed 1o as ‘day one gain/
keish s secounied for immediately undes 'Galng (losses) an
firaricial aisets dnd Rabilities at lair value thiough pealit g ke’
whem the saluation methad is based on obsenable inputs from
acthee markets. In all sdher cases, the entire day one gadnioss (s

119
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deferred and accounted for as Crber Habilities' or Oiher assets’.
Afterinitial recognition the deforred day one gaind loss s
recognized as @ gany loss o the extent it results from a change
Wi & Tactor {including tire slfects)

2.7 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
Other Comprehensive Income

Db Instruments that are held for collaction of conraciual cash
Haws and far 12lling the financial Aiiets, whers the ssees’ cail
florws pepresent solely payments of principal and intedean, ane
mavared at Lo value through other compeehensive iIncome and
enesented as Financial assets a2 falr value throwgh other
comprehensiee Income”

Firancial assers ar fair value theough orher comprebanmsive
indame ate insially recognioed at far vakue, inciuchng transaction
coits, hated on quoted bld prces or 3 values derbved fram cash
fiow modeds. The falr values of unlisted egulty Instruments are
estimated on Uhe casts of agpropeiate pricessanings ratios,
adjusted to reflect the specilic ciroumstances of the respeciive
FLLET ]

Mevermients in 1he catrying amount ste faen thirgagh OCE excepl
for the recogrition of imipairment gaing o2 losses., interest income
and Torcdgr cxchange gains and lodscy which are ecognized in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the
cwmulathe gain or loss peevioutly recognized in0C1 s reclessified
fram equity 10 peofin of loss, Brerest from these financial asses B
Incheted Innet intesedt Incame using the effecthae interest rate
method, Impairment losses are included in Impalrment charges
on financhal aseets’ in e staterment of income

‘Where Rabobankhas elected 1o present falr vabue gains and losses
o sty Irvestrments in OC], thers 14 no wubsegquent
ietlaitification of i value gl and sed 16 piolit o ki
followirg the deecognition of the invisstmant, Divicends from
such Investments continwe to be recognized In profit or loss as
other income when Rabobank's eight to recelve payments |s
astablishied.

2.8 Repurchase Agreements and Reverse
Repurchase Agreements

Financiall assets that are sold subject to relsled sale and
repurchase agreements are inciuded in the financial statements
under Financlal assers held for traging” or Financial assets ar fair
walue through other comprahendive Incoms’, a applicabile, The
Nability to the cowmerpany i mcluded under Tepasits rom
credit insitutians’ o 'Deposits from customess’, an applicable,

Annud Aeport 2008 - Consoldated Financial Starements
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Financlal assets acquined under everse sale and reverse
epurchase ageeements ane recognized as Loans and advanc s
1o ciedin instiutions” or Loans and advances 1o CUsiomers’ as
applical’e, The dilference between the salds and repurchasing
prices i recognized as Interest Incomelexpene over the term of
the agreament using the effective interest method.

2.9 Securitizations and (DelRecognition of
Financial Assets and Liabilities

Revogniton of Financis! Assets and Liafbiities
Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilties classifed as

fale valee through profit or loss and financlal assets at fair value
thaoiugh proficor koss which are requivec to be delivered within a
tegulatony-prescibed peod of in accomdance with marke
conventions are recognined on the transaction date. Financla
Engtruments carried at aman 2od oost e ecagnized on the
settbement date.

Sesuriliparions and Dencognition of Fnancial Assers and [ighdites
Hababank securnizes, sells and camles varous financial assets

Thete asers s jometimed sold 1 a special purpae antiny (SPE)
which then Baues secusities Ioindeston, Rabobank has the option
of setaining an interest inthese assets i the formeof subordinated
Intenest-onky strips, abondinated securlties, sperad accaunts,
senydcing rights, guarantees, put and call options or ather

s It

A financlal assot [or & pation theeof] |2 derecagnitied whene:

= The righvts to the cash flows from the st sple;

= The rghls to the cash flows ltom the asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are
Transfared;

= A conlractual obdigation i atiumed 1o tiariber the cash Nows
frorm the aswet and substantially all the ks and rewads have
been transfemed; ar

= Substarially 3 the risks and rewacds are neither transfemed
not retained but whee control over the asset is nok retained.

A Tnancial liabitiny ar 3 part thereof s derecagnized IF it ceases 1o
elu, Le, after the contrachaal abligation has beon hulfilled ar
cancelled of hat expited. Continaing involvemiont 4 recagnized
W Rabobank nefthar eiaing nod transfers substantially 3 the risks
and rewards and control has retaired. The asset is recagnized to
the extent af Rabobanks continuing irmvasemeant in e

Whiste a branaaction dor nal meet these conditian foi
derecognition, it Is recognized as 3 loan Tor which security has
been provided, To the extent that the transfer of a firancal asset
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does nat gualify for derecognition, Rabobank's contractusl rights
are not separately recognitred as derivatives B recognitian of these
insrruments and the wranslered asset, or the liabdny arising from
ihe Lransfer, woste 1 tesult in Uhe double recognition of the same
vights and obligatiens.

Peofits and losses on seomitizations and sale ransactions depend
parily on the caryng amounts of the assets vanslered. The
carmying amaunts of tnese assers aee allocated 1o the inteests
aald and retalned inlng the ielathve faly valued ol thete Inmersits
on the date of wabe. Any gaing ond losses e recognlzed through
il ard loas @t the time of teansler, The fair vatue of The
interests sold and retained |3 determined based on listed marke!
prices o 3t the prosent vahue of the futee expected cash lows
based on pricing modets that invalve several assumprions
regarding cred losses, discoun ranes, yield curves, paymen
freuency or ather facton.

2.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash eguivalents are highly liquid shon-tenm assets held at
central banis to meet curent cash eddigations mther than far
IveEStmERT o4 ather purposes. These it have farm of leas
than B0 diys Teom inception. Cadh equivalents are isadily
someertible 1o known amounts of cash and are subject o
insignificant risk of changes In value

2.11 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Liabilities

Wheere there Is legal right to offset recognlzed amaunts and it iy
imended 1o wetthe the expicted futute cash ows on 2 men basls
ot 1o realize the aswet and satibe the bability simultaneously,
financial assets and liabiities are offset and the nes amount (s
iecognized in the statemant of firancial pesition, This elaces
predominanly 1o derivalives ard reverse repurchaie
sgreements, Thie offsetting of Lies is addretsed in Section 226,

2.12 Foreign Currency

Fareign Entities
Trarusctizes and balanees inclyded In the firanclal stagements

o Indhvidual entities within Rabobank Group are reported in the
cuirency Lthal best redlectsy the economic realty of the individual
antity’s underlying operating environment ithe functional
CumEncy}.

Thiz eonaolidated linancal satements sde preenled in euos,

which is the pafent company's functional currency, The
statements af income and cash fiows of fomeign operations are
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translated Into Rabobank's presentation currency at the
enchange rates provalling on the transactlon dates, which
approximate the average e handgs rates o the reponing petiod,
and thee statarments of financlyl position are e lited & Lherates
prevaiing at the end of the reparting period. Exchange
differences arising on net Investments in forelgn operatians and
o loars and cther cumency Instuments designated as hedges
of these mvestments are tecognized in other comprehensve
income. On sake of 2 foreign eperation, these translation
afferences are tranidered 1o the gatersent al ingome it part of
thiz pealit of lass an the wle.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ariting an theacquisitkon of
a forelgn entity are mcognized as the assefs and Kabliities of the
forafgn entiry, and are nanmlated at the pravalling rate at the end
of the teponing period.

Fareign Currency Transactions

Transactonn In forelgn curencies ane transiated into the
functional currency at the exchange 1ates prevailing on the
vansaction dates Differences arsing on the settlement of
transactions oron the translation of monerary assots and fiailities
denaminated in fareign cumrenches are recagiized In the
statiment of incame i fossign exchange gans and ioases and
differences that qualify as nel investment hedges ane recognized
In othier comprehensive income. Tanslation diffierences on non-
monetary items measuned at falr value through profit or loss ane
tecoanized as partof the fair value galns of loises. Teanslation
differences on rod-monstany asers 31 Tk value through other
comprehontied Income ane Inchuded in the revaluation resenes
for equity instruments at falrvalie through sther comprebensihe
ncome,

2.13 Interest

Inteiedl income and expense pe recognized in Lthe statément al
predit or boss wsing the effective imensst method, The effective
Interest methed is a methad used for calculating the amonized
corst of a financial asset or afinanclal labllisy and for allocating the
brerest inoome or interest expense to the ieleyant perlod, The
ealculation inchades all fees paid of received between paiies to
vhe contract that ae an imagral par of the effective interes tae,
transaction eoats, and ol athet premiams o discounts Inteneat
Income shall be calculated by apphying the effective Infenest e
1o the gross canying amoum of a financial asset except for credit-
mpaked financial assets. For those fmancial assats, Rabobank
applies the efective interest rate to the amormized oot of the
financlal asset i subseguent repoiming periods. INtees mcome
e financial ssets uvng he elective intarel method include
ntenest income an 'Cash and cash equivalents’, ‘Loans and
advances to credit Institutions’, Loans and advances 1o
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customers, Firancial assets at faw value through athes
comprehensse income” and Dedivatives uted for falrvalue
hedge-acoounting’ Infetest on derivatives held for economic
Tedging purposes ane shiwn under ienest xpense, bolh the
tocelve and pay leg of the derbatrar,

2.14 Fees and Commissions

Habobankeams fee and commission incomefrom a dverss mnge
of terieds It peoddes 19 M cuMBmen. Cammiiiin samed far
the provitisn of services such b8 payrment wervices snd sdvisony
fews are gereraly recognized & the service i provided.
Commission received for negatiating a trandsactkon or fot
involvement in negotlations on behalf of third parties ifoe
example the acquisitian of a ponfalia of loans, shates of orhet
seLunles on the sake o purchase of compansss) is recognized
upon completan of the underlying transsction

2.15 Loans and Advances to Customers and

Loans and Advances to Credit
Institutions

Firanciall assets that are held [od collection of contisciual cosh
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and ngerest ane measured at amort ed cost ard
presented as Loars and advances to credit instituthons’ o 'Loans
and advances to customers’. AL inltlal iecognition, Rabobank
measures these financiad assets at ins faa value plod transacron
ooty that are directly artdbutable to the acdquisition of the
financial assel

Invtierest income fom these financial assets & inciuded In et
interest iIncome wsing the effective interest rate method. Any gain
of |oss arlsing on derecognion s recognized divecty in profinor
fosi and presented in 'Gany/ (losies) mising fram the
derecogmition of nancial assels messuned al amortized cost
Impatrment losses are included in Tmpalrment charges on
financkad assets” in the staterment of Income

2.16 Impairment Allowances on Financial
Assets

Impairment alloveances appdy to financial adsets at amontized codl
ardd Tinarcial assets at falr vislus throwgh OC), a3 well as bo lease
receivables, contract asseds, trade receivables, cestain foan
commitments and fnanclal guarantess, AL initial recogn ithon, an
allowange is formied for the amount ol the expecied credit losses
friaim posiibhe delaulls in U comming 12 rgnlla (sage 1000
credit risk ncreased significantly sinco akgination (but remaing
nan-credit-mpalred], an afowance will be requined for the

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

amount Ehat equals the expected cred it losses sternming from
parsible defauhs during the expecied (ifetime of the financial
assel (stage . If the financlal insuumeant becomes credit-
anpdined Che allorance will rermaln at the Lifetime ECL (stage 3)
Hevarewer, far these istruments the imerest income wit be
recognized by applying the effective interest rate an the net
carnying amount {Including the allowance) Financial instruments
become credit-impaired when one of mose events have ocouned
that had 3 detrimental impact on estimaned future cash flows,
Rabahank does pet e the low credit ik sxemptian for amy
financial instrument

Twer fundamental deivers of the IFRS  impalrments requirements
ame a) the methadalagy for the measurement of 12-Manth and
Lifetime Expected Credit Losses and B the criterla usad to
deserrming whesher a 12-menth ECL Lifetime ECL non-credit-
impaied, of Lifetime ECL credn-impaired show'd be applied (alio
roferred to a5 stage determination ciiteral

@) Methodalagy bo Detenmine Drpectid Creatt Lot
In order b determine ECLs Rabobank dtilizes polnt in time

Frobakimy af Defaul: (PD) x Loss Given Defaul (LGD) x Exposure
at Defsu (EAD) models far the majodiny of the porfalia in wope.
Thigse global macroeconomic scenarios ane incorparated ima
tharse modies and probebilty weighted in orcer 1o determine the
expected credit losses When unezpected extemal developments
o data qualiny issues are noit sufficlently covered by the outcome
of the ECL models, an adjustment will be made.

) Steage Determination Ceifera
In arder to allocate financial instruments In scope between stage

1. atage 2 and stage 3 a framework of guaitative and quantitathe
facions has been developed. The criteria for allocating a financlal
Ingtrument 1o stage 3 ane fuly aligned with the critera for
assigning & defautied san, for scample 90 days past due sames,
o I o debitorn is fikely to became unabile 10 pay 18 ciedit
oddigations withgas Fouidation of Oollatess by the bank, In oider
12 allocate financial Instruments bobween stages 1 and 2L
Rabobank uses oriterla, such as days past due status, speclal asset
inanagement status and deterloration ol the PDince arigination.

For ponfolios without individual PD's ar with POV 1hat are nat
ugsdated an a frequent bBatks sech that an sswesment of the
change in PFDME not posslble, 2 collective assedsment on groups
of fimancial instrurnints with shared credit risk characteristics s
made,

Significant bncregses wrCredit Risk (SICR7
Al gachigporting date, Rababank aasissses whet b the credit ik

on financial instruments has Increased significantly since inftsal
recognition There s.a reburtable presumption that the credit risk
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on a financial assel has increased significantly since (nitial
recognition when the centrachual payments ame aver 30 days past
due The rebutrable presumption s notan absolute indicatos thar
Metatnig ECL should be recagnized, bug is presumesd 16 be the
fatest poink at which lifetime ECL should e recognized

Thie assessrment of whether lifetime ECL are recognized Is based
on stgnificant increases in the kelihood or default wsk occurming
since Initial recognitian - imespective of whether a financia
Enwrrument has Been tepriced 10 eflect an increawe in eradin ek
= inatead of based on evidende of A firancial insrument being
siedit-impaired at the reporting date o an actual defas
ecourting. Generally, there will be a 2128 before a financia
instrument bacomes credit bmpaired o an actual default ooours.
Far lear commitments, Rabobank considens changes n the
dhefaull risk occurring on the loan 1o which a lpan commitment
relates. For financkl guarantes cantracts, il consders 1he changes
i thae risk that the specified debior will default on the contract,

Thie assessmmant of changes inceedd 1isk anabysis s @ multifacior
2nd holistic analysis, Whether a specic factor is retevant {and its
weight compared to other factors) depends on the type of
praduct, chatacteriitics af the fnanclal Insttuments and the
btaircwe a5 well ad geodpraphical region, The methods wed 10
detesming whether credit ik on financial instruments has
increased significantly since nitial recognithon should conssder
the mentionad characteristics of the Instruments {or a group of
instrumentsh and the default pattens in the past for comparable
finanecial indtruments

Deault Definition
in defining default for the purposes of determining the riskof &

default pocuning. Rabobank applies a defaull cefinton
conslstent with the definition used for intema! credi risk
managemnent purposes for the relevant financlal instramen snd
condldeit qualitative indic ston when appropriate.

Howeover, thene 15 a rebuttable presumplion that default does rot
ocour later than when a financial asset is 90 days past due, unless
Mabotank kas reasenable and supportabie Inlormation to
demanitrate that 2 moe Lagging default critgnan i mode
appropriate, The definition of delaudl wed Tor these purposes is
applied corsktently to Al financial Intruments, unless
intarmation Becomes avalable that demanitrates that ancther
dafaull definitien is more agpiopriate Tor a pasoular inancal
instrument.

Coflectre Versus indwalua! Assessment

Some ac1on or indicators may not be ideniiflable an an
Enciividiial instaument levet [n that case. the factors or Indicators
are assessed for appropriate porfolics, groups of portfolios ora
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poition of a portfolo to determine whether the requirements for
recognition of Metime BCL have been met. The aggregation of
financial instruments 1o-as525s whather there ase changes in
it Flsk orra colective baals may chandge ovet 1ing whish new
information becomes swallable on groups of, or individhaal,

financial instruments.

Depending on the nature of the linancal instruments and the
credit risk information aailable for pamicular groups of financial
Inttruments, Rababank may net be able 1o dentity SICR for an
nciividual instiument before that indtrament Becomes past due,
This iy ber e e fon financial wsets Bsuch as ietail loaml for
which thene 5 little or no updded credit nsk information
mutinely obtalined ard manitored on an individual instrumenit
fevel untl a customer breaches the conmtractual tetms. if changes
ity e credi tsk foe @ ndividual instrument 15 not capiuned
befane it becomes pat dus, a loss allowance bated solely on
eredit Information at an Indkddual Insrument level wauld not
falthfully represent the changes in credit risk sinte initial

fECogniLion.

In same circumstances, Habobank has no reasonable and
suppartable informaton svallable witheut andue cow of eliom
1o measure Metime ECL on an individual instiumment Basis
Lifetime ECL iy then recognized by collectively considering
comprehensihe oredlt sk Infamation, which nat only
incorposates past due infarmatian but also al relevant credit
irformation (including fovward-lecking macioeconomic
Indonmation) 1o approxmate the result of recognazing lifeime ECL
when thore has been a SICR sinoe itk recognition on an

Encfividual instrument level,

For the purpose of detedmining SICA and recognizing a loss
allowance on i collective basls, Rabobank may group financial
Instruments based an shared cradin dsk characteraies wdth the
obsjective of lacilitating an analyvils designed 10 enable SICR 10 be
identifed on J tmely basis. Howes, when Rabobank (s urable
1o group financlal instremends foe which the credit risk s
considersd tohave increased significantly sinceinitlaliecognition
based on shaied Credit iisk chasactaniytics, it recoanizes lfetime
LCLon a portion of the financial insturments for which ceedit gk

i desmed 1o have increased sgndicantly,

Shared chedit risk characteristics may Include but are nat limited
tox Instrumant types. credn sk ratings, coliateral types, initial
feCognition dates, remaining termms to maturity, industres,
geographic location, coliateral value relathve 1o the financial
Estrument il 18 has an mpact oa the PD {lof Instance, non-
e kaars i somie [urieie o or LTV ratios)
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2.17 Modifications Other Intangible assets also include those identified through

The conaciua terms of a inarcial 2sset may be modified o a
commergal rean of due 19 a fobearance imeasue. A
commerchal modification ik a change 1o the previous tesrms and
conditizns of a cantract financial asset] that alters the timing or
amaiurnt of the contractual cash Nows of the financlal asset.
Rabobank considers & modificaton as non-substantiad if It does
mat mpact mubiple aspects of the contract at the sames time, for
exbimpile & ehange in the fxed Inedl perlad, Bpapment type
of pbiigorn. Forbearancs measungs ane considered 10 B9 non-
wubstantiol moghfications.

Substantial modifications lead ta a derecognition of the financial
asset and non-substantlal modifications lead 1o modillcaron
accountipag. In case of a modificeion Rabobark recalculaes the
prass camying amaunt based on the rovised cavh flows of the
financial asset and recagrizes a madifization galn o loss In pmf
or loss. The nesw gross carying amount b recalculated by
discounting the modilied cash flows at the original efective
ineredt rate,

2.18 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwil

Goodwill |5 the amount by which the acquisition price paid for a
subsidiary exceedy the falr value on the date an which the share
of nt assets and contingen liabilies of the entity was acquired,
With each acquitition, the ather non-conto ling Imenests pie
tecognized at falrvalue or at its share of the identifiable aseets and
labilities of the acquired entity. Tests are perlormed annually, o
imore frequentiy iT ind icatsons so dictate, to determine whethes
there has beon impalrment.

Qrher ntangible asseis incuding software developmant costs
Costs directly incurned i connection with identifable and unigue
saftwive peoducts aver which Rebobank has contrel and that will
lkely prowvide economic berefits exceeding the costs for longer
than one year are 1ecognized as other Intangibls assets. Direct
ooans ing luge the percornel coss of the Lofiware development
tear, financing coats and an agpropeiate portan of the relevant
avorhead.

Expusncdures that improve the peformance of soltware as
compased with thair onginal specifications ane added 1o the
original cost of the software. Safrwade development costs ane
tecognized as other intangitle aisets and amarnized on a lineas
lbails ovef & pediod not exseeding P years Codts relaled 1o the
mainteranceof soltwane ame recognired as anexpense at the time
thay aee Incumed

Annud Aeport 2008 - Consoldated Financial Starements

bursiness combinations, and they ane amoiized over their
eupected usetul lives when the asse1 is avallable for use.

Imparment Losses on Goadwi?
Gaodwill 5 allecated 1o cash-generating units fos the pumpose of

bmpabmment testing, which is undetaken at the lowest lovel of
assets that generate Largely mdependent cash iflows. During the
fourth quarer of each financial year, or mone frequently if there
ane indlcations of Enpatmant, gooddll i ested for Impainment
and any exceds of COMYing AMOURT sves recaveratiie amaount i
previded, Thee recoverable amount is the higher of the value in
wse and the falr value less sedling costs,

The value in we of 3 cash flow generating unit i determined as
e prasant value of the expecied futune pre-as cash Bows ol the
cath flow generating unit in question, The ey asumptiens wed
in the cash flow moded depend on the inpat dita and they refleet
warkous frdgmental limancial and economlc variables such s risk-
free intenest rates and premiums reflecting the risk inherent in the
entity concemed. Impgainments of goodwill @e included wnder
Impairment losses on goodwill in the statement of income, IF
applicabls,

Ieaairnear [ooces an ot fnfangiile Aars
At each eporting date, an assessment b made a5 to whether

theare are indications of mpairment of other inangible aswets §
thane ate such indications, impalament 1estiag is carhed out 1o
detemire whether the carying amount of the other intangible
anters b fully recoverabile, The fecovetable amount thall be
estimated for the individual asset. 4 it s not possiple o sstimate
the recowerable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable
amount of the cash gensrating unit bo which the aswel belongs
i determinad. An impairment loss s recognized iF the camyng
amount sxceeds the recoyerble amoant. impaiment lowses and
i pubiTTenl reveriali die imclucied i Onher Sordnd s ke
expuens’ in Lhwe sLatesnient of income,

Regardiess of any Indication of Impalrment, Intang e assets not
yet avallable for Use shiall be tested for impalmment annually by
coimpading 15 carrying ameunt waith i recoverzble amount,

2.19 Property and Equipment

Propenty ond equipment for tem wie
Propery for own use comslits maindy of office bulldings and is

recognilzed at coat less accurmvlatad depreclation and

it AL, a4 B egquigiienl fo7 o uie. Assets she depreclited
10 their msidual values aver the following estmated wseful lhves
on a srakghs:line bass:
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Property k5 no cerainly that the bnd will be bullt on. Possible decreases
- Land ok depeeciated in value as a result of fudure change of designated use of the
- Buifug e ] televanit land are rot included in the costof land, but are included
Eguipment oy e cletgrmination of Lhe net realzable value,
Compuier equipmens 15 yoary
- i ik and vebwiien ¥ Eyean

An annual assessment Is made as to whether there are indications
of impaitrment of prapeny and equipment. f the camying amouri
of an wsel sxcesds Ms eaTimated recovemble amaunt, the
carying smaunt i wilten down to the eeoverable amount
Impaernent losses and impasrramt reveraly e incudesd wider
Dther admiinistrative cxpenses Inthe statement of incomse, Gains
and losses on the disposal of properdy and equipment are
datedrmined on the hasis of thelr carmylng amounts and are
recognized M ogenating resulis.

Repair and malntenaree work s chaged ta the statement of
Incme at thie time the costs ane Incurmed. Expenditures 1o extend
the economic life or increase the economic value of land and
bwildings as compared with thew arginal economic value are
capitalized ard subsequently depreciatea.

2.20 Investment Properties

Invwestmient properties, prmarly ofice bulldings, ane held for
thelr long-term rental income and ane nof wed by Rabobank o
s sultsiclianies. Investrment propedties ane recognized as bng-
nerm ivesimenis and included in the statement of Tinancial
potitlon at cost net of accumiilated dopreciation and
Impairment, investment properties ame depeeclabed an a straights
lirw Basls 1o thelr tesidual vadues over an estimated usefal lile of
forty years,

2.21 Other Assets

Struetuned mventony Produees
Rabobank affers several products thar relate to financing

commodiies. Some of these products are recognlzed as loans
with commodigies a1 callageral, ethers a5 loans with embedded
darhvarives and others a5 commodities. The classification |5 mainky
dependent an the tansder of risk and rewardy of the commosdity
from the client 1o Rabobank

Bulding Sites

filiding sites are camied ar cost, inchuding allecated interest and
aduitional expansas for punchasting te shes and making them
teady For combiattion af, if loaed, the At iealizable valie
Enterest is not recognized in the staterment of financial position for
Land which has not been roned for a partaoular purpose i thene
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The naet readizabie valise of all bullding sites s teviewnsd at least
once ayear or eatlier, In case-of any indications of Impatrmaent, The
net realizable value for building sites is the direct realizeble value
oo, I hilgher, the indirect realizables va'ue. The direct reatzable
walie 1 the estimated value upan salks les the estimated cou far
achieving the wale The indirec realizable valus fihe sstimatsd
sl price within thee comtat of nemal operation ke U
ostimated costs of completion and the estimated conts
necéssanly Incurned to reafize the sale. The calculation of the
inditact realzzble value s basad on an aralysis of scenarios that
inchudes as many site-specific aspects and company-speeific
paramatees and conditions o possibte, A dowmwand revaluation
K recognized I the carmping value exeoeds the realizatle vake,

Wik [ Progines
‘Work in progress concerms sobd and unsald residential projects

under construction or in preparation, as well sold and unseld
cammarcial prapeny projects Wark in progress s cardsd arthe
conty incumed plus allocated interest of, if lower, the net
ealizable vabue. Revenues from projects for the construction of
el pitate are wcognized when the related peformance
obdigations are satisfiad Expected losias o projects are
immeadiately deducted fioen the work in progiess, If Rabobark
wranslers (parts off a project 1o o customer befong the cusomer
pays instalments, Rabobank presents a contract asset, a
customer pays Instalments, of Rabahank has a right 1o
Instalments that Is unconditional. before Rabobank transfers
{partsy of) a project to a customee, Rabobank presents 3 contract
Mability.

The carmying amount of wsold work in progress i snally
seviwed for indications of 3 deckne in value, If thene i such an
knddication, the indlrect realizable value of the work in progress is
esthmated; bn most cases this s done by means of an Intemal or
exenal appraisal. The Indaect reaalzable value is the estimated
sale price within the comtext of meimal operatons less the
estimated coss of completon and the estimated costs
necearly Incurmed te realtre the sale, & dowrswasd value
adjuitrent b recognized B the carrdng value excendi the
eapeg Lo Indwect realizabde value, 1o the extent that this
difference marst be borne by Haobank

Finishes Propertes

Urnpoie redicdantial progeries and commeiclsl developed in-
haige ane Carred a1 cost or, i lower, the ret realizable value, The
niet realizable value offinished properties |5 reviewed at least once
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ayear or f thee are any Indications fora decline n value. Fos
finishad properies, the not reafrable value s genorally equal to
the direct reafizable value, which is mostly determired by maans
of anintenal or exernal apprstal A downwand vilue sdjustmen
i recognized (Il he carrving value exceeds the expected direct
iealizable value, fo the extent that the difference i an acoount
of Rabobank

2.22 Leasing

Rababank as lpss
Rabobank primasily enters intd operating leases under which a

conslderable partion of the risks and rewsards of ownesship are
retalned by the lestor. Operating leate payments [bass any
discounts gianied by the kessor) ase changed 1o the statemeny of
inamie an a linear basis avet the teim of the kease.

Rabobark a3 lessor

Faance [ Fases
A finanoe kease | recognized as & receivable under ‘Loans and

sdvanced to credit Imstitutions” ar Loans and adviness 1o
cudlomars, as applicable, at an amount equal 1o the net
inwestment in Ui lease, The ret imvestrment in the kease s the
present value of the nominal minimaem lease paymenes and the
unguaaniead residual value The difference batween the gross
imwestiment and the net imvestmant in the lease b recognized as
wnearned finance income, Lease incame i recognized o imenest
bncame over the term of the iegse using the net irvestment
methad, which results in a constant rate of rethem on the
Ivestment.

Operating Leases

Ausery feased under aperating leases are includad in the
statement of inancial position andér ‘Propety and equipiment’,
Thae st aee chepreciated over Vheir expected uselul Fves in line
with those of compasibie tems of propery and cquipment
Rental Incame fless write-offs and discounts granted to lessess)
&5 recoghized under "Met income from athed operating activithe s’
o0 3 linear basis over the term of the lexe.

2.23 Provisions

Provivions are cognized for obligations (both legal and
CONSLrUCtive] anlsing as 3 result of @ past event whem it is
pobanke that an outflow af resources will be requilred 1o semtia the
cbiligatisn and 2 refiabile estimate can be made of the armoun ol
e otdigation. If Rabobans expects d provaion Lo be neimbursed,
for exxmple Lndpr an insurance Polioy, the mimbursemen i
recognized asa separate asset but only If the resmbursement Is
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wirually certaln. The provisions are carried at the discounted value
of the expected fumnere cash flaws. The additions to and releases
of provisions ase recognized inthe satement of income wisder

Onher admanistralive sxpernses’.

Beseruetuing

Restructuring provilons compebe payments under redundancy
schemes and other costs directly attributable to restrsctunng
programs. These costs are reoognzed duting the peod in which
tha legal ar actual payment ebligation arises, a detalled plan has
Been prepaied for redundancy pay and there sie realistic
explalions among th parties congemmed that the

teonganizaton will be implemented.

Lega liuey

The provvision lor legal issues is based an the best esimanes

availatde a1 the end of the reponing perod, taking into account
legal acviee. The timing of the cash canflaw of these prewisiant
i uncetan because the outcome of the disputes and the time

mewohved aie unpredictable.

Orher Provisions

Crther pravisions include pravisians for anefous ConTmReTs,
potential settlements, credin related comtingent liabilitles and
abdigations under the terms of the depost guaanies scheme.

2.24 Employee Benefits

Aababank has vanous pension plans in place based on the local
condiicns and practices of the countries inwhich it operates. in
genenal the plans are financed by payments to insurance
companbes 0f 10 trnistee administered funds detemined by
pericdic acluanal calculatons. A defined beneflit pansion plan is
ane that Incarporates an abligation 1o pay an agreed amount of
pension Benefit, which is ussslly based on several factors such as
e, number al yeard' wndce and memunenation. A defined
cotiibsution plan is one inwhich losd Contributions are paid o
3 separate entity ta pension fund) with o further legal or
congtructive obligation on the pat of the emphoyer shauld the
fund have Inwutfickent assets to sertle its obligations o employee-

members af the plas.

Tension Olbbqtions

The abligation under defined béneft penalon plans is the present
walue of the defined benelit pemaion obligation at the end ol the
reporing peciod reduced by the fair value of the fung
ivwestments, The defined benet't ohligation s calculated annually
by Independen achuaries based on the projected unit credic
pthad, The presint value of Uhe defined berelil obligation i
daterrmined as the estimated future outfiow of cash funds based
on the Interest mies of high-guality corporate bonds with terms
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that approximate those of the cormes ponding chiigation. The
mafority of pension plans are career-average plans. The costs af
these plans (saing the et pension chasge for the perod after
deducting emgloyes conttbiutions gnd intesest) s included
wnder Sl costs’ Net intere st expensedincome (s determined by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the reparting
paricd to the asset or Nabllity of the defined berefit pension plan

Actuarial gaing and kasses arising from events andfar changes in
sctuatlal sswirsptian e meognized i the satement al
compreheniig IRCome,

Dt Comtrbuatean Flars
Unider defired contribution plans, contributions are pald Into

publicly o privately managed pansion iniurance plans on a
coinpulsery, contraciual o wolenary bass. These regular
cohiributians are recoghired i expenie inthe pear i whichthey
ar dui and they ame Inchaded urder Seall costs’,

Db Pet-gerplensmprt Dbligolian
Some of Rabotank’s business units pravide other post-

employment bonefits, To become eligible for such bensfis, the
uriuial pequitement i that the emplayes iemalng inoserice wntil
retiierment and has besn with the company for a minimum
naumbe: of years. The expected coxs of these benefits are acciued
during the years of sendoe, based on a systerm similar to that foe
defined banefit pension plans. The obligations are calculated
annully by independent scluaries.

Viarlabde Rermunendiion

Warlahle remuneration payable unconditionally and in cash s
recognized in thie year in which the employee rendens the
senvice, Conditional cash remunesation i inchuded, on a stralght
lire basks, in staff costs inthe statement of incame over the peried
of thee year in which the employes's services are recetved and the
iermnaineig Thise years of the vedting peslod (€. over ol yeads).
Thie Bablity is secognized in Tther Rabilities”, The accounting
treatment of payments based or equity instuments is disclosed
En Section 225

2.25 Variable Remuneration Based on Equity
Instruments

Fof ¢ertain identitied stalf, remuneration for service: ndeted s
wetthed in the form of cash payments based on eguity
instruments that are £milas bo, and have the same chasacterstics
a5, Rabobank Comificates The casts of the services racelved ane
based on the fair value of the equny Irstruments on the sward
haler wivch g e Lated ainially 1o fali value. The costs selatied 16
the award of equity Instruments dusing the periad of the
employee’s contract ase Included in staff casts in the ststement
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of incomie over thie perod of the year of awad and the emalning
thuee years of the vesting perdod of the equity instruments (Le.
ot [our years). The fability is recognized in "Canhe: labilites'.

2.26 Tax

Cunent tax recefyalbles and payabies are offset whese there is a
Eegally enforceable noht 1o offset and where simublaneous
treatrment or setilemant is intanded. Deferned tax assars and
Babilltied ase offser wheds there L a egally eafaiosable fight ta
oiffset andd whene thisy relates to thie same tin ahority and afke
wiithin the saene taxable eritity,

Defermad income ta s provided, using the lability method, on
tempaiany differences barween the tax hases of assets and
Hiabilities and thedr carrying amounzs Tar financial reponing
purpeies, These temgsnary differences arse primarily on
depreclatien of tangible fled avserts, sevaluation af certain
financie assets and labilitkes (including derlvativesl employes
enefits, loan impattment allowances and ciher impairmanis, 1ax
losses and fair value adjustments 1o met assets acguaed in
bumsiness combinations. Defered tax 2ssets and labllities are also
tecoanized on the revaluation of financlal st &1 fas vahse
thiough other cornprehensive incorme and cash flow hedges that
ane taken disectly to ether comprebensive income, When realized,
they we moognized in the Income staterment i the same time
as the respective defered gain oo loss ts recognired. Defened ta
assets ale recognized 1o the extant that it i priobable that fulure
Taxabile profivs will be pvailable against which 1he losses can be
utilipea and are measuned at the tax mtes that havie been enacted
o substantively enacted as at the reporting date. Rabobank
considien all delerned taxes to be non-cument.

Taxes on profitane caboulated In accordance with the tax
legiviation of the relevant [urlsdictions In which Rabobank
ciptrales and die et ogniied aian éxpehie in the pqrmd i iaduich
e profin s reafoed, Thie tax effects of loss carry fonvards aie
recognized as an asset IF it |5 probable that futune takabie profits
will be awallable against which the losses can be utilized

2.27 Deposits from Credit Institutions,

Deposits from Customers and Debt
Securities in Issue

These kabilites are endially recognized at fair value, being the
Fsue price less disectly allocable and non-reouring transaction
conty, and thereafier st amortized gost Including transaction
(2= 131
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Own ssued debt securithes that ame repurchased are
doerecognized, with the diffierence between the camying amount
ard the consideration paid being recognized in the income
SLARETET

2.28 Rabobank Certificates

The proceeds of the lssue of Rabobank Ceriilicates are avallabla
1o Rabobank in perpetuty and ane subordinate to all laklivhes and
10 the Tt Prefermed Secunred wnd the Caplial Sacuriried, As the
payrmant af distributicng 4 wholly discretonay, the procesds
recemwd dnd dividenchy paid on them se recogniced in egquity,

2.29 Trust Preferred Securities and Capital
Securities

As thare is no lormal obligation to repay the principel of 1o pay
adnidand, the Taust Preforred Securitierand Capltal Securities ase
recognized as ‘Equity’ and dividends pald an these struments
are recognized directly neguity,

2.30 Financial Guarantees

Firanc ial guastanies CONLRACTSs requine the Rider 1o compensile
the holder for kesses incuned when the debtor fals to maeet s
obligatians under the terms of the related debt instument, The
quarantess are inkilaly recognized at faérvalue and subsequently
measured at the higher of the amaunt of the impalrment
alkwanoe and the amoun wally recognized less cumulative
amartization

2.31 Segmented Information

A gsegment 15 a discrete operating component that (s subject to
sk ane retumas that diffier from those of ather ssgmentt o
operaling comporents and that 4 vieswed ahd mansged 5 4
separale and divcoele component for Rabobank’s wraegic and
opcrating management pupases

2.32 Business Combinations

Business cormbinations e acoownied for using the aoquinition
miethad The cadt of an acquisitian i detesmired a5 the monetary
amaunt [or equivalent) agreed fod the acquiaition of the buiiness
combination. Goodw | tepresents the difference between L
corit of the acquisition and the acquinee's share of the fair value
of the identifanle assets, Rabilites and canditional assets and
labillities acquired. Goodwill 1s capitalized and recognized a5 ar
andangpibli assel The nonecontrolling Inbeesd i alo duliermined
as the fadf value o its shate of the identiflable net aasets of the

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

company acquined. Direct aoguisition costs ate charged directly
1o the statemant of Income on acquisiion.

2.33 Disposal Groups Classified as Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations

Assets that have been classified as held for sale are written down
1o their a4 valuwe, reduced by the estimated costs of sale, wherne
1his 1 Doer than the camdng amount. An asset (o group of
aisers] i elagsifised 23 hedd lar Labe wehen it s very lkely that it
ecanarmic walue will be realized primarly through Lale @ehes than
Umough continuid wee, the assel {or growp of st s lully
avaifable for salé in its curent oondition, management has
commétied Itself to a plan to sell the asset. and the sale s
expected 1o be completed within one year of its classificarion as
held for sale I @ group of assets chassdied as held lot sale
represents a key busingss acthity o key geograghic reglon, it s
classified as dlscontinued operatians and recognized outide
comprehens ke Income arising from continuing operations.

2.34 Cash Flow Statement

Cath and cash eqishvalants inclute cath iesounces, monsy matker
depouits and deposits af central banks. The cash flow statement
v prepased wing the indirect method and peosides detaili of the
source of the cash and cash equivalents that became avallabie
diming the year as well as thelr application dusing the year Tha
net pea-tax cash flow flom apefating activites is adjusted for non-
cash items in the statement of income and for non-cash changes
in ioms In the uatement of financlal pasition

The consolidated statemert of cash flows presents ieparately the
cavh Nows lfom operating, iInvesting and financing activities. Cash
flonws from operating activities inchade net changes in loans and
advances, intebank deposits, deposin frem cudtomes and
atqulsilions, dhpoisls and iepayrment of lindmsdial imvestrments
Ivweslment activitie include acquisitions and daposals of
subsidiaries. iwestments In associate: and property and
equipment. Financing activities Include lssues and repayments
of Aabobank Cenificates, Tiuat Pralened Secutites, Capital
Seutiies, Seriar Cortingent Notes, subardinated liabilities and
debr securities in issue.

The dilferénce betéreen the net change pretented in the
statement of cash Mows and the change i cash and cath

equivalents included in the statemenit of inancial positian is due
1z exchange differences

1ag
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3. Solvency and Capital countércyclical buffer of up o 2 5% which may be impased by the
Mﬂnﬂgmgﬂ[ supenasor. Almost all supenisons have set thesr cosntencyclical

abotbank aims 1o maintain g paoper kel ol sobisncy, For s
peigese 3 number of sedveney ratios are wiiired, The prncipal
rathas are the camman eqiity ter | ratio (CETE), the tier 1 mtia,
the botal capital ratko and the equity capltal ratio. Rabobank uses
is-owm intermal objectives that extend beyond the minimum
requirements of the supesvisors, it takes masket axpecratians and
dhivelaprmenld In leglilitien and regulatiend Ints aceaunt.
Rabobank managed ity solvency pasition based on palicy
donuments. The solvency positon and thi oectives me
periodically reviewed by the Risk Management Committee and
the Asset Lianilty Commitiee of the Managing Board and the
Supendsony Board.

The ‘Capital Requiremints Regulation (CRAY and ‘Cagltal
Requiements Directive I ICRD V) together comstitute the
European implementation of the Basel Capital and Liquidity
Accoed of 2010 These nules, which became effective on | lanuary
2014, are applied by Rabobank

Rababank must comply with & nuember of minkmum solweney
poitions s stipulated under law. The solvency poiition s
determined on the basts of ratkes, These raties compare The
el hring capital (tatal capital ratial, the tles t capital {ter t ratio)
and the code capital {common equily tler 1 ratic] with the toral
of the nisk-adjusted asets. Eifeciive | Jahuary J014, the minimurm
required percernages ane determingd on the basts of CRD W/CRR,
The baffers below ate applicabie a4 fram 2006, These buffers will
graciually Increase until the year 3019, Rababank s already
allweing lor these changes in ts capinal planning, The taie below
shows thie minimum buffers based on the planned final situation
ander CRE W/CRR

Minlsuim Capital Butfer

CETH Tar!  Tistal iopas
il | requirement A5 L ] Al
Fiar 2 requisemert 1s L (F N
Capml corservation bulles 20152010 5% 15% L
Syitermic it bt T T R T ST T
Tzkal repuivesd [and-viate) LLE L L 1535%

The total iequined lend state] CET! capital therehose amaunti to
11.75%, (e @ minimum Pillas § requirerment of 4.5%. a pillar 2
regquinement of 1,/%%), a capifal conservation buffer of 2.5% and
2 systemic risk puffer of 3%, excluding the pilar 7 guidance. The
tequined tend stare) total capasl amounts 1o 1525%, [ie 4
ininimaam Pillar 1 segquirernsnt of 8%, a pillas 2 réguiremient of
1.7%%], 2 capital consarvation Bufferof 2.5% and a systemic fsk
eatter of 35, In addition to these mtios. there would be a
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bwstfer ar 0% as per 1 lanuary 2019

Hisk-weighted ascets are defermined based on sepanate and
distinct methods for each of the credit, opevational and market
isks For credit risk purposes, the risk-welghted assets ane
detenmined n several ways dependent on the nature of the
asset, For the majority of assets the risk weighting s determired
by feferenices to Intenal inbngd and & number of chatscteritied
specliic 1o the astet concemned. Far off-balince shest items the
balance sheet equivabent iy caboulated lnthy on the bash of
Imernal comvension factors and the resulting equivalent amaunts
am then alio assigned risk-weightings. For operatianal dsk
Purposed, an Advianced Mezsurement Appioach moded is wed
1o detesmine the amoun of risk-welghted assers e market
tisk approach, the gencral market sk (s hedged, 43 ane the fsks
of apen potitions in Tareign ewrrencies, debt and oquity
Instruments and commodaies. The transitional CRA provisions
have baen rellected in the ratios set out below

Rabobank Group's Ratios

mouncs in el of prros o a7
Rustaind Auimlngi mar I
Lapested dividendy 1461 [+ 37]
Fabobank Ceriifoain TS TARY
Fartal norroonrniling inteerzs reated i qu aliting Capsal " ]
Lo il {400
Dt CLE3N 1R
Tranaition guidanes 12 525
Cesmmen Equity Ther 1 capital EERF A R
Capital Securitey i LM
Granciathes e irstrurrents 3315 15
Mancantreling it - &
Deddutiont o6 BE
Trarnftion guadance - [0
Tiar 1 capinsd L P
et ol wutsergbinaated treated as qualifying cagstl 14374 148048
Man-controllng intemi '
Dedactiom [LA]) ms
Transftion guidance LT3
Gualitying capital LW
Fisk wiighied sws OS5 e
Comman Gty Tim 1 raso s 1SEN
Tier 1 e [LLT P
Tt al Easual ko M M
Exgusry capnal ratig! [EF TR

1 The equiitys’ capital rata s cakcukated by Comparnng 1he e Retained
wamengpy and Rabohank Cemificates imthe nideverghing asets
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The deducions consist mosthy of goodwill, obher intangiibie fixed
assets, defened tax assers which depend on future profit, the A
shartial for ¢redin ik adjustrments and adjustments relating 1o
cumulanive results due 1o changes in thi bank's credit iskan
istruments desigrated at falr value, In sccondance with CRA,
mmber of deductions are adjusted In the Transition guidance”,
25 these adjustmenty are being phased in over the period
2014-2018. The Trarsition gudance” mainhy conssts of goodwill,
othier |rangible non-cusrent asters, delemed fax asets
depanding an future prafits iLe. aan-tempaemry difesnce) and
1he IRR shartfall for ¢ redit-fivk adjustmanty

Theadditional tler 1 instremends lssued by Rabobankpries o 2015
da not comply with the new CRR requimments. They are being
‘grandfathered’, This mears that these instruments will B2 phased
oul of sodvency ratios i line with the iegulsion requirements

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements
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4. Risk Exposure on Financial
Instruments

4.1 Risk Organization

Rababank Group manages sk atvarious levels within the
oegardzation, At the highest bevel the Managing Board [under the
superssion of the Supervisory Board) determines the risk ttrategy
awill pursue, the riskappetie, the policy framewark as well as the
il The Supeavisany Board egqularly aseissd the dakd attached
10 the activities and pomiolio of Rsbobank Graup, The Chied Risk
Oificur, as Member of the Managing Board, s responiible fos the
ik management policy wethin Rabolbans Group,

Risk Appetite
identilying and managing risks lor s organization 15 an ongoing

phacess ot Rabobank Fo! this purpoie an integrated rik
management srategy I applied. The rsk management cycle
ncludes determining risk appetite, preparing Integrated risk
analyses, and measwring and moniloing risk Througheut this
pocess Rabobank uses a risk strategy aimed at cantinuity and
designed to protecy profitabiimy, maintain solid balance-shoet
iatiod Aned peatact its derting and reputation.

4.2 Strategy for the Use of Financial
Instruments

Rabobank's acthvities are mhezntly related 1o the we of financhal
Festruments, ingiwding dermattves, As pae of the services noffers,
Halohank takes diopatits fram custamers a8 varging tarms and ot
oth fived and vaskahle [nterest rates, Aabobank attempts taeam
nerest income by Investing these lunds in high-value assets a5
well as by making loans o commearcial and relail borrowers,
Habobank also aims toincrease these margins through a portfolio
approach of short-term funds &t fewer interest raves and the
allaeation £a loand (o langes periods o1 igher (nbed et raled,
maintaining suflicient cash resources in hand to mesel obligations
as thoy fall due.

Rabobank impioves its Interest income by achiewing interest
madgins after deduction of laan imgairment allowances and by
esuing loans with a vanery of credit ratings and inheent sk
prafiies, Nat aaly b Rabobank exposed ta cred® dak on the an-
Balance sheet loan, it b alio exposed to credit rist on the off-
Ibalance shiset guarantess it provides, such as letters of credi,
legtess of performance ano other guarantee cocuments.

Annus Report 2008 - Consolidated Financial Statements
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4.3 Credit Risk

Credin risk bs dedined as the sk of the bank facing an ecencmic
foss Becauie the bank's coumenpartes cannat fullll thes
conliactual obligatians.

Cred itk management within the bank s govemed by the bank-
wide central credit risk poloy and futher detailed in underbang
specific credit risk standards and procedures, The primary
seipaiilbillity fat managing and manitarng credin sk led wab
the business oy the fime line of deferse, The butlness i requized
Ro idunlily, avsns and manage, manitar and regot poteniial
weakresses in the credit sk ponfolios. Manitaring takes place
oo an angalng basis to limit crodie rsk cxposures fo 3 level in line
with the business lire's 1k appetite.

b eelinian, riak in the credit ponfolio B measured and moniioed
at bankadde level and on entity lewel on a monthly bisk ed by
quearterly and ad-hoc poetfolio reporting and anabysis. with
specilic attention Lo risk developments and concentrations.

4,3.1 Credit Risk Management

Crmlit Acceptance

Rabotank’s prudent credit acceptance palicy s typfied by careful
astewsmaent of customers and their abfity ta repay the loan that
wias lssued [condinuity perspective). As a result, the laan portfolio
s an acceptable ik profile even 0 less than favorable
economas circumstances, Rababan k airrs 1o have lang-tem
relationsfips with custames that ane bencficlal for bath the cliem
ardd the bank, An Impartant starting paint in acceptance pollcyfor
Iainess ioans b the know wour customer” pringiple, This means
thal the bank only sswes lpans Lo business customers whiose
management Rabobank cansiders 1o be ethical and competent,
I addition, Rabobank closely monfon developmants in the
Buriingsis wectar inwhich it cuitomens operste snd Can pioperhy
s the lindancial pefommance of 1 cusiomen. Conpotie
susainability also means sustanable financing. Sustalnakilty
gualdalines have been established for use in the credit process.

Although eredit i usually granied an the cash flow generating
petential of the chent or progect, collateral will impeove the
podition af the bank In case a chent defaulte Colateral can be
independent of the client’s busingds and/or oblalned from the
clent's business. Aabobank has outlined its polickes lor collateral
waluation and managemeant in the Globa' Standarg Credi Risk
Mimigarion. Compliant o CRI 187 1,00 all (eliginde} collateral is
walued at market value of ke than markel values and the
cotlatesal value s mondored regularly, The callatiersl inust be
sufficiemby liquid and its value over time should be sufficiently
stable to provide appropriate credit protaction. Within the

366/506



Rabobank policy framewaork each type of colisteral (s addressed
separately. The maln types of coflatesal that are recognined by
Mabobank are real estate, inventony (such as eguipment,
rachinery, slock elo], comemouities, recehvalibes s guaramse,
With a substantial demestic monigage partiofs, housing s
consldensd a concentration ritk within the credit risk mitigatizn
that s taven The guality of the collateral is assessed inthe initial
credit reguest, and s evaluated within the credit revision process,
The freguency of revaluation depends on the credit qualiy af the
cheat and s the type of eallseral and i In line with the
peguinerments seT in the CRR

Thie main l:ypns-d gruarantots are gavernments, local suthaosities,
{central) banks and corporate entities, For institutions, insurance
wnderrakings and axport credit agencies, a minlmaem rating is
tequired.

Creclir Commitiees and Credit Approwve!
Within the boundaries set by the Risk Management Committee

the Managing Board has mardiated decision-making asthority to
tiznsactiona’ committess and to credit deckilon approval offcers
that operare o an enticy kevel, ieglonal level or contral level =t
Rababank Credit cammittess teview all dgnificant rlsks in credin
progasals to arrhae o1 a systematic judgrment and a bolanced
decsipn Rabobank has various levels of credit commitiees.
Applications eroecding authotty level of & credit committee e
complemanted with a recommendation and subrmitted to a
“higher credil comimiites for decitian-making.

Within Rababank the highes franssctional committess ane the
fallowing

Central Credit Committee Rabobank Group (CCCARG) - The
CCCHG takes credit cecisions on credit applications subject to the
‘eorparate credin appioval route’ excesding:

athr authodity of Credit Approvals Local Banks (CA LB) - This
department |3 responsible for declslions on moguests far non
lassified (LOK Good or OLEM) obligoes exceeding the autharity
iof Local Banks [n The Methe lards.

sthe mahovity of Credit Approvals Wholesale Rural & Retail (A
WHHR] - This depanment i resparsible for decivant an requeit
far ron-elpsified (LOC Good of OLEM) abligen excedding the
authaity of DLL ora Wholssale Rural & Retall (WAR) officesregion.

sthe muthosity of the Credit Committes Financlal Restricturing
& Recovery [CC-FRER) - This credin cormminges takes credit
dechiom on propotat fod chissified (LOC Substandaid, Caubthul
of Lods) obligors exceeding the autharty of local crodit
committees and the FRER depanment
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Country & Financial Institutions Committee {CFIC) - The CRIC
takes credit declshons on proposals exceeding the authority of
Credin Financlal Instiwtions of Country ftisk Ressarch, These
hepariments ane reuponiilile fon e risk managemisnt of
expowne on financial InsRutions and overcignafcountries.

Loan Loss Provision Committee (LLPCH - Tie LLPC monitors the
development of qualfied credit and aswet portfohos and
recommiends on impalment allewances for obligors exceeding
the autharity af lacal eredit committaes of the CC-FRER, 1o the

Waraging Baard

The Terms of Reference (Tok) provide the mandate,
iesponsibllities & scope, hieranchical retatonships, membership,
authedity levels and modalities of these approval bodles Cradit
Comminees Lake decisions on the Basis of consensus, unless local
regulation requires majory voling. Consermus i reachied when
thore 0 general agreement and nono of the memban has
tundamental objections to the dechlon. When no consensus can
I reached, an application s considened declined. In case of
miajarity vating, the representativeds] from the Risk damain must

have a vets rght.

For efliciency reasans Credit Commites can delegate part of
thair authory, & single person may not lake a credit decison
solely hased on its own opindon; this meand that 3 4-ey0s
principle applies or decisions ame syster suppoted, Inwhich case
odie petion b allowved to decide as lang a3 the credit is assessed
a5 scoeprabke by an expert system or megts prededined criteria
{the credit camqplies with decisian tack), Fully T supponed
assessments and approvals are allowed under strict conditions

The credil comenitiess play 3 key ol in ensuring consistency
amang Rabakank standards of credit anabysis, compliance with
the averall Rababankcradic poficy and consisment use of the ratirg
modeli. The credit palicy 1ets the pararmeten and remit ol sach
commilte, including the masimum amount they are allowed o
approve for limits or transactions, Policies e alsa in place which
westrict or prohibit cemaln counterparty types or Industries. A3 3
ule, all counterparty llimits and internal ratings aie evieswsd once
ayear (corporate clientsh at a mirimur, Whens counierpartios se
assigred a low boan guality classification, they are revsewed on a
mare frequent bavs, Credit commigtees may request for mane

frequent reviews as well,

4.3.2 Lending

Rabahank has a significant market share in Bnding egarding
resdential momgages. Thess loar have 4 low ik profile a
evidenced by L et additons 1o allowinces of miima 2 basls
peiins fexciuding one-offsh in 2018, In 2018, the propartion of the
private sector lending allocatée to the food and agrowtiumal
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sectons was 25% and the proportion of private sector iending seclons are spread over a wide range of industries in many

allocable to trade, Industry and senvices was 28%. The lpans to different countries. None of these Individual sechor shares
wade, industry and services and loans 10 the food and agiicultural represents mone than 10% of the 1ot private secuor lending,

Asmuses in MRS of s Tl Jarr
Total boana and advance Lo cuslomars ase a0 aszaad
O which:

LOares o Qe cllern 1,853 FRIL
v P Pl AT o, ittt st iyind i) agrearnanls aid e Py
weitherreerd agcounis

g a0cmHImE RTjULETEIT SR 0.8
Levana fo gaivate sector clests A1,038 ATBA

i v b bt v ey m fodow:

The Ketheslands 418 ELLY 98,583 .
Tewt of Fuinpe 11,430 ) 4w ™~
Bnrh Arvevics 44755 118 &0 il
Lati America [LF) S 12487 2
Ak BAED - BATE o
fariualia 2im L T [T
Mhica 2 LY i L]
Tostal besard tis priwate sector clisnts 18,025 100% LILTEe 100%
Frvalisow of oo by banes oo
Privarte Inclvdaly 194,857 AT 157950 AE
Toade, wnchustry andd vervices (TS 10 FTY 195,k FY
Fed b agel a1 9 #.501 £
Tatal bsans o privats wectar clsnty 418,833 0% A0 0w
Trole, Industry and Services Loan Portfolio Analyzed by Food & Agri Loan Portfolio Analyned by Secror
Aty in it of rum Foll ) Jorr
Aoyt i il of Reroe o xe Graim and ofl wedy THESE AT
Leazoen of resd etate LERT . B Ardmad emsn WIT 153N
Franoe and fencept credt ) 13852 11818 Dairy TaABS  TLATS
Wl il Tiaed A0 bOF it andd vesgpetabion i0aFE  indsE
Asthitien selated 80 real evinte LEIT ] T nputy NoEr 928
urcdactuning G441 @Akl Foood renad s34
Tearrport wed marshouting B35 AT eviigh T
Ceralr lier 4.0 Ay Towen 1,580 s
Vmalthcare and social mahzanen 8T s Suge 18T 258
Professional, schentfic and technical sendces BALE  GPRE Miscallanaous erep laeming ST ham
Rt [roi Food) 4393 aay b food & sl L T
lnikuien inaE ldm Total TR0 BTTED
Information and commirgation L LI
Rt entertament s ket i2e3 Ly Deriietived
DT nwe nam Rababank sets strict bmits for open positions, in amounts as well
o B L a5 in terms M 1S0A (ntemational Swaps and Derbvathees
Assadiation) standamds apply 6t & maiteér apletmen inchuding
equivaent tenms has been conchuded with the countarparty, and
i the jJursdiction of the counterparty permits offsctting, the net
open position i montored and repoeted. This oredit risk is
managed 25 part of the gensral lending limits for chents. Wheare
needed, Rabobank obtaing collateral or other wafeguands to
mitigate credit nsks mherent in these transactions, The credit nisk
et represents the curent fake valee of all open derivative
Annus Report 2008 - Consolidated Financial Stamements 153
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contracts showing 3 positive market value, taking into account
master netting agreements en‘orceabie under Law,

Credir Retatad Contingent Liobiities
The financial guarantees and standby letbers of coedil that

Rabobank provices to thind parties In the event ofa cient being
umable to fullil is obligations o these thind parties, are exposed
1o credit rick. Docurmentary and commencial letvers of creda and
written undemaking: by Ratebank an behall of clients that
authatnrize thivd padties 1o dizw bl bg alnar Rababank ug ta n fxed
amaunt and subject o specilic conditions. Ay these Hamactions
arersecuned by the detevery of the undelying goeds 1o which they
relate, the risk exposue of such an irstrument i less thas that of
adirect kaan. From the moment the documents have been
accepted under the terms of the batmers of credi, Rababank
recognizes an assel and a Babiliy until the moment of payimenl,

Loan commitments are fivm commitments i provide credi
under pre-specified terms and conditions. Rabobank b expoved
1o credit risk when it promises bo grant keans, The amaunt of any
Rosses is lkely to be bess than the total of the unused
commitments because the commitments ae made subject tothe
cligary mesting cenain laan conditians Rababark manitar the
term to the expiry of loan comimitrients because ipig-term
sommitments generally imwotve higher risk than shast-term
commitments,

4.3.3 Credit Risk Exposure and Credit Quality

in its lirancing apgdoval process, Rabobank Group uies the
Habobank Fisk Rating, which reflocts the rid of failure or the
primablity of defauly (PO af the boan relation over a period of one
weir, The loan-guality categores are determined on the basks al
the intesnal Rabobank Fisk Rating. The Rabobank Rsk Rating
conglsts of 21 perfiormance ratings (RO-R20] and four default
ratinagy (07 -Dd), Thee perfaemance ratings assess the probabing
of delault within g percd of o yeul Gibd 1he rating
dhelesrmined, in princigle, on a cychcally neutol basis. 01-D4
ratings refer to default classifications, D1 represents mone than
30 day's past due on a matedal contractuad payment; D2 indicates
that it ts unlikely that the obligos will pay its debi in full, without
recourse by the bank 1o actions such as rea'ging secusity; DI
anclicares thar a ditressest sale o a distressed restructuring has
accunted that ||kely residtn 7 8 credit-related economic kass; and
D2 Indicates banknpicy status The defauh ratingd make up the
total oredit mpalled suposuie, The table bebow shows the cedi
aual ity of the financal assets subject to impaimment. The gloss
camying amaunt of the fimancial assets belaw alse represent the
imasirmum exposure 1o credit ik on theie asE15

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

EDINETOOOO

O00OO00O000000000000040d0(ee5923)

Conrpmaw Friangul
Shatd ey

Creclit Risk Profile per Internal Rating Grade of Loans and

Advances to Credit nstitutions
Aoty in mitone of paros
O Drecermbar
N, 308 (RS CERT N ] (P
Mo Credh]-impneed oyl Sy
Sulgecrio T2 Subjecris Sulieciio Tarad
mony B iferime FCL et ECL
- A7 13000 & jERRR
- A2 B " san
Detaih
& [T [T
Hown-rat e s - o
Total 17,790 57 1] 17881
Credit Risk Profile per Internal Rating Grade of Loans and
Advances to Custormers
Aoty i il of paros
On Decembar
31,3018 (FOSE CEIT N ] (P
Mo creoh]-ampainnad s e
Sulyecrio1d  Subjecrtis  fubiectm Tatad
mond ECL e FOL Wiptims FCL
A7 A ) ey
- H20 138,408 18278 BLATE
Deluih
. 15893 15941
Hon-rated LT L1 L&
Total ADLAED 15,544 15,993 PITERH]

Credit Risk Profile per External Rating Grade of Ainanclol Assets

at Fair Value through Other Comprebensive income

dmonnt i el of paros
mﬂ.}uﬂ O T Soranae
Mo Credh]-mpainned S-St
Solyectio 12 Subecrin Sullectio Tatad
month 2 Wenme 0L Wit ECL
AAA-A 18,800 M LEAEL]
- e * 5
[
[ - ~
Man-rated i1 1
Votal 12,574 574 18148
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Credit Risk Profile per Internal Reting Grade of Loan
Commitments and Financial Guorantees

Ammanty in miom of seres
On Decerrbear
¥R Expueripin® fi: CARAT K
Pican crevh]-mmpeieel Covl dvpored
Subyectim 13- Subjertia Subyert
meath B0l ierime FCE et FOL Toenl
m-E 10,777 4 - T
L] aET (A1) Tty
Dl
. . 2 57
o L] £
Bnn-raied %500 m - LLr
Total SIS 134 L2 [FRTN]

4.3.4 Impairment Allowances on Financial Assets and
Credit Related Contingent Liabilities

i e riesal Labled, @ reconcifation fram ihe openeng balance 1o
1h clasing balance al the Impalrment allowarces of financial
astots ard credit eelated comingnnt llablittas is provided

Impatrment Allpwances on Loans and Advances fo Customers

Aoty mitontafeeres Loer prd avfeorer fo fustomen
b ] T
Subjest  Subiject
Subject L] L) Totalioan
o ki Elesme  lietime ITW
e ECL nioe BL O ane
L oeddt o A
impaned  impsed

Ealwroe oo baraary | b a7 1754 &, 580 TART
Laan impalimind chages na L] ns na (A 14]
rmraarie due o -~

AT 0 S L B & ine po ]
Dopisans cus 1 s

L] [ 1] LT ]
Cranges dae b chanae in .

e H L] (F1] ALE Ty
of ars

lnara during she year [LF] @ LN
Onher changes ] . [T ] (L3F] 1%
Towcesnbecssbertl  zm 2w ams s sam

Impakment Allowances on Loans and Advances to Credit
Institutions

Eoni ol Loom ond odh b arodkt it
B 2T
Subsert  Subiject
Suihject L = Test sl wanny
il Eevme  lieome T I'nrlilm!rlt
i ECL e [-a} allerviiie
24 ool crecia A5 3
impained  impained
IEsliafig & Raividiy | I 1 (] = (3
Ly impalirers: chasges o L na [N i
s due o i B N e
sgination snd s ouliton
Decreases da B0
oo lion ) ) ) - e
Changes die to changs in R
ey 1 2 3 7 ]
Wit ol calaui e = < ! x
bt choring the oo
ether Charges i L] - im
Halanza on Decrmnber 31,
08 1 1 1w 1z 7
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Impairment Allowances on Fnonclel Assets at Fair Volue
through Other Comprehensive income

Fimgrviol ansety ot for mdur through other
ATty in milioss of rores r
mia
fubject  Subject
[ L] Lo
o by Nletims Nt
morkh ECLecer - EcL TR
ECL e orecht
imepaned imipaied
Bl & Mainiiry | 3 5 [
Trareanes dus ioorigination aed
E L T r 1
Dwciwans dus b derecagizken - - = -
Changes dus by change ingredd ok I 1] = 3]
wrme-oH of datwstied leans durning
e pat .
e charge i} ] - [1}]
Balancw en December 11, 1318 a 1 - 1
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Impaiement ANowances on Loan Commitments and Financial
Gararantees

wovwneen om nan
Aoy i o of ruros a8
&
bt et
subject [ [
1okl Nivtime  liletime Tousd
maret (0L nore L
ECL  omdy  oredit
impained impaed
sl & Laneiary | 11 ] Az AL
Inresses due o onginalion s
aCOisULion 3 ] i -
Drcr s thost B chimpgograien 0] ] ] L]
Ehanges dus ba change b5 credi dik iF " h11 (5]
Wit of delauiied ks durng
e 1 " m mn
Cother chargen 1 k] (=] L]
Balanos om Degembaer 11, 1018 = 2 L (L=

in the fallowing tabde an everview (s ghven of the significant
«whanges In the gross canying amount of loan: and advances 1o
customers dusing the penod that contributed 1o cChanges in the
total impaament alfowance,

Changes in the Gross Carrying Amount of Loans and Advances
o Customers

i i il of
L Corinid fisé iy ot

’ " y Eredii-

Sujcin Sulmecito Scbjestie

“'"'“';11‘ Iiletime ECL liletime ECL Toud
Balares o Lafiaiy 1 LAY 14843 15773 EFEELL]
Erarnfiers of financil
ety 5957 4530 Pl 1439
Mew Aranial avists
originatod or scouined Tran L5l AL 125857
Firusnvcial ety that have
o e inginii] [t bl 17228 LLE AR LE ]
Wiite-ofthy L] ] L] (L]
et chargen i 5] L1 ) s [ ]
Balings om DiLember A0,60% 15066 IEME ANAEAR
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4,35 Collateral and Credit Management
Hababank's cred® rixk exposune Is partly mitigated by obtalning

codlareral whese necessary, The amount and nanure of the

collateral iequired depends partly on the asessmsnt of U

credit sk af the kaan 1o the counterparty, Rabobank ha

guaidelines in place for the purpase of accepting and valuing
different types of collateral. The major types of collateral are:
= Morgaoe coflatesal on residential property,

«  Morfgage collatenl on immavable prapery, pledges on
movable sragsity, eentoned and recehabibes malnly for
busineas loans;

= Canh and securities, rmainly Tor secuniibes lending oo ivities and
reverse mpurchase tmnsactions

Management monitor the maket value of collateral abrained
and reguetess acdivional coliateral whete necessary. Rabobank alio
i credil diirivalives 1o manage credin ks and i furthee
mitigates 15 paposune to crodt itk by eering Into mastes
netting arrangements with counterparties for a skanificant
wolume of framsactions. In general, master nelting arangemenis
di not ead to the offsettng of assets and labilities inchuded in
the staternant of financlal position because transactions ae
uriuidlly setthed grods except Tor transactions that meet the
clfpsttiongy coitenia a3 mentined in paagrapds 2,1 1, Credit sk is
Bamited by master netting arrangemients, but ondy 1o the extent
that # an event of cancellation occurs, all amounts ivobding the
counterparty are frozan and settlad net. The total cradit dsk
expoue fram detivalives 1o which offietting atrangements
apply ks sersiive o the Cosure of new transactions, the explry
of exdsting transctions and fluctuations in masket inferest and
exchanges rates,

The tab'e below shows offsets which have been applied in the
consolidated balance sheet (1A% 37 Ofsetting) and offsets which
Thave ot been applied in the starement of financial position
{Other ollietting), both Emiting credil ik The other olfsets
consist of securites Rabobank has received lrom mevetse
repurchase tramsactions and seounties Rabobank has provided in
relatlon to loans for eparchase ransactions

1565
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Offsetting of Finonclol Instruments
Amcumi befoer P et Mawesneing Amosre! ofter other
Aty i rrilioes of veres r| M5 2 Offsetiing  inciuded in hﬂ*:- 5 Otfier aiffseiTing ”

Om Dwstambar §1, 2018

L e ol 17,850 V7B 758 L
Imetaattor (AR LLEE R [REESH - i
Losarw and advances 0 cusinmer 483,07 in50) 5391 nzaam P
Ocher msens £540 208 B4 . . 63
Total 243,904 483, 453) 253,541 1135310 [a.sar) 431,123
Doepasits from credk instituticns. 20,666 (268 V9397 . e 19318
Dopoiti o customert 144,504 (a4 3410 . (14 MLty
f— 57 LAY e a3 . 10
e luttel e B350 (209 634 . . PerT)
Total LLR ] HE5 A5} FLOTH LIESES L] (L] ATBASY

O Detamber 11, 2017
(Lrsares el aetwanene) tn crei

- 17845 1590 17254 - sIn any
Dabitriho LERLH) LT L [RE%-CH) - 5
Lo gl asivanoe 0 cug lomers AN ST [EE ) LIFE ] + Massn a1erm
Orher et BM5 22 H bl . . el
Total 421,914 4EWa301 491,384 1155845 120,390 440500
[Depavudty bevamy creclit inadimutions. 0 LT LA . 30 14572
Dt beoen cuslomers 143,958 I JAOLEED . LEL i MO
Drtwathors. LA A0 UL 115,504 5 e
Orther iatvlties BASS 221 RITI E = AT
Total A45.608 4698204 395,978 115994 58 ress

Thie table belaw shows the credi-impaiied financial assets in
relation with the collateral that is Peld as security to miligats
wiedil risk

Collateral Held as Secusity and Other Credit Enhancernents for Credit-impaired Financial Assets

firost crirmping Al Caenying amesnt after Colianorl hekf m wvury
Amdangy n miflom of res it imp fi P eduriicn fmpatrmend ot pffver oo
e T nhancements

O Dot bt 31, 2018
Lo el aefivancen B0 cret inulitutiom: i1 ool L1 .
Lo sl advanos o cusiomers 15993 1208 TLrer TELDA4
ISR 3N AT Rl koo [Rpcugh ey Frthernive Frite . . , .
Total 16037 324 1T 10,044

Thee menit table sets out the masimum sxpotune 195 credit sk 1o
which Rabobank is exposed for financial nstruments niot subject
o the IFRS 9 Impalment equirements, withowt taking ino
account any collateral orother measures for resinicting credit iak
it alyo sheaws the finamciad affec el any collotenl provided or
other types af credit fitk reductisn I wome Cies Ths MRaunts
et dhniane fraen This chrrgng amaunti as presented in the
statemert of linancial position becaue The outstanding eguity
nstruments are not included in the maimum exposee 1 cnedi
ik,
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Cowmohulabes) Pl Conrpmaw Friangul
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Mazirmism Exposure to Credlt Risk of Financial Azsets Not
Subject to Impairment

Financial Assets Modified While Loss Alowance Measured af
Lifetime ECL

Amaunty in meoo of mees
ot ek
et
ol rish
O Decmber 31, 2018
Frwneisl amarti held ot trading Laos -
Frwnoial ssety devigrated a1 far value 15y -
Frmniad assety mandatonly at fai value (e e
D bwatthorn. i LLL]]
Total __:I'l‘,.'-]- T 55
Wrire-off Policy

Iabaobank wiites off loans when It has exhawsted all practical
recovery effons and has conchuded thede is noeasgnable
expectation of recovery, Indicaiars that these i no reatanakbe
expectation of recovery bnchade 1 coasing enlercement acthity
and [1]) whene the recovery mathod s foreciosing on codlateral and
the value of the collateral is such that thee |5 no reasonable
expectation of recoversing in full, Rabobank may vwiite-off loans
that are still subject to enforcement aotvity. The autstarding
contracal amaunts af pantly of wholly wiltten off 2584 during
2018 wars EUR 308 millicn.

Rabobank acquired financial and non-financial astets during the
weal by taking possession of collateral with an estimated value of
ELR 15 millian & per 31 Decemipar 3018 (2017 EUR B9 milliank
I i policy of Rabobank 1o sel these assets in the reazonably
faresecable futune, Yiclds are aliscated to ropay the outstanding
amaint

4.3.6 Modified Assots

The nsk of default of maddied assets is assessed at the reporting
dlare and compated wirh the rigk urades the anioinal terms at inaksl
iecognition Rababank manitan the subiequent perlormance ol
hete fonborme modiled sty snd may detesming that 1he
creditrsk has ssgnificantly iImproved, 5o that the assels are moved
from stage 3 or stage 2 {Lifetime ECLY to stage 1 {(12-month ECL
The gross carmypng amount of such assets held as at 31 December
2018 was EUR 32 milliar,

The follewing tabile includes summary infarmation far financial

atety with Betime ECL whane cash floran e medified during
the perod ard their respective effect on financial pedomance:
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Aoty in mile of pyrme g
A i oot beforw maod fizabion nr
Mt b tioon gadng ety ]
Financisl ansets madified tinca initlal recogition e

4.4 Non-trading Foreign Exchange Rate risk
(FX risk)

P rink B That gisk Thist oo hange tate movermants could kead 1o
walatility in the bank's cash Rows, avsets and labiities, ret giofit
andfor equity, The bank distinguishes two types of non-trading
F¥ risks (1] FX risk in the barking books and (i FX tanslation dsk.

FX Risk in the Banking Books

FX rigk in this banking boaks, b the sk wherne known and/or
ascerainable cumency cath fonw commitments and recebabies
n he banking boois are unhedged. As a tesult, it could have an
adverse impact on the inancial resulls and/or inancia position
of the Group, due to movements in exchange ates.

Foreign Exchange Translation Risk

FX tranylaticn ik is the risk that FX Muctuations will adverely
affect the translation of assets and kabilives of operations -
denominated In farelgn currency - into the functional curency
of the parent company. Translation sk reveals in Rabobank's
equity positon, sk weighted assate and capital ratios

Rabaohank manages Its FX translation itk with regand 1o the
Rababank Group TETH ratio by dellberataly taking FX positions,
incluling duliberately malntalning FX positions and not ar anly
partly closng FX postions. As a resull of these structural FX
positians, the impact of exchange rate fluchuations an the
Rabotank Group CETT ratio s miriganed.

X trans/ation riak al Rabobank Group hevel Is covered by the
Glabal Standard on FX Trarslation Risk (“Standaed™L The purpose
of the Standard Is tooutline the Rabobank Group palicy toands
Fx Translation risk 1o achieve and ensure a prudent and sourd
maniionitg & coniredling sysiem, in prder 1o manade thess ik
Group wide, Rabobank uses a plllar 7 framewark for those aeas
whene Rabobank b of the opinian that the regulatary framewark
L. piltar 1) doed ot addreds the iHik or does not adeqliately
address the risle FX transialion sk is one of thase risks.

4.5 Interest Rate Risk in the Banking
Environment

"Intenesl fate rsk in the banking environment” refen to the ik
that the Anancial results ardfor the economic value of the
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lbanking book are acversely affected by changes in market
interest rates.

rterest rhle rlak 51 Rabobank srises because of repricitig and
maturity misnatches between loans and funding. and eptionaity
fnclient products. Customer behaion b an impartant
datermining fctorwith expect to Infeest rate sk in the banking
erwironment, The modelng o customer behaviar s therefore
one of the care elements af the intarest race risk framewark. There
i Behavioml model h place for momgige plepayienati,
avings accounts and curent accownts. Movesm ents In inteest
vates may alvo allect the creditweithiness of customen, Hgher
interest rabes might for example lead 1o higher borowing costs
and, hence, hawe a regative impact an the cred ibworthiness of a
customer. Any sech effects ane however regarded a5 coedin risk
tather than interest rage isk

Rababank accopts a comabn amount af inerest rato risk in the
lbanking énvionment this = a fundamental part of banking. But
al the zame time the Bank alse aims to avoid unexpected
matenal luctuations in the financial result and the economic
walue because of interest rate fluctuations. The BMansging Board,
averieen by the Sapervisan Board, thersfore annualy Apoaoues
thee intemst iae fhik appetite and the cormesponding nlemsl rabe
sk limats

At group level, Rabobank's interest rate risk b managed by the
Assetandd Liakility Commiiee Rabobank Group chaired by the
Chief Financal Officer, The Treasury i respansible for
implementing the decliians of this cammirtes, while Rk
Managemend is respansible for measuring and reporting the
nterasd rate fisk ponition,

The definition used for managing interest rate riskvanes from the
IFRS definition of squity, For interest raee ik mansgarment, The
economi value al equity |y defined a3 the piesent value of the
sty minus the present vilue of the liotsiites ogether with the
present value of the off-balance-sheot tems. Through the wse of
hadge acooumting and because a large proportion of the balance
shieat s carried at amortized cost (n FAS termsl and 15 therefone
nat expased 1o value changes due to changes in matket infaes)
rates, the effects of the value changes on IFRS capinal will be
fimited

Ay pat of ity Intehest rate risk policy, Rabobank uses the following
two key indicators for managing ard contralling interest ate risk:

= Eatrinigs at risk; the Eaf is the largest diecdation in negative
terrris. of Ui gxpected ned mleies) inoome in U fed 12
manths as 3 result of different interest rates soenados: and
+  Modified duration of equity,

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

Seclions 451 and 453 provide further detalls on “Earnings at
1isk” and “Modified duration® developrmants

4.5.1 Earnings at Risk

Earnings a1 ik |s calculated ance a manth based on a slandard
Intenest-rate-sensithity analysis, This analyits showns the maln
deyiation, In a negative sense, of the projectes Interest Income
vt the next 12 months because of 3 scenario in which all maney
market and capital market interest ates gradually increase by 2
Perentige paintd, of & scenaiis in which all maney market and
capital rrarkes inretedt res gradually deceate by o maximum

o 2 percentage points, and twoscenasios inwhich the veld cunre
steepens of lattens. The projected interest e income |5 based
o a scenarta in which all intenest mfos and other rates nomaln
equal

in 200 8, Habobank's net intenest ingome suffer: the mow under
an mterest ate dewnward scenario throughbout the year, On 315
of December 3018 the Eafl ended up ot EUR 1090 million, fowes
than the Eafl of EUR 148 million in 208 7, This s mainly ditven by
il sisk management by ALCOY Treasury.

Earnings at Risk

30 weembses 3018 3 Deemnber 2007
Earrings o i 104 16
St by rnaln cumencles
Earnings A B3 - EUS i 14
Earnings a1 Sl - USD LF LH)
4.5.2 Modified Duration

The Madilied duration (MD) or duration of equity indicates by
what percentage the economic value of eaulty will il if the
money market and cap#tal mackel inberesk rates increase by one
parcentage paint. The Managing Soard has set a kower kit of
0 and an upper limi of 6% for this purpose. Additional limies
apply far the basis poit value (BPY) of equlty and the delta
predile (BPY per term poant] for equity:

Modified Duration
Spwvambey Pegamier T
b oAb J7
Mebiene] Dbt ey () Gt boreel b ELORE L 3D
Sl by maln currencies
Ibyclifed Dhuraion 5 - R 3 HF% 2%
Iebachifiiar] Do oy ) = USD ¥ RE ]

4.6 Market Risk in the Trading Environment

Mot Rk dsrs Froan the sisk of losuss on rading bock poitiaad
affected by mosemands in Interest fafes, equithes, crodit spreads,
curencles and commadities. Risk posthons acquired from clients
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«an efther be redistributed 1o other clients or managed through
1k trarsfyrmation (hedging). The trading desis are also acting
a5 3 matker-make for secondary marets by providing bguidiny
«arad pricingh i drterest rate derival ves ang detr, including

Habobank Bands and Rababank Cartificatys

Market risk in the trading ewvironment s monitored dally within
1he market risk frameworek, which is put in place 1o measure,
manitor and manage matkes sk im the trading sooks This
franewaik containy all dechatives 1 trading baaks, b well i the
lnan iyndication books, The tha Tem funding books, weouriied
firance & reps books and the bord tading boaks, An imporant
parl of the framework is on appropriate svstem of limits and
trading controls. The mlevant dsk appetite Bmnits ane transstod
nta bmits ard trading controlds at book level and ate monitored
ot & dally basis by the market tisk deganments.

Duie ta Rabobank's strategy of client risk rmdistitation, risk
transformation (hecgingl and the low wecondary market activity,
tha 1eal market risk exposue of the trading ponfiolio i well within

Manabenend Feocit | Alpenlos Dovemance
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actiors will be stipubsted which decrease the chance of laige
attual Iosses. The risk positan b reported to senlor managament
and discussed in the varows sk management committees each
enonth, Risk deéveloprents that regquine ad hoc altemion die
communicated accordingly outside the reqular reporting cyche.

O gonsclidated level, the rsk appetite b defined for VaR, event
sk, event risk undenwriting and Interest rate delia

Thit Wal indicates the maxirmam had for b given confidence lsvel
ardd harizon under 'ronmal’ maksd conditions, bassd on one year
o histgical masket movements, Daily ik management uss a
confidenor hevel of 97.5% and a harizon of 1| day, Under this
methad, VaR is calculated an the basls of historical marked
movemenits and the positions taken. The table bedow plesents the
compositon of the Val, In 2018, the Vaf fluciualed Between
ELR 1@ million and EUR 3.9 milion, the averige being

FLUR 26 millisn. The Vad amounted to FUR 3.4 millien on
Decembeer 31, 2018 VaA mostly changed due to cllent relsted
deals and inceeased risk leveds due to volatility in the financial

the risk appetite boondares. If limits are breached, emedial markets,
VAR (1 day, 97.5%) famodmts in millions of ewnos)

inraes Crealt Clmrencies Shaws  Commodnes  Dvenifoaron Tan
3078 - Decemiber 5t 23 L &k G a3 (4] a4
J018 - avericp 22 £ o1 LT} LYl : 18
018 - Blighest 34 ia (1 .l ar 1%
008 - Lewest 7 ar [ LTl . 19
T - Cecembes 39 % as al oy 1
T average 18 os 02 o8 a2 - a8
2017 = highet 4z £ 13 a1 14 . a9
FO7 - bwet b & oo -1} L8] - g

i addition 1o the YaR, thete are sevetal other imponan rgk

b catory, The inbeest rate dielta e mdaswe of the change In the
walue of posnians if there s a parallel Increasa in the vield cunse
of 1 basls paint {le. 001 parcentage point). The Interest rate defts
1able below shows the sensitivity 1o charges in the yeld curves
for the majer curences. On December 31, 2018, the mteea ate
daita for tiading bools was CUR 06 million pattive. The interest
rate s nemained woll within the set fmit during the reparting

Interest Rate Delia

B Decemibey 37 Denermber
Auindi i b of ans M T
TR Lt ] a%
usy a1 o
OF dl al
ey aa -1
Total L] ar

Annus Report 2008 - Consolidated Financial Statements

Aabatunk uies stress testing to complement the Ve it s
Fnitrumental in gauging the impsit of extieme, yot plaaible
predefined moves In market risk factors on the PEL of individual
trading and Investment portfolios. These moves are reflected in
scenarios which captare ik drivers such as tenor Dasls swap
spreads, interest rates, fosign exchange, credin spreads, volat diy
ard intesest rate cunse ratation. Depending on the scenana,
incividial risk factors or ruiriple sick factor categaries will be
wtoeased at the sarme time:

The event risk, which s measured by performing sensithity
analyues and wress tests wat FUR 178 millien on December 31,
F018, wedl within the 2 limit. it fuctuated bepwesn

EUR 100 million and EUR 157 million with an average of

ER § 20 million, Within the Trading Boak, the tenor bass swap
pasition remains a large concentrated posithon with a substantial
Impact on Rabobank's event fsk. Due 1o Rabobank's increased
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lbond trading activity, the dominant event risk scenaria
throughout the year was related tea rise in bord yiekds

4.7 Liquidity Risk

Loty risk i the risk that the bank will nat be able to meet all
o {ts payment and tepayment obligations an time, as well as the
sk thiat the bank will not be abde to fund increases inassets aza
repsonable peice, i @ all This could rappaen i, for Instance,
clritamer or proledtlonal counteipanies suddenly withdrw
maore fumnds than expectid which cannot be abtorbed by The
ank's cash iesources, by welling o pledging assets inthe markel
ot by borrowing funds from thind parties. Rabobank considers an
adequate liguidity position and retaining the confidence of both
professianal market parties and retal customars tobe crucial in
ensuing unimpeded access 1o the putdc money and capial
kit

Thee Bepuleity 1k policy Focuses on financing assets using s1able
funding, ie, funds entrusted by customers and long-term
wiholesabs funding, Uiguidity sk s managed based on three
pillars, The first of these sets strict Hmics far the maki measm
autgaing cash Aevet within the whobssale banking business
Ameong other thingn, Fabobank measstes and reparts on adaily
basis what incoming and oulgemg cash flows can be expecied
during the nost tweive months, Limits have been st fod these
outgalng cash Aows, including for each curency and each
bocation. Detailed plans {the comingency funding plans} have
Ibeen dran up for contingency funding o ensure the bank is
prepaned far patentil erth situations. Penodic aperational toss
are performed for these plans

Thie secend pillar s wsed o maintain a substantial high-guality
lbaffier of liguid assess. Besides credit balances held at central
{anks, these assets can be pledged ro canmal banks in repa
traniactions, o to be 1ol desctly in the maket 1o gensme
Nigwadty immediatedy. The size of the Sguicty Buller b atlaned to

Annus Report 2008 - Consoldared Financial Ststements

Aapendos.

EDINETOOOO
O00OO00O000000000000040d0(ee5923)

oooooao

the rksk Rabobank & exposed to in its balance sheet, In addition
Habatank has securized a portion of the margage portfolio
mernally, which means 1 can be pledged o the central bank,
Uherety senang &5 an-sdditional iguidiy bufler. Since this
concerns retained securaations, | ks not reflecied In the
eonsolidated balance sheet.

The thisd pllar for managing liquidity risk consits of @ good
credit rating, high capinal levels and prudent funding policies.
Aabatank rakey visaul meriures 1o ekl bicaming aveily
dependent on atingles soutce of funding, These include balances
chiversilication of nancing sources reganding maturity,
cumencies, imveston, geography and markets, a high degree of
unsecured funding and therefore limited asset encumbrance, and
amactive and conshstent imvestor-relarions palicy play a majos
rake.

Seenarie analyses are perdarmed cach manth 1o determine the
potentlal consegquerces ol a wide range of stress wenarios. The
analyses cover market-specific scenarios, Rabobank-speciic
scerarics and a combenation of both. Monthly regarts on the
Group's averall liquidiry position ane submimed to the Dutch
Central Bank These reparts are prepated In accardance with the
guidelines drawn up by this wwpendisony sutharity

The tabie below shows the wndiscounted babllities grouped
according to the temaining bguidity perod from the reporing
date tothe expected contiact fepayment date, Tha total amounts
do nat corespond galy with the amounts in the corsolidated
statement of inanclal potition becase this tabic Is hared on
unstscounted contractual cash flows relating to bath principal
and futune Intetest payrments, Detdvatives are nof Included o this
table and have not been analyzed on the bast of the contiactual
due date. because they are mot essential for the management of
ity rlsk o for reponting to-4eniar management. The marunity
piodile of deibvatives uied Tod caih low hedging |y dicloded
Section 113 "Darvatives Designated o Bedgineg ndtramenl.”
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AL i [ haderrasy Comonse Commciuclates Pl Corrpey Franoad
(L ] Fiewim| R nagerment Bepoed AppEnSe lameane Shatemerdy Stalemmanty
Coutractual Repayrment Deale
Amuines m e of e O pmand m ‘:‘,’x -5 pean “"‘"_"";: ""mi faral
O Decambes 11, 30148
Liatellities
Usapeniit frorn el inid i 1wia L1 A 4500 14 noh LLT2
Dot o cusismens 200453 13,309 103 14321 FIE 1133 M7
Dot Lt bn L se 4470 17,184 25675 l# LT . TR ]
Crcher liatal Chuching mmpinye berefi] Fieil] 1567 ko el 20 B S04
[Frusncinl skl heirtler trading - 4n0 = - - - A
Firwngisl Labites deugnated o i walue 1”7 1% 7 1581 147 : 628
Stlsesitbirarted Lalslie n £ [LF0 a3rs 1404 s FLNEH
Total fnamedal Nabilise ELLE P 13,7na armoa wrrea 73,510 [ k] 344,109
Frusnonsl guarardesy 1377 - - - - - a7
Leal COMINAmEnTs 13583 11583
Amne in miFes of s O demand m ’m 1 -5 ponry “““;"m ":“M‘“ iy ot
O Detarmbees 31, 2017
Liabilities.
IDempeviits o el inatiutionn. 400k o 1748 LRI 1,340 LY LLALES
[Depoits from custemen 172804 1RE7 T35 1880 nrm s HAITE
Deetet secuitles in e 7352 19,341 31300 #1191 4,161 [ILET
e Mitalvees [eurtading meroioyes heretg a3 1800 1363 [l L1 ot AT
lirwnoal Latuidt ey held lor Iradieg - £t - - - - san
Farunnial Labii s designared a1 i valoe m 150 e A3 LR : M
Subotleaied babslines . 13 £30 £a13 15831 . s
Tolal finaraaal Labalise FLES P 43,830 0970 LAk LN w440 SELETT
Frwnoial guarargeey 1,401 - - - - . 1A%
LOan COmITmenty 65 . . . . ! 12045

Thie table belaw shows assars and labllited grouped socording amadnts included in the consalidated statemeant af financial
o the peiod remaining from the reporting date 1o the positian
conraciual iepayment date, Thee amounis corespond 10 1he
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Al thei L harrmagt'y, Comxuge Commpofulabest gl Conrpmaw Friangul
(L ] Fiewim| R nagerment Bepoed AppEnSe lamrane Shatemerdy Stalemmanty

Current and Non-current Financial nstruments

Ao in mions of euros n demand S By ‘:‘,“:; -5 prars “’“"_""E tpm”‘““"’ Tl
O D ribest 11, 2018

Finangiol assets

Cavh sred cath squivalenty M L] # - o ain s
Lo and advanoes o credit Insthutians EALH] [T+ (ED) (1] 168 2550 17459
P asets held for radieg 158 178 1s ] 1,475 mn 2876
Firuanoial sty derigrated # fair valuo 127 ? : n : 157
Firuncinl sty manciatoly st fairvalue L] M 1 L) 21 6w L
Dwerivathor 1008 1,100 1552 500 11,699 ! 120560
Lesti el dbieantin B0 cusiDiErs fres EFTH ETETH] ETET] FXTETH 5387 448,591
mml m‘“" e ot m &1 2410 10,545 ] LT L
s aisees g smployes Benedng E] 2007 14ea 1471 L[] Ane (YR ]
Total fnsmcial sats AL 24,440 4131 125118 43,288 M.143 280747
Financlol Hahilities

Depouts fom creds insiutions. 2514 67 4418 L] A4 6051 19357
Dpartiti oot ustisener 20081 S (IEE 1485 Frre 1,138 1410
ket sunitlos in e 4443 [EEF Jami4 w000 Mo - 110Ans.
Deriwataee 10 1304 1500 whid 1 i ne
Frano babstnes held e trading 200 40
s Wikl B femrbasing sy et 2p0s 2043 am L) & 2 o
Tirwnoul Latali ey designated of i wabue 1 1 b L] eas - and
Subpriraied ket + - 1007 5804 487 . 1645
Total fnasial Rabilitie FLTRITS ATT ALAS 05,145 T, fTr] B84 148
et balans (§78,031) 5,437} neap arms 88,297 o9 8837
Asnisnes in st of euros 0 e e ]I':':"'“”;“ I8 peans L“"‘";x hyraiciogs'd Faral
Om Decembeer 11, 2017

Financiol aveets

Cash prd cash equivalenty 5,700 n F) . - 1 A6
Loans sl scbvances o credi instiutions 15779 &£150 (R #1é 13 1307 1354
Firunin sty hold for adirg L] il aa (L] LS L Lied
Firuncial sty desbgranted 2 b vabue * 150 L wy L] L2 Lea
Dotrtwattor &7 #5 1810 59 15593 . 15505
Lo sl Sebvances B0 cUSIOMENS T 17053 EFLTTY LILTF] METRY 542 4535853
Heallahlatdor-uaia Snaeeisl pspeh 1y wr (L] 1wy [T ] a A
Criher et |enthasing empioyee benefis) =1 1809 PR e F.1] 1398 1055
Total finssiial acuts LT nas FTELT] 124,858 110,408 15,224 501,781
Financlal Habilites

nepasr it oo 1l e utions. amn Ll 1110 a0 13 581 [LEFH
Depasits o customers 1m0 154504 (L 16,00 17887 EEE] LT
Dkt curithen it e A4 19220 30418 T 19127 . 1314421
Deniwsttory 18 1,187 181% P e o FERET]
IPrwnsial kabiies heid s Irading - 81 -+ " 4 > At
Crher labslies (escluding smployes erefind 17355 L78F (E17] a1 48 & 19T
Firusneisd abubmios detignated ot bk value ” 1" il (T T . [ERT
Suthoriinued Lstalimes - - m FEC 11801 - 16,170
Total fingmidal Rabilises FLLED T LLATY 1000 04,104 76,158 500 BEOESD
Mt Bsalamson [H75.926] {14,853} {Lear) 30,752 194, 249 E 604 31,139
The overview pietened above was composed based on behavior of these financial matnements, However, thiz is
contractiual imformation and does not repeesent the actual accourted for in the day-1e-day maragement of the liquidity sk
Annud Report 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Statsments 1563
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Custormar savings are 30 example. Under contract, these are
payakke on demand. Experience has shown this te be very stable
sounce of long-term financing for Rabobank to have ag s
dispasal The regulations of th supenmsany authary alsg tacior
this in,

'With a Liguatity Coverage Ratio (LCRD of 135% at per Decemiber
31, 2008 {201 7; 123%), Rabobank complies with the minimum
100 requirement &5 et by the Dutch Central Bank (DNEL

Theie Bericfity fequitemants 1o meer paments under financial
gpraarantes are comiderably lower than e amousd of the
labilities because Aabobank does not gererally expect that third
parthes ta such amangements will draw funds The total
eutstanding amownt ia contractual abligations o provide ciedi
whoes ol necessalily tepresent the futuie cash resource needs of
Habobank because many of these obiligations will ligse o
terminate withaut financing belng required.

4.8 Operational Risk

Opetational Hisk (Opfizk] ks an integral pan of daing business.
Operational Rk Management [DRM) within fabobark s simed
al huving a lsalhy batance between Lhe exposure 10 These risks
and managing these risks, The objectioe of ORM s (o identify,
mexsure, mitigate and monitor aperational tisk, and promote dik
awaraness and a healthy risk culuee within Rabobank. Risk
dquaniilication and awaieness helps management (o set peiorities
in their actions and allocate people and nesoarces thus enabling
the bank 1o deliver full custamer facus, Within Rabolbank,
operational risk is defined as the ritk of lassey resulting from
Inadequate ar faled intemal processes, people and systerms or
from extermal events, including potential reputational
CONSEqUEnCEs,

Rabobank lus developed a Rk and Contial Fismesark [ACF)
which i maradatony for ol business wnits (inciyding subsigiaries)
and contrad suppoart funciians within the organtzation The ACF
enures that risks due to Inadequate or falling processes, peogls,
systerms and/or extemal evenis aie managed within the accepted
ik lpvaly To manage opelational ks elfecively, an integiatad,
forward-looking weew by the first Line of Delense risk awnes
telient-facing departments) and Suppan Functiand |5 inplace. In
addition, quaterly In Contral meetings within the fint line aze in
place to manage operalional ks

abobank performs a structuned and integrared sk anabysis To
Imegrally mansge o fkand conto! famework, Perfaming this
ik assepiment sbicas all entitbes helps W enseie Rabobunk
Group's isk management system 5 sound and in compliance

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements
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with reguislory requirements. Risk Contiol Activitles [RCAs) are
inciuded in the fallowing process steps:

« Rilsk Identificaton

= Rlsk Assgssment

= Risk Retparse

= Risk Manitoring

= isk Aepoeting

= Risk Frndinag and Action Management

« Risk Incigent Managemiarit

Unibanm and caniitent RiscContiol ACTviEies nesuit in aneflectie
and eflicent way of managgng varus ypes of operational 1k
and a good balance between risks and controds within the
oaganiration. Hence RCF improves the effickency and
eflectiveness of dally business and helps 10 become a bearmer
fearmning organization,

4.9 Fair Value of Financial Assets and
Ligbilities

Far fair valwe measurement Rabobani assumes that the
trnsaction 1o sell the asset or fransfer the liakdity Is conducied
I whes prineipal macket for the aser ar llability, ar in the mass
advantageous market If no pringipal rmarket exists

Market prices are nat avallable for a large nuember of the financial
assefs and llabii thes that Rabobank holds o lssues. For financial
iatruments for which no market peices are available, the faa
walues shown in the following table have been estimated using
the prewent value o the results of ather sitimatian and valsation
methads, bated on the madet conditions on the reporting date,
The values produced using these methads are highly sensitve to
lie undetlying assumptions used for the amounts and for the
timing of futune cash fAovs, discount rates and possibée market
Mgy, The follow ng methods and assumptions have been
wriet

Cash and Cash Equivelents,
The falrvanee of cash and cash equivalents i assumed to be

almast equal to thelr carying amount. This assummption is usad for
Rty gl | rrvestrnents and alio for the shor-1enm companent
of alf prher financial assers and Fabiives

Loans and Advances to Credit Institutions,
Loans and advances to Credit institutions also inckudes interhank

placings ang mems 1o be collected. The fair values of fiosting rate
placings, that ane repaiced requlaty and do not vaey significantly
B terms al credi sk, and overnighit depasils se thel carying
amounts The etintated Ll volue of feed-nleies depoits
based on the present value of the cash fiows, crculated based
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on appropriate money market mienest rales lor debts with
compasable credit isks and terms 1o matality.

Financial Assets and Derivatives Held for Trading.

Firancial assets held for trading aee carried at fair value based on
avdilable quated prices Inan active maraet. If quoted prices inan
active market 3@ not avallable, the falr value i estimated Dased
on discounted cash flow models and option valuation models

Derhvathve. aie recognized at Wik value determined o ihe bath
ol lisned manked prices. [mid-price are uted lor ELR, USD and GAP
aherivatives (hat huve a bid-ask rangpel, prices ollened by Do,
discounted cash flow modiels and option valuation models based
on curvent masket pices and contract prices for the underying
instruments and reflecting the time value of money, yield cunves
ardd The wolatiliny of the undetlying assers and liabilities,

For OTC dedvatives crodit valuatian adjustments {CVAL aee made
o reflect sxpected cradit kosses related 1o the poneperformance
itk of @ given counerparty. A CVA iy determined pet
counterparty and depends on espected future exposure Laking
Into account collatera, netting agreamants and other ralevant
contracual lactods, default prababllity and recaverny ates The
CWA codoulation i banid on v allable rmarket dats including
credit default swap (CDE] ypreads, Where CDS spreads ang nal
availande relevant prosies are used. A debit valustion adpestment
(CVAD Is made to include own Credit in the valuation of OTC
derivatives. The caloulation of DVA b consistent with the CVA
framework and is calculaed wsing the Rabobank COS spread.
Andther factor that must be taken Into account & the funding
waluation adjustments (FYAL PVA concemns the valuation
difference between transactions hedaed by securities and
ransactions not hedged by secunties. Collatetalived wamactions
are valued by means of a discounting curve, based on the
overnight Index spresd Non-coliateralized ransactions anme
walued by means of a dncounting curve, baied on Euribot/Libar
plus a spresd which reflects the market conditions.

Financial Azsets Designated ot Fair Value and Financial Assers

Mandatorily at Fair Valuwe.
Thede financia’ assezs are cariad an fair value based on quated

{EIRces o an active market If avadable, If mot, they are estimated
fram comparble 415614 an the matket, of using valuation
methody, including appropriate discaunted cash llow madek
ard aption valuation models.

Loarts ard Advanoes o Customers.

Thee Ralr vialue of ioans and sdvances 1o customers s estimated
by discunting expected luture cash llows using Curient matiet
rates for similar laans, considening the crediwonthiness of The
counterparty. For the falr valuation of reskdential mortgage loans,
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the contractual cash ficwes are adjusted for the prepayment rate
of the panfolio. For variable-interest boans that ane repiced
teqularty and da not wary significantly in 1enms of credin 1isk, the
Hale vales ageprosirnates the canying amount,

Financial Assets af Fair Value throuwgh Other Comprehensive
Incaune and Available-for-safe Financial Assers.
These financial assets are measdred at [ar value based on lissed

market prices. If quated poicas on an active market are nat
available, the falr valee (4 eatmnted bawed on discounted canh
flew moceds s aption valuation meadely

Deposits fram Credin Inseirutions.
Lzans and advances to credit instiutions includes Interhank

placings, kems o be colected and deposits. The fair values of
linating rate placings, that are repaiced regulasly and oo not vary
slgnificanitty in terms of eredin sisk, and evinight depolits ang
thelr carrylng amcunts, The estbmased fae value of foed Interest
depasits [ based on the present va'ue of the cash Hows,
calculated Dased on valid money market interest rates for debis
with comparable credis risks and terms to maturity.

Deposits from Customers.

Deposits from custamers ircludes curment accounts and deposis,
Thez fite v of savings and current account balances that have
na speciiic terminathon date are assumed to be the amount
payable on demand on the reporting date Le. thelr carrying
amaunt on that date The fair value of these deposits & estimated
from the present valee of the cash Nows based on cusrent bid
eates for Interest for simitar arrange monts and teems fo maturity
and that match the Rems to be measured, The casrying amourt
of vatiable-Intedest deposits s & good approximation of thelr Fair
walue on he reganting date.

Firancial Liablities Held for Trading.

Thet fale vadue of financisl llabilities held fof trading (s based an
availals quoted prices om an sctive market, 7 guoted prices on
an active market are not avallabie, the falr value s cstmated on
the basls of vahuation modeds,

Financlal Liabilities Designated af Fair Value,

The fair vadue option |s used 19 olimirate the accaunting
mismatch and valuation asymmetny Betwesn These intTiiments
and the hedging detivatives which would occur if thede
natrumienty would have been accounted for at amon ed cost
The financial llatiaes designated at fairvalue Include struecured
nodes and structured deposits which are managed and repoted
oan & lain value sk together with the hedging derbatives. The
fab wilur ol Wi Lokt 1 delermcned by dacounting
contrachual cash flows using cred adjusted yield cunses based
o avadlable madket data in the secondary market and appeopedate
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05 spreads, All other market risk paramaters am valued
consistently with dervatiees used to hodge the market risi in
these [labilthes. Changes in the fair value thar are atvizutable o
whariges in own credi sk e reported in "Othes comprehendive
ineame®, The change In fair value that [ atdbutabie to changes
Fn grwvn credit Fsk 1t caleulated by deducting on a note by note
basis the curent falr value of the structured notes pontfolio at the
teporling date from the fae value recalculated based on the
prevaiing credit curve at the time of origination, with all other
pileshg companers unchanged. This caleulition redlects the
amount that can e sributed 1o the change In the swn cledlt
ik of Rabobank since the origination of tase siuciured noles.

Debt Securities in lssue,

The falr walua of thess instumsanis is caloulated wsing quoted
{LiECEs ey an active marker. For dety secusiies for which no
cuoted prices onan active markes ang svaltable, adhicountod cosh
flerw maded Is wsed based on crodia adasted yield cunes
appropriate for the temm to matulity.

The folloving table shows the fair value of financia! instruments,
tecognized at amortized cost based on the valuation methods
and assumations detailed Below. This tabe i included because
et all fisancial Instruments ane recognized at fair value in the
balance sheet, Fair value represents the price that woald have
been oither iecckeed for the sale of an asset or paid In order 1o
transfer a kabdity in a standard transaction conducted betwesn
market pamicipants on the valuatisn date,

g 207

Catmying Larrpng
Aty m el of s AT Faar vk [T Fairvake
Assats
Cash arvd conh quivalency TAIW TS GEASY  SAB61
jpamelabanmisiell  ane am i 1w
Loans s advances 1o

AATHE  AALBET  AMRSE4  ALDE
Liakilities
[Depauiy o credl
peipisiel {LETT [UETER T R T v
Usapenits brorm cusiomen MIAle  MRTED J0dR PRI
abet st in bawse TIRB0E  VALMT WA 1NEASY
Suibrardirated falsiiies (LT W7 &7 18047

The atove stated figured repreient the best postible eitimates
by managament based on a range of methods and assumpticna,
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i gueded price on an active market is available, this is the best
estimate of fair value

M s quasted] geices o an s inarked are avdilabile for Mmed-teim
securiibes, ey instruments, detivatves and commodity
Instrumients, Rabohank bases the expected fairvalue on The
jpresent value of the future cash fows, discounted 3t market rates
which correspond o the credit ratings ard terms to mabunty of
the investrments. A madel-based price can a0 be uied 1o
detirrilme Balr v,

Rabobank follows a policy of kaving o modeh wied for valuing
financial instruments in the statemaent of fimancial position
walldated by ewpert staff who are independent of the staff who
datermine the fall values of the financial Insruments.

in detetmining markst vilues o Falr values, vanous facioes hive
152 bee conskdered, These factors Includle the Hme vakie of maney,
wolatility, vrederlying options, credit quality of the countesparty
and other factos. The valuation process has been desgred n
such away that market prices that are available on a pericaic
s are systematically used, Modifications toassumptions might
affecy vhe fail valus of fnancial assers and labilicies bedd Tor

tracing and non-Dading puposes

The table on the next page Mlastrates the fairvalue hierarc by wied
in determining the falr value of financial assets and llabiigies. The
breakdawn s

= Level LiQusted pices on active markets fod identical ausets
ar llabllities; an "acthe market® Iv a market In which
transactions rekating 1o thee arset of lability aocar In sufficient
leguency and at a sufficient volume in cider to provice price
Infarmation on a pemmanent bask

o Lewsl 3 inputs other than guoted prices included in less) 1
thiat are obiendable for The aiset o lability, eher dirsctly (le.
as prices) or indivectly fue. derived from prices)

= Lewel 3 inputs for the asset or Sability not based on
ohservable market dara.

Rababank determings for securent vahuations of financial
insrrumenty o fair vaboe wien ransfens bevween the wario
categatics of the falr-value hierarchy sacutred by reasieising the
level at the end of each feparting perod,

381/506

Oooooood



EDINETOOOO
O00OO00O000000000000040d0(ee5923)

OoOooogooo
Ak 1hey L hamrg's Loz Corpolclaies] Pl Cowrpmew Frang gl
gt Frpwend anatpernen Faooit Apperloe L Sl Stalemanty
Amounts m mdban of rurcs Lewl ¥ Lewlz Lewel s faal
0w Decembas 31, 318
Asuels carried sl tved contin the L]
fmancial parfian
Cath ard cash equevalents T 33 & Ti3E
Lssareh el afvniof 10 credi insiatisnm L[] 7212 (%] T7aTa
Losarsk iwrefl sefvande B0 cuslomery wig PR ] B ET, ] a4ian?

issets carvied 51 Ealr valus in the sxaiemsent of feancial

poution

Vsl aveets held for Irading 138 al L] FLE
Frwnolal avsets desigrated a far value 134 FL a 157
[P aaseti mandaonly st tain value . 5T 1,563 2.
Useriwutrory. 1 12581 F=2 Tlesl
IFrsncial sxsetn o Tair value thecugh othes compeekenuve: a5 813 Py e
Ban-current adsets held for wle - - M i

Liakdlities carried 2t smormhed con inthe stavement of

Francial pusition

epaniits o et imsitutiona. L] FLACC] 5 JLAEL
Lrepasts Fom cuslsmens [ A 49 METT
Dot tecuithes in L [LEE] 105418 Er ] 132397
Suibesefirutoe katilities [EALH n . 172m

Liandlities camried ot faly waduse i the stssement of

Feancial posiion

Drfwatives. &t el [H] A
Irwrcil histibties held o trading [ - . 403
Fruancial batdbeies degnated o b valos ! LTirs : [rars
Aty in i of fures Levend 1 el 2 Level § Tt

O Diecembes 35, 2017

Assets carried a1 ived Covl in the ol

Frunclal pasition

Cavharad canh squavalents B4BE] . . SHAEN
Lo el aedvancess 10 credit instinumions n A ™ e
Lo el aedyanem 10 eualomery n 196,487 FHRIT] TR

Aasets carvied a1 Balr value in the ctatemsent of freancial
poutizn

Tirusneial susati hald for tradieg 1A ne &1 100
runcial ssets desigrated at far vabee 141 Erid v i (RE-T1
TasidAte [ FLAE] E1E3 E1T
Al atoletor e fuareid asrti 24845 s EL e
Son-current siseis hald for wale - L [3H
Liaksditiws carrimd st ehiad coit in the aLab o

Freancial pouition

Deposity Bom credd institutions. BB ' 1895
Depaertits foaem CuURIDmErs 5 LIETTY FTERT ] MATH
Dt samcurities in s [TARH 1, m LE RTATH
Susombroted kot 178 A - oy

Lhabalitbors cairiod b Pakt valus o the statament <l

Fmancial posftion

Dty 1 17817 18 i
Firureriil Nacdbmies heddd e trading 581 . . 58y
Firunial il degniled o Lo valoe - 11042 i 10
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The potential elfect before taxation, If mone favoiable reasonable
assumptions ane used for the valustion of the financal
insrrumenty inlevel 3 ontheincome tatemant, 13 EUR 145 million
AHOTT; EUR 70 mallin] and on ofher comprehenive meome
ELR O millicn (2007 EUR 16 milllor], The potential elfect before
tamation, ifmare inbineocable reasonable assumptions ane used for
the valuatizn of financlal nstuments in keval 3 on the income
statement, s EUR -142 million (201 7: EUR <64 mdlion) and on
othier comprehensive income EUR -7 milion (2007

[ELR -16 milliiank

Leverl 3 of the Tinancial assets at fair vahue inchude private equity
nterests and the loan portfiolio of ACC The Latter since the
adoption of IFKS 9 per lanuany 1, 2018 Total amount of these
feval 1 financlal assets 3t falr value s ELRR 1,245 meillion (2017
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applied ta the EBITOW. The sverage weighted multiplier is 6.4,
with a handwidth of -1 funfavorable] and +1 (fnsorable) of the
multiplies. Sianificant uncbservable inputsfor thevaluation of the
ALE loan portfolic e the valuation of collaeral snd the appetite
10 buy this type of ssets iellected in a range of plus (best caiel
of ELR 6 millian oo mirus fwert case) of ELR 48 milllon,

The tatle shows movements in the financial Instraments which
ane staped &t fak valee in the ssatement of financial pesition and
st b aee elrssified I Lovel 3 The falf value sdjuments 0 Level
Awhich ane inciuded ineouiny are sccourntad o in the revahaation
veserais for financial asets at fay value Vrough comprebemine
ingoime,

Ins 2018 there wee no significant wanslers berween lavel | and

ELFR 525 miilion], A sianificant unotsersabile ingul for the fevel 2
waluation af the private exquity intenent s the muliplier whick s

i valur i vakar B 5

Bl on whangpe changes Trangfen oo

sy m millions of euros Soruey |, 2018 Fenperstedin inoeposted i Furrhutier S Sertlements Hmdevel 3 t-m;:ru

oo o fents o
Assrty
Francial ansets held for tradieg ] [ - (131 " . 3]
Frmnoal anseti desigraied a1
T n 1 = . [ ® L]
rﬂmmu 1558 5 163 "o ) n i583
nrtwatnmn, s i L+ = 1) r Fil
Tieuresial wist o8 Fadv vidue
thenugh other comprehenshe aTH (] 4] [5ai Ani
Income
Liatulities
Dsifwiatiat 5 [} ¥ (a7 (F2 ]
Tirwnsind atrlities dedgrateda " . [+ ] o

Favrwsue v

Balzntren Trusrifers 1
sty i i of e oy, | MG PR Pudne ok Setikeeets  hekdforsoke oo 1o fecember It
e Incorpoenes il
npeoirorions w000
Ansrts
Firwnoial svsety held For irading i 9 - ik ] - £l
F Al 514 L¥] . 118 i " v a 51

Devtwattrs. L11% w - - (3511 - 3 ns
Awailahds-doe-rals Snanoial asost LT 125 k1] Lk | 304 - 537
Liaksliiies
Deettwanries. 524 - 18] ] P12
ur“ et S chplraincl ot 1 m - 41 m a4 W

Thie amount in tatal geing or losses ecogniged i i incorme
statement fof the period re‘ating 1o the assets and labilithes held
in Level 5 until the end of the reporting perlod ks ghven in the
following table
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insrements no
mifmaments
it theengt OV beLal
Aty milsiol e o that o b Tistal
P pparting
period
O Decarmbeet 1, 3078
LITTLI
Firwniokat aviets Fudd for rading [ . &

Firuniial avseti deigra bed a1
N wabus ] - i

Pl assety mandatonly at
Hae ks

0
Dettwatorn, - LELl L]
Farumcial sasaty at blr value
thunugh orther
o Ll i L

[ e 4541 ({5.1]

Firunatal aisets bk for wading i
Firmncial assers dhesigraied an - "

Dmertaatho. L1 LU

Esers

Francid et deugnated i

Recogrimon of Day 1 Gaing
“When wssing Falr value accounting at the irception of a financlal

instrument. any pos ithe diference betwesn the transaction peice
ard the fair value (jefened to as "day 1 gains”) is accownked forin
the statement of income where the valuation method is based
oy olysenvable inpaus from actiye markers in all other cases, the
entine day 1 gain i defened and alted intial iecognition the
adefurred doy | gain i ecognized a5 xgain to the extent il iesults
from a change in a factor {including time offects), There are po
deferred day | gains 35 at December 31, 2008

4.10 Legal and Arbitration Proceedings

Hababank Group i actie in a kegal snd regulatony cnvinonmens
that expoded it 1o substantial risk of litigation, Ay a redult,
Rabobank Gioup B invabed in legal caves, arbil rations and
regulatory preceedings n the Netherlands ard In other
countries. The mast relevant legal and regudatony clalms which
woudd give 1i4e 1o llability on the pan of Rabobank Group are
e tibd below.

Annud Report 2008 - Consolidated Financial Statements
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Provisions for begal clalms are recognized for chligations atsing
a5 3 st of a past event where it 5 probablka that an outfiow of
resources will be required 1o sertle the obligaticn and a reliable
eslimate can b made of the snount of the obligation. Whet
determining whether the prabability that elaims lead 1o an
aallfiony of resodinoes B micne [ikely thar rot e with 3 Boelibood
of over fifty percent), Rabobank Growp takes several lactors Inte
account These factors inClude (but are not himited o) the type
of claim and the underlying facts: the procedural process and
nkitary of ach caie; illngi fram legal and arbitiatian bodlés;
Aabatank Goup’s expetbance and that af thisd pankss in similar
canen (il kel previows westhement discussions, Wird-party
settiements in simibar cases (wbem kngwnlk weallable (potential)
mecourse: and the advice and opinions of legal advisors and other
expens Similar types of cases ate growped together and some
cases may alsa consist of 3 number of claima. The esmared loss
far gach Indnvidual case {for which i is possible 1o make a relable
edtbmated ks not divciernod becare Habobank Group feels tha
information of this type could be dettimental 1o the cutcome ol
mdividual caves.

The estimiated potentlal bsses and provisiany, e based on the
Infarmation rvailable af the time and are largaly subject 10
[uckgments and a number of diffesent suumptions, vaiables and
ravwn and unkngven uncertainties, These uncertanties may
Inclisde the Inaccumcy or Incompleteress of infommation
avallshia o Rabobank Group [espacially in the early stages of a
casel In addman, ssumptions made by Rabobank Greup abaut
the fuuee rufings of legal o other instances of the uly souom
of altitudes of supervisany badies of the partics opposng
Aababank Group may urm out to be ncodrect, Furthenmaore,
estimates of potential losses relating to legal divputes s often
impassible o procesy using statistical or othes quantitative
analysis instruments that are generaly used to make Judgments
ardd estimates. They ate subject to a still greater level of

e eralnty thin rarny sther sieas where Rabobank gieip nesds
o make judgmients and estimates, The groug of Case forwhich
Aabosank Group determines that the risk of future autflows of
funds b mone likefy than rot varkes over time, as do the rember
of cases lor which the bank can estimate the potential loss. in
oiactice the end resuins caukd turm ew considerably highes o
lovwiet than thie estimaces of porenial bsses in those cases where
an eaTimate was made,

Aabebank Group can alss swstaln iosses from legal risk whens the
occunence of a loss may not be probable, but |s ot Improbable
eithes, and for which na previiions have been recognized. For

thore cases whene (a) 1he possibiling of an outflow of unds i not
ol b ahio nob remale ar () he posibility of an outllows
of funds s mare Koely than not but the potential ks cannot be
estimated rellably, a contingent labilry s disclosed. Rabobank
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Group may settle fegal cases or regulatory proceedings ar
ivwestigations before any fine bs Imposed or lahility (s
diatermined. Reasons for settling could include {i) the wish 1o
Avitld coats anickfor mnanagement effoe oy this level, &5 o awid
ather adverse business eorseguences anddor lil] pre-empt the
regulatary ar reputational censequences of continuing with
atsputes relating 1o lability, even IF Rsbobank Group believes it
Teas good arguments in its defense. Furthermore, Mabobant
Group may, for the same reasans, compensate thing partes far
their lileey, dvisn | Wiithond whens Aabobank Group doe Aot
Ihalkeve That 1t i legally requined to do o

dnterest Rate Derfvatives

Rabomank concludes interest rate denvatives, such as interer rate
swaps, with Dutch busness cusioemess who wish 10 reduce the
ipterest rati vk aaocated with varable feg, Euribar-indgxed)
Soans, An inlened] rate swap protects businesses from rising
warlable interest rates and helps them to keep thelr interest
payments al an acceptable level In Match 2016 the Dutch
Mintterof Finance appointed an independent commtes which
on July 5, 2016 pubiished a recovery framewark ithe Recovery
Framewadkl on the reasiessment af Duteh SME imeredt rara
aherivatives. Rabobank announced its dechion to take part in (he
Aecovery Framework on by 7, 2016, The final version of the
Recoveny Famewoek was published by the independent
committes on December 19, 2016 Rabobank is imvalsed In civil
miaceadings in the Netherlands relating 1o interesl (ae
derheatives entered ima wah Dutch butiness customers. Thi
miajarity of thow cancorn individual cases, In additian, there is a
collective action regarding interest rate derivatives pending
Ibefone the Coumt of Apgeal (or which @ standsill was agreed to,
e 1o the Recovery Framework: the few emaining oul-cf-scope
austomers will be-assessed on an individuad basis), These actians
woncern allegatians of misinfosming clients with espect 10
‘Erest rale dervitives. Sorme of these scliond alo conten
allegations n connection with Rabobank's Eunbor submissions
fins choscribed below). Habobank will defend itsclf agalnat all these
lalrm. Furthermare, thiere are pending compladnts and
mioceedings agalnst Rabobank regarding interest rate dedivatives
brgught before Kifid (Duich Financla! Services Complaagy
Authoray, which, in Januasy 2015, apered a conflicy resalution
pracedure far SME Businesses with Inteecst rate derhathoos, Witk
renpect (o the re-lasseisment ol the intereit rate dethiatived ol it
Dutch SME business customers and this advance payments made,
Habobank recognized at December 31, 2 provision of
ELAR 316 million (2007 EUR 450 millian). Af year-end 2018
Rabepank provided all qualifying clients clasity on the cutcames
Al year-end 2018, Rabobank'y payiments i cherty under the
Recoverny Framework amounted to EUR 532 milfian,
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O January 30, 2008, Fabobank received a lerer indicating that
feqal procesdings may be started 5t 4 later stage with respect L
a potentlal collective actkon in relation Lo cenain share offerings
of Rayal Imtech M. In which Rshobank was inwhed, This
sltuation has mmaired unchanged, Furthermone, the recaherns
send a letter {10 Awgust) inwhich they describe on what
{possibile) grounds thedr future] clalmis) towards Rabobank i its
capacty of lender will be humed. Rabohank [ of the oplnion that
nox pelasilnn shauid e pecogninsd per 31 Decembed 2018

Litow/Euribor

Aabatzank has been invalved for 3 number of years In sevesal
tegulatory proceedings i elation o benchanark-related lssues
Habotank lscooperaing, sndwill contimes 1o cooprate, with the
mogulator and autharitios invobeed In these Investigations. On
Cictober 29, 201 3, Aabobank entered [nto settlement agreements
with a nwmbes of these swhosties in relaion Lo their
mvwestigations into the historical Lbor and Eunibor submisson
processes of Habobank All amounts payable under these
setement agreamants wens fully paid and accauntad for by
Fabobank in 200 3; Rabobunk, aondg with a Lange number of other
pane! barks ang inter-ceafer brokers, has been named as a
defendant In a raember of putathe class action sults and
individual civill court cases bought before the Fedaral Courts in
the United S1ates. These mocesdings relate 1o WS Coller (USD)
Litor, Brivish Pound Sreiling (GEF) Libor, Japanese Yen LIPY)
Liter, Tikor (nate: Rababank wis pever 2 member of the TIROR
panell, and Euribor, Rabahank andfor lts subsidlaries have alwo
tecebed complaints and weits of summons grdedng Rabobank
10 appear belone vanous Dutch, Argentine, Linded Kingdom, sh,
and luell courts in ovil proceedings (Inc. class action sults)
telaring to interes rate benc hmarks, Since this class aaion sults
and chil piocesding limed above are Indnalcally subject ta
uncariainties, it is difficuh 1o predicn their gutcones. Rabotank
takes the stance that It has substantve and comwincing legal and
factual defenses against these claims, Rabobank has the intention
tocartines o defend isell againyt these claims Rabobank Group
conuders the LiborTuribar case (o be & contingent lizbility, Na

provdsion has been made,

Other Coes

Habotank (oup i subject to other legal proceedings for which
prewisions have been recoanized These cases are Individually less
slignificant in size and are thenelore not separately daclosed. The
1ol prowtilon o those canes amounty o TUR 153 millga. In
addition 1o the cantingent labllity cases described above foe
wiilch an assessment regarding a possible cutflow |s nat yet
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possible, Rabobank Group has identified other less relevant cases
n tarms of skze 3t 3 contingent Iability. The masimurm amount

«lalmed for those contingent Hability cases amounts o

ELAR 197 il
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5. SEngﬂtREPﬂfﬂ-ﬂg - Real Extate mainly encompasses the actieities of BP0, The core
activities are the development of howsing. In 20018 BPD Europe
5.1 Business Segments BY. has sold 100% of the shares of its French wibsidiary BPD

The business segments Rabobank uses in 15 reparting are deflined
froma managemend viewpalnt, Thes means that the segments am
reviewed as part of the strategic mansgement of Rabobank and
2re used to make buziness decissons with different nsks and
retums,

Rabbank diinguithes five major butineds seqrmenty Dametic
Aetail Banking: Wholesabe, Rural & Retail (WRR); Leasing; Fesd
Extate; and Tiher Segments.

+ Domestic Retall Banking malnly encompasses the activities of
the local Rabobanks, Cbwvion, Financial Solations and Roparco,

~  WAR wppots the Rabobank Group in becoming the madsl
Ieader I the Netherlands and facuses on the Food & Agri
sectonsatinternational level. This segment develops cosporate
banking activites and also controls globaly operating
divisions such as Markets. Acquisition Finanoe, Global
Corporate Clients, Bcpon Finance & Project Finanoe, Trade &
Cammadity Firance and Financial instiution Grewp. The
segment aluo acthiely invaives intemational Direct Relsi
Banking and Corporate Investments, Intemnational Aural and
Retall eperations farms a pan of the Hababank label, eecopt for
ALC Loan Managemaent.

=+ Irthe Leasing seament, DLL i responsible for leating activities
and offers a wide range of lexing products. Manufacrurers,
v and distributan anc glabally supparted In thelr sales
with pioducts relevant to asset financing.

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

Marigrasn, Rabobiank secedgnined 4 gain on Dhe sale of
EUA S8 million which b presented in the Income statement as
‘Other Income’.

= [ther segments within Rabobank include varioos sub-
segments of whah no single segment can be listed
separatehy., This seg meant malnly comprises the financialreslits
of bwestiments in Adlociaes (in padticulss Achmes BV,
Traasury and Head Office aperations.

There ane no custormars who represent mone than a 1056 shane in
Hababank's total revenues. Transactions between the various
bursiness segments ase conducted under regular commeclal
1erma Other than operaing activities, thete i no oshed matesial
compreheniig income between the business negmaents. The
financid T!"Pﬂrllng principles vserd for the WYMEnEE am idenzical
i those described In the "Accounting Policles” section

As per the Financla! statements 2018, Rabobank deciced 1o
allocate additioral intersegment expenses fram "Othor
SemEnT” 1o ths athed Budlnes segments Damedtie Reaatl
Banking, Whodesale, Rural & Retad, Leasing and Real Estate o
teflect a comprehensioe cost view within Uhese business
segments, The figures in the previous period segment
irdopmatian have been adjusted accordingly to align with intemal

managemant reparting,
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Fomestic Deher Corsalchanon

Aty i ik of purce Rerof Buvang L leoung  Aen/[rtate Sepments pris Tatal
e [hoi i b D imibiee 11, S000

il inberr il ingcre $ATE .88 ] in 8| + L&
Med fee and comminion incoene: AL A1 168 L] 435} (LLE] L3
vy il L AR m 5T 108 m L5k
incoms LAl 1333 1,388 a4 i3ta) 44y 12030
Statf e (A ] T a7 m 189 Lars 43T
Deher il P TV EupaTiEy 1025 a5 M 73 BA ELATSY ATER
Peptrosation diud armenlizaton L2l a0 H k] 0 &1 b
Dprrating expenaes aja? 1,873 Tan EL) AE L5 ] T A
Impairren chages on francial ey [EE=] 300 165 [{3] 4501 v (5]
mpm 237 L] Ll Fi L] [LH 4F
Operating prafit befors tax FEE ] 1,043 ana s aaz) [§FLE 3504
lIncome Ly [Ar] 133 ko ™ (r2 11 o W
Wt prafit FE-LLY 7o L ik 1351) (L] B0
Lo ratio inthudng regulito y beve W LI} sy e ) na i L2
Impairmran chamges on franclal saets in beals poirmy

of avaTage peioe Jeciod koan pordoiol’ L - - =0 —— i &
Lxtberral ssets SELE Bl T pLEk LT LRERH) # SN
G il Ay i n E & . 519
Private wietod lnan Do ol Fd A ] SOAHTY 30,549 51 L] - ANa0rs
1 Dpeiating expemies plus ingusiory ke daaded iy Income
2 imeparengn: chamges on franciy’ aisess divided by 17-month sversga prvate sectol aan pornfoiio

SIS b —
A in miliasi of rures - S W Iesting  Realfirss Other Sagasmn """""""’"m“ Tatad
Tl i o f | asuety
anioe o Aarary 1, W18 1553 1,197 57 I . . 4517
i riniary ihinr 1 Goriinuiinn el daisiilion LET] Hon ] - - an
Decrraser dee 8o derecognison [y [FEu] aE; * o ’ LELTF]
Changes dues ba changes n credi sk 341 128 17 [{F.] - - a4
Wring off oof dotauid ks dunng the year [&59) ¥y (LRI nm nans
ot sduvimerify 3¥ 3 [11] fiam - - i
Balanos on Decermbar 31, 1018 LET 1,30 65 T ] " pE
Impairrren alomies |t B LEF] LAL ] &5 s A . L1
g showards ietime ECL naon-credd
o Tl mw L] ¥ ] - M
Impirra dfowaer Hetims ECL nedi- o P . y - 2 5
L \ L LR}

Total impalrment slowancs 2387 1,80 ans 7 - - R
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Aty i ik of purce ik -Mdn:‘g Woe Leaing Benlfvate Other bapmeniy L m"" Tatal
e o i b D imibiee 11, 3007

il inberr il ingcre 80 nr 1008 af [LEL]] - LELL
Med fee and comminion incoene: Lk any TS5 L Ao 1 (ALY
vy il Te L1 Fait arp am 15 1243
incoms a8 3,454 1390 £ {amrj (L] 12081
Statf e LELY L A7 T2 7 (P aary
Deher il P TV EupaTiEy 1558 1,754 i 151 T [LE e k) M
Peptrosation diud armenlizaton ] E m T E Lt} 406
Dprrating expenaes 4487 AL 73 Eit ] 4 n [ T-12]
Loan impalment charges 59} L [Eecd [RLLT] (L] . LhLii]
mpm M m n & 38 S5
Operating prafit befors s FEZ L] 419 e 643} LI Lk
lIncome Ly P 4R Lo el oy @ Lk
Wt prafit 189 587 505 s |54%| L1 PR
M cin e i akiny ey et 1 ora aay 372 57 i nia ma
Loan impaimnens charges fn buas poims of

vt Ko L] L] =] 15813 i 5] o

Estermal sasety PR 151,248 ErE 5593 LLEARLY ’ g
Gvene] mlll LN i ] 3 . 519
rivae wiod ngn portfolin FL el ] 107,536 FEAL ] Lt Al - A1056
1 Dpeoning expenses ph.;. gLty bevias dvided iy Incoenn
2 Loan mapakrent changed chaded by 12-maanih oveisge privane secied ian poripla

Amonsy in il of purce b '. : (] Leaying Heal ffere  Diher Sapmonts o :I'! r Tatal
Liovar Prpai i il dldw ahdics o6 Woas il s dfror 10 Cu G e

IRl & lafsey | 2007 T b T ] Fio wr (11 . TARY
laari irnpatrmerd changes from e, and .

ST i B STy v LLL] RL] [ILL ] (LE] ]
Wring off oof dotaubnd bean dunng the year 3] 1h.o4m [LE ] [FoL] ¥ d-T50]
intereid wrwd nilher sdpivimessy L i gl ] ety e - - ia
Balanos oo Decembar 11 7007 2.5 FALL:] 44 ) ] . ¥k
St sEnwatcs LE 185 m S - - LAY
ol alowarce »e w L = = By
L L] i 195 L] L] . . 612
Yool 28 ERL 244 48 . .
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5.2 Geographic Information (Country-by- parlicular econamic envianment within specific grograghical
locatiansfameas. The bieakdown & based on the location of the
L'nuntry F 'Ing‘l individual subsidiaryoranch from which the transactions are
Ralorbatnk oty b sgven malh qn,*t.k:pnj:-'ll.lt,.ﬂ areas, The siinated, Revenug b difingd as (olal mcomie o geesenied in the
coumry of domicie of Rabobank 1 the Netheilands, The statement of Income phus Interest expenie, fee and comemialon

‘nformation below [s reported by distingulshable companentsof  expense and expenses from ather sperating actvities
Haboank that provide products and/for services within a

Ao in milam of purce
On 31 December 2018
duwrgerimie of
Gropeph ot Gy Nt Tpeclopmaon e e I,
wmpleyrei in FTT
Kook oL, Dicerneutic Reail
Tha Metheaedy The Pt arch Ok, Raba H"""‘“H'"' ";"""‘"""l FTRE 2558 1368 aud
W B | sk, it Ennatn
Caher furarone i1 Rshohank, Babha
i France gy Pral ared Retail fea! 7] 3T " 1
Relgumm L Rshohank m“.d‘ "wl""“*' 118 104 % 4
Whokesale.
DL Rubobank, Rai
Cetracy Vinagosdgenep, fip el and Revail inad 854 45 ik £
Italy AL Rabishank Pl H“m'““"‘ n 138 1 1
Limmmmoung Bsho Vavigordgroen el [11ate I = -
Leasinng, Wholewls,
[ ] L Rabotank a2 et i 158 naa 4
Firilarsl (41 Lraviny ¥ o H
Austria oL Leasing 3 ¥ 1
Portugal L Leasing ¥l L] 4
S [HESUT R hnlr-d‘ ksl 1= 1 15 4
Wit ol Europs inon: Leasing, Wholesals,
l ) Liniteal Ko DLL. Rabobiank Pl el Aeasl w5 &7 &1 18
Rorwary (111 Lisasing bl w T 1
St oL Leasing i 122 L] 2
Dlermark ou Liasieg n ] L ]
Swstomtland [1TH Leasing H & ]
PRusils oL Leasiy ] ] -] 4
Podarad [T Leasing ET] a8 T 2
Hurgry 0L Lesitg ] 4 ]
Roerainia i Legsing L] - -
Leasieg, Wholewsle.
Turkey DL Rabohank sl wndl Rl ) 55 ¢1] 4
Lisasin, Wholeuals.
Mt Areilca Lindted 512084 WAL Rabotank, Babo o) o Rpesd, st AT 405 577 1
w Eitalg
Lnsireg, Whoksusls,
Caruds [T Tl il Rl 5 m 1y L]
Latin fmarics Meicn L Legsdrg ki (1] H 1
Leasing, Wholecale.
Bl DL Rabiotank el e Heasd ] LL]] n
Chils o Liask=gy n 1 i} 19
Argending L Leasing 5 W m
Prits B wm Puaral wend . .
Annus Report 2008 - Consolidated Financial Stamements s
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Ay m mabeen of rures
Hala Irclis (L Rubishiik el el ol & s ] a
‘Snoapare DL Rabonank H.H.IHI Heand 7n9 194 (L] i
[S— r— e “ mr m "
Maliyals Rabrbiark m"""""" oy e 7 3 ?
China UL Rabobank . MR = 118 2 3
Harsy Korgg L Rsbiestuink ltnl-nd‘ Arsll it 18e e L]
Sty Koo L Legsirg LF] a2 I
Liedtent Araby Emisates [HL Laasiog | ] . :
Leasing, Whobesals,
Kustralla dupsiralia UL Rsbobank Pual and Retail 1150 145% m £
Pigw Deidared LA Ralitunk, h-.IL.iw-d‘ I"w"'ﬁ“'" 10 1] m n
Mt Ko o — wmm.ﬂ 3 1 N
Comatidation ehects FRFET 1]
31,881 34,861 1,008 LH
Ay in o of rares
O 31 Decamber 2017
Awrragr nubar of
Gengraphic Countey Nare ofdviion  Tyoe of operation B mmﬂ: n.mlm o i
Habolsand, BILL Cometic Aetsl
it Bankireg,
The Methedlasdds  Tre Sethedands Rl b dFaolee, s FAAT . L EiLS
BaboVasgosdgroepand Retall Lessing,
BFD gl eiade
Leaiing,
o o DL Rabobank, Wt
rtolizeered France Rabovasgosdgrons, BII.LI.I- L2 L] m ]
B
L
DAL Aabobank, LSRG
Whadeaale, Fund
Bel g ::n'.'ww pam " 1% ar ]
ity
DuL Rabobank,
Whasleasle, Bl
Fr—— Rabs sttt e e i i L H
asiane
Learting,
Ry DL Rakwbank Wholenale, sl n m k1] 3
and fetsll
Lisarking,
irelland LAl Rabnbark ‘Whaleale, Bural kL o 14z L]
and Hesall
Firiand DL Lisutdng 1] 8 2
Aurileia Wipirting £l 1 1 I
P gl L Laraning L] n 1
Leaning,
S Tl Fabnrbar ‘ihasleaaly, Fursl £l [F# [}] 4
ared Retad
Lsariing,
it ol Eurogs Linist mineyh I 1., Rabwsharh Whesliae, sl L] fea 1z H
i apione) and Rezall
Mastvay oL Liting -1 14 L] '
Sl DiL Laning B (¥ 1
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dmauntt in midlan of reros
il
vk Rl Waisgeedihon: Leaiing, Real rifike =n FLl ] 1
L1
Swenreriard el Leating 5 B 2
Fuivida i L E &b a2 i
Pl (i 18 LirirLing £ L] ar (1]
Hungary DL Laning ¥ i 2 -
Romania DaL Leaiing - 3
Ling,
Turkey Bl Habmbark Wholrnale, Surad 1w kLS n i
and Resal

Mt Amaca b Stages Rtk r il g ! 374 EER LH] (H1]
wulite
Lewning,
Canada DL Rabohank Wiheseaale, Rursd 521 i ] 16
aned Reaadl
Lastin America Menco i T Leuing L] - 5 2
Capmunbdanch  Mabobank i .
Leating.
Braril Dii, Rabohank,  Wholesale, Rul B8 =¥ 2 LH
and Retal
Leaning,
Chals DL Rabohank ihaleaale, Rusl B 172 ]
ared Rl
Argentina i Leining 4 3] 1 -
(L
sy it Dl Rabwhard Whalenale, Aursl 5 A =)
and Renadl
Leniing,
Singapone L. Ratwhank ‘holeasie, furad [ ] 00 nn [k}
and Resafl
Wheeiale, sl
indoranda Halsoland, and Retall 11 e @l 1
Malayiia Rabroliank mm 4 a F
Raaang,
Ching. oL Aabobunk Wholesale, Rursd ] 164 6 '
aned Reall
e,
g Korg U, Habmbard Whilesale, A 1 18 iz 1
and Retad
Sonst Kt el Laariing ¥ Fel F
Austmlly Muiraka D, ke Wheslevale, Funsd Lim g 1] =1
and Rgtall
Leating,
[ ] DL, Rabwshank ‘Wheseaale, Fursd 5ak F T 127 M
ang Artad
Cothae Maishiug Merws  Fabohank W‘“"‘ it 1 i 5
o ooen : : -
71,740 ELE 1833 Lol

Rabobank did not recehve governmant subsidies in 2008 and
07
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5.3 Geographic Information of Non-current Assets

Gasactwall ared ot hew irtargabds axiets

IPropee by and cquipment and invement properiics
Dehier Eisani

Bon-currend insets held for uaie

Total

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Ao fn il of pors. Xm0

Can L4 ] LA v
(Dsgrouiis ab vendral banky TIRM SN
Total cak gnd cath squivalents TSGR0

The* @fefage minirm resene to be held far thie Metherlands for
the manah of Decamber 2008 whs ELIR 3,066 million [Dacem ber
2017 EUR 3,202 miflion)

7. Loans and Advances to Credit
Institutions

Amouner i mifions of euros W X

Gt b ftnanii and ecahalbilis acar [ £44]

e sepaar e tramagtiom. snd wcutie) borrswang

o LAl E R b
Lo (s -] (K1
O H1 ] (£
firnss carryimg amount knamy and advances ta credi

P i VT AN FTITN

Loanirpairen Mlvwanon onilaans shd sthanoed 1o oredl an on
Irslitutong

Totsl bean s alvansat i credit inasiutions. 1T ES%  IT.F4

8. Financial Assets Held for Trading

Ammaingy i milFons of favos MIE 2T
Giveimanent ndh 355 L]
Orther okt etioritien Ls0r  LoeE
Lo LLE) L3
Eipehy insinsmesns m B3
Tatal iETd 1780
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B FE
e o T Darmeiric Py RO
e | i i 1iF
1852 279 aan 255
ELE P11 L1081 FT e
i3] 1 F Mo
XL 738 LEEL A

9. Financial Assets Designated at
Fair Value

A s il of daved 0 o
Dbt wcuritien (F Y F
Leams 1l 0
:”"‘M:__“:"”‘q“ m 33
et pepsity risumenii U] w
Total 5 1

Thet rhasirmaan sxposune 16 oredit rivk s beit repieieniid by ilie
carnying amoant of The financial assels designated 31 Tair vahee
The charge in the current year in the falr vilue of the financial
assels designated at fas value that is attributable to changes in
e cred i sk amounts bo CUR 14 milson (2017 changes in fair
walue of loant detlgnated at fairvalue 14 EUR 3 millian) The
£LmIL Lk e change |3 ELF 14 million (201 7; cumuliine cha nged
b i walue of loans dessgrated at faly vahee |5 ELIR <25 million)
Any changss in fale valus ane caloulated by dacounting future
cash flows. When satling the discount rate, accaunt s taken of
mipectod Insses, Bqdity mark-ups and the fiskmangin. Mo use 15
made of credit desvatives to hedga the financial assers
dhesigmatied ol lair valoe

10. Financial Assets Mandatorily at
Fair Value

Ammounes in meiles of rurss ore
(Dot el LA 1 3
Loam Laad
Equity Insirurmers A5
'Ihﬂ_ 'l.l.!_ri
178
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11. Derivatives rate sk, thewiter recelves a paymaent (knownias 3 premium) fram

Deriyatives ate uied at fabobank 1o mitigate a1 keast a ponson of
thies risks ariseigy fnom the Bank's vatious opersiiens, Barmples o
this include Interest rate swaps wied 1o hedge interest rale risks
arising from the diference in matunities botween assets and
Uabillitker. Ancthes examiphs ate Cross-CUency ywaps, which ame
wsed 1o hedge the currency nsk to which the bank s exposed
after wuing debt instraments in forsgn cunencles. Besides
medning puipeied, detivatlves sie alio contiieted with the Banky
colparie cuntomers whers Rabobank [ the countsmparty.

11.1 Types of Derivatives Used by Rabobank

Forsard cusrency and intesest rate contracts aie contractual
obligations 1o recenve of pay a el amount bated on peevailing
exchangd of Interest rates, o 1o purcbade of sell fomgh currency
o pfinancial atrument on a futum date at a fiued speciflied price
' an organtped financlal market. Since collateral for fonsaed
coniracts is provided n the foem of cash, cash equivalents or
marketable securnities, and changes in the value of lorwand
onntracts ae settled dadly, malnly wis a contral counterpary
claating hause, this et fok i low. The eradit ik expoiune far
Rabobank s tepresented by the potential com of replacing the
wwaps if the counierparties default, The rak is monitored
contiamush against current falr value, a portion of the notional
amaunt of the cantracts and the Bguidity in the marksts. As pan
of the credir risk management process, Rabobank emprlayi the
saime miethods for eyaluating countespanies a5 it does for
avauting ity own lending activitie

Foreard rale agreemants are Indiidually agreed forward Intenest
sale contracts under which the difference between a
contractually agreed interest rate and the matket rate on a future
date hias to be senlad in cash, based on 2 rotional principal
Arfciint

Curency and Intenest rate swiaps are commitments to exchange
ane set of cash flows fed another: Swaps entall an economic
exchange of cuttencies ot Interest rates (such as a fed rate far
Ofie ar Inore varianks rates), of 3 combination [Le. a Cros-cusrency

M2res rale swaph EXCepr I CErtain curency Swaps, no ranife:
of the principal amownt rakes place,

Currency and Interest rale options are contracts under which the
sedlar {known a3 the wiiter] ghes the buyer [known a5 the holder)
the right, entalling no obligation, to purchase (in the case of a
wall optiong o el (in the case of & put aption) 4 speciic amour
of loreipn cutrgncy of o spmcific inancial maliuimient on ar beloe
an agreed date of during an agreed petiod at a price set in
achance. As conslderation for accepting the cumrency or Interest

Annus Report 2008 - Consolidated Financial Statements

the holdes, Options are traded on exchanges or botween
Rabotank and clems (OTC) Rabokank is ondy exposed 10 credit
tisks @y anh option halder and anly up 1o the carnying amoung,
wihich b equivalent to the fair value,

Credit gefault swacs {CO5) are Instiurnents by means with which
the seller of a COS undertakes 10 pay an amount 19 the buyer,
This amaunt i egual tothe fass that wauld be incurmed by bo'ding
an undsilying reference aiet o specific cisdit swent wee o
acioul (L the materalizatian of a k), The buyes B undet no
sligation 1o hokd the wnderying relenence et The buyer pays
the seller 2 credit protection fee laegely expressed in bashs points,
with the size of the fee depend ing on the credit speead and tenar
of the seferance asset

11.2 Derivatives Held for Trading

The divbeatives held os Issued for trading are those wsed to hedge
economic Hsks but which do not gualy as hedge accounting
natruments and derivatives that coipovate customers have
contractod with Kabobank to hedge interest rate and currency
ks, The papaet ined Tram derhvmtives with earparate cuitamss
are normally hedged by entering into alfutting positions with
one g more professional counterparties, withan trading fmits sel.

11.3 Derivatives Designated as Hedging
Instrument

Hababank kat varkaes demethees that seons to hedge cconamic
risks, Including Interest rate and curency sk, which qualify as a
hedging Insthurrent ina falr value hedge. a cadh flow bedge ara
mal investrent hedgs,

Faw vighie hedges
Aababank uies intemal 188 s and ciodi-curency e

rate vevagsd Lo hesdige potential changes in the Tair value due Lo
intencst rate or faecign currency mte changes. These changes
oetlinanily form the majodity ef the overall change of the hedged
ems, Hedged ltems ane Reed-Income fnandclal assets and
Eiabilities in both local and losesgn cutrencses, such 33 morgages,
debt secunniesat fairvalue through other comprehensve income
and hawed debt securities, Rababank tests the hedge
efectiveneis bated on statistical tegression anahi model, bath
prospectively and retros pecthvely Tor IAS 39 portlolio fair value
hadges and analyses the sources of Ineffectiveness for IFRS 9 non-
panfolio fair value hedges, The identified sowce af
neffectivensss of the IFRS 9 fal value hedges B the Noat leg

e hading margin ol the cross currncy inletesl ide swap
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The hedged matie of the IFRS B falr value hedges is the actual
aeconomic hedge (notional ssued bond and notional cross.
culeendy Intetest rare swap),

Moturity Profile and Average Interest Rate of Hedging instrumments in Fair Value Hedges

On Decamibaet 31, 08
A m ullos of furs

Fataf nofinnad aenoort
Fair valus hedges
ki instrummenyt - Hodge o £1a82
Iywerage froed imtered rale W
wdgiid] L - Hedge of H3404
Arsage e icoret o L

Rermusing mturily
feax ther ! year T+ pogny Ennger thas § yeen.
pL1s] ngmn 123m
[REH 137 23EW
FrTe T 1] %A%
1M TI% 25T

Desigrated Hedging fnstruments in Fair Value Hedges of faterest Rate Risk

O Devembes 31, 1A

Amiy i miFoos of mees

Dmuignated hediging i Auir valup hadge
necge of Boamn anel sdvances B cusiomsny
ey of Puinctsl 24a00s 38 Rer vl thvagh odher coemperhaniive Income

Compngemoint  Compngamount  Chenge s far vl

denvative fnancol 7
AL Bahiities hedge ineffariveness
Ll 4014 Ll
L] 457 [LETS]
L158 o 63

Hedge inefleciivencss of falr value hedging amounts to
ELER 174 million and Isincluced inthe statement ol income o ling

Rem *Galns/ fosses) on financlal assets and llabiitkos at falr walue
thnugh prolit of loss®

Diesignated Hedged iems in Fair Value Hedges of Interest Rate Risk

Oy Dhwceimebes 33, 28

At m mtiors of s

Desigrated hedged nems.

Lo all advanoes B0 CUSIDMErs
IFranual sasety at lar value thicugh sthe comgrehomive inooee

"‘"‘d““:""'*‘"r"‘;“ P —

eagr odinaments

adfumrenran e Chaange i i viiar

Cutnpong armnnl ke trm excheled s for cakukaeng ,,,*",,""I,“"“, ]
mihecampng hedgeineffectvmen. S

! of e ke fhrstent fo e

o g od kusey
45013 5784 a5 LRl
LRE-} a3 e [RF]
17815 1A% L1 Lor?

Cash flowe hediges
Rabobank's cash fiow hedges mainly consist of hedges of the

margin of hswad bonds in loregn cunency hedsged with cross-
Culency Interest rate swaps to péotect against 2 potentia change
in cash flenws due to change in foredgn cuttency rates. fabahank
avieies the hedge effectivenesy based an satitical regreddion

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

anahniis modeh, both prospectively and rptrospectively for BAS 39
cash flow hadges and analyzes thie sources of ineffectiveness for
IFRS 9 cash flow hedges. The IFRS 9 cash llow hedges are 100%
effecties. The interest rate tisk is not hedged in the cash fiow
hedge o fived beqs, forcdgn currency and Baroj and the average
EtEnedl tate 14 therefare not divclotea in the table below
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Compersiy Carmobdates] Fartargasl Cmpry Francid
‘atementy Sl rnly

Maturity Profile and Average Price/ Rate of Hedging Instruments in Cash Flow Hedges

O Devember 17, JOUR

Asrpunis i e of

Cras-gurnency teap [USDGEUR,

Sealianal sl of ldging Ftimeil
Fwvrage pechange e (UL

Bt malutity
Tatsd natianal

. L tha F pwar T-Syeon  Longerihen 3 pean
10 ] L] ]
rda 15y 17 LB L
] ¥ 7w a
s e By
+1 1 .

Cash Flaw Hedges of Intevest Rate and Forelgn Currency Risk, Besignated Hedging instruments

O evamiber 87, 2070

At in i of fnos

Crpi-cumrrcy Inleel fae vanps (USDEL
Crop-gunmrey inlgrmt rale veeps [GBPEURG
Crmnarrrrey inteet e spaps [nBwr cuneraies)
Total

Fof the changes in the vaue of the hedging instrument
recognized i other comprehenshwe income and the amount

reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to prodit or loss,

reference |5 made 1o section 31, "Resendes and Retained

Campingamoant  Cmrpngomouns  Change ol vitlue
il i I i feur sk

- Aesehties haslge mefferrieemen
i 15

1 L] F i

1 L1 [1}=]

] hl] L]

Earnings® Hedge Ineffectveness amounts to nil and & included
i the statement of income on lire Rem “Gaing (osses) on
financiz assets and liabiities at fzir value theough prolit o loss.”

Cash Flow Hedges of Intevest Rate and Fareign Currency Risk, Designated Hedged items

Ot Dhegermiber 31, 1018

Ao i il of Pl

Dilgruated hedged mem
i il Wit

Net Inveriment Hadper

Annud Report 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Statements

Srmaneg ek Fow

Changenfoirvole  Cashfow hegige "0 rrseree fram
il Tor cObGANNG siave v centining

Hudge mm

fonger e

L i £ il

HRababank uses forward curency contracts fo hedge a painion of
the curency translation risk of net vsesiments in Toceign
Qistrationt

396/506



Tepacet Frzewim| W nageren lepat hppenillon

EDINETOOOO

O00OO00O000000000000040d0(ee5923)

Comxuge Commpofulabest gl Conrpmaw Friangul
lamerane ety ittty

Maturity Prafile and Average Rate of Hedging lnstruments in Net Investment Hedges

Oy Bepembes 12, 078 Wnﬂwl Remgining maruniyon 37 Deoembey 2018

Ammrunet in o of s Lin I | e faSpman  ongershan § ean
Forwerd cermency conbrscis

Bobonal svouns of hedging irmnsument LT 57H (k]

T T ma aw fubsy am

Net investment Hedges of Currency Translation Risk, Deslgnated Hedging Instruments

v oot 57, S0V

e m o of euros

Feewarnd Eurrenay coniracty

Change infas value
compngamount  COMANQaTOIN. |y g
T ot ineifes fiveneas

n 1,704 (AL]

Far the chandges in the vase of the I'rHIL]I.'IJ IrsEramen
recognized in other comprehensive Incomie snd the smount
reclassified from the ret investment hedge resenae to profi of
foss, reference W made 1o Section 31, "Reserves and Retained

Fﬂrnlnl:ﬁ * Hedge ineffectiveness amounts ta nil and s incladed
n ther staterment of ircome on line ibem *Galny flosses] on
financial assets and labilites at fair value thaough peolit o loss.”

Met Investment Hedges of Currency Translation Risk, Designated Hedged frems

O Degember 31_HHA

Ehorge in fole b weed o colouloting Fovesgn ki for Froen bascgleg redrtmnshaps for
n o AL Awsere
N s i hevipe mwlieci e :munp-mﬁﬂ il e ooouning i oo fooger
apguird!
Barignated hedigad frem.
iz aiob.siralsa L ) o
11.4 Notional Amount and Fair Value of
Derivatives
Thie foliowing table shaow the national armeunty and the pasithve
and negatke falr values of devivatives as presented in the
statement of financlal position
142

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements
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Notional Amount and Fair Values of Derivatives

O Peswrber 11, 2018 On Devwenber 11, 2017
sy i e of PaToE Moional Mmisanas Fab yabues Fovtioeral i Fak vl
Baaty Lialsdiery Autats. Lidkslnary
Tnthuathor Fased I e acsing 1995342 [LEE (TR} 1R800 i, b0 Th1%
i g b s 2z 5182 (R A [1E3
Total darivatives 1550 BEY 11880 5927 1,087.948 15404 IBA0%
Derivatives hald for troding
Carrenay darivatives
e [EEPETY adan 118 238 P9 558 anz
TW-WHH a7 ai n pTE el o
Lt araechaabile conaTact (175 T i iTA ] 1
Cerwrny ftern o] - ] F21] 2 d
Total surrency derfvativey 5,001 4,000 & 180 DAL P e EEr ]
g rate difivalivid
T irdermat eate vvapa JANRAND (PR ] (AR ] LA 1 14188
OTE irderest rabe opbony 1AV am 221 TR FRT]] s
Lt Intetest rae veaps w1452 [ [ ADETE 1
Tatsl istereat rate derhatives 2,992,303 15,121 13,347 2,302,784 17.4%4 16,848
Coet cherivatives 171 ] 2 1 580 [l
Eqpumy insinamernis e
artuatior Ll L3 L] ¥
Oother dentaatives 1547 53 215 1AM na 2%
Tortal derivanives beld Toe rrading 3,595,547 19,379 18,745 1851309 FIRT 11,158
Derivathves dedignared ai
hedging intrument
Nl'umhfl;'mhldﬂ;l 3
lire i FE e Wi 0 Creri-
rLreRCy e L G 68 LY 14 A LRl EE] 4,108 anra
hwumhumhllhdunr i
Carteroy ievpi and ooy
o nr i n armn ol LIt
M .
0 g
b urenl 4t sk inveslmenl
hadgai
ey futerts contracty BEAE EF ] 1,708 1834 [
Tortal dielvitived deilgaitid ay
biciong st 104,541 1,281 5,183 118844 asse s
Annus Report 2008 - Consolidated Financial Stamements 183
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12. Loans and Advances to

Customers

Amisnt in millosT of farog

Lo o feivate wetor ciente
ovediats

* PRI

+ B by

- earperate laam

- otha

L Ty e iliris:

- Al s bidriad

- oifw
limwllpu.n::ln_t:mﬂun secirinks berrowing

B " i yak

Mg

15,758
19,850
18,773
186501
Ll

0y
1458

1259

Hedge accounting adjurment
Irmpirrreit alowanon of lsns and ahanieio
o

Fr s ufied ansery
Total ksani and advancsi o o s bomers

Finance Leases

Loars and advances o customeds also includes recessbles from

5,788

[ERELA)

My

155
Lo b+

18043

[ELFTS

LA

13
Lo

12895

b OATLEAT AN

LEL Y

1440

AFGEFE  ANLATR

U]

LELE LI LEE L]

fimance leases, which can be braken dawn as fallow:

Armunsy in midioen of rmos

ke from g I e e
Bl et | pes

Neareer thian 1 yes bt bt than S yaaey
imrwger than % yeary

Groas ievestmant in fineros beases

Urmat ] deedrrocd finang e g foen firance Bearies
et Inweriment in Anance lesse

st wxcwehing §ypwa

Lowagenr than 1 year bet e Ban: 5 yean
Lowwges than S yeats

Mt it im el in Aeance [

T

BAIE
19508
1293
20434

L
TR BaA

98]
1574
[P g

Eelh

B
11584

1560

Ao
13351
454
T8

The finance leases malinly relata to the lease of equipment, cas

and facioting praducts. On Decambser 31, 2018, the loan

impaernent allwance [t fimance eates amounted 1o
ELER 166 midilion (200 7: EUR 182 millian). The unguaraniesed
roticlueal walues accnuing 1o the ledsds amounted to

ELR 2227 million (3017 EUR 1,804 millllonk The contingsnt leme

jpaymants recognied a5 income in 2008 wene nil (201 7ol

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements
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13. Financial Assets at Fair Value

through Other Comprehensive
Income

12a Financlal Assets at Falr Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

Armgaunes in mubges of rures T
Garvsiriment boands 11514
o b et as
Loarss 24
T — s
Tl vt oot int At el S ot comamit - on i

Rabobank designated eguity investrments in forean linancial
seneaoe peovichers 81 Tl vatue through oher comprebenshee
ingrrme wpon Inklal mfng.r.lllm'l hecause these Ingtruments ae
heeld for strateqlc puiposes rathes than for the purpose of selling
it i the ear tarm.

At in Mo of guros HiE
Erpiey inveamenti im bereeign Rl service providert i
[Copatty investrmeni hedd By U i
Diher eopaily inves imats i
Total squity Instnamanty E ]

Dusing 2018, Rababank recognized dividends of EUA 24 millien
of which EUR O million relates 1o equ ity invesimsents thal are
dr'frrn-}nhr-d o 200 Traniders of the cummulatiye galnt o lassars
within ecuety during the perdiod ane discioved nthe Sectian 31 in
the manemant schedule of the "Revaluation "Resenie - Equity
Bstruments at Fair value Thiough Other Comgeebersive Income

13b Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Amruasi in o of e xif
Short-1enm governement papery 1361
EoyeTETIEnt dncy rians
s el ddrinied ayay
Lopsty inslnormarrs aer
Tortal avallable-bor-cabs fmapnial a1asts BAEE

The changes In avalable-for4ale financial avsets can be braken
dewn i followy

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

Comqrase
fawerrane

e

Dpssrynag alancs

Formgn chategr &l

Aechfions

Dspanah fude and repayment|

Falt wabue changes.
Cher changet
Clnping balance
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14. Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Aot in millosT of farod Mg Mnr

Epenireg bulance Lsn T

rorpsgn eschange diffeences 5 T
Puarhases ] 4k

Sahen nan 2
Shars of profit of agedatey a4y FL

Iiriends pasid o fand capital repaymenm] fLEC] ]
Rervaduation (1) 5

e — . -

rher an »

Totallmvesimants n asiciates s joink vt SR
14.1 Investments in Associates

Theie rraim a3e0c te In termas of the sine of the capaal intenesd held
by Rabobank |«

BT DR T B A
Thee Htheslands

L i i
Achrmea ik astrategic paner of Rabobank o insurance products
and Interpolis. a subsidiary of e Achmea Group, wona closly
with the local Rabobanks Achmea's head office |5 lncated in
Zaist, the Hathedands. Mo listed madket price is available for the
interest in Achmez The intedest in Achm=a b valued accoading
1 the eguisy method, Rababank neeved dividend from Achmes
far an amourt of EUA 37 milllgr (2017 nil)

in 2018 these wehe no impalment tiggers to pedorm an
Mmpaaen L §est,

Achmea

Aoty in milloes of auns F TR T
Cait s alande 8 Lontial banki Ldgs  1EB4
Imvesimenia Tosss Tl
iorher aweny BAIE 1025
Asbrn Pl fow 1ale = 500
Total anaets LT L E
Insurane related prosom 55065 57291
Lsarna arel Funchy Leor ruwnd 15007 IETE
Onher lakeliies (] i a4t
Liabdithes Fusbd Tor e CR 1
Total Rabilitkes AN BOSST
R M FAD6S
et ol 3% kI
Orher pompsshesnave infame e

Fetal comprobwnives mdome 43 Fit Y

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

Reconclliation Carrying Amount of Interest in Achmea

o oy
Total pquity Achemes e R TR
Wi byl cagital [ET RN 1]
linu prefeeende nhares snd scerued dhvidens i 149
Sharsholder s squiry T E
Share of Rabohank W HIHw

1401 2418
horumlsted impairren s o
Camying amaunt T LTI

Thar Bnpairrrent armouwdt s ncreased by the same percentage
a5 the increate of the stake of Rabobank due to the buyback of
shares by Achmea

Other Associares
et i o of P HIIA Mrr
Fewll s continiing spenatios L] L
Wt proft 1
Dxher comprehsnEve income - 1w
Fﬂwm 188 Fil]
14.2 Investments in Joint Ventures

Wirtually all joint venures are investments of BPDL Ther botat
carneing amaunt It EUR ? millian (2017 ELR -8B millon). Joim
wanitunes are recognized in acooncance with the equity method

BPD often has pannerships for developing integrated residemial
arcas. in the majaity of casss, cach participating member of the
partnership has a declibee vate, and decislons can anly be passed
by comianian, The majonity of these parinerships therelonequalify
as “jaint Hrangements.”

Each pamnarship has irs own legal icture depending an the
neddi and equirements of 1he parlied dongeimed. The legal fodrm
(onasirvess stiacture) Dypicalht used is the Duch OBV saciume
i bmited parinership: peivate limited llabdity company] o the
WOF structume (general partnership] or a comparable structure.
By the case of a OV-BV, the risk of a pastnes is gererally bmited 1o
the igsued capital and patneds are anly entilied to the net assets
of the entiry, In the case of gereeal pannerships (YOF), each
pary beats, In peincipls, wnBmited Rabiling and has, In principle, &
prepartional right to the assets and abligatians fof the labilities
of the entity. On the bass of the legal Torm, o CW-BY struciure
gualilies 35 a “joint veniwe”, whereas a VOF structure quaifies as
a “joint opeation®. It s Fnpamant 1o rote that the contractual
12rims and other refevant Lacks and Ciioumitances may (el in s
dilferent chassilication
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Raragermenl Fepoes Appe e T by

As 3 separate legal structune |5 established for each project.
prafects have dffarent panicipating partners and individus
profects ane notof & substantial slze, BPD did not have matetial
Fodil antangerngnls i 2018 and 2017,

Resulr from Jodnt Ventures

Armpurgs m makon of peres i xir
FProfit car kot frivm continuing opsrationt, 1] n
Posi-as peofit or doss from disceniineed opetations -« -
Hat profit n n
ey crampe e Indnme - -
Total comprehansive Iniome M n

Corifingen! Linbifities fo Joint Yentues
Naba R=al Estate Seoup BP0 enteved Into commitmants an

Cecember 31, 2018 with regand 1o real esiae profects,
commitments with third panies {inchiding wubcontractons and
architocts) far an amount of ELR S milisn (2017, EUR 23 million]
This commitments regarding bullding sites armount fo

EUR 23 millian (2017: EWR 155 millon,

Anncs Aeport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Statements
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15. Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets

Aemounet in miliien feus (el Aerhpent g Rotal
inhige  pss

Wear erded December 11, 2008

Opairg Lulance e n LLF B ¥ iH
Forpign ewchangm dfferencen ] - L
Keldania : 5 an m
Lasenriary £l LLE] (1] mn
Oathar [l ] 1 1%
hmantigaton * Lik] (2 L]
I I x 1=
Claing balance Ehl ] 357 L g
Lt [ALE ] Ll ] Ak L0
ey el amoariaanan s i e 58 {1500
Mt CarTyi g armoot k1l ) T L] ko]
Wiear wruslid Dipcarmbes 11, 2007

Opening hualince s 0 LEr BT
Foeeign eschange defference. ) m L7} 1]
Bridhsgns - L1 Ll (123
Ldromnain . L1] i1l X
Crther 1 an o] %
Amedtization . 113 55} 1158
ey # un - mh
Claing balsnce EiL) an LLF R F- -
Tt [RFES LE 30 73 T
uw?mmmm woal A Mel o
Herl gariying amswnl 3L ] m LLH] R -

Goodwill i+ revlesed for impalrment by comparing the camying
amaunt of the cash generating unil (mdcluding goadwill) with the
pest estimate of the value inwse of the cash generating unit. For
thits puipase, the best estimane of e value In use detssmined an
1he badis of cash flov lomecests in unsd T, o taked fram sl
mechiom-lerm plans drawn up s part of e sl planning
aycle. The plans reflec the management's best estimates of
market cond o, market restrictions, discount rates (befone
tanation], growth in operations, eic il the outcodme shows that
there is no sgaificant difference betwesn the fir value and tha
canying amount, the fairvaue & assessed in mare detail, with the
rebevant share price being wed for Bited companket. 7 addition,
waluation mooels are uied which are similar 1o the initial
recognition of an scquisitkon, pesr revews, #10 The vishsation
modeks are tested and include the development of the activities
slnce the acquisition, The mast recent income and expenses
forecasts drawn up by management, as well a3 updated
fotgcaty, msisrments of disoolin e, final valies of growth
raties, ete, Peer reviows ncludie an assessmant of the price”
warnings ratio and pricedcarrying amount ratio of ssmilar listed

Annud Report 2008 - Consolidated Financial Statements
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companies, ar imilar market transactions. Assumiptions ae
generady hased on experience, management's best estimates of
future develogments and, If available, saernal data.

The carrying amaunt of the goodwill allocated ta BNA In the
wholesale banking seqment I ELIR 125 milllon (27

EUR 119 milhion], The cash-generating unit & RHA. The
recoverable amcunt is based on the value inuge and determined
using cash flaw forecasts, The principal assumptions used ae 3
gievwih rate of ARer thy BArRIRGS Expactad in the near temm (flve
yedrgl al 6% (2017 129, the divcount rate of 1 1.0% (2017 158%)
ared the multiplier used for calculating the prsent valee of the
discounted cash floves after the forecast perod of 12,0 (2007
124} As thi recoverable amount exoceds the carnying amaount,
it was concloded that the goodwill allacated to AMA was rat
anpaced, A change ol 0.5% n the discount rate does noj cause
the carrying amount 1o exceed 1he recoverable amaunt,

The goodwill allocated to one of the cash-generating units in the
Damestic Resal segment i ssgnilicand in compatison with the
goodwill's total carrying amount, The carrying amount of this
goodwill s ELR 332 miltkan (2017 EUR 322 miilon) and the cash-
QanEating 1na i the callective of local Rababanks The
regoyedalile armound is baked on The value in use, The value inuse
i ddetermined using cash fows espected in the near fuure besed
on financial farecasts. As the recoverable amount substansially
exceaded tha canrylng amount, it was concluded that thi
goodwill allocated o this cash-ganerating unit was not iImpatied.
Anincrease in Th discaunt rave of 105 or a reduction in the
future cash o of 109 ade considened 1o Be-a makimum af
patsible changes In bey assumptions. Such a change does nat
cause thi carmying amount to exoeed thi recovenable smoumnt
and wou'd not resull in an impaiment.

An impaliment of goadwlil was recognized in 2008 for

ELAR 1 rllion (2007 nil). bnpaisments of softwane developed in-
howse aned alher intangibile asets are ot indvidually mateslal,
The totad impadements of software developed In-howse was nil
12047 EUR 31 million]
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16. Property and Equipment

Aoy i ot of oo bty e ko Toral
tuakdrgy o]

Wear ended Decemnbas 30, 2008
Oy lualance [ 8F  3EL4 45EF
Fessign sacharge diffsmens e ] - W &l
Purhaes 13 LE O R L7 O i
Dispoats ] M aE MsE
Toarrilres 1 Fueded Four Lo ) . - L]
Impaamrety (a3 ] - mn
Rl impaimmenty L] . - 5
D itatize [ TR L] . )
[ie I op qlmasr et - - L E ]
Orher 1] m (k4] on
:!.l.- bealance ai peir Deicasvls a4 W3 Lmse aAsE
Cast 1628 LT 4081 7R
g v e depreciabon e
impaments 11,585 u® N aan)
ek CarTying amosnl 33 per

- LY M3 00 A4S
‘Wwar ended Decembes 11, 3017
ot 1080 L3 38 7O8
sttt depreciution ad

X 11,£05) (L NN AE R L

et ey ngg amcaet a4 Lansary 1 Ll A5 2413 AS5ED

Oprrirgglulancy nnr 431 My daw
Foevign eschange diflemeno e (1] L] RE] [Erah]
Purchaes [T o geT 128
Diegusrinia [k [TLV T 1
Impairrrety ) - - m1)
Hevesal impammeris az ] - ]
T piation o 126 ] 1338
Depmebaticrrof ogreralingleawe st . J e
Orher m 1 W "
_lul.*‘ bealane as per Decesnben 1568 s PR
Cont FL IR T T
e s (358 (D 0063 plsm
"‘"n ""'—""i""""'""' 156 M7 1854 AT

The impatements and reversal inpaisements tecognired per
December 35, 2018 relate to proqerty for cwn uae in wgment
Damedtic Retad Banking, Vacancy of propeity ai a néwult of the
restructuring [decressing usage of squane matees] riggeed
impasments calculations and resulted in fmpaiemsents for a total
amaunt of ELIR 85 million [2017: ELR 91 millon). Because of
Incieasing use ol plopertes npaitments wee rewarisd (on an
articriril af TUR 45 inillion (2017 TUR 42 million),

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements 8
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17. Investment Properties

Amounst i miors of s HE T
Gl M L3
Acurmisird depreciaion and wmpiiements me (e
Yt carTying amaent a8 per Manuary 1 L1 ] ol
Opsmireg bulanee Ll am
Purchases F- ) "
Sales i) o
Tl b harldd o sale - [L1.]
Dz wcaistion L] 1]
AT ra] m
Feversal imgulment ] .
Orhar 2 i
Claring bulancs s par Dacsmber 11 Rl 1w
cau FLY a0
A Lalec clep add rrp L mm
Mt carryl a3 pes Drcember 31 " 1

Thie Lair wabue of the investrent propedties amounts o

EUR 208 rmilliom (2017 EUR 230 million). External valuations of
Ivepstment praperties wene peformed by duly certified eaterns
pares in sceordance with ACS vilusion standardd o other
equivient sancdandi, Investment propertied ae valued, lor
determining of far value, based an the methodologies which are
mast appropriate for that praperty. Thiv Includes the discounted
cash fliow valuation method and thie capialisation method based
o net Initlal yelds for comparable vansactions.

Werhmatior
o MLF
Laberral valuatons s 100%

(et rall il L bty - =

MAost investrent propemy s unigue. Thane i aften no sctive
inadket lor Enilar propeitie in the jane dation and condition
Appraisals of the dilferent trpes of Investment properties ae
based on many parameters, which are dedved from current
contracts and market information as mach as possible, A certain
degree of judgment and estimation cannot be avoided.
Thetedfare, all investimen] srooerty has been designated a5 bevel
3 in line with the Tair value classificaton under IFAS 13 When
dietetmining The falr viloe of ievesiment progerty, 1he
paramaeten wied Include the following, depending on the type
of propesty: current and expecled fulvre maroet rent perml
cwrent and expected future vacancy rates, location of the
pogerty, the matketability of the propery, the average discount
e, the development budget, and any cledit rliks,
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18. Other Assets

damading i milosr of Furos HolE 200 2y

Heprvabde snd pgupneni L85 LA

hrtrume] irvievest 1 L

Precsme melab, goods and v shoue Ieosply £ [} ]

Feal evtate peopsn ia0d 1373

At il indoee ELH ] LS -]

Employes berediy kL] L] &

Oeher anseny 527 am

Total sther sissts A T

Real putate pregects

Aoty in il of Furs Fl ] 2018

Buaiiding sites 1,300 LIS

Wk In prsgress ] 1

Pkl gl " ™

e T e M 1694 2172

n 2018, the net real sable value of afl curment land operations and
sibes rot subect 1o a zoning plan was caowated and compaed
with the carrping amount. This resulted in a refease of provisions
of EUR B2 million (207 T refease of EUR 15 millan)

Aasdare on Wehdmeall'  Salanoe on
Aoty m millons of Loy Additiony” other J¥1 Depember
L] 2018 refee F ]
La fla i previiboe fod rmal o
B sitey a4 ] 184 4
‘Work in progrest an in at %
Completnd B . i *
devmiopmerty
Total 824 B 140} £

Aafasd o ke’ Bvlanng on
Asint i s of Vi Adiiaait athir 11 Defamber
e X7 refenE change JOF
" in provitbean fas real pera|
Huiilhng st E g M £
Work In progress m (L 1i] ) L]
Completed ] . . &
develepmaty
Total T (4 ¥ i] i L]
M.;url;u
dmined i o of furos g xanr
L rl Il ¥ x L d ncler dor L a5y .'m
£ L1l ity bt vl i
o TN 1 T
Iy d i athrans - rrsdentul propey ] LE]
inatafmerts et in atwanee - commensal property - ]
Total veorl in progres 443 R ]
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19. Non-current Assets Held for Sale

The non-curment assers held foe sale amount 1o EUR 268 milion
43017 EUR 952 million) & thdinly comprise variou types ol riesl
evlale in the segments Damestic Retail Banking and Real Estate
far anamount of EUR 138 million and a stake in a firancial service
prvviger In Africa for an amount of ELIR 108 million that will be
tanslerred to Adse V. after government approval. The book
walues are sxpected 10 Do reslized throwgh sale rather than
thiaugh eantinled aperatian

The seal estate classified as buld for sabe are mastly unigue
objects. Thete & often no active market for simdar real estae at
the same locatton and in the same condition A large mamber of
parameten are uied fof the valuations of the vanaus types of
Eragerty investments, whee possible based on esiling coniracts
ard manket data, A certaln level of adsetament and &itimation is
Jravnbdable. B b fos this reasan that all nan-<Current assots
classified as "held for sale” are classified In leved 3.

20. Deposits from Credit Institutions

A i il of poros o o
Desrrare] diogmerits TR LUEk
Fuedh bermm deposty Mz T7AM
Reputthase sgeermenty 1] F0
ey hipaalny s, £xpeST vl Tt - [
Total depnits frem credH instifutions TRIET TR
21. Deposits from Customers
A m e o e mom JoiF
Cunvend sosent: A TR
Darpacrill s with asgreseed LTy T P4
Despariity reckmermalile i raiic s IT8803  TrEed
Repuichane sgroormonts 1w i
Fdunary depagn a7 86
Endrer sl s gurvtormmens 1 1
Total depoits frem cunsomen T4ZAID DAD.4ET

Shari-tern deposits from central banks ameunting to
LR 20 billian (2017 CUR 23 Billien) are included in Depodits with
aanesd mauniny.

22. Debt Securities in Issue

Armguns in milom of puvos T
e of depoan 19WT M
Cormmurilal pagei a803 i0afe
Hauedbordi MR AAs
Oher debw sevuniies IBE T12M
Total dabi seciities in i 130,804 134433
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23. Financial Liabilities Held for
Trading

Financial labdlities held lor iacding die mainhy nedgale lair waluss
of detvatives and delvery obligations that are o the shait
sefling of securities: Securities are sold short to reallze gains from
short-erm price fuctuations. The secunities needed 1o settle
short sales are acguined thiough securities kending and
repurchasing agreemeants, The fair value of the shares and bands
sald hart ane ELIR 400 milllan (2017 ELR 581 malion).

192
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24. Financial Liabilities Designated
at Fair Value

Aot in millos of farog Mg M
bt wmsunilie inuaedd 4908 L]
Despoits o EL
Torta ) finasmial Nabslicia desgnated af fair valus AE14  TRLTER

Thie decresse in the carying amount of the financial liabdtes
ehedigrated ot falk vk 14 eaused by the recliiulication of the
callabks notes 10 amaitized oot under IFRS 9 whens they wee
masured &l lag value under IAS 38, The reclasification
encompasses the callable notes ondy and not {or cther stuciwed
nates inciuded In the structured funding portfalio.

Thie cumulative change in Tair value of the financial Rabilites
desgnated at fair value attributable 1o changes inthe own credin
stk af Bababank amaunts 16 EUR 21 million belaee taces (A1 7
ELR 833 midllion,

The change in fair valoe that s attributable to changes in own
credit risk ks cakcufasted by deducting ona note by note basis the
cictrent falr value af the structuted notes parmialia a1 the reparting
dlate figam Che fain value recalculated based on the preyvaiing
credit curve at the vme of ongination, with al cther pricing
companents unchanged, This calculation reflects the amount
that can be attributed to the change inthe own credit sk of
Rabobank since the adigination of these strectused notes.

Tranpters of the cumulatioe gaing or losses within squity durirg
the peviad and the amounts presented In ather compreheniive
Income that are realized #1 derecognition am disclosed in the
Section 31 in the movement schedule of the "Revalvalion Reserve

Fair Yalue Changes Duwe to Oewn Coved it Rk an Financal
Liabliitles Designated at Fair Vahe'

Theit carmying wvalue of thee Rsued struciured notes designaled M
filr value |5 EUR 318 million [2017: ELM 5223 million] lower than
the amount Rabobank I§ contractually obliged to tepay to the
halbders of the struciured notes. The decrease is caused by the
teclassification of the callable notes to amortized codl under FRS
Dwhen measured o1 (afe value under WS 30

25, Other Liabilities
Ammaaney in milloos of eeros More ol Xrr
Fapaiied A 584
Aigrup el e Lni¥
Ernpicypes herefiy kL it ] aur
Oeher 47 %
Total sther lsbdlities £33  BxXM
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26. Provisions
Ao i Mo of pevs Nair HE T
Hirliuturrg peiin He EEH]
Provislon doe legal haaed ans 9
gt alowareoes o0 loan commmitmenty e =
and Prnancial pusesTes. LEL]
rher prmdsoes b -] B
Tatal prowisions A3 15T
A g Feireé Lo s
sty m o of enes plésin VT P Torel
Dpeprirg balance on Jenuary 1, 23000 m w9 S 1517
Addeions 3 18 o FEY
Wthiramaly 4L H] [FCE] Hin (1]
L (L)1) n mn am
Chaging balance on Decembar §1, 2018 a8 ART il e
Oparirag balance on January 1, 2007 L] b ] P LATS
Additons W 145 448 a8
Whtharasaly [0 3004 10 L
Rasburiicy [{E5- ] (F- 4] = inmes
Claring bulanie nn Dacembar 11, 2017 11 a1 EL2] 1317
I thee adiditions of the restiacturing provision, an amount of
ELR 157 midilion (200 70 EUR 192 million) is included lor the
teorganization pragram of the local Hababanke. This
renhganisatan provision conss of future payments ielating to
redundancy pay and other codly deectly attributable 1o the
ieoiganization piogiam, Thewe eipenyss sie included when a
iedundancy $Chome is drawn up and communicated o
stakehoddars The cxpoc ted outflow of funds will occur in 2009
ard 2020,
An acldition of EUR 52 million (2017 CUR 51 million) in ihe
prevelsian far legal Banes was made far the SME Interest rate
derfvatives recovery framework. Fos addional information,
please reler bo Secthon 410, "Legal and arbitration proceedings.”
Maturities of Prewvisions
Longes
Kot ihen?  lenger
Armausts i miflkon of ror wmending prorbid  than Fepal
e Py leEhon 5 peer
§ yeees
O (vdmibes 17, 2000 wr b 2 L
On Chevember 32, 2077 1,471 s 1537
Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements T
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27. Deferred Taxes e
Uefereed  Dufereed  offer
l:fn‘d' 1] [ETa
Defered 1ax assets and llabilties are measured fod 3l temporary kabiitiey  chargey  humshe
dilferenceh walng thie Mability-metlod, No delered Lax asset has - P
been mecognied lor wased taxloeses 1ot aling EUA 1 458 million O Dysmber 31, 2018
AT ELUIR 1,544 milEan), These carry forwand lzsses relate 1o # A i o iy
Pl a3 | & :
warkous tax authorities and their term (o matarity s langely »
whﬁﬂﬁlﬂ.ﬂ."
ankmited. i L LU -
Frassiem Lt m #
Defarmed tax aider iecognized inmespect of carry Torwand lotes Houigge Ly LLE] Il
can anly be utllzed If tabile pralins are reafeed inthe futume D Sy ieneand loases LA UL
£ Taw ok Fil =
December 31, 20168 Rabobenk expects that sullicen tacable o -
Gercerhill e it intargihle asusty 14 - .
erofits will be generated within the applicable perods. Eafid o &
avuety ol labr wahie through othes [L3] 3 (8] (3.15]
Ty (T B
Farvaluation severves - Caihow G . i i
Fevaluation sesenves - Covls of s &
Fembpray
e atugtion seuprwe - Fair value
chuar(pes i B0t Crei ko H o
oy emarucial Lablnies derigianed an
Lk walus
Proppes by wncd eqpaipment, inchading o 847 —
o
Db lprrgrerary Eferore {F1] L1 a2
Tatal AL 57 an "%
Tawom
Dekeruc? Gafiroed  Dwfirored oty
Pt da o o
Lot oalges  Renshe
ncovre
Aty i il of Reros
D Dosmibey 25, 3017
[ A Pt fransd -y
bty -] m F
Loan impadneen diosance % fei) ™
Fresiiom 25 T 55
[ i £ [l ¥
Ly borward kases 58T F] - -
Tancrechnn 154 [ &
Cairinitodl v ot e it il 1 13 m 4
:ﬂuﬁmh%h . ' ¥ w
Fevaluation seamnass = Cinh Saw 1 = T "
g
Fevaluation sesmnve - Far vahee
g e b2 tram Credi fak 208 - F 1oy
o Frurg sl akalisr degnated s
Lair walus
FropesTy afd BaARmEnL inched g
seaimtegl 113 4T mi
e tempiorary diferencer ans v J m -
Total 1,758 Yad 14 148
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28. Employee Benefits
Amounst i Mo of s HE T
ey berrfits - @t ] ]
Ernpiloyeen bererbidy - Eablities. Fi) 28
Total ampdeyes bensding T8 e
Peritiin i ) 153
ey erployes benefits LE -] (571
Total smployee henefin TAE TE

28.1 Pension Plans

Rabbank bas pleced it Dutch pemian plan with Rabotan
Pensian Fund. The scherme b a collective defined contribution
plan with a pensionable age of 68 and a tanget accnual pencentage
of 2. Each year Rababank depesics penston contributlons Inte the
Rabobank Pension Fund based on & fived system aimed i
Nhk.'-l‘hg!hclnfgl:‘l persian acorual for senice proviced during
the year of sorvice baded on & conditional civeer-average plan
with a conditional indexation. Rabobank complies with all its
pansion chiigatiers by paying the amrual pension premium.
Rabobank therefore has no mote lnancial llabsies with regard
1o undarying membership years and already acoued pension
tighas In the eantest of the ks ranilened, Rabobank mads 5
one=0ll payrmant in 2013 10 the amount of EUR 500 million
Nowwards The creation ol an mdex depoiit, Inaddition, Rabobank
will act a5 a guarantor duting the period 2014- 2020 for the
realizatlon of the target pension aconual for thie services provided
duting this petad up 1o @ madmum amaunt of EUR 217 matlion
1200 7: EUR 200 million.

The Dutch pensian plan qualifies as a defined contribution plan
wnater [A5 19, Ravobank’s abligation b limited to the premium
payments owed, kess previowsly made payments. As of Decemisar
31, 2018, a few small plans still gualify as defined benefit pension
plans, Thews ars cares-averags defined benefit pension plang,
sdministered by 4 hund ar othandiae thatl aie refdted o the
temuneralion of employees upon retiremend and which mostly
ey annual ponsions. Annual contributions ane paid o the funds
at @ rate necessany to adequately finance the aconued labiities
of the plans calculated In accordance with local legal
requinements. The asiets retated ro1he plans maniained i 3 fund
are hield ingependently of Rabobank assets in separane funds
managed by trustees. The abligation ate vileed sach yoar by
inche pendent actuatied bated on the method peeicribed by the
FFRG. The miost recent actuarial valuations wese perforrmed @ the
end of 2018, The tables relating 1o the weighted averages of the
miain aciuafal assurmptions, the sensithdty analyvs and the future
e parments relate o the pension plan ol Frieskand Bank
01 7; Friesland Bank ardd ACT Loan maihagement],

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

EDINETOOOO

O00OO00O000000000000040d0(ee5923)

e Cowmohulabes) Pl Conrpmaw Friangul
Aemounty in milioas of reros Jure gy
Db benef shbligation ABT T8
Fa wabum o plan ity w bl
Wt defined Brneii abligaton e 153

Mevements In plan assets ard llabilities:

Amountt in milioar of syms Hre MarF
Dhned benefis obligation

Dpsrireg Balsnin on Ly 1 e e
Ferhance ratw dHerences i in
Inbefet EdpenGe & 14
EeneArs puad 571 o8
Sietlloret 1y -
Ogher ¥ &
Experience adauriments i i
dungeindemographic m o
aArsEmptions

B e H S Qn @
chungs [

D-hdb:;&ﬂﬂhul- s 148
Fadr valuas of plsn ssets

Dypeerurag alance an danuary 1 £ 00
Exrhangd patd Bifivendei m 1%
e oo ® "
Conir stions paid by emphayer " 10
Eenenr pasd @n (=1
Sirtllorrmity (240

Gher (ril
Expesience acdustments - mn
Femenurenents. arivig from

shange £ ke m 1
F 1T S

Fair walun l’l“plmuuhm b S

The costs recognised in profit and loss are shown in the table
below

Aot in st of marms Jaie xir
rdeel Fuperas on lshilifie 1% iI]
e income o plan st i [{RH]
Lortamsiigaing onh curisimeni, i in
ueitiermanty and cosin

Total vost of defned benafit - M
pension plans

Rain Actugniod Assrnghion
The main aciuanial assumptions or the valuation of the delined

benefit obligation are the déscount rate, the salary increases, the
price inflation. Recent momalty tables nave alio been wsed for the
waluation of the respective plans, The welghted seerages of the
atbuarial financlal assurnptiong e shown in the lable below (n
B pot yoark
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Do rale 20 1LT%
Sabiary i 14 18%
Price irrflition 1% 1%
Loty Analysly

Rlabobank bs eaporsed to risks regaading their defined bensfit plans
telated 1o the assumptions disclosed in the table below. The

Aty in mellons of aeos Chamga iy
Dsroaee rate it
Salary wuireaies L%
(Price inflitias n2ew
_H-url.lllr 1 yoa
Esrvmpted Conreibution

The estimated contributions bo pension plans for 2019 aee
approximately EUR 5 million (2018: EUR 2 mdlon)

Average Duration
The avetape dutation of the defined benef plan of Frieshend Bank

o VT yeans (20070 1 7 years)

28.2 Other Employee Benefits
Othesr employes berefits mainly comprise liabiisies for futue

long-sendcs dwards for an amount of TUR 37 million (2017
ELIR 35 millian)

29. Subordinated Liabilities

Aoty m milions of ewros Fo 1 xr
T Bry Baesbiaria 1648F  VANNT
Oxher 13 n
Total vubardinated labiliies VAR 16170

in the feliowing fabée detalls of the issues of swhoedinated
Habilities are shown

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements
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sensithvity analysis of these mast significant assumptions has
been detenmined based on changes of the assumptions
occuning at the end of the reporting perod that are deemed
teasonably possibile.

Bt on defined henkt Eftect on dafned benedr
bl of i our ssbdigaticn wf decsraie
Far] 2ang Fl ] aorr
nam rii] " »
3 7 ] n
- ) - m
12 n (1] @
Subordingted Linbilfies
Aotional
maun Moot o
i ) Cirreney  Cougan Atoeed Frcze eof Pttty
2019, ewrly repayrent
500 s A% T poasikie 2004
1500 st 175% e M
F sarly eparyment
125 Aut 00 HIY posible 2020
TS, daty repaErnr
4TS AUD Warilabie s fi=ra]
1500 uin A179% S P P ]
1350 s 53%% S s
1,000 GEP Frits 4 nx
H earty reparyment
100 [{E] 150% 04 poasibie in 7921
SLBO0 Y 1420w HI4 4
1000 L Lariw i xan
1,750 s AT ELAR| an
1250 s 57 WA Tt
1,000 FUR A1 FLIF] foE]
00 Gl 5.35% w2 xn
1500 uso 195% i nn
100 FL L&Y il EE ]
1200 EL# BEMN Jur i
n LA Ayrw HHES b
m EUR 532% KM WM
%r
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30. Contingent Liabilities {bilkies Relating 83 Operating Leases

Crechit Refoted Contimgent Liobiities

Rabobaank entets ko inevocalike loan commilimevs and
camingent llabilies consisting of financlal guarantees and
standby ketters of credit an behad of its customen. Under these
contracts Aabobank ks required to perform under an obligation
aoreement of 10 make payments to the beneloary on thid
partys failure to meet its obligations. The following table showes
1he amavint of the muimam potentlal wiization of credie relited
comingant llabifinies

Amgundty in midlo of e EL
Franci quaraniesy 1377 1408
LLoai CoNmaTeImEnE 12563 31109ed
Orher commitrsti. F U EE TN
Cradit relatad continges labilitss AN BRI

Conmgerd Lisdiities Relates to Litigoiron

Raksobank i invobved in a number of legal and arbivation
pacesdings in the Methetlands and other coundries, including
the Uinited Statos. in conrection with clalms bought by and
saaini Rabobank Graup aising flom s operations. The
maxirmum amount of non-remiole contingent labilities relating
T clalms (s ELR 157 millian (201 7; CUR 74 million). For addivons
informatian, refier to section 4.10, "Legal and Arbitration
Mroceadings®

Canfingent Lishilires Related ro Income Tax
The Buitch gavetnment abalithed article M of the Dutch

Cotporate Income Tax Code as of lamsary 1, 2019 Article 293 of
the Dudch Corporate Income Tax Code was Included in the Dutch
Conporate Income Tax Code so thal capita! instiurments issued by
credit institutians and which are covered by EU regulation
57572013 would be conudered tan deductible, As & result af the
abolitian the payrrant on Uhess capltal na traments will ho? be 1ax
dheductibie anymone as Trom January 7, 2019

The abolition appears to have no consequences for previoas
years However, if the European Commission would decide 1o
$Lart a formal investigation amaway and uliimately wollkd
conclude that this s a case of stae aid for the presious years,
Hababank may have 1o repay 1ax beaclits it recebed between
2015 and 2008,

in this conteat, Rabobank lssuad Capital Secunties in January
2015, Apnl 2016 and September J01A, amounting respectively to
ELR 1.5 billion &t 4 eed intesest rate of 5.5%, EUR 1.25 ballion 41 2
Micae mibieieest ek o 6.625%, v EUR 18 blilian at & faed intenst
rate af 4.625%, The contingent lability related to this matter
amounts to EUR 140 mifion {2017 ELIR 56 million],

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

Hababank has conclisded varows operating kease coniracts as
lesses, mainvy with respect 1o real estare and cars. The future net
il |eaie payrmenis ander non-cancellable apetating
Eeasis can by beokon dawn as fallows:

Aoty b milioes of ers FL T
Mot ewcoding | e LF.:) (F ]
Lewguat Thism § e B b than § jwors 361 LY
Larapes Than & yean FiH] Ei
| i fitses. vmlating i iy | A g

The expecied fuline minimum ease payments recevable from
sub-leases ane nil 201 7 nll], The eperating kease mipenses ane
LR 30 milllon (3007 ELR AT million). Thase are included in Other
adminrative expenses’ in the staterment of income.

Payrments Recenable from Cperating Legses
Rabobank has conchuded varkous operating kease conracts as

Bessor, The future minamum lease cayments receivacle from non-
cangellable operating leases can be broken down as follows:

“Amouns i milons of poros om
Mul epiwichng e “ na
Lawger than 1 year bt let than 5 prars ar ias
Lowpst than S years Mir Bl
Tatal payments recuivable fram ap § i L

N comingent lease Dayments were recognized os asses duning
the current yoar

Orber Contingent Linbifilres
The contraciual commitments relaling Lo the acguisition,

congtrection and develapment of watk in progress and
Inwestment properties amaunts to ELIR S8 milllon (2017
ELMLE TEA rrdllian).
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31. Reserves and Retained Earnings

ey in s of Furs
IFeemagen currancy Iransdalion e
Bevauation reterves - Avadabile- for-tale francisl spet

Revaluacn reenve - Frarcisl axeen al fabvalue ihiough
other comgeshanLive Intoms

Mevalusticn reve ve - Caid flow heige
Fevaustion reienve - Cosh of hedging
Fevauation rensve = huts held oe wale
Remeausermront ity - Pormionm

Prvsustion seiervs - Far vahes rhancges due o owe ciedd
risk on Anancial ikshSities desigrened at Far vafue

Frtiane=d paimirsgn
Total smserves and retained

gy st e ar-wnad

Changes in the resarées ware as follows:

o] in il of farcl

Farmign curtency trasalatinn rewrees
O talance

Tearrdlation nf foceign operatinn
Changen i Fasdprn) indliamend
Changes ot auscciaes and joink vertures
Prarafeered tn prokt or sy

Casing balance

Reyaluation reverves - Ayailable-for-uabe Bnancisl assess
Opetireg balance

ARG Iy SCCaunting policy

ierpsgn enchange deflerenoes
Chanpes at SaL0canes and ok e

Fait ke change
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Eloring balance

Revaluation reserves - Debt instruments at fair value
gt ather comprehis s lscsrn

Eprprvrng bulance

hange i accounting policy

Foeergn encharge d-feencen
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Tl b changes

Fegraleried (o proft or o
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Feerign eschange differsnoes
Chuangee. al asiodiates and jd vertuie
Tair el changes.
Traevlesred o retabned sanmings

Oher

N
n's

248

(EL1]
1145

an

06T
I

J0iE

[
(1]
LEH )
[L2-1]
N
LUk

i

1

L]
I

Annus Report 2008 - Consolidated Financial Stamements

Jarr

naam
oy
mm

EDINETOOOO

O00OO00O000000000000040d0(ee5923)

Loty Cornpolciriet Dnanisd Commpasy Frangul
Lo e Slatermel Statgrmamnia

Amaunt -i;:ril-'ﬁr.-fl_“-'ﬂ J0TF n‘.ﬂf?-
Cloeing Balance nr s
Bevaluation reveres - Canks flove hadges

Dperirsy halance (LFd] [0y 11]
Churge i Sccountieg poloy ¥

Tewrign Fachangs differenoe [ ]

Fakrwalue changes. e 550
Transferted to peodit or hoss T 621
Claiing balancs (L] (L]
Revaluation reserve - Cosis of hedging

Dpsarirey tualanse . na
e In sccoliting pokcy Al
Fawnbgn st hange dfsrance in 20 ]
Fab walue changes 111 0]
Claing balancs £ nla
Ravaluaiion reserve - Aaamis beld dor sale

Dpserireg halance 5 Y
THupirial o s s n
Chosing balance [§55] (8511
Remmaiunsment imerve = Frniben

Operrarsg fualance 133 frm
Cranges 31 associstes and e venturey L] L)
Femeasrernents defined beref | plins F.- )
Setlerril 2

Clouing balancs nas iz
Brvahuation rierer - Fal wabe i b o

wredit rick an financial Rabslitey decignated af Ly vados

Dpening halsnce Llrio] LEoris]
CHange in Sccounting pokcy 483

Fauls b change Fii [LEE ]
Bealiration &1 derercriliin & 9
Closing balancs 0 RS
Ratained sarningu

Dpening halance mITT MR
Crange in accoumting polokes LLri]

K el el
Papmenttcn equity mmumenty hEsEm o
Redempbion of Capital deoses [re] L1 o]
hsueod w:mmum oot} ol
Seitement perniinn plas (] -
Grher " LL e
Closing balance 061 MBTTT
Toultesarves and reained sarings wasn s
32. Rabobank Certificates

Raboank Cenificates represent participation rghts Eseed by
Habobank via the loundation Stclding Adrmindstratie Kantoor
Rabotrank Cemificatet and bedong 1o the Cormmon Edguity The 1
capital of Rabobark Aslrom 2014, the Rsbobank Cen ficates have

been lsted on Euronest Amsterdam
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The totall number of cedtificates ls 297,561 365 with 3 nominal
walue of EUR 35 each. The actual payment podicy of Rabobank
pursuant 1o the Paeticipaton Aules in respect ol the panicipation
msped by Rababank {and vis Ax Foundaoen in respect of the
fabobank Cenificates) can be found on the Rabobank webshe,

Thee distribation pald per cenificate in 2018 was EUR 1,625 QOIT!
ELR 1.625). The Managing Board is entitled 1o decide rot 1o pay
the distibution, Unpald distibutions will not be paid st a later
dlnte. This Armawnts livted in the table below ame baed on the
nevmiral valie of EUR 25 per Rababan Cerificars. Cash Fowe
aring from changes during the year in the Rabebank Certilicates
am included in the consolidated statement of cash fows.

in January 2017 Aabobank lsseed Rabobank Certificates fora
maninal amount of EUR LS billion, Rabobark issued 60 millon
e Rabobank Cenificates; each of these newly ssued Ceniicate
wivs priced af 108% of the naminal vahee of FUIR 25.

Ammibizndt i e of e E TR
Cranges daning ihe Frs

Cyperirag balance LTI 1T
T oA fabnihark ©ertibeates - 50
Crange iy Rabobank Cerifomes dunng ihe year 5 i1
Clasing balance TS T
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33. Capital Securities and Trust
Preferred Securities IV

Capital Sscurities and Trusl Prefened Secunities IV can be bicken
chowm i fodlow

e e e T LA
Caprual Securtes houed by Raboar e
Capial vcurithes Hossd by wilnddlaris: i R
R —— "

Total Capltal Securities snd Trns Preferred Securities |V 7008 8019

Cantaf Secarites
All Capital Securitles are perpetual and have no capliny date, The

discretienary on Capital Securities per e i as foliows:
33. 1 Capital securities issued by Rabobank

sy of ELA 1,000 Millicn
Thie coupon i1 4.625% per year and s made payable every six

muonths i arears as of the lssue date {September 11, 2018, for
the first time on Decambser 29, 2018, The Capital Securities ame
parpetual And it redesmable an Decamber 29, 2025 As of
Decembeer 29, 2025, and subject 1o Capirsl Seginities nog being
redeemed earky, the distribution is set for a five-year pened, but
witthout a step-up, based on the Spear el fwap ate - 409505,
The coupan s fully discretionary

Iesue of ELA 1 250 MiTon

The caupan 4 BAI5% peryoar and is mage payable evory s
maonths in arears as of the e date (Apdl 28, 2016), for the fir
thme on June 28, 2006, The Capital Secuitles are perpetual and
first recieemabie on fune 19, 2020, As of Jure 29, 2020, and
subject no Capital Securities nat being redesmed earty, the
distriburion is ser far a furthes fiveyear perlod, but without a siep-
unpy, Bt of thi S-p8ad Bund swap rale + 6 607% This cougsie i
Tully discritionary,

st ol ELAT 1500 Million

Thie coupon 14 5 5% per year and s made payable svery six
months i arears as of the e date (January 27, 2015, for the
flrst nieme o6 June 29, 2015, The Capital Securities ate peiperual
and firs) tedenrmable on lune 39, 3000, As of ne 78, 2030, and
wibject to Capital Secuwithes not being redeermed early, the
distribution i set fora further five-pear period, but withoul a step-
ujp, based on the 5yed eund swap rate + 5.25% The coupon is
fully discretionary.

s af FLA 500 MiTion
Tht coupon 14 9945 per year and i made payalble annually in
arrears a5 of the lssue date (February 37, 2009), for the first tme

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

oen February 27, 20000 As of Febraany 27, 2019, the coupon will be
made payable svery quanier based on the theee-manth Euibor
Plus ad anmual 7.50% mark-up. The coupon s payable at the
suer’s discretion, incase Aabiobuank dogs not use it discretionany
powen 1o nat pay distributions on the Rababank Certificates,
payment an this instrument will aiso apnly.

s of LD 2868 Miflion

The coaapan is 1100 par year 2nd is made payabls every six
manthi in amear ol of the e dare lune 4, 7009), far the flne
time o December 31, 1009, AL of June 30, 2019, the coupan will
e ade payabde eeery quaster based on the three=month WS
Libot phes a0 snnaal 1 0868% maik-up, The coupon i pavable at
the lssuer's discretion. In case Habobank does not use its
discretionay poswer 1o not pay distibutions on the Rababank
Cestilicates, payrment on this Fsirament will atso apply.

Hiswe of GAP 250 Mittian
The cowpan b 6.56M% pevyear and i4 made payable every six

months i arears as of the ssse date (June 10, 2008, for the st
time on December 10, 2004, As of June 10, 2038, the coupon will
e made payable every i manths based on the sik-month GRP
Limar plut & annisl 2B25% mak-up. The seupan i payable an
hee isyued’s diiscretion. In case Rabobank dogt pot tee ity
discretionary power 1o nod pay dlsributions on the Rabobank
Cestificates, pagment on this instrament will atso apply.

33.2 Capital Securities lisued by Rabobank Which Were
Redaemed During the Reporting Year

Hisue of CHF 350 Millon
Rabobank hsued the CHF 250 milSon Capital Securities an June

27, 2008, In scoordance with the Tesrmy and Conditions of thess
Capital Securities, Rababark has redesmed the Capital Securities
o the fitst call dare, beng June 27, 318

Jusue af i § 279 Milan

Rababank Bswed the ILS 323 milllen Capitad Securities on July 14,
2008 In accordance with the Tenms and Condithons of thess
Capital Securities, Rababand has elected 10 redeerm these Cagial
Secudiies an the Nra call date being July 14, 2018,

33.3 Capital Securities lssued by Subsidiaries

lssue of NADY 280 Milion
Habo Capital Securities Lamited hat issued capital securities, the

conppon of which equals the fiee-year swap intecest mte phs an
antsal 3.75% mark-upand was st aTE TEGAE per anmam an May
25, 2000, As of U lsune daly (May 27, 2009), U coupon by made
payabie eveny quartes inarfears, for the fist Ume on june 18, 2008
{xheoat First inteeest period], As of June 18, 2014, the coupon will
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lbe made payable every quarter based on the five-year seap
interest plus am annual 375% mark-up. As of June 18, 2019, the
oo will be made payatie every quarss based on the 90-day
Rtk bill svwags sivterest rate phud an atnsl 1.75% matk-up, The
coupon b payable at the lsuer's discretion. kn case Raboabank
does not use Ry discretionary power to rot pay distributions on
the Rapobank Certficates, payment on this Instrurment will alwe
2pply.

33.4 Trust Preferred Securities IV
In 2008, nar-cumalatice Trus Prefeced Sacurities wene iwsued of

wibilch the Trust Preferred Secunity IV i culstanding

+ Rabobank Capital Funding Trust T, Delaware, a group
company of Rabobank, Kowed 350000 non-cumulatie Tust
Peefered Securities. The coupon 15 5.556% upwand including
Decernber 31, 70014, Thetealer, the coupon i equal 1o fhe shi-
manth GEP Lkt rate plus 1 26000, The coupan s payable o
thee Bsuer’s discnetion.

The total proceeds from this issue amounted to GBP 350 million.
Ag of Decomber 31, 2019, these Trust Prefened Securities can be
wepulchated an each disribution date (which s arce svery

Tl fyear)

Ampunts m mifbo of rrs E T T
Opening balance ETTIT Y
Ea s rals dillereide dind otbey 151 ns
Clasing balance aa E L

34. Other Non-controlling Interests

Thils Rem relates to shares held by non-controlling interess in
Rabobank subsidiaries.

Amaunes in miflar of s

M My
Dpprirg bulance Ars b
Bt ot wa -
s raie differences e an
it brided il o . r
Diviclends £ m
Orher @ L]
Closing balance Fe 475

The Rabiobank subsidiaried with the largest non-contalling
interests are Cargobull Finamoe Halding and AGCO Finance SHC
Both ertiies ane accounted for inthe segment Leasing.

Cargobull Holdirg BV, 1s based In Eindhoven, Nethedands, ard

Rabodsank hus o capitalind woting right iitenest af 51% The non-
contmlling nterests with mgasd to this entity amoum e

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements
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ELR &0 miflion (200 4 EUR 25 millien), The falkowing financisl data
applies

Cargoduill Halding BV,

damaiinr i TR of Pt 2K Mrr
v i 5
M ot (] n
Caher comprehsrave income & -
Total veerprehanaive inteme 13 13
Pt siritsble o rorcontrelling mbsnes r T
Dvidendds pasd 1o ron controlling intereas ap

Frarscial pawts Lol 2]
Dahet ssen (13 £}
Frusrurial bkl nae T [
Ctwry bt lrfory Y n

AGDD Finance SKC b lacated in Beauals, Franee, and Rasshank
hasa capital and vating right interest of 51.0%. The non-
conrolling interests with regard to this entity amount Lo

ELfR 106 mallion {200 7: EUR 97 millond, The follewing financial
data applies

AGCO Finonce SNC

At oy bl i ELIT I T
v 13 "
Mol prcrht i 1"
(Ol COTTR e T -

Tatal ceerprehansive income LL3 m
Frohit st itstalde 10 Porv-contmlleg nbeieit & @
Drtvirberdt puaied 10 ronconmmelling intsme i1 1]
Forunoial szt 15 141
et annem 13 L1
Frurnial hatsl e Ly 2N
Onher Kabslntes. 2] n
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35. Changes in Liabilities Arising

from Financing Activities

Dxtar
!uﬁ%

At in il of parncl :n:mh

Wear efded Decembsy 31 2018

Dt Lualancy 1M ISP 150503
Changes foen frandng cath Ao O o ssoem
[Effiect o rharaees b ieesiqn aschangs rate b 147 514
Cothver syl changes 2150 T FAT1 ]
Clasing balance 133804 TAARE 147008
Wiear ervibed Decambes 31 2017

Cyperireg halance LETRTH] (TN T %
Changes bom franorg cash e nerny ET BT 1]
[Effiect of changes in foreign eschange rates [rics ) i Bam
(Oehar meai-Lan CRANGE e ] 4ITy
Closing balance 147N TLIT0 10550
36. Net Interest Income

Amounst in midiom of sems 2R T
llsaFEEia Incoms

Cavhared einh mnpuvakenity dar FE
Lrsares aredl aefvanes Ao crel nsdirticen mE nw
Loame e addvinces 10 cuslomers 15001 15343
Dt twaarors uoveed For fai wabue Peddge aceunting Ha ki
il abdstor-wils Bndecial avisld Al L+
Frunoial avsem i far valus ihiough oty comprehernive: a7 i
InCome

m":ﬁf’”- ol simtrusingthaeflection . cun  10aTs
[Frusnicial assety held for rading 18 ¥
Firwdial gisati deibgraiie i T willie 1 &
Frwsnoial gusarty mandstonly st laireslue tyl 3]
st w4 Ireoaeme o sl Rabelneey with s regative 152 .
el il e

Cnthar Uil Li
Drthat inbarest ancome m e
Total s reat Indome 16180 1657
lrdrrwid pxpenss

IDepaytins e crc® irsirions, LEE IEF
[Dereriin B Cuniomers JE8Y A" ]
Tiartat ncuimtien in fnise 100e LAl
Firuneial Lakdises held tor trading 18 n
Dttt Pl a3 eConormil g 58 815
Firusbeial Daldleay deibgnabed o lab valus i 461
Sdmbrated bainkiey T ran
:‘::mlwmkwnilmmmammﬂ 58 28
Cther m []
Totsl isferent sxpenis T T
et Iribaparil AREOmE B35S BB

Capitatized mterest attributable 1o qualifying assets amounted to

ELIR 168 million (2017 ELIR 18 millian). The avesage intesest rate

Annus Report 2008 - Consolidated Financial Stamements
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applied in determining intesest changes (o be capialized ranges
between 1% and &% (2017 between 1% and 5%). The interest
ncome gn impeied inanclal assers accreed s EUR 485 million

1200F; EUR 6B il

37. Net Fee and Commission Income

Amounrr in meloes of ruros

Firt aifidll Coavwaiion incomes

Pwprnenl serwides

Nereling

(Puir Pt gt wabe oo hies Drusrial sty s andbng lees
AL T b

WFevrptment mandgemenl

Cwiboohal fer and peow B sonoe:

Dether commia s income

Tatal fee andl commbanian income

it a0 COAMIEAlON EVEaEnIe

Patpmeni sereon

e hunae snd b of other fr il arisarty ard b f
Crnioaiial fers and securte service

Oohher COMMTISON enpeioe
Tatal fee and commbridlon expenis
VYigt faw and commision incoma

38. Net Income from Other
Operating Activities

Amones i meilioss of Faros
Tecomi from resl ealine sCohwiies
Expewies From seall erbate setboitien
el incoma real eREe Bctivitien

Ieame Irem cpedsticnal leiue scthetie]
(Lrpermias rom cperstonal leae scinriie
Wt bncoma Broes o perananal lease soovinket

g Trem inesSmaml groperly
Expames from invedment poperty

it incoma from invemest proparty

Yt Income from ather sperating sctivities

pakl ]

Eou P BEE

2,108

2018
L
1352

My

a1
i
i

n

I
FRL]

1913

All expenies from invesoment Progees elald (0 properties Chat

are leased
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39. Income from Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

Amisnl in millos of farog Mg My

Habotunis thare of profi of Lin v and
it wenhures.

a y o - s e
Revulton " I 3 m

4T EL

TR

40, Gains/ (Losses) on Financial
Assets and Liabilities at Fair

Value through Profit or Loss
AEinet i MV of frod M M0N7
Coirmr P | on e call ayarts arl lalsime fueld o Prey vy
acding ancd from derfvantters febd lor iading
Gasinas Boasesh on Snercwl ssets desigraned o Lar value 11 13
ki e i} o St sl B ruieela iy a1 [ wahie - e
Hwough praft or ko
Gainay fosues] on inancial kabdites devigrated af farvaue
and deevarives used 10 Predge e e rate i ol rreas ™ ns
#rurcis habiitou
impadrmmasyt omayalable: inraale Prancial sty - an
Total gaing/ (hadms) on fmandal asseis ssd Babilities at oo "
ke el hromgh peoft o ots

Gains/ (kosses) on other financlal llabinkes designated at fairvalue
and desivatives used to hadge the inlerest tate risk of those
financizl labilities mainly relates 1o fai value changes of the
structuned notes partfalic arnbutable 1o rl'l.‘ll'll]r‘"i.h'l 11 et
Interest rates and [0 day=nne gains that am directly recagnized in
it or loss for an amaurt of EUR § mElon (2017

ELER 34 million). The results related bo fair value changes of the
structured notes due 1o changes in market interest rates are
langaly offser by the fal value charges of the desivatives used to
hadge tha Intededt rate ik

Armaynsy in mlioe of meroy SO xir
Gadnal foasetl on inbenei rate intsniments [ail] fial ]
Gaena i Jou W b On BT indLFuEEnLy i a3
Gairm s sem o dewmign currency i i
iher (L] 0%
Galna (oases) en Anancial asses asd labinies a lair P o
elua Wwrsagh proft or las.

Theis translation pains flosses) on Torssgn currency included in line
e Gainss (losses)on forelgn cumrency amount to ZUR 14 million
13017 EUR 38R milllonh
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41. Other Income
ey i il of S 20re 20rF
G fam ) o begrm tha d 5 o Furaancial
Hakgiblien gt o] sl ER0 g
Famdi on sale of group cormpanis L] ]
Cuhd m an
Cthar incoma: By 134
42, Staff Costs
S N — JoFE M7
Wagan ancd aalarivs 1898 FTAET
Social seouriy and U] 14K 1K
Prribon Coals - delned contibution pang A0 5m
Fevribon sl - delied bersba panibon placa 11 3
rlriEion jiofeans) ol otfer poal-smployrsnt e vons [ ] 1
Cher sl costs &l F ]
Seafl oot 4IT8  AAT

Expressed in FTEs, the numbsr of intemal and éxtemad smployess
in fabobank was 41,661 (20017 43,724,

Fallowing the imglermentation of CRO 1 and the regulations
gonermning restialred remunsfiion policy, Tabobank Gioup
adopled an amended remuneralion policy: the Gigup
Remunenation Poly, This palicy s updated on a reguiar bass and
inchpdns the prowisions under the Dutch Act on Aemunonation
Palickes for Financial Companies. Insofar as employees in the
Ketherlands are still eligible for vatiable rermureration, it rever
amaunts 1 mang 1han an average of 200 of the Txed income.
Ohislde the Netherlands, any varlable remameration noyer
amaodnts ta mare than 100% of the fixed income. Insofar as
identifed staff femployees who can have a material influgnce on
N risk profie of Rabobank Grougp) ace elgibls for varable
remuneration, i1 ks awarded for such a peniod that the risks
assoelated with the underlying butines acthities are adequanely
1aken into accound. Payment of a skgndficant paction al warlible
temunieralion i themeloee deferred. The immediale poetion of
warlable remuneration is uncond®ianad, wheeeas the delcred
partion s conditional The deferred portion vests after theee years
il the conditions are met, o after fve yeans when rewarded o
“wankar managemant. Among other things, It i assessed whether
thene has bean a sianificant reduction in financial perlofmance
ot & significant change In risk management at Rababank Greup
and/or buslnest undl that puts the circumitances sisedied when
Nha refeyant varsable temuneration was awarded ina differert
pargpective. in principle, the rght o any provisiona’ly allocated
remuneration lapses when the staff memiser's amployment ends,
5% of bath the dhiect and the delerred portion ol the vansbis
temurieraticn 5 slocatid in caih. The cash camponent of the
direct portkan s immadiately awarded following allecation, The
cash companent of the deferred postion s awarded to em ployess
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onby afted vesting [after 3 period of theee or five years), 50% of the
direct and the deferred podtion of the varlable remunemtion &
Allpcated inthe fonm of an insTrument [FsIanent cemponent]
Le- the Deferred Remuneation Note (DRN), The value of 3 DORM |5
driked directly ta the price of a Rabobank Cenificate (RCH o listed
an the NYSE Eutanest. The instrament companent s corverted

nig GANG at the time of allccation on completian of the
perlormance yead. The number of DRNs & determined on the
basis of the closing rates for Rabobank Cartificates, a< traded on
the NYSE BEuranext during the Tt five trading days af Fehuany
of sach year. This therefore represents bath the stnumens
emponen of the direct and the defened ponin of the varable
remuneralon. The firal number of DANs relating 1o the delersd
poition i established on vesting (after a period of three or five
waars) The payment of the instrumesnt companent B sublect to a
e year retention pened After ke end of the retemion perod,
the employee receives, for each CAN (od a ponian thereal] an
amaunt In cash that carrespands with the value of the 4N a
that momant.

Payment of the vardable remuneration ks measured in accondance
with 1S 19 Employee benefits, The immediate partion of the
watable remunaration it iscognized in the padamance wear,
wibeteas 1he delened porion i recognised in the yeary belode
wesling,

On 11 December 2018

Ao i mikam of e o] F
Varialsie Fermunera o, e ludiveg DEM: L1 K] e
ik Inz L1 ]
Total w12 9.2
O 11 Dwemi B 2017

Azrmpraty i i of naes Juie i
Variable remunera ton enchuding DEds 1756 ML
(&Y (1FY LF]
Totsl LLEn 2.2

43, Other Administrative Expenses

et m e of eames L xpF
isdiions and iefesse of provisions. T el
T eeperde and wfteaid coats e 1
Cermiltiny e 410 1wk
Trainirgg el trariing e peruey 08 5
Pubicity saperusy [13] 513
r“::m her e corathon atid ngaast s o [nflargilie “ e
e sqpenae BaE aaE
Critver adrminiserative sxpenie. Lres  LiTe
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The sarmie system also applies, in broad terms, 1o non-identfied
staff, although no daferral policy apples to the first one hundsed
thaesand eurcs and beththe mmediate and the detered portion
e i Hully 0 cash, whitth means that o DANS are swdeded,

Om Decenbar 31, 2018, the costs of equity Instment-based
payments were ELIR 14 million (2007: EUR 14 million) and a
Fiability af EUR 34 millian was recognized (2017 EUR 35 milian]
of which EUR 16 millizn (2017 EUR 12 million] was vested, The
covitd of warlable rermansmtion pald In cask wens ELUR 1B3 million
(2DET: EUR 177 millian). The numbéd of DRAMNL cunstanding s
pesenied in the folowing table

0 thovsands FaT] 7]
Opeeriesg bualince 1412 Lam
Avearten] Suring Fre e s a1
Paic churinrig the yioar (124 [ELEY]
Cranges bom predout e ) @0
Chaiing balance 1,484 1413

The walue of 2 DRN is linked directy to the price of 2 Rabobank
Centificate. The estimated payments to be made for the varlabie
fEnLIReETN Ak shaam in the Tolkawing table

Your pf prryement
b+l 202 FLhi] M xS Tistind
3% Ly o al FrRa
{11 i ¥ i ai Firy
(L] a8 8 oz an 44
itF B eyl
T Pt ST Feral
LF-F) L] [k
ar 1o LF ] A58
EiE] 124 1A 244

44, Depreciation and Amortization

Mﬁnﬂuﬂw Mre iF
Depeeiaticon of propesty and sgeipment 2k pic ]
Armzatiaaton of isgangisls e (LT (1" ]
Dapreciation and srartization A A
06
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45. Impairment Charges on
Financial Assets and Loan
Impairment Charges

45a Impalrment Charges on Financlal Assets

Am0uar in milioes of s 008

Lot el s o s ard ot Enbi 315

Pt dnsett at v valun theeugh otha somgrthoming insoms 1%
Recorivries fnlicwing wiiteo® nm
Lo oominAments snd nencisl guarintee =
A5k Loan Impairment Charges

A i 1o of ercs 0ir

e s stvanoe in crevd inctifuticne 1

Lo sedl advances 10 Cusiomers g
g rapries Kyl wing wime o8 115
ot eolated cordicgem lalslitin 1
Losnmpairment s e

46. Regulatory Levies

The regulatory lewies consist of bank ta, bank levies and
condributhans to the Single Rewolution Fund and contributions to
the Deposit Guaranies Scheme

Hanhy nprrﬂ!lng I th Meenedands on Octaher 141 of The cunment
year are requined to pay bank tac There aie twio rates of bank tax
applicable A rate of CLO44% for curment labilitkes dnd & rate of
D022% for long-tenm labdities, based on the balanoe on
December 201 7. In 2018, Habobank Group was charged a total
of EUR 139 millian (2007 ELIR 161 million).

n 2018, the bank fevy in Beland amgunded 1o EUR 20 million
1201 T EUR 7 milliond, In 2018, the bank kovy In Belghum amounied
o ELA 11 million (2017 ELE 11 millian)

O Januany 1, 2016 the Ewopean Single Resolution Fund (SRF)
wans wer up, This fund has been estoblshed 1o mmprove the
offectwensss of resolution Inuriments. Banky and Imeestmant
firma thiat are In the soope of the SRM Regulation are obiiged 1o
contribute Lo the SRF. in 2018, the contiibution Lo the SRF
amaunted 1o EUR 150 millisn (200 7: EUR 184 millian)

Par the mnct of 2015, the new pré-lunded Deposit Guaranles
Schinme wak inloduced. As of 2016, banka hivie 1o pay 8 premiurm
on 3 quanterly basls. Targot sibe of the schemo i B85 of tatal
quaranterd cepasits of all ban together in 2018 the

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements
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contribution to the Depoit Guarntes Scheme amounted 1o
ELRR 118 prdlliom {300 7 EUR 143 milllan)

47. Income Taxes

o g e e e
o Lo

R g pestioad 72T ax
Alprrirmery of previous e (1] (1R F]
Paocreitiod of puousty e o) 1]
[Dalivemd Ui m fad

The cffect e tax rate was 73.0% (201 7. 26 4%) and differs fiom the
thenretical rate that woidd arise using the Dutch corporate tax
13 This difference is explained a4 follows

Aoyt i ol o v FET P
Cipamating b ket faalinn 15308 Anay
Applratie tan e i1 L 5% Fat ]
Iniaaes /]
oo
Tis-@ueengt inoeevs (-] EhL L] (LR LA mn
Iyt | o Fowwigm L aten 1. EF I ]
Mrn-rhechact B swperaes 1./ n 1% (=3
Recograton of previously
urneL B L ey fayal LG "
Osher permanend diflerences L] FAEC TS Y] [F5]
Adamireardy of previous yeary ] DL T 1 Y inn
fﬂﬁ i b Chiangin i Taa 1 50 T o
Dfher o receming tan ibem 1.5 (5] &1 rag
Tortal becoeme Tax FIAL I eA 5

The other permarent differences mainly comprse of the
deduction of interest payments on Capital Securitles and in 2017
& local prewision for an expectad serlement regarding RA

48. Transactions with Related
Parties

Two pariies are considered refated if one party evercises contnol
o has signdlicant influence over the othes paity regarding
financial or epesating decisions. In the nodmal cowrie of busness,
Habohank conducts & wides widety of tinsactiont with related
entities which imealve dilferent typés of loant, deposits and
tieEnsactions in foregn ourend s, Transactions balvween related
jparties also inchudes transactions with associates, pansion funds,
jeint veniures, the Managing Boang and the Supseryiscry Boasd,
Thess transactions ane conductiad againdt commenchal Lerms and
el dnd marked phices. In Gocandante with TAS 244,
Irnsactions within Rababank Group ire nat disclosed inthe
consolldated inanclal statements
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n the normial course of Rababark's business operations, banking 49- cﬂ."if Df Exl‘Erﬂﬂ'.f fﬂdEpEﬂdE‘ﬂf

fran<actions are carried out with related pariies. Thess Invabe Auditor

wans, depasits and rarsactions in fereign curencies. These

Irafaactions are cotcucted agansl commercisl ierrma and Expiemes fon services provded by Rabobank’s independem
cordiiions and market prlees. The volumes of ielaled pany audiior, PricewatethouseCoopen Accountants MY, (PwC") and
transactions, year-end autstanding balances and the s membes firms and/ orafliliates ta Rabobank and Its subsidiaries
conesganding income and expenses duting the yeas ane Im 2018 are specified as follows:

presented m he following table. Transactions and balances
austanding with members ofthe Managing Board and membeds
of the Supendtany Board are disehated in Secthon 50. Tramactani
with pemtion fumnds de diteloied in Section 28

= T e
Amaintt in millan of pures daile paities
Mpa KNP MHEE DT

Laan
Gutstarding at beginnig of year W

Providied during the yese PR - .
[ e N — [CEC T

Ciher M H &

Gross bsans a of Decsmbar 31 wWoOWT W .
Liris: bt foparrresiil sl

Total knany sy of Decembar 11 Wy L &

[Deeprns e conch® irasALTons: and depouns

b custamms

Dutitanding st heginrdeg o the yaar win Fimi - b ]

Recrmved during the yesr M3 ESE I

Fapaid duiing dhe poat CLOiF ey (r]

Cher (L - - -

Total depaiis o of Decembar 31 067 6048 m -

Camilll related sorliegent Lilsiilie 3 A - -

o

Bt inbeieil oo b b - .

L e HY w0

Praciing Income - - - -

Orther 15 2] - .

Total st lrom transaction s with selated

Pt W  ZER - *

Eapaisn

Intiereid puperiia et B =

et e anadl cormmid vion eeperae - - - -

Inpmrens L]

Total axpenses from trandactions with,

ralatod pastien e B R

ATOURS] I R of fuTos e amr

Pt Pamtharlanid i Oty Pl Aertwock By Tl P Athasriancly Ot Pl Stk Rosrm Patal

bkt orvioe wa 5 17a a3 7 188
Dher mailt Lervioes 05 s LI 04 na [-1.1
i adhisiery Leivaled ' (L] LK ] . L] -1}
Cether non-aud? iefvicey : L] g o ol
Toital ma LA %3 L2 L) (LS
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Thi aidit fées listed above mlate to the procedune apoled to
Rabobank and its consolidated group entithes by Pwl and ather
member firms in the global PwC nenwodl, including thed tas
setvices and Gdvisory groups. These sudil fees relats 1o the sudi
of the financial statements, regardless of whether the work was
perdammed during the financial year,

Qi independent auditer, Picewaterhouseloopers Accountanis
MY, ha rendened, for the pedod 1o which our statutory audit
welited, i addition ta the st of the staturary Nasncial
itatements the followsng serdoes ta The company and iy
contllied anfitees;

Summary of services rendered by the independent auditor, in
additlon 1o the audit of the financial statements (Section 10,
subsection 2.g of the EU Regulation 537/2015)

Cirter Auelir Services Requalted by Law or Begaratony Requiements

=« Statutory audits of controlled and related entithes

+  Audit of the regulatory retums to be submitled to Eutopean
Central Bank

+  Assurance engagemant figr the TLTRO 8 epadting to be
suberimed to De Nedeiandiche Bank

»  Ron-audit adsurance engogement cou price models for The:
Autharity Finsncal Markeds

(Oither Audir Services

«  Assurance engagement on the sustanability repor

= hssurance engagement an the efiectivensss of intemnal
cantrol over financlil reponing

«  Agreed-upon procedures an cost allocations

= Special purpode financlal statement audt of contialled and
reiated entities

+ Comfort letters [ssued as pant of funding transactians and
based an Dutch Accounting Standasd RS0

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements
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50. Remuneration ofthe Supervisory
Board and the Managing Board

Thett enetnbers ol the Supetvisory Board and the Managing Board
are [ivted in Section 55 of these Consolidated Financial
Statements. Rshobank regards the members of the Managing
Baoard and the Supenvsory Boand as key management penonnal

A m Mimaonds of swon Shart-serm

The memben of the Managing Board se among the Identidfied
staff s disclosed In Section 42 In 2018, the remuneration of
members of the Managing Boasd amounted 1o EUR 102 miilon
(2007 Executive Bogad: EUR 86 millionh The increase & related (o
the expaniion af the Executive board with six members 1o (ke
Managing Board with ten members, from Septemiber 1, 2017
onwards

Berry Mariiin
Ity wilef Kiraer TR
Earhen K

Wicks: Drajer

Msle Lichmendiers
LR ]

B Broarwery
IPtra vain Hoshoen
bt Ven

st Lo

Totsl 118

haiteeys Mcanaggingg Bosed 577
Tewmnr sl s Maracani iard 1,07
Total 2087 4803

EEREIZRERED

£
H

ertra van Hoeken, mem bar of the Managing Board, has k2o down
Ioar ke a5 Chief Risk Offices (CRO) per Febinuary 1, 20019, Els de
Groal took oved het activited &5 CRO. In summer 2019 Petra will
redgn for ke temalning aks and hor emplayment relationship
with Hababank will be termmated. Petra will recebad 8 sevorance
ey equiva‘ent 1o one years salary of EUR 884000 and her regular
wnleeidual pension contribution

Ar year-end 2018, there were g 1ot of 2,761 DEMNS fabilicy of
EUR 70 554) gutstanding wih memben of the Managing Bosd
tymar-end 1017 Managireg Boand 1 963 peeces of which 286
regarding former members). The pension scheme fot the
members of the Managing Roasd is classEled as a collective
defined contribution scheme, The maximum inceme on the asis
of which the memben of the Managing Board can build up &
pengion Smounts 10 a madmurm, for 2018 airety-ning thousand
thiee-hurdned and eighy four curod. Any Income coceeding this
amaunt s not pensienable As of lanuary 1. 2015, the members
ef the Managing Board therelone receive an incdividual pemion
contributian,

Expenses relmed to mermbers and former memibers of the
Supenmany Boasd totalled EUR 1.2 million (2017 EUR 1.3 milign)
This inchudies VAT and employer's contributions payable. in
addftion to the role of Member of the Supendsory Board of
Rabobank, the rermuneration 3o depends on the rokes inthe
warious commitiees The composition of these cormmitiees is

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements

Othar Tl
Perruicny schame Indhiizhl puriion
coninisfion
L 2] TS5 [RFi
o (1] - LA
M e - ]
i an 2
n 158 i1 a4
] e - LI
£ L] i L
M a8 . 105
E 142 L] a5
= m n Li 1
160 1,707 (L] 10347
1T 1.20& 14 e
“ 3 L Lary
ELod V448 a2 A

detalled in the Annual Repost, The remuneration structure as of
O tober 1, 2016 {eiclusive o VAT and other changes) i

"l | hotobes 016 e foe st fin et
Merriber

Few
O
Chaeman of Al Commities, Rsh Comenitiee, Coopesitive buse
Commities, sddtional Mo
LT ]
ELTE

Cha ol Ay i i gt il HR
addgionad

e chabrreasy, arkdh thanal

[ 70, TH

The tabile below shows the remuneration (excluding VAT and
other charges) for individual members of the Superdsony Board.

ATOUnCT i Mowsands of Feos Remanermion

Irwite At b ok, "
Lo Geghe "
Loy Grasfsms feril Agell 18, 20185 L]
Perrl Holse 1]
Aiin damg (1]
oy K itnpedagi L]
Ry Teerhrsh, Fr]
Pt Vi L]
Iarjan Troenpest ter a3
rinet it (eoow Discemissr 12, 708§ 3
Total 3018 L]
Tatal 3007 1880
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mﬂ'-l m‘; = Popet Comonse ww Corrpey Franoad
At Rabobank, the Chairman of the Supervisory Baaed halds a —
nmberof ioles which ase related to the coopermtive. These olps Amountsin miles of e mu;ﬁ _"‘m
are specified in the Annual fepor O Dheerrder 41 3517
Arian Kamp 1 k1
= vy s e s o Troergastoes o -1}

Aty i e of s

Loane, acheirses and guaraniesd Jure ey SN e
DutHEnding om January 1 8 an Lk 13

Provided during the yes . as o ar
e memed dring The yeat 10.5) na &) w1
Red uctsom on soomerd of keaving

prm . ne - -
Inersae if aocou Of taking ofs - 1 ol -

Sutstanding om Desembaer 11 3 7 an s

The kaans, advances and guarantess of the members of the
Managing Board in office and the average Intenest @ies ware as
follows:

Amgnty in melipen of mres Mm m
L
O Drscermbess 51 3008
Lo T % L
Wiriten Kons o1 s
Bt Livuiti aF i
Ml o Lbrenliers i 1
By Al iting aa &
Faary wart Me s PN L ] Fl]
R Vel o 2
A in milliont of s mlo:'r m
et !
Oy Tacemmbaey 11 3007
s Biimrari L} 18
irilen Kanu oy gl
st Lewrs % F
bl L hinaaliesy s 43
Targ Marmin oy £
B wart Misuveenhuioen 2 i
Jl!nl\\?l oF 13

The kzans, advances and guarantes of the members of the
Supenduary Boasd In office and the average interest rates wene as

At year-and 2018, the membes of the Supendsony Board not
listed in the tabe had nat receved any boans, advances of
guarantess, These transacticns with members of the Managing
Boaid and Supendiany Board were campléted in pesan an the
hasks af employes terms and conditions andfor marker rates lar
e Supervivary Boand, Th rabes depend in pan on the cunency,
the agreed fieed-Interest peviod and the time the transaction was
completed or the time a new foed-Intesest tesm becomes
efiecthve.

Ssome members of the Supervisedy loatd have persanally
Ireested in Rabobank Cenficates in porsan andidor thronsgh thelr
own pansion BV, AT year-end 2018 this Invalved in total 23,001
certificates

Nurmer ol
Reabbani vk
Certifinanel

Oy Dheermbe 31 2008

Frene Anscher onk T

e Depie Kl iy e Y
o
Rerbobots Rertasks
Certificatn

O Dverermbar 11 2000

ipsten Bons B

Aariils Lickaenbery 2170

51. Main Subsidiaries

O Decermbs 31, 2018, Rubobank Gioup & comipimed of
Cotperatieve Rabobank LA and ity comolicialed subsidiaries in
tha Metherlands and abroad

follows: T i STEPRTIE,
s ol
The Hethaeland
vt
A i i of s fteed hiwet  OULintematione BY, 100% Tocr
— EFD Ewrope B, 100 100
O Decermbes 31 2008 i S i
Annwt A A% 4%
il L b2 Uirechi Amorica Haldings inc. 10 00
g y s 2 hustrall snd M Tealand
Rbsobiarh Auvsalis Lisid 100 100w
Eahadank Mew Tealnd Umited 100 100
20
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All spsidiaries bsted in the table have been consofidated, in
2018, none of the subsidlaries exparlenced any significant
restrictions in the paymem of dividends o the redempiion of
by andd repayrnent of advances. The option of subsidianes 1o
pay dividerd 1o fabobank depends on various facton, inchading
local reguilatory requinements, stalidodny resenses and financial
pariormance

Spvaral structured enrities in the “Wholesale banking and
Entermational sl barking buiines® sre fol eensolldated, sven
i Rababank retaing mone than hall of the voting fghts Thess
structured enlities are not consoddaled because thee iwevant
activities are determined by a chird party to the contract which
also detarmines the varable retums

Mabodank toes have contred over severzl emtities in the Leasing
segment a5 Ean of ks vendor leasing ogerations, even though It
retalng bess than half of the vating rights becase eantral bs not
determined based on suich tights, bt rather on maragement
participation.

52, Transfer of Financial Assets and
Financial Assets Provided as
Collateral

52.1 Reverse Repurchase Transactions and Securities
Borrowing Agreements

Rerverse tepurchane anactions and seculities borrowing
agreements concluded by Fababani are Included wnder L oans
ared advances ta credit insttutions® of "Loars and advances 1o
cudtoman” and smount to on December 31, 2008:

Ao in meons of aeros MOE X

Loir el o ereln UL R Y

Lnans seel sivances io cuslomert 1250 11aar

ey i it e 1

I . ol 2 133
...l.. ¢ WL B

Uridher the tems of the teverse repaichase transactions and
LeCunies botrenwing agreements, Fababank receives collateral
wnder conditions tha enable i1 1o re-pledige or resel the
collatesd 1o third patics On December 31, 2008, the votal T
walue o the secutities received undes the termi of the
agreements was EUR 180857 milkon (2017 EUR 30,398 milion). In
accordance with the agreement lerms, a partion of the securities
was re-plecged o sold as collatemnd These transactkong wene
effected subject 1o the nomal condinions lor wandard revene
impuichaie ransactiom and séqwitiey bofrowing sgreemienli
The secuwrithes ade rot recagnized in the statement of inancial
position becouse almaost all The associated risks.and benefits
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accrue tothe counterparty, A teceivable B recognized at a value
equivalent to the amount paid a5 collateral

52.2 Repurchase Transactions and Securities Lending
Agresments

Repurchate transactions and secutities lending agreements
concludad by Rabobank are included under "Deposits from
credit insttutions” and “Deposits from customess® as of
December 31 totaled

e T T
Gwpoit fram oo imditution. " "
oty fom cusinmers " B
Total repurchass and seeuritien handing 104 S

O Decesnbers 11, 2008, ierest-earing seoutifies waha carmying
amount (equal fo Ll valueh of EUR 52 milion (2007

LR 458 million were provided as eollatoral fer repurchase
agreements, The courterpadty retalns the right to sell or re-pledge
he securities. These mamactions were perfonmed subject to the
noermal conditions for standard repunchase transactions and
secuiities kending agreements. The bank may provkde or recalve
secirtitied of cath o callazral if the valie of 1he wecurinies
changes, The securities are nol de-iecogniped becaue almost all
the astociated rises and benefits acoree to Rabobank, including
emwedit and market risks, A lability |s recognized at 2 value
equbvatent to the amount recaivad as collaberal

52.3 Securitizations

As part of the 1'Ir|.!.|1rl.'ui_| acthrities and Bopaidity management al
Rababank Group, and In order to reduce enedit risk, cash fows
fram certaln financlal assets dne transfevred 10 thisd parties (troe
sabe transactiens). Most of the Tnancial assels subject (o these
transactions are maongages and othes loan ponfolios that ane
transfermad to a spectal purpose vehicle thar & aubseguently
comiolidiled. Aler secutitizsion, the asets contin o be
recogniied in the statement of francial positicn of Raboboi
Group, malniy under “Loans and advances to customers.” The
secutitized assets are measured in aocordance with the
accounting policies refedred to in Section 2. 15,

The canying amour of the tnslered fnancial assets relged 1o
own-asiet securitination |5 ELIR BOA42 millian (2017

TELAR 7,803 millon] with tha corred ponding llability amotinting
A EUR 78680 millan (201 7: EUR 74819 nallion]. Appraximately
R 200 o) af the transfered assets are securitized intemally
fior liquidity purposes. The carmying amount of the assets whene
Aalobunk scts a5 a sponsor {Niews-Amaiedam) &

ELIR 4 938 million (200 7-EU8 £.252 mlliai) with the
comespanding labiiity amaunting to EUR 4,938 million (200 7
ELHt 4,252 milllon). Bapobank retalns 5% to 69 of the outstarding

m
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commaercial gaper lisued by Nieuw Amstergam for regulatory sequaitization ls handled by Obvion (STORM, GREEN STORM and

jPuIpses, STROMGhand DLL (UEAR Warehause Trust Mo, D4LL Sacuritization
Trust 2017-A, DLL 2018 - 1 LLC and DLL 2018 - 2 LLC). As wedl as

52.4 Carrying Amount of Financial Assets Pledged as Haying provided cash lacities, Aabobaenk slio scls o 3 séap

Collateral for (Contingent] Liabilities coumarparty far afl cwn-asset securiizatians,

Thie assets referred to below have been pledged as collatesal for

jcontingend) llabilinies (with exception to repo transact o, Rabotank acts as a spoasor in Neeuw Amsterdam Recelvabdes

sepuries lending and own-asset secwitizations) with the Conporzton. Neuw Amsterdam ssues ABCP invanoos cunencies

objective of providing secunmy for the counterpany, f Babobank  and provides Aabobank cuttomens access to liguidity through the
wolild entet inte detault the counarpaied may ue the weuily  commerclal paper market. Rababank provides sdvice and

10 wettke the debt. This increate of the pladged laan and MManaces ths progeam, matkers ABCE, provides cash tacilities ands
advances to suitomen s caused by a tamaction with Acluriea e gt rnkenhancements and ciher facilines for the underdying
wiere loands ane legally rarsferred to Achmea, These loansarenol. - transactians and the pragram isell.

derecognized by Rabobank as the rdéks and rewands of the loans

have nat been frantfenad, Aabatank consolidares the oiwn-asset securiisation vehicles and
Mreuw Armsterdam because 1L i exposed o o eniiled o

Mmoot i rilioes of puros gm0 fluctuazing incame in reapect of (ts nvcbaerment in these entitiel,

Cawh ard cath equivalenty " a Fn arddition. Habobank alss has the aption 1a irfluense the

Loars seed addvances fo credd inutitutions ErT R - amount of the investor's Income by viriue of kaving contiol over

Losarws sl SevANCES B0 CUSIDIMErs a8 11500 T

Firmnsial ansety hald fof iradieg " o

Frunaial asety designatid o far vaue (F 12

Fwrckal st mandaborly at-uir valoe g " 53.2 Mon-Consolidated Structured Entities

Jrwulatsbe-lr-pale Rnaeicial sspets W AL Man-conolidated stroctred sanithes reders ta all sTiuctised

Fruanchal st at Tt valuw thrsugh cther cormarehenibie oo Y entithes over which Rababank has na contral, These inenests are

:::-Ilful-‘ll e comprised mainly of debt securities in a secumization vehicle,
Enclusding RMAS, ARS and COO and private equity intensts, The
amaunt of these debit securties is almaost always imited when

53. Structured Entities compared to the velicle's total assets. Those secuitization
wehiches e wually refinanced by issued debt securities or credit

53.1 Consolidated Structured Entities fackthes,

Antructured entity Is an entity which Is structuned 1o that vating
tighti or cormparable rights do not cosstitute the dominant factar - The following table shows the nature and risks of Rabobank’s
i detemmining who execses control over he entity. Rabobank mienests in non-consdidated struciured ent s The size ol non-

ases structured entities in order to securitize mongages and consolidated structured entitles generally reflects the carrying
onfier boan pardfolios as pa of e financing activitles, liguidity amount of the aswets and the contingent iabviitiss The marimum
inanagement and in ordet 1o reduce credit itk The loans as Expouiie éguiats the carying amaunt disclased in the table
actually cransfemed Lo the stiuiured entities. Cwn-aiet Eelow.
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gt Frpwend anatpernen Faooit Ao L Sl : Statermamity
ot in s of e O Dieoeender 11, 2018 n Depemibaer IT, J017
Rabobuik Seraniration Ciher T Serunisations arfer Tl
Firwnioie aser hald for tradieg T 0 0 2 &3 £
Farwniial aasets debgrated an far
walue - ¥ - £ e
mﬂlmmﬂmﬂrdﬁk 2 w7 o s e —
Tertwatror m L3 LRl F # FL
Loars s advances 1o customens 30 = 758 = 308
Frwnoial apets at fair value thiough

" 143 143 ] Al 0]
Arailabds-tor-vals frarcid ssety na na rda m -] ]
s mierly o associaies L] 53 M Fit) 29
Total finaslal ats recegnieed
by Rabsok 11TE 572 1,740 m 447 1,184
Linbilities recogmlned by
Rabohank
Ceiwatrs ) ) s . "
Dbpairiiti i £ KL 142 - 182 214 - 211
Total kabilitien recognized by - -

Rabbank 208 na g k]

neeme from sponsored, non-consolidated stroctuned entities in

55. Management Report on Internal

Oooooooa

wihich Rabobank holds no intetest (s nil (2017:nil)

54. Events after the Reporting Period

On 15th January 201% the British Pariament voted againy the
Sreait dead. Although Rabobank still believes that ultimately ahard
Hepalt will be avolded, the uncematnty has grotwn during the firs
morths of 2019. Rabobank manitass the paténtial impact of
Beawill and has prepated contingency plars on 1he basts of
weenane analysis. As per the UK regulator PRA guidance, and 1o
continae b5 bankng activities in the UK posr-lrex, Rababank
submitted a Third Country Banking Licende application to the
PRASFCA andd s actively engaged with home and host regulatoes
{ECH, PRA and FCA) on the topic of Brexit preparedness. in the
cemaris of & hard Hiexir, Rababark expecrs a Umited incroase of
the: loan Irpalrment allowance, a3 Anbabany's expodswie 1o the

Control over Financial Reporting

The management of Hababark 14 responsible for estabiishing and
malntning adequate imtermn! contral tver finans sl reparting
Managemien i aho resporible [od the prepasaticon and la
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Aababank’s Internal cantral aver linancial reparting is a process
chesigivad 1o provide 12asonable assurance regarding the
eliability of fmancal repoting and the prepaation and fan
piesentation of financial seatements for external paipases In
accordance with Bntemationsl Financial Reparting Standaids as

adopted by the Eutopean Union

Al Inremal conpral tystams, ro matter baw well dedigned, have

rivherent imitationd. Due 19 the inberent limitatians, intermsl

UK s modest. Indirect elfect of a Brexit could be negative for the
Dniich economy as the UK s an impartant trade partner of the
Hetherlands

in 2018 the Managirg Board of Aabobans commitied to-a plan
1o sl part of s non-Strategic business in U segment WRR AL
December 30, 2018, a safe was nat condidened highly probatile.
At March 13, 2009, Rababani 4 In the process of regotiating a

transaction

Annus Report 2008 - Consolidated Financial Statements

contiol over Tmancial reposting may not prisvent or detect
misstatements, At the same time, future projections on the basis
of any evaluation of the elfectveness of Intemal control ane
subject to the risk that the control meanses may bacoma
Inadequate becsuse af changes Incorditions, of that the degres
of compliance with the palicies of proCedules may deleriorate.

Thet management has asseised the effectiveness of the intermal
conbiol over lmandclal mpoeting In Rabobank as of December 31,
2018 based on the lramework wet out in 2013 by the Commities
of Sponsoning Organizatons of the Treadway Commissian
(COE0), &4 dedined in Internal Conteal - Integrated Framework
Cim thee banls of that ssesimant, management concluded that,
&y of December 31, 2008, Ut intemal comtioh on thi ivemal

n3
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financial feporing kn Rabobank provide a reasoniable measure of
certainty based on the critera established by CO50,

PricewsteihoueCoopers Accountants NV, which has audined
the consclidated financlal stavements of Bababank for the
financial year ended December 31, 2018, also peamined
management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the intemal
contral aver inancial reposting in Rabobani The regost of
PricewamihouseCoopers Accountants MV, is included on page
241,

Wiebe Draljer and By Brouwen
Usrecht, Manch 13, 2019

Thie above statemen oh aernal contils should not be
conalmued o 4 stateme inorespdnse (o the requirgments of
wecticn 404 af the LS Sarbanes Oxley Act,

56. Authorization of the Financial
Statements

The financial stataments were digned by the Supsndsony Boad
on March 13, 2019 The financial statements will be presented 1o
the General Meeting, 1o be beld on Agnl 17, 5014, for adoption
With regard to the adoption of the financlal statements aof
abatank, the Articies of Assoclation state: *The resclution 1o
adopt the financlal statements will be passed by an abdalule
majority of 1 vares validly cast by the Ganeral Members
Countil”

On behalf of the Managing Beard
‘Wiebe Draljer, Chalrmon

B35 Browrwers, CFO

Els dhe Groot, CRO

Biritesin Kenvil, Adevin bt

Bant Leurs, Membey

Marilie Lichtenborg, Member
Benry Mantin, Member

Jan van Misuwenhulzen, Mamber
Seko Sevinga, Membey

Janire Voo Member

On behalf of the Supervisory Board

[an Teeilink, Chowrnan

Warian Trampetter, Yice Choirman
Irene Asschesvonk Seorenary

Leo Degle

Arian Kamp

Jan Nooitgedagt

et Hofsté

Annus Beport 2008 - Consolidated Financlal Ststements
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Annual Figures

Statement of Financial Position (Before Profit Appropriation)

Seaternent of Financial Pasition

Aot in ke of nures Hite Duecember 1 JOMR December 11 N
Adswts

Cast s halances a certvdl Banin 1 T w21
Shart-temen guwer renent papers 2 13 L]
Prisf stionial necurities FANKICTiON [F3"] 0,786

Cethver s sl scdvarim 5o credn inviRutom L Har

Losans weedl advances §o credit institutions ] M ALBEY
Fuhlic sernee lerating 1,55 10w

Friveaty vt levwcking A MATTY

Frobevibnal securities franeactions i Tt

Louard sl aafvances A0 cusiomery ] 4117 e
i i e g it 5 &1 Teand
Shares i m m
RIS N PO COMpEEL 7 jRE3 ] LM
Oeher popty Invesimerts B 1722 Lras
Cinsoatt] i ot b Ll asiet ] Fits a7
Eangbde froed auseis L] 1451 L
et ety n [NE ] 43557
Lemtimitier [} 15152 FELTH
Prepayrrents and eruedingomn L] Lio3
Total snuety 01,531 BEE
Liasilities

[Profeiional seouriEes FansICen £ ] LE

Crther iataiftiey In rec? niStutiona. [LE L] mor

e by ekl b ns " [LTHr] LLT T
Savirep 135,841 135,248

Prferiorual e Lt Lrana um 1 Wy

Orher due 1o cuttomery 191200 T

i 1 Circevets 15 HESE BTAN
Dol et e i i 1] (IR 110008
Onther skalday [F] SRR 55 A0
Dameatoves. n s man
Beziuali and defermed inceme T (L
Frevalar. 1] 1180 1214
Suboriiraied batimey " VEATS {153

LT RE L] STTATS

Rushetunk Canmbemes TadE TA

Captul it e LTE 2028

Revaluation resenven 19 3

el eetmrvey asn 1358

Ot furidren FLEFE} FENEE

Pt der e e 2a4d e

Equety n 1 37
Votal equity and Rabilitses 801521 s15818
Lorbngera lalslities m [TETH LT
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Statement of Income
Staternent of Income
For the peoe enideal Dveymder 17
oAt i e of Fafos ot Nua 2rF
el income Fil (T TiE (EE T
lndmreid paperae n L& EL] LELE
Wt inbades income n 5I3T LE
e e sameminssning ome B 104 Laig
e arel comumisson espense 22 133 1+
ekt P wrnid ool hish ndoime 2 1,731 1,891
Irncame from equiy inteteit a4 LB FRLLY
G oo s e Lradhirgy Eeief Liodas s ilev il pailic & {1653
Bl Fombesl froen trading lic: widh group ¥ i SN [RREF=]
Cawrmy Fod sea) froem vy imend postiolin 36 201
et o Boes finan clal 18an et (RLFY 110543
Dher el LhiL] 141
Incone a581 9.95%
SLall il a4 L i
Crthey aimbirative speroe 2237 g
D eratic LE ] 337
Chpinfilirieg eCxpaniciri %802 5548
imparrrand chaige on fruncld soet i nrn
Reuialoy levies 5 a8 Ll
Opedating profit before tassion R34 F Y]
e Lad M b m
et prafit LA aAane
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

1. Basis of Preparation

The company financlal statements of Rabobank. a credd
Erestitution as referred to in Section 111 of the Financial Supervision
Act, have been prepared in accordance with accountng policies
generaly accepted inthe Netherands: andg comply with the
firnnckal ieparting requirements Included in Pae 9 af Baok 3 of
1he Dutch Ciyill Conde, In sccordance with subiaction & of section
362 of Bovk 2 of the Dutch Civil Cosde, U accounting podicies in
the cormpany fimanclal statements are the same as those used in
preparing the consolidated financlal statements of Rabobank
Geoup, reference i made 1o Section 2 "Accounting Pelicies of the
Consolidated Financial Stmements”, vath one exception
regarding the measunemen; of inlercits i group compankes a5
theswe are meaiured at net asset value, The hedge accaunting
entries of the consaidated financlal statements are also apolied
i the cormpany financial staterments by using combination 3
\Dptlan 3 R,

Rabobank Gioup, the Cobparatise Aabobark LA [Rababank)
and the bigal entitkes snd companies that farm padt of the group,
o an international linanc al services provider operating an the
basis of coopemitiee principles. Aabobank hiv its reglstered office
in Amsterdam and ks registered under Chamber of commesca
mirmber ADIE259

2. Risk Exposure on Financial
Instruments

Rabobank Group manages tiske a1 various levels witthan the
onganaatian. At the highest level, the Managng Board funder the
supendsion of the Supervidory Boad) determines th sk strareay
will puriue, the risk appetite, the policy liamework i welad the
limits The Supervisony Board regulary assesses the risks attached
o the acthvities and porfolio of Ratobank Group, The Chief Risk
Oifficer, a5 a Member of the Manaqging Board, is responsibie for the
1k managerment palicy within Rabobans Group.

Rabobank considers naks a0 company keved the same as risks ar
consolidated kevel We thetefare refes (o Section 4 “Hisk Exposse
on Financlal nitrumenti’ of the coniolidated firanclal
statements encepd the section regarding legal and arbitration
procesding:, Addiicnal remaris on salventy on solo level are
diiclased below

Solvency
Fabobank uses it ovwn intemal sobvency objectives on 3 sala
fevel that etend beyond the minimum equirements of the

Annud Aeport 2008 - Company Financlal Staterments

Supetiaors. It Lakes rrarket expectaton and developmients in
Beglslation and regulatien into account, Rabobank manages its
salvency poiftion based on palicy documients. The sohency
position and the objectives ane pericd ically reviewed by the Risk
Management Commitiee and the Asset Lability Committee of
the Managing Board and the Supervisory Board,

Cobperatioe Rabobank LA (1060) Mot camly with & members
of mantmum solvency positicns as Bipulaied under e, The
sohvency position |5 determined an the bais of atios, These atios
coompare the qualfying capital [tofa! capital ratio), the tler 1
capiral (ther 1 rafio) and the core capital (commaon equity teer 1
100 wilhi 11 rocal of the risk-adjusted assers Effectve fanuary
1, JU1E, the minimum requined percemtages ane determined on
the bash of CAD MACRR The Baffers below are applicable as from
2016, These budhers will gradually increase until the year 2019
Habobank is already allowing for thesa changes in iy capital
planning. The table below shows the minimum bullets baved on
the planned final stuation under CRD WAZERL

Minirraum Capite] Buffer
Tl
£ Terr ol
Fille | regTemETR A5 0% Rl
Fille 3 redpuilberiers iP5 075 B

ol b L LS S S
The CET1-ratio of Codperatiews Rabobank LA, (salo} b 160%
{2017: 15.5%),

Legal and Arbitration Proceedings
Habobank considars risks regarding leoal and arbitration

procesdingi the Larme 38 company level ai 8 condolidated level,

Ratobank Group s active In.a kegal and regulatory crwironment
that exposes It to substantial risk of litigation, A a result
Rabobank Group is Involved in legal cases, arbitiations and
tegulatory procesdings in the Netherands and in othar
consnties. The mast relevant legal and regulatony claims which
couid ghie fiae 1o Mability on the pan of Rababank Grewp ane
ceicribad below,

Proviskons fior begal claims are recognized for chligations atising
a5 & result of a past event where it is probakle that an outfiow of
resources will be regquired o setrle the obiligation and a reiatbk
elifalic Can be midde of the amount of the obligation Wheh
gatermining whather the probability that claims lead toan
ouiflow of resources is mone [lkely than not [Le with a Boellbood

na
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of over fifty peecent], Rabobank Group takes several facton into
account. These factors inclade (but are not lmibed ta) the type
o claim and the underlying facts: the procedural process and
Hhistony of each cane; rulings rom begaland darbitration bodies
Fabobark Group's experence and that of third panies in simdlar
cases [If newn ) previous sestlement discussions, thisd-party
seftiements in simitar cases fwhere knownj vailable (potential)
tecourse; and the advwoe and opinions of legal advisors and othar
expans, Simisr rypes of casss ae grouped together and some
cAlEL may Ao camiis of A aumber af calm. The sstimated loss
for each individual case (for which it 4 possible 1o make 2 relinbie
wslanate] is not dischoed because Rabobank Group feels that
infarmation af this type could be detsimental 1o the oulcome of
inclividtual cases:

The estimated polential losses and provisions, e based onihe
information avallable o the time and are largely sublject 1o
Jusgments.and a number of diferert ssssmptians, vadables and
known and unkinown undcertalntles. These uncertalnties may
inciude the inacouracy o incompleteness of information
available to Rabobank Group lespecialy in the early stages of a
casel In addion, assuemptions made by Fababank Grewp about
1he futuse nulingd ol legal ar ather iInstances or the Hely atans
& anfudes of supervisony bodies o the parties opposing
Rabobank Group may turn oul to be ingorrect. Furthermare,
estamates of potential lasses relating to legal disputes are often
impossible to process using statitical or other quantitative
analysis insvuments that are geresally wed 1o maee judgments
and extimaes. They are subject 1o a sull greater level of
uhsortalnty than many ather arcas whese Rabobank growp needs
1o make judgments and estimates, The g of cases far which
Rabobank Group determines that the risk of future outflows of
funds o mae |ikedy than not varies oved Lmeg, & do the mamber
of cases for which the bank can estimate the potential loss. in
jpractice the snd results could Tum ot conslderably higheror
gt thae the estimates of patentisl kdses In those caves whese
an estimate way made,

Rabohank Groap can also sustaln ksses from legal sk whene the
oooumence of a loss may not be probable, but s not improbable
gither, and for which ng siovisions hove Been recognized, Fod
s cakes whare (a) 1he possibilicy of an outflow of funds is pot
pratable bt alia nat remiate o (ki the passibility af an outflow
of fundls is mare Boely than not but the potential kzis cannat be
astimated reliably, 2 contmgent liabikty is disclosed, Rabobank
Group may settle kegal cases of regulatony proceedings or
investigations before any fine B imposed or labdlity is
deteimined. Reasons lor sentiing could Include {7 the wish 1o
avoid coss andder management alfos at s level, 8 to avaid
other adverse business conrseguonces anddor {il) pre-empt the
regulatory or reputational consequences of condinuing with

Anncs Aeport 2008 - Commpary Franclal Staterments
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disputes relating ta lability, even If Rabobank Group befleves it
has goed amguments in its defersa. Furthermaore, Rabobank
Group may, lor the sarme easons, compensate thind parties los
their lasads, even In siquatons where Rabobsnk Group does not

balieve that it i legally reqguifed to do sa,

Inrerest Rate Dervatives

Aabatank concludes intenest rate desivatses, such as inferest rate
s, with Duteh buskaeds cuttarmen whe with 1o ieduce the
M anesT TAE fivk askoc nted with vadabbe (e.g Euribordrdexesd]
‘o, Ay Enderest e swap pretechs buninesses from ising
warlable imberest rates and hedps them o keep their inberest
payments at an acceptable level. In March 2006 the Dutch
Minister of Finance appainted an independent committes which
ok July 5, 2016 publshed a recovery liamewark (e Recovery
Framewadk) on the reassessment af Duich SME intencst rane
dertvthves. Aababank annaunced (1 declilon to take part inthe
Aecovery Framevwork on July 7, 2014, The final version of the
Recovery Framewoek was published by the indeperdant
committee on December 19, 2016 Rabobank & invobeed in owil
proceedings in the Methedands relsting to imerest rate
derntives entensd Inta with urch butlness custamers. The
rajarity of these concemn individual cases, In addition, there 15 a
coflectpre action regarding interest rate derivalioes pending
pofore the Couwrt of Appeal tfoe which a standstill wis agreed to,
due to the Recervery Framework; the few rermalning out-of-scope
customers will be assessed on an individual pasis) These actons
comcein alegations of misinforming cliems with respect 1o
Intenest rate dervathves, Some of these actions alws cancem
allegations In connection with Rabobani’s Eurlbor submdssian
oy dencribed below), Rabobank will defend itell agaknat all these
claimis, Furthermare. there are pending complasmis and
prcecdings against Rabobank regarding interest rate derivatives
o efare Kifid [Duteh Financial Sesvices Complaints
Muthonty, which, in Jahuasy 2005, opened a conlflict issalution
agdmdure for SME businesses with inlerest rale derivatives), with
respect tothe e Jassessment of the interest rate dervathves of s
Dustch SME business customers ard the advance payrments made,
Rabobank recognized a provision of EUR 316 million (2017

LU 450 million), At year-end 2018 Rabobank proviced all
quaalilying clients clarity on the utcarme, A1 year-end 2018,
Hababank's papments 1o ¢llents undet the Recovery Framewari

amaunted 1o EUR 532 million

imtech

O January 30, 2008, Rabobank receéived & ketber indicating that
lngal procesdings may bie started ot 4 liter stage with fespedt 1o
a poteatial collecthae action In relation ta cemain share offerings
of Roval iImtech NV, in which Rabobank was Imvolved This
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sltuation has remained unchanged, Furtbermaone, the recaivers
w0t 3 letter {August 10th) in which thoy describe on what
{possible} grounds thedr (luture) clamiish rowards Aabokbank in s
capacity of ender will be Lased, Ratelank (s of The ggpeioon that
e pondsion should b recognized per December 31, 2018

LibousEuritsor

Ralbobank has been involved for 3 number of years in several
wegulatary procesdings i ielsthan te bk ik-nelited e
Rabertuank 1L coaperating, andwillcantinss 1o cooperate, with the
negulabon wned aulhoGies mahed in hewe investigatians. On
October 19, 2013, fabobank entered into setthement agreements
with a nusmber of these authosities In relation to their
inwestigations into the hissarlcal Libor and Euribor submdssion
processes of Rabobank. All amoums payable under 1hese
settbement agreements wishs fully pald and acoouned for by
Fababank in 201 3, Pabobank, akerg with a large number of sther
paret banks and inter-dea‘er brokers, has been named asa
dafendant in @ rumber of putative class action suits and
anadidual civil cown cases brought before the Fedetal Courts in
the Uinited Statos. These proceedings relate to LS Dollar (U0
Libar, Britith Paund Steidng (GEM Libar, lapaneis Yen (IPY)
Libar, Tibor (note: Rababank was never a rrgmiber of the TIROR
panel), and Cunbor, Ratobank andf or its subsidianes have also
meceived complaings and wiits of summans ardening Rabobank
1o appeaar before varkous Dutch, Argentine, Unied Kingdom, Irish,
and lseaeli courts in evil proceedings {inc. class actize sults)
relating o intesest rane beachmarks, Sincg the class acuon suits
ard chil pracecdings [led abowe ane Iniadlealy subject ta
wncertalnthes, it is ditfioul 1o predict thelr outcomes. abobank
takes the stanoe that It has substantive and conwinging legal ard
factual deferrses against ese claims, Rabobank has the imenticn
1o continuee todefend itself agains these claims Rabobank Growp
wordlders thi Libet/Euribor case 1o be a contingent Rahility. Mo
mieeihon had bedn made.

Qther Cases

Rabobank is subject 1o other legal proceedings for which
oigvsions have been tecognized, Thess cates e indhvidually less
significant in size ard are therelode nol separately diclosed. The
tetal provisian faf thade cases amounts o BFUR 92 milllon, In
addition to the contingent Kability cases dedcribed abave los
wihiich & assesment regarding a possible outllow b not yel
possibde, Rabobank has identified other less redevant cases in
terms of size as a contingent lability. The masimum amaunt
clalmed for thode contingent lability cases amounts o

TUR 10 miillsgi

Annus Report 2008 - Commpany Firanclal Staterments ]
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Notes to the Statement of Financial Position

1. Cash and Balances at Central
Banks

Thils iem oonsists of kagal tendes, balances avalable on demand
wilth foreign centeal banks m countries where Fabobank
operates, a5 witll as 3 balance with De Kederandsche Bank {the
Dt iCential Rank] i el sd unhder 4 mindmum e n e ooty

2. Short-term Government Papers

This Hem melates to government sccuritles with an original temm
e Patuiny of up 1o Twio years That the central bank in the country
of ongin will redesm ata discount o accepl as collateral. The
ot and market walue of shart -lgem GowetnmEent pagaers are
wirtuatly the same

Amausd in il of rros X 0rF
Fecogrued in the rading pordicio a5 b
e e b thed ivwwritresit puoetfol LY A
Tortal ok rrm 130 L]

3. Loans and Advances to Credit
Institutions

This nem mepresents loans and advances 1o other cradit
snsLibulions, ather than in e forem of inieness-bearing securives,

Aty o mufbuen of nana 00 Ea
Lo gl acfvanoes §0 oty credit Fntibubons LT o R
Lo el WTVANOE 10 QIO COMDanIes 12584 19W¥
Total bsana asd advantei 1o credit Inatitutions. IS 40sed
0 which iubaseslicaled - -

Thae Rerrrri of bsans and alvances oo Credit instituthon can be beoken dows &
tabow:

Oncdemardd LLFFr
« 3 monihs 4558 B.705
= S monihs 5 1 yaa 4318 4,453
= 1 ywar 5 5 yean S aen
» 5 ypeany B8 fr
LT 1548 ixar

Their fale vibu of socepted collateral in the form of securities is
EUR 6,056 milllon (2015 ELUR 17,037 million).

Annud Beport 2008 - Comparry Financlal Staterments
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4. Loans and Advances to Customers

This tem consists al kears and advances arsing In the course of
lbussiness operations, other than recetvables friom credd
nstitutions and inlerest-baaring securithes,

st o1 b of ruris o
Bupakdewn of lnam and aduanded 1o funtamare:

Fubiic secoor lending 1558 199
[P e Sae0nel by 30481 3EATTT
Freshy | LIRS 1407
Total bsans snd advarce o customary 18437 ITRIR
Toriwls inchade:

O wluch b group comparni. S0AST  &L1Ed
£ which mangages e e
Lnatts i i thee Uit pitlclio wr 82
s recragrued i e irew s ot filiy i I
Loy recograaed in the e irmend pori oo at leirwlue 1558
Thenugh przi e los

Losan a1 amertised vou BELEPS  HIMOTS
Tatal loans and advances 1o custooers BA410T ATRTRI

Tht Barens of bsans and advances can be beoken dewn ot

Infgwr

Ordemard 44000 A5G
£ 1 monitha 1550 16504
» 8 roritha . 1 et iSass  An
| yar < 5 yman BIAST 8035
5 years 2100 110
Mo FratLa Ty PRSI ST ]
Loans st amartized cosl IN12E TR

Loasd |rxcludieg govermsent inans and feveris repad)
canbe claaified ai fallown by iBelr contentraton in

wpacific buress sechors

Food Bagn (7™
Trmbe, rtustry el sprvce e ey
Frivaie indeasiualy S B
Total Ll Ll

The falr value of accepted callateral in the farm of tecurities 14
ELRR 12,031 millon (2017 EUR 12,861 million]

5. Interest-Bearing Securities

This em represents inienest-oearing sscurites other than shart-
127 QOVETTIMENT PARETS
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Abtnat thu L hasrrra'y

(L ] Fiewim| R nagerment Bepoed AppEnSe
Amgunts m mellon of puros FT I T
[t bbby SIS o

Pubihe ot 44 oA
Dher hiuers MEEE AN
Total imisrest-bagring sourities 6739  TEIM
Breakdorim of inteneat-Searing wcursie

Eracling portiolio a1 LA
Investment portichia BT TS
rvattmEnr prizlio @ GiF vebos g peoft o leqs Lt sy

SLIF T84

Tha paradio slio inglude:

Seurimes il Ly groug Eompanie LTt R TRt
Listed portien ol the portinbo EATR HASSL
Bt bl sty e bt M fiskiind iy gt Siae 5w
TR
6. Shares

This Rem oonsists of shares and other non-Intenest-bearing
seoualties, inchading tempatary ather investments,

Lt proriien ol the portinks
B i proatie o thes prseThobo
Total

Mtk

24y
mn
2

"
LM
51

M

7. Interests in Group Companies

Thils ibem ineludes the intereas hald directly In group comipanies

Annud Beport 2008 - Comparry Financlal Staterments
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:;g_ﬁe anmdnrl Franul Camparw Frangul
“Amounts in milian of perme i A
Eruty nvemmeni i
Crwchil irtitutiony 430 4555
Cher prdiiay LLr L]
Tatal 1,555 L5048
CPangi in efuy imarriments;
Carrywng amournd on Snary 1 T8 15F
oo, captal contritelions curing the pit i
Brura il yeat
Ay, l:llr:-h-vd Tgubdaticans during e i e
[l 11,2401 :
il LF 1t i2m8
Dividendicapiial retmibursementy 382 {4087
Farvatuation 4 (iR
ol (1] (L]
Ry ek St o s et 3 JLBE il

8. Other Equity Investments

This tem inchades participaling intedesis in associates, in

partkoular Achimea BV,

Ay i s of rarns
Erguity nyeribmsnEy in;

ekt matinitions

Caher tbed

Total sther equity evrimants

Changess i SQuUiLY InyeI0esn:
Cairying arsount on 1 Ny
Suapuaitirn dharreg e frunal pau
D epanaln carng the Franciall e
Profit fhoish

Revaluation

Dvidend
Carryieeg srount on December 11
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Al thei [ hasrrmusey Compnpie Comoficlrbed Fanosl Compurw Frangl
(L ] Fiewim| R nagerment Bepoed AppEnSe lamerare Shatpmeni Shaermnty

9. Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets

This nem inchedes sofware

Ao o o of o ey m;ipr
Goodwil 2
Solrwvane 4§ 435
Tolal gostwill and olbs integiils st a1y an

Change m geodmB and othe s ke auien 3518

Ay i e of e Gl Sepftwuane Tt
Camying amount on kery 1 T 35 07
ML st clring The Taangial year . 10 102
D sty ehuariragy the fircancial yeat (F4] (L2 184
Twpeectation nim e (]
T sy in 1]
Fachorugs diTeeraen ird il 1 &y 41
Casrying mmcunt on December 11 - ang a1e
:"‘mu&ummﬂmmw 3 W P

Chasges in goodwill und orkes dstangibie aissts 5010

Ay i ko of mres Goodwll  Saoffware Tl
Eamping amount on Rarszay 1 ] ars i
mmmm Pruanial year 1o

R OoETLanes |

Aexquinitiorm glorangg the francial year - 1251 149
D speoviaty chuning dha firainc ial yeae 1o groap

uEerpar

Dispeonaly charng The Fnancial year (£11] qny
D eciation i {1 (L]
epar |ossEs (31 g
Fathantup dflwrnen ired Sther 2 14 i
Carying amount on December 11 X axF or
;;:“ A i ET T
Annud Beport 2008 - Comparry Financlal Staterments 24
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10. Tangible Fixed Assets

Thils em conslsts of land and Buildings in own use and

qulprignt

g o=
Land and buiidings in own e
Equpement

Total vangilie fieed susets

Change in langsble Aerd oxsers JO1E
gty m o of FoTos

Cairpireg ameaun on hasaaty 1
Aoquisitions dertng the francl yea
Dsgeviaals iharnray T nusrcial yiea!
Tedeilens 10 StheT dqneti
Tmparciation

Imipadimet D s

Farveersal It ke

g hars o Meiratin irdd Sther
Carryirg amount on December 11

Ll o anat

I

Chongen in Eongibie fooed sisers 2017
Armounty m mufio of oo

Camping amaount on Rarsaey 1
Argiisities during the frandial year
g charemag P Fruarc sl ywat
Deurciation

Impadmrat Dy

Warvesisal irmpasTmert kises

et heiveiph ifliibratani il et
Carryieg smeunt on December 11

lrases

11. Other Assets

Thils fberm relates to curent and defersd tay aswets and assets tha

Ty
(FiF]
it
1481
el aned
butking
in pwerr e Ll
1 L]
n ]
L1} ]
L]
[ ] ael
1171 (]
a5
(F] ]
L a
1188 i
1450 1]
57 55
18 0]
rog e
L1
a3 1
18 W]
T f 0]
1,240 &FF

canpot be classified under any other heading

Appendon

xir

1,700

LR

[134]
m1

LA
i
Ll

e
1.0

igaF

A e R of dured

This isem can e brekes
dowen as followss:!

Ciarsenil tan vty
Thrremt L icts
[mpicyen herehts
Orther

Mirg

nr

3nee
ES L]

Annud Beport 2008 - Comparry Financlal Staterments
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Fiutallinit for Camonate far Piepotes
For corpodane tax purposes Kabobank faems a fiscal unit with a

number of domestic subskdiares. Under the fiscal unit, each
pankcipating legal entily Is jointhye and severdlly Lt lor the fiscal
ynit's comparate tax Babilithes
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Al thei [ hasrrmusey Compnpie Comoficlrbed Fanosl Compurw Frangl
Pept [RE ] W nagernl Tt Apenlon lamermane Satpmenti Statgrmnts
12. Derivatives ey = e vy ~ oy
Balance on Devenber 11, 2018 OMeTF dapett [iobilTie
The nodes 1o the desivatives ane included below Dertextives hild for troding
inlereit Fate contracts Le8LTI4 15988 1L%9
o EY L A AT R R R 1T
PENSEETT S — 1 ET1
Rntert BRAea 1 -
Haseiy
This S can be broken dewr as foliown Sait
Dstwative: cosrtn oty with thieel pasthes B MM . il Anind 1T A
L. ¥ hgpop comg % 2300 e :
Total derivatives I5I5 IRAAT
107
2 Crwdil chervvaiive 2 & i
Thit isem: can b brodn down an faliown:
Dt cORATSCLS. R fill ]
Dhetwasttoe contracts with Thied parties M A
T 1855 Bi FFo
Daduatho w1 wALl i COmgLIies am 43
Toatal darivatives 434 2n481 Hhowe! -
Dervetives designared as hedging
Thirtable below thowas the national amounts and the posiie and Instrurment
. - e Drivathves desigrated a3 hidging instrusment
w:'gn.h'r' faulr walues of Rababank™s dorbeatbre cantracti with third e k- i Tla488  A083 5449
part. Intenest rale contracts (2100 B R T P
ey Conirsct BEIX 143 4E5
Darieatives dasighahed ai hadging " . "
Inttrarment i eath Bow hedges
Carterdy cormirs by ] & 12
Tatal derivative contractuwith thind parties 1,492,841 22090 20794
Amounri in il of Foeros Nerieral Faal vakers
cskirie o (e 10, 2017 amemnfl gy [abiT
Derfwathves held for trading
nlereak rade coniracts TABSE 1TEQ Temg
o EETERTE R EF T TR
Lt A
Cunrenoy coniracis IIAEES LSS0 4007
o EEE-L 3,550 40357
Lt
Coodit derivatives (KT 4
Okt contracta 3307 13 m
o 307 LF 13 aan
[ = -
Diertvtives desig 4 ax hedging
linatrurment
Darivas ey dedigrated e hedging invtrument
e il il LLRE 1 pE o] 3473
W#E RS CORITECT EANM 2360 S5
[l St ) M. L2 ¥
Dertvetives designoted as hedging
Instrument in cash Bow hedges i
CRrIEnCy COMTRTE ayw P iImn
Tatal desivanl ith thind parties 3,995808 39747 o
Annua Report 2008 - Compary Financlal Staternents 126
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Managerend leget Appendon

Breakdown of Trading and invesiment Portfolios

et i il of Fered M xmnr

Trading pertdlia

Shart-ferm garerrement papers ] 1

ILoans gl advEnoEs 10 CUSDImEry nar Tl

Le Tt B SR AT 1593 (]

Sharey n

Total trading portfolio 1884 1M}

BriimeeE parlisin

Shaoi-term goeer TR apers il A
Wb b i) SECURIDE S T4
Shaies 24 .
Linari srll dcvanom Bo cualomen 208 4
Total inwesimant porduolio BENE  TEISR
Inchadid iy the eversmenn poitiollon of group companiel 5093 5600

Changes in the ireestment portinlas

Balafew o | iy F53%0  MOGAT

fFonpign escharge ditference n i
oy tiorn charngg thee frunoial year L L
(Dl ki TH PRl yea s8] {5,185
Fa alue < hangpn E o een
Orther 3 EE ]
Balanc oo Decembar 11 RV TRISE
andpitgwy: 4 B B

Oy chermaed LFa 30
& dmunihs EFY are
= Amonths 5 1 year LEa]=] LR 1LY
|y £ S yRan aET 1557
» 5 yarary 53300  5507e
By uatuirily m an

Totsl imwedmant partiolio GRS TR
lerenitman perifolo ot las valus thiou gh proft o le

by i bararing vecuniiian e a5
[Lrwires gl Jafwanoes B0 CUEHDHTRT S LEFW

A prthalios L fale valus Uhriiogh o ralit e
bk 121 s

14. Due to Credit Institutions

This Rem iepresents amaounts owed to credit inatiutions, ather
thar dhebit secuditien and subordinated debt, of which

Annud Beport 2008 - Comparry Financlal Staterments

::.:Er-f\-c: ml Franul Compurw Frangl
“Aerounts in milionr of raros o AT
(D b vl Irstitotions 15881 157MR
D s gromg: Compraneny LRI
i b cther equity irveitmient B L}
Total dus tecrede imitaions TRETT TR
D ghprriaced 4580 EAEH
= Amonths S0F Lwn
= A maonths 5 | year 5419 L3
= | ppae o B ypean FTII § T ]
> 3 ydary my Lo
M ity RORE  EBAY
Tortal due vecredil isitivitions 10577 Thoad

15. Due to Customers

Thils nem consists of amounts doee to cusiomers other than delbt
spcuiles. Due 10 oustomert 346 Includes the Imvestments of
contral Banks armcanting 1o ELER 20 billkon (2007 FUR 23 hilllan)

Aemaiti in miliaed of rorod o o
(D 1 T CUS AT FA00E AN
D Lo g imags £ 18kE L
e Fe cther squily irnesimenty L a7
Total dus te customans. 326658 BITA

Duie to other customens comptises all deposits and svings
accournts of natural persons, nan-profic meaking assoclations and
foundations, 2 well 28 non-transferable wadings bonds.

AFOURCE i sl of porod 208 2017
Crdemed e SSASTY
4 Imaonths T 13T
= A moditha 5 | year 5858 L Niig
=1y o yan 12aTF  14AE
> & ey FrET T
Moy rravtiity LE5E 1365
Total due s cusbamed 336,608 HIT A3

16. Debt Securities in Issue

This itém rélates to non-subordinated bonds and other interest-
eating wecutitied, such & cerdicares of deposic

27
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Al thei L harrmagt'y, Comxuge Comoficlrbed Fanosl Camparw Frangul
(L ] Fiewim| R nagerment Bepoed AppEnSe lamrane Shatpmeni Sty
" hemouses m miflon of ruTos FT T
Other Provizions
Tradeable debt suites BIATT  EIDES
o b ety AN 1RATI - g W e
Total debt secaricles bn ssuse AT 1200 sl pleian A
Dpsprvrsg halance on | lanuary, 1018 LI LT e ]
v demmaend dd1e 1AM Addiions w7 5 - 355
€ 1 ranih 1gat 1430 [P wa—— ) ] ma e
= Ymonths 5 1 year AT s [rrr—— L] it ] (L TLEES]
* |y 5 S pean LU Closing balance on 31 Degambr,
= § ymary MEST 117N p-L - ~” e e
Total debrt wecwrition in i TLAT 120008
Expuervray talanie an 1 laruary, 2007 Eil ] T (Frd LIH
e hdidiions s 3% ] 509
17. Other Liabilities s oy i s
Fuaari 1143 L] 2% LLLEs]
Thi 3 Hahill ik r i 1
hils Hem Inclisdes Habllities that cannot be classfied underany ”:l-ubu" Ealance on 31 Desambsr, 281 557 15 e

other heading, sch as labilities assockaned with securmized -

!l}‘;t‘n’.‘:hh!"..l;ul el Laxes, short pﬁmi::m on :-EL'LIIILII.‘L_.I-\.'ﬂbiII[iei
19. Subordinated Liabilities

for stalf coats and creditors. At year-erd 2018, approximately
ELR 56 Billlon in Bababank PR gages won e uritbrod

This represents the loans relating to the lssee of Trust Prefered

Amdin in mifined of poros XM orr Securities and subordinated loans,

Thin b arodsam dowm s Belfows:

Lishsdini asoxianed wirh sevurried recenvalilen 54,008 55747 oy T — 018 W

st i Mt " - Lentrt il 1 The D uniom oo T Pesdhoemed) Secusizion I NS

Ttide Mt LMy ame Susbcrdiruted ARE 1813

Total ether |sbilities SATEL  S8A0E ek o f P

13— FJ’DWSIIDI'IS In the fodlowing rable detalls of the ssues of subordinated
liabilities are showie

At i il of funs FLT] F-TE

Proviilen bon parieon plan and oiher podl- " -

PEETTHNT O LIor

Provision Toe deterved Lo Habiliters ¥ "

I alraaedrs of lan cemmitTmenc 188 5

arwd Brancial guarantes

Oher aowisions f. 13 o

Tolal pravisions 1,100 128

Frowdvion far Employes Banafity

The provaslon for emplayee benefits consists of a provison for
pensken plans of EUR 8 midllicn {20017 EUR B2 million] and other
post-retiremment paovisions of EUR 102 million (2017

CLR 100 pillkon),

Annud Beport 2008 - Comparry Financlal Staterments i ]
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mlhl m‘n : Popet 'l:m l.'mcidnll:l'l'l'lruj mm
The distrbution paid per cefificate in 2018 was EUR 1625 011
Stontisa L LR 1525) The Managing Board 1s enrited to decide not 1o pay
Motland the distribution, Unpakd disuibutions wil not ke paid ata kater
i el dhate, Thie arncunts |ised In the Lable bulow are basd on Lhe
amilony  Covenry foupan  Daienoe ol mateiry naeminal value of ELIR J% per Rabobank Certificate, Cash flows
arwing fram changes duting the year [n the Rabobank Certificates
5 s i it m‘w ame inchuded In the consolidates statement of cash Flow.
1500 sl 1 e b
2025, early peparymint In January 201 7 Ralabark issued Rabobank Certificates fora
m i O .2 eIl adeunt &f EUR 15 billion, Rababank lsiued 60 mifian
ars AUD Varlable s poalble 2030 nénw Rabobank Cendicates; each al these neswly iued Cenificate
1,500 usn AT Tk B wian priced at 108% ol the nominal value of EUR 25
1358 Ui 1358 bk ] b2
o GEP s Rl Furl
Shic G
1008 EUR 30N P pewildein J03H
w000 - e 2014 2024 Aoty i bl of mrms FLIT R
1000 R isres mis ma Chunget dumng the year:
1758 USD  sEEE mI3 o Cpranre bulat e s s4e
V358 usn e 61 o1 Houeof Rabahask Cortificaten - a0
1000 W A P Thanges Fatohiank Certhicates dunng the prar 5 L]
500 GEF  E3EW Wi2 W Cuidng balanis TAE TAR
1500 U EL e o
1008 LT TR E i mam Capital Securities
1000 R ST 2005 wie
:: f:: ﬂ ﬁ ’;ﬁ Hisuse o ELIR 1,000 Mildown
- The coupan i 45255 per year and bs made payable every ux
months inanears as of the ssue date (September 11, 3048, for
20. Equity the first time an Decamber 28, 018, The Capital Securities are
perpetual and fust redeemable an December 29, 2005 As of
[P p— HiE IF December 29, 2025, and subject to Copaal Secunities sl being
This it can b beokes doen as fellaws: tedeomed earky, the dissibution b 121 for a further fve-yoar
Habobank, Corificales ALy ARy period, but without a e p-up, based on the S-year euro swap rate
Eagltal Eowili AT I 008%, The coupon i fully dionetionary,
ey e e e (1] k1Y
Logad periapremy. 353 [EL]
\aiar restiass. M3 aaEm Fssiag of EUR 1,250 Miflion
ProfiL foe e e 1984 1816 Thie cosapan s GA25% ped year and & made payable every b
Total equity 41388 AT inanth i Brean 85 ol the hwe dats Qhgaiil 26, 2006), tar the Thist
- - Nime oy Jung 26, 20016 The Capial Secunities ame pepetual and
Rababvni Conificares first redeemalbde on June 29, 20210, As of June 29, 2029, ard

Rabobank Centificates represert participation rights ksued by
Mabotank via the foundation Stchiting Admintstratie Kantoor
fabobank Cenificaten and belang 15 the Commaon Cguty Ties 1
capital of Rababane As fiom 2014, the Rabobank Cenidlicates hie
Ibeen lied an Furahess Amstendam

Thietotall numbed of cenificates is 297,947 365 with a nominal
walue of EUR 23 each. The actual payment podcy of Rababank
parsuant 1o the Paicipation Bules in respect of the panicipation
e by Rabobank {and vis A% Foundakon in iespect of 1he
Rabsctsank Cotificate) can be found on the Rabolank webisite.

Annud Beport 2008 - Comparry Financlal Staterments

subject to Caplral Securlties not being redeemed early, the
distribution is sst fora furthes five-year period, but without a szep-
uf, baced o the SH03¢ uns Swap fate + 6607%, The coupon i
fully discretionary,

duswe o EUR 1500 Mifhor
The coupan & $5% pes year and (3 made payable overy sk

months in amears as of the issue date (January 22, 2005), Tar the
first time on hene 73, 3015, The Capital Securities ae perpenaal
and st redesmable on Jone 29, 202000 A of July, 29 2020, ard
sublet 1o Capltd Secuiithes niat being redegred warly, e
cistribution 5 sat for afurthes fiveyodar period, but without a siep-
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up, based on the Syew euro swap rate + 5.25% The coupon is
fully discretionary.

Insue of LA 500 Miflon

The eoupen 4 BO4% por vear and Iy made pavabile annually in
armears a5 af the lsue date (February 37, 20040, for the fir tme
on February 27, 2010 As of Febngary 27, 3019, the coupon will be
made payable every guaner based on the theee-monith Eunbos
plus an annual 7.50% mark-up. The caupon |s payabde arthe
Hiwer's dieretion. In e ate Aabobank doet nat uie todemetianany
[pirener T ot pay distributions on the Rababank Certilicates,
parymant on this Eatrement will also apgpdy.

Sk of 50 2868 Mifion
The coupan i 11.0% par year and [5 made payable every siv

months i arears as of the ssue dave UJune 4, 2009) lor the firsg
time on December 31, 2009, As af June 30, 3019, the coupar will
e made payable every quartes Based on the three-manth LSO
Libor plus an annual 10868% mare-up, The coupon b payable at
the issue’s dascretion. In case Rabobank does not we ity
dksCrethenany power (o not pay distibutions on the Rabobank
Cenificates, paymant on this instrument will alsa apply.

lusue of GAP 250 Miton

Thir exmipaen i 6.567% per year and iy mace pavable every yix
manths inarears 3% of the &sue date (June 10, 2008), for the frst
time on Decermber 10, 2008. As of June 10, 2038, the coupon will
Ibe miade payable every siv manths basad an the sik-month GEP
Libor plus an anneal 2825% matk-up, The coupon it payable at
the [vuess dicretion. In case Babobank docs not wee it
iscrationaty porwer o nat pay ' distributions on the Rabobank
Cetificates, payment on this instroment will alio apoly.

s af WL 280 Million
Rabo Capital Secusities Limited has issuea caplmal secuities, the

coupon of which egquals the five-yeat yvwap inlerest rate plus i
anmual 3,75 markeup and wis sel i B, TBEAS put anmam i hay
25, 2005, As of the Issue date (May 27, 2009}, the coupon | made
payakble every quarter in arrears, for the fiest time on June 18, 2009
{shart fist interest period]. As of June 18, 2014, the coupon will
e rmiade payable every quarter based on the five-year swap
snterest plus am annwal 375% mork-ep As of June 18, 20019 the
conrpot will be made pavatile edery quarter based on the 90-day
bank bill swap intereit fate s an annua! 3.75% mark-up, The
ot §F payable at Lhe ssuer’s discrelion. i case Rabobank
dioes nct use IS discreticnary power to not pay distributions on
the Rababank Cerrillcates, payment an this Instrurrent will also
apply.

Annud Beport 2008 - Comparry Financlal Staterments

Capital Securities lssued by Rabobank Which Were
Ridisermed During the Reporting Year

dsvue of CHF 357 Milon
Rababank lisued the CHF 350 million Capltal Secusities on June

27 2008 In accardance with the Temrs and Conditions of these
Capital Securities, Rabobark has redeesmed the Capital Securities
oo the first call date, betng Jure 27, 208

sz of IL5 323 Milllan

Rabobark Maved the ILS 323 million Capits Securitied on July 14,
2008 In accordance with the Terms and Conditions of these
Capitat Securnities, Rabobank has elected to redeem these Cagital
Securities on the first call dafe being July 14, 3018

The bevel of peofin made by Rabobank may nfluence the
distribution on the Capital Securities. Show'd Habobank become
nsalvent, the Caphal Secwrithes are usbasdinade to the dghts of
all other tcunent and future) crediton of Rabobanic unless the
nights of those other creditors a2 substantively determined
othersise

Capital Securities

ity i il of euns 2o arr
crymrraen Ly wees i follavw:

Balince om by | L1 i e TAZT
Fedemption of Capital Seowtey 5 (88
e o Capital Saciaities 1 a0 .
Cienit ol inuge of Caphal Saarsiay (1]

Duher 13 [F:]
Baline oo Dicembar 1) BAST SN
Revaluation Reserves

Amounecs i meiboad of Furos o o
Tha revaluation reene can be ipecibed o foBow:

Cavh Nows hesiges 4 [CFE]
e b seuniie P2 i3
Shares i e inbene i Bearing seurtien 111 m
Tty o hedging ] Al
Total revaluation ressrves. 18 1
Meeurrmnn Ly mire in Folkows

[Balance or Lamaary | Ans LR
Change in aconuniing policie T "
Encharige rats dilhmene S ]
Bl ats g nn g
Onher 5 1]
Traralersod 10 peodlt o1 hoas [AF [TH]
Balance on December 11 17 ama

Rababank's cash Mow hedipes madnly consist of hadges of the
margin of issued bands In foresgn curency hedged with cross:

130
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mlh M1 Mot Aot Loty Llrm*:l.n:d Financil Lanmpmstny Francad
ausirency inferest rate swaps o protect againast a patential change Other Reserves
n cash flows due ta change in foresgn curency rates. Rabobank
assesses the hedge effectivenass on the bavs of statistical ks It radlir o preE 0 I
egression anashysls modeh, both prospectively and Tha sthar rrsrves cam b specified oo falown:
retraspectively for IAS 39 cash flow hedges and anabyes the Recalfmatinn of periskna. AL
sources of Inefiectiveress for FRS O cash law hodges. The (FRS 9 mm:;;w'““w E T
cayh flow bedges are 1005 efective Pt martibngs PS8 i
Tatal other rewrve T IZTI
Legal Reserves
rvarrmn 3 im e rocal bration of pensonic
re e = pee e T T [Ralarce o Lamiary | LFris] LRIE]
Recalinaation of pensiona. B [[5]
Tha legal reseres can be apecified ai follews: b a 4 (e
Frtained profits of imvestment s in associstes na Fr ]
Soltware dewsoped in Fouse 51 LH] 5t PRI L R L
Tedrmilation differanie sin iR wisk on financial Retslities designated o1 Gair valoe:
Total begal rewsrves 3sm  sw s et Lifnsiiy | [LvLH] 1303
Ehange in atrounting polcies any *
Merreermnti e i Toflew Faar value changes. m 3e
Mislance o Lanuary 1 fii] T Feraliatioen a1 ded ecagnioen 5
Fam other reserven o legal reseree (il1] ) Balincs &n Deconbar 31 e
Earharage rate ditterences LU TR T
Halanca om Dwecermbar 31 eI  realned rarning
Bealaraow o lnfusary b LSRN 3309
Ehangs in sécounting pobcir “iw -
ProAt ko previoa fimancial year 1518 1560
D il ey s e prariies. nayn e
Trarvfernicd o begal reerery % {8 1]
Fraralerted o revaluation rewsnees. (L] -
Redemption of Capital Seosses (v T
e = Rabubarsk Cirtifcates . 120
ol ool Inwom b bnarin Co bl sy - in
Osher changey [ I P
Balane n Decenisar 11 3454 IRIAY
The tesenses cannot be distributed among members. The
consolidated financial statements of Rabobank include the
financial infarmatson of Rabobank and sther growp companiss
Consolidated net giolil Tor Rabobank was EUR 3,004 million
12007 EUR 2,674 millionk net prafit of Rabobank in the company
financlka! statemerts was tUR 2 844 milllon 2017
EUlR 2618 million), The difference of EUR 83 million (201 7:
LR 58 million) represents profic anributed 10 the ather nan-
conuiolling inernests,
The table below ihows reconcliation betvween the equity of
Rabaotank and that of Rabobank Groug:
Annus Report 2008 - Commpany Firanclal Statements m
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Comxuge Comoficlrbed Fanosl Compurw Frangl
lemmrane satrmenty tatermts

Notes to the Statement of Income

Aot in millosT of farod Mg Mnr
w:;'w{# siorcing o Pan 9 ol fook P ol the ALI5E  JA7EN
h commponent of the equity of Rabobard Grour: Thui T -
Preleried SeCwitin &
A comporsent of the equity of Rabolank Group: 0 her nony- a8 A
conbing ierests
TREH vy sty WRtr IV, M prinatriet e azzs et
21, Net Interest Income
Aty m mifion of v T =TT
eted i IR O
Cask ird dih mquivalecty a41 M
Linarnd iell acfvanoe o crodi inutiartioni s L
L el Sy AR 10 CUTITITETS Tar 10861
Deiwativrs e for Ll valus bedge-socouing [336) i
#railalsle for-wale Snarcial skt e HEY
Frwncial asseti of falr value throsgh ether comgretierriive s -
Income
mm‘ﬂﬂhmﬂmﬂhﬂﬁm Yesrl v
Firwnil assety held for iradeg k1 35
IDftwaiaes Pasled 3 dooformic Mg 1504 a1ma
Tirwrcisl ssrty deslgrated o1 fuir vatue - ]
Frwnoal s9arty mandatonly st Turvalue ) s
lirerre il ireocemee o Fiusrarid Rabdlisess witha regaiive 72 yiE
kel rale
Uther n ]
Drihar inberest mcoms TraE LI
Total imereat incema 14878 14595
dened enpanag
DTS oam crsdlk saimuTions: L1} 3T
Depoiits ot cuslomen 4008 ifui
Dushit wscuritien in nse pE ) LY
Fresrril Babwlinees helol e irading -] 2
Frundisl ek dedgnaied ot b walue (1] 48l
Suhoaddicated Lalelines Ere] e
mlﬂ empena on gl sl with s negaive intsed m 57
Crdar [E7] m
Total ivierest sxpenas [ EEE N K
et intaent income s s

Annud Beport 2008 - Comparry Financlal Staterments

22. Net Fee and Commission Income

Armounts in miions of rrcs P T
Fee and comemiiaion income

Fapment wrsces & Gad
Lenabinny F1F] FI
P s and ke nbather fe il {handlng fees HH biF
LA COmmiE e 267
D O - m £ 1 T n
{ther fmmTaSn e e [l a
Total fes and commissbon income 1EM LN
Fes and comramiidion srpenis

Papment e F -
Harcling Iees W n
Cunibmdlal fors and sevur e sevioes * 1]
P Furay el s ol ot dhnasnscial et

gher comimi P Froup Cormpuney 1% L]
(DT COTMTES SO St * 1]
Tatal fee and commisibon expanse 138 128
Wt fww and commision incoma LTH 1450

23. Income from Equity Interests

Arounts in mitns of pns F T T
Dhvidend mcome fiom shares 5 =
Pt rm Hileeests in greun

ety L IT 1)
Feesutts fom oihe equily ireesimes B LY
Rapudry trom chigaeid inesresTs . ]
Tatal kncomma from squity intasits AT T

24, Staff Costs

Amouecimebon fesns 0 J00 207
Wiages and walaries ] Lon4

Socisl wourky cordribafions and inurance

ety kL) m

Prrbon cosln 40 h

Cghor o conty L] b2 0

Tatsl vtaff costy 1,2%¥ LIF3

The avernge number of internal and external employess 14400
{7007 36 503), of whilch ourside the Metherlands 3,340 1§ 2005
3,106), Exprossed In FTEL, the avetage number of internal and
extemal emolovess was 32330 (2017 340430

25. Requlatory Levies

Thet siegulatorny hevtis cirist of bank tax, Btk hevies and
contributions 1o the Single Resolution Fund and the Deposit
Guarantee Schems

232
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Banks gperating in the Methedands on October 15t of the current
wear are required to pay bank fax There ase twio rates of bank ra
applicatie: A rate of 0044% foe curren labilities and a rate of
0022% lor long-tenm liabeliiies, baed an i balance on
December 2017, kn 2018, fabobank was chaiged a total of

LR 120 rlllism (203 7 EUR 136 millian).

In 2018, the bank levy in Feland amounted (o EUR 20 million
(200 7R 7 nllioend, In 2008, vhe bar k bevy in Belghem amaunted
1 ELIR 11 million (3017 EUR 11 milllan).

Qn Jamuary 1, 2076 the Bwopean Single Rewahuticn Fund (SAF)
wals gt up, This fund has been establshed 1o mprove the
effectweness of resolution Instruments. Banks and Investrmont
firms that are in the soope of the SRbA-regulation are obiiged to
Contibte (o the SRF. In 2016, the contribution 10 the Single
Reolution Fund amounted o EUR 160 millon Z01F;

LR 152 midllkand,

Par Uhe end of 2015, the rew pre-funded Depoait Guarantee
Schemewas intioduced. As of 2006, banis have to pay a premium
on a quarerly basis. Target sine of the schemae is 8% of total
auaarantesd depaiits of all banis togethed. n 2018 the
comribution 1o the Deposit Guansniee SCheme amounted 1o
ELR 11& mullicm (200 7; EUR 140 millign).

26. Income Tax

The majar compaments of the moome 12x are inchuded Delow,

At i mlbues of s o mir
Irscumes fam

Repoting period am 341
At of previcus year m [{13]
Dsbersemt Las £l L]
Total imsopme tan o)) )
[ ective Lus rats: 5 T
Apphcable ta rate /0% 2

Thie effective tax 1212 diffess fram the applicable tax rate in 2018
mainly becauseof the nat inciusion of Income fiom gioup entites
and 1he panial deduction af intersst payments on Cagial
Secuitled

Annud Beport 2008 - Comparry Financlal Staterments
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Other Notes to the Financial Statements

27. Professional Securities
Transactions and Assets Not Freely
Available

Reverse sepurchase tramsactons and securities borrowing
agreements conchuded by Rababank are included under "Loan:
and sbvaneed ta eradit Instutlans® of "Laans and sdvances 1o
cwstomers” and ag per Decernbar 315 amaunt to

Armourts m millon of urcs E T T
s gl achvances, 0 recdit s futione [ W BTN
Liarna il achvano 10 CuslomerTs 13008 13076

Repunchase tranwactieng and steuitles lending agreements
coniuded by Rabobank are ncheded under "Due to credit
institubions” and *Oue to oustomers” as of Decemdssr 315t Wotabed:

Ol which:
Eerdingemt il dities of groop cmpunie

Liabilities Relating to Operating Leases

FATT R T
Ny Tan
AW II86T
LM mpss
BAMAT BRATS
15687 14075

Rabobank has concluded variow openating ease Contfadls a3
lessen, malnly with respect toproperties, Infarmation systerms and
cars, The future net man‘mum lease payments under non-
canpellable operating leases can be Broken down as follows:

Aty mellarn of veroy

Mk Liter Bhan | e

Laver thar 1 year i rot e than § yeas
Laber thar § peaii

Total Mabilfcdes relating 1o cpeniting lesms

Amguees in mikoni of ruros F.H For
D o e ekl v EiELsiR =] LU
s b3 o aTiery 1 5
Total 53 s

Tha assets refered to In the table balow (with exsception to
piofessional secutities ransactions] wese provided (o
coumerparties as secumy for [conmgent) labiives. 1 Rabobank
would enter inth delaut the countorparties may e the security
to setthe the debt

e e memr—reryr o TR T
Asnets nof freely avlabie: Rl mmd 1o ype of Eabiiges:

Loais s sdbvanor o credn

fsbyeringy Derhalived. 248 1297
Lo andl advances 1o (D o Cusorn . Dbt

CUECE] SOCLH e i s L il i
Iintereit-hearing weurtiey Duw b fuiksmen. LB 4k
Total AR 5502

28. Contingent Liabilities

Hasohark enters Inta Irrevocable loan commaments as well a1
contingent llabilke: coniliting of financlal guarantest and
standiyy betters of credil on behall of iy custemens., Under these
confracts Rabobank 15 required to perfosm under an obligation
ANPENENT OF 10 Make payments 1o the beneficiary on thim
jparty’s fallure to mest s obligations. The tollowing talile shows
Wi sirrgerd O tha imasirrgm polenlial ulilization af contingsm
Habilities.

Anncs Aeport 2008 - Commpary Franclal Staterments

o aor
ar |
ns I
W i

Tha cpices rminimurm bease payrments The expecied fuluse
mminirmam lease payments receivable from sub-leases ane nil
{2007 nil), The operating leate experses e nil 2017

Ul 12 million} and Included in "Cther adminlstrative sgpenzes”

it e staterrent ol income

Contingent Liabilities Related to Income Tax

The Duitch gasvernment abolithed aticle 29 of the Dutch
Corporate Incorme Ta Code as of ey 1, 3009, Article 2% of
the Dutch Corporate Income Tax Code was included in the Dutch
Cornponte Income Tax Code so that cagial instraments issued by
credit institutions and which are covered by EU regulation
E75/2003 would be considered tax deductible. Ad a result ol the
abolition the payreent oo thiie capital matnements will not be o

deductible anymone as from January 1, 2018

It seems that the abaolition has no corseguences for previous
wear Hawever, if the Curopean Commission would decide 1o
start a formal Fwestaganon amyway and ultirmately would
comclude that this 1= 4 case of viade ald for the peedoe years,
Aabobank may have o epay tax benelits it tecehved from 20015

il 2018,

n this cantext, Aabobark wed Capial Secunties in lanuary
2015, Apdil 2015 and Septeinber 2018, amaunting respeciively Lo
ELAR 1.5 billion at g foed intesest rate of 5.5%, CUR 1.25 bdlon al &
fined inene st rake of 6.625%. and ELIR 1.0 billion at & leed interest
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rate of 4625%. The contingent kability related to this matter
amounts to EUR 140 miflion {201 7: ELUR %6 million].

Liability Undertakings

Mursuant 10 Section 403 af Boak ¥ of the Duich Chil Code,
Aababank has assumed llabllity for the debts aising from the
egal tramactions of the following Group companies;

Boclemgoed B,

Do Raee Larebon America Hodding Bl

+ D age Landen Corporaty Ffinancr LY,
D Lage Lanwden Faciities BV

« D llace Lunden Inbemational 8.
D L Larschen Worndarbaine BV

+ FGH Rank KLY,
Fab Diert Firnarieting BY.

4+ Pl Factoting BY,

Hibso Financial Sahaior Hoking B4,

Habsa Ciroer Rank BY,

Rabwy Laarie B,

Pk Mawitiarid Bark WY,

Habo Motiel By

Rahobank Infernaticnal Helding 0V,

A liquidicy guatantes wias lswed by Rabobank lor Rabo Groen
Bank 8.

in the past, Rabobank has guararteed the Eabilitias of a number
of group companies. Even thaugh these guarantess have come
1 an énd, Rabobank remains llable foe the fulfiliment of
ohllgqunm enteied Inko hr'rhr'-gmdpfnrn[h‘mﬂ :lurlrpg Ehe b
of the guarantees,

noonreckian with e Triust Prefened Securites, Rababank
guarantees the Trust concemed, on a subordinated basls, that the
payments fram the LLE tothe Trust will be mads and - In the
avenl Uit the LLC goes inta liguidation - that the LLE Class B
Predeined Securithes will be repaid and the associsted payments
oo the Trust Prefered Seowitles will be made (the ‘Guaranteesh
uUnderthe so-called Contingent Guarantee, Rabobank guarantess
the LLE that it will pay the amounts owed under the Guarantees,
A these amounts have been due and unpaid for more than 180
days

Cross-Guarantee System
Follewing approwal by the Dulch Central Bank the cross-

dpaarantes system (3 remnant of the previous cocparsive

structune of flabobank Group) vwas terminated on December 11,

Z01E There are no outstanding, residual andfor contlngent
labilithe.

Annud Report 2008 - Comparry Financlal Statements
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Up until the system's termination on December 11, 2018, the

remaining panicipants wens:
= Codperatieve Rabobank UA
= D Laige Laraden ingrnational BV,

= Rabwa Factating BV, (previoutly named De Lage Londen Trade

Hrance BV

= Rabo Lease BY, [previousky named De Lage Landen Financlal

Zepvices BV

« R CHrect Financiering £V (previoudly named De Lage Landen

Firnancieting 8V

Fiscal Unit for Corporate Tax Purposes

For corporate tax purpases Rabobank forms a fiscal unit with a
nurmber of domestic subsidiarkes. Under the fiscal unit, each
participating legal entiny 1s jointhyand severally llable far the fiscal

wni's DoNpodae [ax Radilities

29. Main Group Companies

I 2018, nane af the group companies expenanced any
significant restictom in the payment of dividends or the
redemption of ksans and repayment of advances. The option of
GELD com panles 1o pay dividend 1o Rababank depends on
warious factods, including kecal requlatory reguitementy, sStatutony
reservees and firancial performance, Rabohypotheekbank M.
menged with Codperatieve Aabokank LA as of 1 December 2018

O 31 Decemsber 2018

ol gD (OIS

Thee Metherlands

DAL Intemabonal B,

EFD Europe BV

Dftniezn M,

Hoeth America

Utrecht Ameica Holdings int.
Auirralls moed Mow Zealund
Pabsotnanh Al el
Fshpinank Mew Sealand Umited

¥3 § 83
H

30. Remuneration of the Supervisory
Board and the Managing Board

Thee erembers af the Supendsary Board and the Managing Board
ate iwed inSection 33 af thewe financlal smtements, Aababank

regards the membsers ol the Managing Board and the Supendiory
Boand & key management personned In 2016, the remuneration
of members of the Managing Board amounited o ELUR 10.2 millicn

{2017 Bxecutive Boane EUR B.6 milion)
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e i M et | hpyerion| | vt el ol
Amauntt m Fowsands of o Shart-term Gy Toral
emplaper benefits Pt employes benedt
Aerriient iching fncdint pomlan
erutsibtion

ey Marmin =] n 188 5 LT
i1 warrt Mrurserndileen =1 b 184 - L0a
Erinen Kond L= " L] i L]
et Drajer L] n an - Ly
Mearielie Lschrenberyg 750 m 158 " 043
ey S e E ria oLy
B Brmumery =] n 144 1 Lign
Petra van Hessken =] " 188 Lo
asrine Ve, 50 ) m w 121
Bt Lt B30 m R a3 Bt
Total 1018 E20Y 280 1707 184 10147
Mamiteers kanaging Board 5717 175 1208 " EAT ]
Tresirri ingraleis Managing Bused 11 “ s L] LA
Ky, ] Cid i L Lok
{Patravan Hosken, member of the Managing Board, has faid down e Sy P e e—" ——— P
ey roer 38 C kel Hisk Offices (CRO) par Febreary 1, 2018 Hide Mg 0000
Geont took aver her activities a5 CRO. In summer 2019 Petra will Chasman of Aueln Commifioe, Rink Comemitto, Conpeiitive hussy 00

Commliee, sddtionsl
tesign far ke remalning tasks and her employment relationhip i, 8 Acsbnetis sl st e M i
wiith Rabobiunk will be tprmaaled. Petra will feceive i svataine Akt e
Py equivatent laone year's salany of EUR BEA000 and hor regular View chalman, additionsl i

Charman 000

inctite lduaal penston contribution

Al year-and J018, Lhere were 2 lotal of 2761 DEMNs (lability of
ELIR 7E554) ourstanding with membern of the Manaaging Saard
(00T 1963 pieces of which 486 reganding former membery) The
pansion scheme for the members of the Managing Boand b
classified as a collective dafined contribution schemea, The
maxkmium incorme an the basls of which the membsers of the
Managing Boand can buld up o pension amssents 19 3 maxmam,
for X8 ninety-nine thousand theee-hundied and eighty

four utos. Ay InCome exgeecing thiy amount & not
pensiorable Asal lanuasy 1, 2015, 1he members of the Managing
Hoasd themefore moehve an individual ponskin condribution,

Expenses related (o members and former mambers of the
Supeniizory Board 1otaked EUR 1,2 millien (2017 EUR 1.3 million],
Thils ineluded VAT and emplovsr's cantributions payvable In
addition 1o the rale of Member of the Supencaory Board of
Rabobank, the rermundration alyo depends on the ro'es in the
warlous commitiees. The composition of these committees is
detalled In the Annual Repart. The remuneration struchane as of
Cctobeds 1, 2006 [exclusive of VAT and other charges) i

Annud Beport 2008 - Comparry Financlal Staterments

The tazle balow shows the remuneration (excluding AT apd
ether charges) for imdhvidunl membess af the Supendsary Baand,

Amoustt i Mosash ol s Revningrarion

e Asscher-onk g
Lo Dwgle £ ]
L Craakima jecil Agvdl 18, W18y 1
Furtr| Manhad 2]
Arian Lamp 1
s e i (11]
Ty Twwah, r]
Facal Viske w0
Mot} TrosmmgerTed L]
et Wi, (morm Deacmerksst 13, 7018} 5
Tatal 2010 L
Total 2007 16050

AL Rabobank, the Chairman of the Supervisary Board halds a
number of roles which are related to the cooperative, These roles
are specified in the Annual Report.

236
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Ak i Lharman’y

Pepor Futppond Mariaigernent St Mpendn
g m milioen of meros ibonogmg Booed  Supsprvtiony Booed
Lo sthiwres 50 uaraniees Mle  mIF MM XIT
Outatmnding o= Junuasy 1 58 4 1% 13
IPravicded during tha yea os o -+
Redesmed dering the year (L] na iR LK
:;}L:Hm o cntril of besang . 1] R
Incrpaie on acoourd of taking ofice - L5 %]
Dutstsnding o December 15 53 L ¥ FA | LE ]

Thee b, Siclvinieas ARd guarantess of the memberd of the
Managing Board In alfice and the SVerace INLeET e wees a4

follaws:
At n mellon of ReTos mm::; m
et iy ]
Ov Devembeer 11 2018
Bt BT 11 %
iriten Kond (%] [Ty
Bl Lt oF an
Wik (achrenheng [} 1%
Ty M tting ol 58
Bty ey s urmeenwileen. [F] F1]
I on ] pA|
Ay m melioes of eros mm m
ot G )
s Mg s 1k 3007
LO LT (-5} e
Wisten Koni ox an
BT Ly 1] 2
Maels Lskambery 1 44
Iy Marttin ar k1]
T van Misirsenhuioen. X m
Bt Vs 1] 24

The koand, advances and guarantess of the members of the
Supenisany Board in office and the average MTEEST mEies wen a3
fallows:

Ammauney m meliom of meos m’:ﬁ"; Tﬁg
At i )

v [eperabe 41 2008

Arnet A ar b ¥

Arlan SEim 13 L7

M Tyt o LR

A i e of fes mu::’. m
ot )

Oy Db 11 2007

Arian Kamg e mw

wasgn Tt e
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At year-end X018, the membess of the Superdisory Board not
Nsted in the tabée had not meceived any loans, advandes of
gusarantess. These transactons with members of the Managng
Boud s Supetvaony Boaid wens completed In persen on e
bask ol amployee terms and conditions and/or marker rates fer
the Supervisory Board, The rates depend (n part on the currency,
the agresd fived-intevest period and the time the transaction was
comgpleted of the time a new fwed-interest term becomes
effective.

Same members of the Superyisony Board have perianally
mwirsted in Rabotrank Cerificates in peron andfoe {hough their
own pension B.Y. A1 year-end 2018, this involyed in total 23,00
cartificates

Nuebarof
Berbushuzib B
Gentloate.

O Deceerber 11 2088

i Asacher onk 1405

e Dl L e i perion fre'
Number of
fbatank ity
Getifiratn

Oy Db 31 2008

irinsn Ko B

Slaridlls xhEenbiery 3%

31. Proposals Regarding the

Appropriation of Available Profit for
Rabobank

£ the profit ol EUR 2,944 million, ELR 1028 milllon |5 payvable to
tha holdess of Capital Securities and Rabobank Certilicabes In
accordance with Managing Hoard resolutions. it Is proposed that
the rermaindes of the peofit will be added to the general resenes
heldl by Rababank
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32. Events After the Reporting Period

On 15th January 20019 the Biitish Parliament vored agalni the
freain deal. Alihiugh Rabobank still beligves that ullimately a bang
Browi will B avoicled, The uncemainty has grown during the st
manths of 3019, Rabahark manitoss the patential Impact ol
Bepwh and has prepared contingency plans on the basis of
scenant analysis. As per the UK regulator PRA gusdance, and 1o
cntings its banking activitias in the UK post-Bres, Rabobank
subrrined & Thind Coumny Banking Licende apalication ta the
FAASFCA and it actively engaged with hameand bost requlitan
{ECH, PRA and FCA) on thit fopic of Brexil preparedngss. In the
scenatio of & hard Bresit. Rabobark expects a Umited increase of
the loan impalrment allowance, as Rabobank's miposane to the
UK 5 modest Indirect effect of a Brexit could be negative fiod the
Dunch ecomony as The UK & an mpornan wade panner of the
Hatheslands

n 2018 thie Managing Board of Aabobans committed to a plan
1o sedl part of its mon-strategic business in the segment WHE At
December 31, 2018, a sale was not considered highly probable.
At March 13, 2005, Rabobani i In the process of negortiating a
TanSACTonA.
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L harrmagt'y, Comqrase
Managerend leget Appendon fawermane

33, Authorization of the Financial
Statements

Theet firanciad stabements were signid by the Supesaisony Board
o March 1% 2010 The firanclal statements will b presented 1o
thie General Meeting, To be held on Apeil 17, 2008, for adoption
With regard to the adoption of the financial staterments of
Rabobank, the Aricles of Assockation state: “The resohution 1o
adopt the financial statements will be passed by an absolute
oty af the votes validly ¢adt by the Genetil Membeit
Council™

On behalf of the Managing Board
Wiebe Oraljer, Chalrman

Bt Browwers, CFO

Ely cle Groon, CRO

Eirgten Ko, devnber

Bast Lours, Member

Markélle Lichtenberg, Member
Bamy Maritin, Mernber

Jan van Nieuwenhualzen, Member
ki Sevinga, Mamber

Lanine Vad, Memioe

On behalf of the Supervisory Board

Ron Tectlink, Chgdmman

Marjan Tmompetier, Yce Chainmaon
lrame Assches-Vonk, Secreray

Lev Degle

Arlan Kamp

lan Monoitgedagt

Pl Hofstd

Parcal Vivde

Annes Aris

Annud Beport 2008 - Comparry Financlal Staterments
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Other Information
Statutory Provisions

Profit can be used under a Managing Board rewadution to pay
distributions on panicipation rights and distrbutions.on
additipnal tier 1 instiuments.

Thet setmalnicter of the pofit B added ta the géneial e held
by Rabobank, The Managing Board can sl decide 1o mike
interim distributiconm (o holders of pankgation nghts and the
helders of addimanal tier | Instrurments fram the prafit and/or the
result, White Rabaobank still sabsts, the resenves cannat be
distributed 1o the membears, peihar in full, nor in part. The
Managing Board has the night 1o make a distribution from ghe
reserves on participation tights and/or additional ter 1
instruments, if the decision |5 taken o any time ta dissalve
Rabobank inamder to have its business continued by snather
fegal entity or institution, the resemves will be transfesred 1o said
wther legal entity or instRution.
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| ndependent auditor’s report

To: The General Members Council and Supervisory Board of CoOperatieve Rabobank U.A.

Report on the financial statements 2018

Our opinion

In our opinion:
the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of Cotperatieve Rabobank U.A. as
at 31 December 2018 and of its result and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code;
and
the company financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of Codperatieve Rabobank U.A. as at
31 December 2018 and of its result for the year then ended in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

What we have audited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2018 of CoOperatieve Rabobank U.A., Amsterdam (‘ Rabobank’, ‘the
Bank’ or ‘the Company’). The financial statements include the consolidated financial statements of Codperatieve Rabobank
U.A. and its subsidiaries (together: ‘the Group') and the company financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements comprise:
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;
the following statements for 2018: the consolidated statement of income, the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows; and
the notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The company financial statements comprise:
the company statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;
the company statement of income for the year then ended; and
the notes, comprising the accounting policies applied and other explanatory information.

The financial reporting framework applied in the preparation of the financial statementsis EU-IFRS and the relevant
provisions of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code for the consolidated financial statements and Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code for the company financial statements.

The basisfor our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. We have further described
our responsibilities under those standards in the section * Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasisfor our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of CoOperatieve Rabobank U.A. in accordance with the European Regulation on specific requirements
regarding statutory audit of public interest entities, the *Wet toezicht accountantsorganisaties (Wta, Audit firms supervision
act), the ‘Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assuranceopdrachten’ (ViO - Code of Ethicsfor
Professional Accountants, a regulation with respect to independence) and other relevant independence requirementsin the
Netherlands. Furthermore, we have complied with the ‘Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA - Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants, a regulation with respect to rules of professional conduct).
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Our audit approach

Overview and context of the 2018 audit

Rabobank is an international financial services provider operating on the basis of cooperative principles. Rabobank operates

globally in 38 countries with focus on banking in the Netherlands and food and agricultural financing in the Netherlands and

abroad. Its operations include domestic retail banking, wholesale banking, international rural and retail banking, leasing and

real estate. Asthe group comprises of multiple components, we considered our group audit scope and approach as set out in the

section ‘ The scope of our group audit’.

Rabobank isin the midst of atransformation. During 2018 Rabobank continued executing the * Strategic Framework 2016-
2020'. The strategic objectives that impact the financial statements directly are focussed on balance sheet flexibility and
reduction and further improving financial performance. As the ongoing transformation may affect systems, processes and
controls, the risk of material misstatement increases within areas affected by this transformation. We therefore particularly
focussed on those areas where the financial statements could be materially impacted. Next to our focus on IT due to the
transformation process, the reliability and continuity of information processing is significant to the Bank’ s operational,
regulatory and financial reporting processes and we identified this as a key audit matter. In the section ‘Key audit matters of
this report we described where this was applicable during our audit.

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements. In particular we considered where the Managing Board made important judgements, for example, in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain.
In paragraph “Judgements and estimates’ in note 2.1 to the financial statements, the Bank describes the areas of judgement in
applying accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty. Given the significant estimation uncertainty in
combination with the magnitude in the impairment allowances on loans and advances to customers, valuation of financia
instruments at fair value and provisioning for litigation, regulatory and client care exposures, we considered these to be key
audit matters as set out in the key audit matter section of this report.

Asin all of our audits, in assessing the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, we also addressed the risk of
management override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the managing board that
may represent arisk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We ensured that the audit teams, both at group and at component levels, collectively contain the appropriate skills and
competences which are needed for the audit of a bank. We therefore included specialistsin the areas of 1T, taxation and hedge
accounting and experts in the areas of valuation of real estate, financial instruments and employee benefits in our team.

The outline of our approach was as follows:

Materiality
Overall materiality: €195 million

Audit scope
We conducted audit work on 19 components.
Site visits and or meetings with the component teams by the group engagement team were carried out in the
following locations - the Netherlands, USA, Ireland and Brazil. We met with the audit partner and local
management team.
Audit coverage: 91% of total assets, 91% of profit before tax and 87% of revenues.

Key audit matters
Impairment allowances on loans and advances to customers
Valuation of financial instruments at fair value
Litigation, regulatory and client care exposures
Design and effectiveness of IT Genera controls
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Materiality
The scope of our audit is influenced by the application of materiality, which is further explained in the section * Our
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiaity, including the overall
materiality for the financial statements as awhole as set out in the table below. These, together with qualitative considerations,
helped us to determine the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and
disclosures and to evaluate the effect of identified misstatements, both individually and in aggregate, on the financial
statements as a whole and on our opinion.

Overall group materiality €195 million (2017: €181 million)

Basisfor determining We used our professional judgement to determine overall materiality. Asabasisfor our
materiality judgement, we used 5% of profit before tax.

Rationale for benchmark We used profit before tax as the primary benchmark, a generally accepted auditing practice,
applied based on our analysis of the common information needs of users of the financial statements. On

this basis, we believe that profit before tax is an important metric for the financial performance
of the Bank and iswidely used within the industry.

Component materiality To each component in our audit scope, we allocate, based on our judgement, materiality that is
less than our overall group materiality. The range of materiality allocated across components
was between €25.5 million and €75 million.

We also take misstatements and/or possible misstatements into account that, in our judgement, are material for qualitative
reasons. Examples of areas that we focussed on due to qualitative reasons are the accuracy and completeness of the fair value
disclosure, the disclosure around the implementation of IFRS 9, the legal, regulatory and client care exposure and the
remuneration of the Supervisory Board and the Managing Board.

We agreed with the Supervisory Board that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above €8.75
million (2017: €8.75 million) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative
reasons.

The scope of our group audit
Cobperatieve Rabobank U.A. isthe parent company of a group of entities. The financial information of this group isincluded
in the consolidated financial statements of Codperatieve Rabobank U.A.

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed sufficient work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the management structure of the Group, the nature of operations of its components,
the accounting processes and controls, and the markets in which the components of the Group operate.

In establishing the overall group audit strategy and plan, we determined the type of work required to be performed at the
component level by the group engagement team and by each component auditor.

Rabobank has an internal audit department (‘ Audit Rabobank’) that performs operational audits, compliance audits, I T audits,
loan (valuation) audits, culture and behaviour audits, audits on internal control on financial reporting and financial statement
audits. Audit Rabobank issued audit opinions on the financial information of certain of the components of Rabobank (for
internal purposes only) to the Supervisory Board, Audit Committee and Managing Board. We considered, in the context of
audit standard 610 ‘ Using the work of internal auditors, whether we could make use of the work of Audit Rabobank and we
concluded that this was appropriate. To arrive at this conclusion, we evaluated the competence, objectivity aswell asthe
systematic and disciplined approach applied by Audit Rabobank, and more specific the financial audit team of Audit
Rabobank. Subsequently we developed a detailed approach and model to make use of the work of Audit Rabobank in our
financial statement audit. We were substantially and independently involved in the higher risk areas and or in areas or
procedures that require significant judgement. During the audit process we worked closely with Audit Rabobank, had frequent
status mestings and reviewed and “reperformed” some of their work which confirmed our initial assessment and reliance
approach.
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The group audit focused on the three individually financially significant components: Domestic Retail Banking Netherlands
(not including Obvion and other associated entities), Wholesale Banking Netherlands and Treasury (WRR) and De Lage
Landen (DLL). We further subjected 6 components for full scope audit procedures or an audit of certain specific account
balances only, as they include significant or higher risk areas due to estimation uncertainty, higher fraud risk and complex
items such as hedge accounting. Additionally, we selected 10 components for full scope audit procedures or an audit of certain
specific account balances only, to achieve additional coverage on financia line itemsin the consolidated financial statements.
In total, in performing these procedures, we achieved the following coverage on the financial line items:

Total assets 91%
Profit before tax91%
Revenue 87%

None of the remaining components represented individually more than 2% of total group assets, profit before tax or revenues.
For those remaining components we performed, amongst other procedures, analytical procedures to corroborate our assessment
that there were no significant risks of material misstatements within these components.

Group components in the Netherlands include the significant components Domestic Retail Banking Netherlands, WRR and
DLL, but aso include Real Estate Group, Obvion, hedge accounting and some other smaller components. The group
engagement team utilizes the work of component teams for these entities. For componentsin the USA, Australia/lNew Zealand,
Brazil and Ireland, we used component auditors who are familiar with the local laws and regulations to perform the audit work.

Where component auditors performed the work, we determined the level of involvement we needed to have in their audit work
to be able to conclude whether sufficient and appropriate audit evidence had been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the
financial statements asawhole.

We issued instructions to the component audit teams in our audit scope. These instructions included amongst others our risk
analysis, materiality and scope of the work. We explained to the component audit teams the structure of the group, the main
developments that are relevant for the component auditors, the risks identified, the materiality levels to be applied and our
global audit approach. We had individual calls with each of the in-scope component audit teams during the year including upon
the conclusion of their work. During these calls, we discussed the significant accounting and audit issues identified by the
component auditors, the reports of the component auditors, the findings of their procedures and other matters, which could be
of relevance for the consolidated financial statements.

In the current year, the group audit team visited the component in the Netherlands, USA, Brazil and Ireland at least once given
the importance of the judgements, such as the impairment allowances on loan and advances to customers and the valuation of
the loan and advances mandatorily at fair value, or significance to the group audit. During these visits, the group engagement
team met with the component teams (including audit partner), discussed the audit approach in detail and met with local
management. For the significant components and the USA, we reviewed selected working papers of the component auditors.
The group team met the local Australian and New Zealand management during their visit in the Netherlands.

The group engagement team performed the audit work on the group consolidation, IT General Controls, financia statement
disclosures and a number of complex items such asimpairment allowances on loans and advances to customers, certain
accounting matters, such as the legal mergers of FGH and Rabohypotheekbank with Rabobank, income tax on the Dutch Fiscal
Unity and the legal provisions at the head office.

By performing the procedures above at components, combined with the additional procedures at group level, we have been

able to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence on the Group’s financial information, as awhole, to provide a basis for
our opinion on the financia statements.
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Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance to the audit of the financial
statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the Audit Committee and Supervisory Board. The key audit
matters are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters that were identified by our audit and that we discussed. In this section
we described the key audit matters and included a summary of the audit procedures we performed on those matters.

With regards to the comparison of key audit mattersin our auditor's report 2018 with 2017, the disclosure on the impact of
IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments (IFRS 9) on the opening balance as of 1 January 2018 is not considered a separate key audit
matter anymore due to the fact that IFRS 9 isimplemented as of 1 January 2018. We elaborated on the implementation of IFRS
9 hereafter in our key audit matter with respect to the impairment allowances on financial assets.

We note that the key audit matters related to ‘ Impairment allowance on loans and advances to customers, ‘valuation of
financial instruments at fair value', ‘Litigation, regulatory and client care exposures and ‘Design and effectiveness of IT
General Controls arerecurring. These relate to the Bank’s primary business processes and objectives and did not change
significantly compared to prior year.

We addressed the key audit matters in the context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole, and in forming our
opinion thereon. We do not provide separate opinions on these matters or on specific elements of the financial statements. Any
comment or observation we make on the results of our procedures should be read in this context.

Key audit matter Our audit work and observations

Impairment allowances on loans and advances to customers Control design and operation effectiveness
Refer to note 2.15 ‘Loans and advances to customers and loans and We evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
advances to credit institutions, note 2.16 ‘ Impairment allowances on  key controls per 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 over:

financial assets, note 4.3.3. ‘Credit risk exposure and credit quality’
and note 4.3.4 * Impairment allowances on financial and credit related
contingent liabilities and note 12 ‘L oans and advances to customers.

The Bank’s portfolio of loans and advances to customers amounts to
EUR 429.4 hillion as at 1 January 2018 and EUR 436.6 billion as at
31 December 2018. These loans and advances are measured at
amortised cost, less aloan impairment allowance of EUR 4.5 billion
asat 1 January 2018 and EUR 3.7 billion as at 31 December 2018.
Three-stage expected credit loss impairment model
In connection with the implementation of IFRS 9 as from 1 January
2018, Rabobank implemented a three-stage expected credit loss
impairment model asfollows:
Recognition of allowances measured at an amount equal to 12-
month expected credit losses (stage 1);
Recognition of allowances measured at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses for loans and advances for which
credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition,
but that are not credit-impaired (stage 2); and
Financial assetsthat are credit-impaired (stage 3).
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Theinternal credit management process to assess the loan
quality classification to identify impaired loans;
Implementation of the definition of default applied in
calculating the modelled loan impairments;

Input controls and data lineage testing in respect of the critical
data elements applied in the modelled loan impairments;

The valuation of future cash flows and existence and valuation
of collateral, based on the appropriate use of key parameters for
the specific impairment allowance;

The methodology and controls applied in measuring and
determining significant increase in credit risk;

The governance over development, validation, calibration and
implementation of the PD, EAD and LGD impairment models;
Thereview and approval process that management has in place
for the outputs of the impairment models, and the top level
adjustments that are applied to model outputs; and

The completeness and accuracy of the transfer of data from
underlying source systems to the expected loss calculations.
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Key audit matter

Our audit work and observations

Rabobank determines loan impairmentsin stage 1 and 2 on a
modelled basis whereas the loan impairments in stage 3 are
determined on either amodelled basis or on a specific |oan-by-loan
basis.

Modelled loan impairments

For the modelled loan impairments Rabobank utilises point in time
probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and exposure at
default (EAD) models for the majority of the loan portfolio. Three
global macroeconomic scenarios (consisting of a baseline, abaseline
minus and a baseline plus scenario) are incorporated into these
models and probability weighted in order to determine the expected
credit losses. In case of data quality issues, or when unexpected
external developments are not sufficiently covered by the outcome of
the impairment models, adjustments may be made (so called: top
level adjustments).

Individually credit-impaired loans

For credit-impaired loans that are assessed on an individua basis, the
impairment allowance is based on the weighted average of the net
present value of expected future cash flows (including forward
looking information and the valuation of underlying collateral) in
three different scenarios. a sustainable cure, an optimizing and a
liquidation scenario.

Judgements and estimation uncertainty
The judgements and estimation uncertainty in the impairment
allowance of loans and advances is primarily linked to the following
aspects:
Significant increase in credit risk: judgement isrequired to
transfer assets from stage 1 to stage 2;
Forward-looking information: Rabobank includes forecasts of
future events and economic conditions (forward looking
information) in the modelled loan impairments. |n doing so, the
Bank prepares three macro-economic scenarios which include
forecasts of future economic conditions, such as gross domestic
product growth, unemployment rates and interest rates. Finaly,
these three macroeconomic forecasts are probability weighted in
the expected credit losses calculation. The process of preparing
the macro- economic scenarios and probability weighting these,
require judgment.
Measurement of expected credit losses: The probability of
default (PD) multiplied by loss given default (LGD) multiplied
by exposure at default (EAD) inputs are used to estimate
expected credit losses. These inputs require estimates as
follows:
- PD: The probability of default is an estimate of the
likelihood of default over agiven time horizon;

The majority of these controls were designed and operated
effectively. For certain controls, specifically around the loan
quality classification process in the small and medium size
business loans domain, remedial control activities and impact
assessments were performed by management. Based on the
testing of controls and additional testing of remedial actions,
we determined that it was appropriate to place reliance on the
above controls for the purpose of our audit.

Assessment of model based impairment allowances

In our audit (using our internal model experts), we evaluated
the reasonableness of model methodology, assessed model
validation reports prepared by Rabobank’s model validation
department, evaluated the macro economic scenarios using
our internal economic department, performed recal cul ation of
the loan loss provision for a sample of loans and performed
backtesting procedures on key model parameters per 1
January 2018 and 31 December 2018. Also we tested input
data and data lineage in respect of the critical data elements
and challenged management that they provided us with
reasonable explanations and evidence supporting the key
model parameters (including the significant increase in credit
risk, PD, LGD and EAD). Based on the above we assessed the
methodology and inputs to be in line with market and industry
practice.

Finally, we evaluated the top level adjustments per 1 January
2018 and 31 December 2018 by obtaining evidence that these
adjustments were necessary to balance underlying model and
data limitations and we found the provided supporting
evidence to be reasonable.

Assessment of individually credit- impaired loans
Considering the inherent estimation risk of individually
credit-impaired loans, we selected appropriate samples and
analysed the latest devel opments at the borrowers and
considered whether the key judgements and significant
estimtates applied in the impairment allowance were
acceptable for both the balance per 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018. This included the following procedures:
Evaluate the feasibility of the forecasted cash flows
(including the use of forward looking information)
for each scenario by comparing them to historical
performance of the customer and the expected future
performance where applicable;
assessing the external collateral valuator's
credentials and the valuation with an independent
valuation performed by our valuation experts;
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Key audit matter

Our audit work and observations

- EAD: The exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure
at afuture default date, taking into account expected
changes in the exposure after reporting date; and

- LGD: Theloss given default is an estimate of the loss
arising in the case where a default occurs at agiven time. It
is based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due and those that are expected to be received,
including cash flows expected from collateral and other
credit enhancements.

Top level adjustments to the model outcome: Adjustments to

the outcome of models due to unexpected external

developments or data quality issues require judgement.

Measurement of individually assessed credit-impaired financial

asset: For credit-impaired financial assets that are assessed on

anindividual basis, discounted cash flow calculations are
performed for three scenarios. In such cases, judgement is
required for the estimation of the expected future cash flows and
the weighting of the three scenarios.
Given the significance of the number of accounting policy
choices, judgements taken by management, the complexity
and the inherent limitations to the inputs required by the loan
impairment models, this areas is subject to a higher risk of
materia misstatement dueto error or fraud. Therefore, we
considered this akey audit matter in our audit.

assessing management’s analysis of the probability

allocation of each individual scenario for each credit-

impaired loan; and

Recalculate the provision on the individually credit-

impaired loans.
In addition, we selected a risk-based sample of individual
loans from the “performing book” and the so called “watch
list”. In doing so amongst others we selected loans with a
large contribution to the loan impairment charge in 2018 as
well asloans that have a high individual exposures. Based on
the above we assessed the methodology and inputsto bein
line with market and industry practice.

Furthermore, we assessed the adequacy of the disclosures,
including disclosures on estimation uncertainty and
judgements, to assess compliance with the disclosure
requirements included in EU-IFRS.

Valuation of financial instruments at fair value

Refer to note 2.3 ‘ Derivatives and hedging’, note 2.4 ‘ Financial
assets and liabilities held for trading’, note 2.5 ‘Financial assets and
financial liabilities designated at fair value', note 2.7 ‘ Financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income’ and note
4.9 ‘Fair value of financial assets and liabilities.

The financial instruments that are measured at fair value

which are significant to the financial statements are:
Derivatives (EUR 22.6 billion of derivative assets and
EUR 23.9 billion of derivative liabilities are level 2 and
level 3 financial instruments at 31 December 2018);
Financial assets held for trading (EUR 0.5 billion of
financial assets held for trading arelevel 2 or level 3
financial instruments at 31 December 2018);
Financial assets designated at fair value (EUR 0.01
billion of financial assets designated at fair value are
level 2 or level 3 financial instruments at 31 December
2018);
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value (EUR 2.1
billion of financial assets mandatorily at fair value are
level 2 or level 3 financial instruments at 31 December
2018);

Control design and operation effectiveness
Our audit work included, amongst others, understanding and
evaluating the design and testing the operating effectiveness
of the controls at the Bank that cover the valuation process for
financial instruments such as:
The governance over valuation models, including the
validation and approval process of such models,
subsequent changes thereto and an assessment of the
impact of limitations inherent to the models used;
Controls that cover the collateral valuation and dispute
process for collateralised derivatives,
Controls over the completeness and accuracy of data
inputs used in the valuation of financial instruments; and
The Bank’s independent price verification process where
the reasonableness of models and outputs is assessed.

Based on these audit procedures, we determined that we could
place reliance on these controls for the purpose of our audit.
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Key audit matter

Our audit work and observations

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (EUR 4.3 billion of financia
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
arelevel 2 or level 3financia instrumentsat 31
December 2018);

Non-current assets held for sale (EUR 0.3 billion of non-
current assets held for sale are level 2 or level 3 financia
instruments at 31 December 2018); and

Financial liabilities designated at fair value (EUR 6.6
billion of financial liabilities designated at fair value are
level 2 or level 3 financial instruments at 31 December
2018).

Models and assumptions

For financia instrumentsin active markets and for which
observable market prices or other market information is
available, there is ahigh degree of objectivity involved in
determining the fair value (level 1 financial instruments).
However, when observable market data does not consist of
guoted pricesin active markets (level 2 financial instruments)
or market information is not available at al (level 3 financial
instruments, which mainly relate to Private Equity
investments and the |oan portfolio of ACC), the fair value is
subject to significant judgement by management. The fair
value of such financia instruments (level 2 and level 3
financial instruments) is determined using valuation
techniques (such as discounted cash flow models and option
valuation models) and the use of assumptions and estimates
such as market prices of comparable instruments, credit
spreads, yield curves, correlations and volatilities.

The most significant estimates by management in this respect
relate to:
The credit valuation adjustment (CVA) and debit
valuation adjustment (DVA) used in the valuation of
derivatives;
The credit yield curves used in the valuation of financial
liabilities designated at fair value.
The multiplier, which isapplied to the EBITDA used in
the valuation of private equity investments; and
The valuation of the collateral with respect the loan
portfolio of ACC and the appetite to buy this type of
assets.

Given the size of the portfolios, the level of judgement and
complexity involved in determining the fair value of these
financial instruments, this areasis subject to a higher risk of
material misstatement dueto error or fraud. Therefore, we
determined thisto be a key audit matter in our audit.

SQubstantive audit procedures

With assistance of our internal valuation specialists, we tested
the appropriateness of the methodol ogies, models and inputs
applied in the valuation of the level 2 and 3 financia
instruments in the balance sheet. Based on these procedures
we determine that the methodol ogies, models and inputs used
by the Bank are fit-for-purpose and in line with best practices
applied in the market.

Furthermore, we reconciled the most significant inputsto
independent sources and external available market data,
where possible. Where assumptions and estimates were made
by management on key valuation inputs, we assessed and
evaluated these by comparing them to (other) available
market data. In particular, we performed the following
procedures on the most significant judgements in the
assumptions and estimates used by management in respect of
thelevel 2 instruments:
We assessed the CVA and DVA used in the valuation of
derivatives, by comparing assumptions and inputs to
market data; and
Assessing the data points used by management in
determining the credit yield curves used in the valuation
of financial liabilities designated at fair value by
comparing these data points against available market
data. Furthermore we evaluated the interpolation for data
points for which limited market datais available.

Although our own valuation tools and techniques also provide
inherently judgemental outcomes, we considered thisto be an
appropriate basis for challenging management’ s outcomes.
We found that management’ s outcomes derived from the
model used for the fair value of the financial instruments, fell
within an acceptable range of outcomes.

For the private equity investments, we evaluated, with assistance of
our internal valuation specialists, the multiplier that is applied to the
EBITDA to determineif thisisin line with best practicesin the
market.

For the loan portfolio of ACC, with assistance of internal
specialists, we assessed and challenged the key value drivers
and assumptions used by management, evaluated the
sengitivities analysis performed, recalculated for a sample of
loans the fair value and tested the completeness and accuracy
of the input data by reconciling to the underlying source
systems (including the valuation of collateral). Based on these
procedures we determine that the methodology, and inputs
used by the Bank are reasonable and in line with best practices
applied in the market.
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Key audit matter

Our audit work and observations

Furthermore, we assessed the adequacy of the disclosuresto
assess compliance with the disclosure requirements included
in EU-IFRS.

Litigation, regulatory and client care exposures
Refer to note 2.23 * Provisions, note 4.10 ‘Legal and arbitration
proceedings and note 26 ‘ Provisions.

Completeness of identification of emerging compliance or
litigation areas

Thereisan industry risk that emerging compliance or
litigation areas have not been identified and or addressed by
management for financial statement purposes. This includes
the consideration whether there is aneed for the recognition
of aprovision or acontingent liability disclosure on the future
outcome of legal or regulatory processes.

In line with Standard 250 we made in our audit approach a

distinction between those laws and regul ations which:
Have adirect effect on the determination of material
amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements. For
this category we believe that we obtained sufficient audit
evidence regarding compliance with the provision of
those laws and regulations; and
Not have adirect effect on the determination of material
amounts and disclosures in the financial statement, but
where compliance may be fundamental to the operating
aspect of the business, to the Bank’s ability to continue
its business or to avoid material penalties. For this
category, we performed specific procedures to identify
non-compliance with those laws and regul ations that may
have amaterid effect on the financia statements.

We identified that the risk of non-compliance with laws and
regulates relates mainly to the laws and regulations which
have an indirect impact on the financial statements, such as
Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-Terrorist Financing Act
(Wwrft), inclusive of global regulations on Anti-Money
Laundering (AML), Client Due Diligence (CDD) and
Compliance, and Market Abuse Regulation.

Management judgement

The recognition and measurement of provisions and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities requires considerable
management judgement around future outcome of legal,
regulatory or client care disputes, including the provision for
the execution of the Uniform Recovery Framework for SME
Interest Rate Derivatives. Asat 31 December 2018 the SME
provision amounted to EUR 316 million.

General
We obtained an understanding of the significant laws and
regulations with which the entity has to comply and how the
entity isinstituting and operating appropriate systems of
internal control to comply with those laws and regulations by
inquiry of management and designed proceduresto confirm
that the Bank has appropriate processes over:
Developing, publicizing and following a code of conduct,
including ensuring employees are properly trained and
understand the code of conduct and monitoring
compliance with the code of conduct and acting
appropriately to discipline employees who fail to comply
with it;
Engaging legal advisors to assist in monitoring legal
requirements;
Assigning appropriate responsibilities to the internal audit
function, audit committee and compliance function; and
Instituting and operating appropriate systems of internal
control.

Control design and operating effectiveness

We understood, evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of controls of the Bank to identify litigation and
regulatory exposures within the group. We determined that
we could place reliance on these controls for the purpose of
our audit.

Specific procedures

We met with different members of the Managing Board on a
regular basisto understand the emerging and potential
exposures that they identified. We challenged management’s
view on these exposures based upon our knowledge and
experience of emerging industry trends and the regulatory
environment.

To identify potential regulatory investigations that could lead
to the need for potential new provisions or disclosuresin the
financia statements we read the Bank's rel evant
correspondence with the Autoriteit Financiéle Markten
(“AFM”), De Nederlandse Bank (“DNB”) and European
Central Bank (“ECB”). We met on atrilateral and bilateral
basis with the joint supervisory team of DNB and ECB during
the year.

We read the minutes of the Managing Board and the
Supervisory Board meetings and attended all Risk- and Audit
committee meetings throughout the year. We held regular
bilateral meetings with the Chairs of the Supervisory Board,
Audit committee and Risk committee.
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Key audit matter

Our audit work and observations

Given the inherent uncertainty and the judgemental nature of
contingent liabilities and provisions, we determined the provisions
and disclosures on contingent liabilities to be of particular
importance to our audit, since this area is subject to a higher risk of
material misstatement due to error or fraud. Therefore determined
this to be akey audit matter in our audit.

We inquired with internal legal counsel to understand the risk
position of new and existing regulatory matters and reviewed

audit reports and assessments of the internal audit department
relating to compliance with laws and regulations.

In general we noticed that compliance, related matters and
improvement of procedures and tooling around compliance
receive adequate attention of management.

More specifically we noticed significant management
attention on specific programs in place that aim to improve
the quality of its customer files and transactions monitoring
throughout the entire network. Also following regulatory
enforcement actions related to AML and CDD in the United
States and the Netherlands. We aobtained an understanding of
the initiatives which are part of this program through inquiry
of the program owners, Managing Board, Audit committee,
reading correspondence with AFM, DNB, Federal Reserve
and ECB related to these matters and discussed the outcomes
of audits performed by Audit Rabobank with respect AML
and CDD.

Based on the aforementioned we noticed that funds and
resources were made available for this change program and
that the program receives significant attention of
management.

Substantive audit procedures

We obtained legal letters from the Bank’s external lawyers to
verify completeness of he identified exposures. We assessed
customer complaints received and the analysis prepared by
management of these complaints. We used this analysisto
understand whether there were indicators of more systematic
exposures being present for which provisions or disclosures
should be made in the financia statements. These procedures
did not result in the identification of any new provisions or
systematic exposures.

The magjority of our detailed audit work was on the provision
for SME interest rate derivatives. We assessed the
reasonableness of assumptions and interpretations of the SME
framework by management in relation to their calculations by
performing back testing procedures on the final settlements
and offer letters send to customers before 31 December 2018
and comparing the results of theindividual compensation
offers to the original estimates of management. In addition we
have sampled a number of individual files and reviewed for
these files the compensation calculated and the accuracy of
the input data used in the cal culation. Based upon the
procedures performed, we concur with the provision for SME
interest rate derivatives accounted for by the Bank.
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Key audit matter Our audit work and observations
Design and effectiveness of | T-General Controls We have assessed that the disclosures were sufficiently clear
in highlighting the uncertainties and exposures of potential
IT-Genera Controls (ITGCs) are controls, implemented in I T- liabilities that exist.
processes, ensuring the integrity and continuity of 1 T-programs and
data. Effective ITGCs are conditional for reliance on automated Our efforts relating to understanding, evaluating and testing
controlsin the Bank’s operations, and in our audit approach. the design and operating effectiveness of ITGCs focused on:
Deficiencies in I T general controls as such could have a pervasive Entity level controls over information technology in the
impact across the Bank’s internal control framework. IT-organisation, including I T-governance, IT-risk
management and cyber security management;
In addition, the Bank has a number of long-term strategic regulatory Management of access to programs and data, including
and transformation projects, with important 1 T-components to user access to the network, access to and authorizations
continue to meet the high reporting standards and expectations from within applications, privileged access rights to
stakeholders relating to operating effectiveness, efficiency and data applications, databases and operating systems and
quality. Through the periods of change there is an increased risk that physical accessto data centres. Asthe Bank uses
ITGCs are not operated as intended, automated tools to manage access rights we have
evaluated the use of these tools.
Therefore, we identified the Bank’s IT-General Controlsasa Governance over the strategic | T-transformation projects
key audit matter. and assessment of the impact on our 2018 audit;

Management of changes to applicationsand I T-
infrastructure, including the change management process
and the implementation of changes in the production
systems using automated deploy mechanisms; and
Computer Operations, including batch monitoring, back-
up and recovery and incident management.

We focused on the ITGCs to the extent relevant for the
purpose of our audit of the financial statements. Most of these
controls operated effectively. For certain controls, specifically
relating to privileged access rightsto alimited number of
systems and certain deployment mechanisms, remedial control
actions were taken by management. Based on the testing of
controls and additional testing of remedial control actions, we
determined that we could place reliance on these controls for
the purpose of our audit.

Report on the other information included in the annual report

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, the annual report contains other information that
consists of:

About this report;

Chairman’s foreword;

Management report;

Appendices;

Corporate Governance; and

the other information pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Based on the procedures performed as set out below, we conclude that the other information:

is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements; and
contains the information that is required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
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We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained in our audit of the financial

statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains material misstatements.

By performing our procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch
Standard 720. The scope of such procedures were substantially less than the scope of those performed in our audit of the
financial statements.

The Managing Board is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the management report and the other
information in accordance with Part 9 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Our appointment

We were appointed as auditors of Codperatieve Rabobank U.A. on 18 June 2015 by the Supervisory Board following the
passing of aresolution by the members at the General Members Council held on 18 June 2015 for atotal period of
uninterrupted engagement appointment of 4 calendar years, 2016. 2017, 2018 and 2019. This resolution is subject to be
renewed annually by members. Thiswas our third year as auditors of Cotperatieve Rabobank U.A.

No prohibited non-audit services
To the best of our knowledge and belief, we have not provided prohibited non-audit services as referred to in Article 5(1) of
the European Regulation on specific requirements regarding statutory audit of public interest entities.

Servicesrendered
The services, in addition to the audit, that we have provided to the Bank and its controlled entities, for the period to which our
statutory audit relates, are disclosed in note 50 ‘ cost of external independent auditor’ to the financial statements.

Responsibilitiesfor the financial statementsand audit

Responsihilities of the Managing Board and the Supervisory Board for the financial statements

The Managing Board is responsible for:
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with EU-IFRS and with Part 9 of Book 2 of
the Dutch Civil Code; and for
such internal control as the Managing Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the Managing Board is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks mentioned, the Managing Board should prepare the
financial statements using the going-concern basis of accounting unless the Managing Board either intends to liquidate the
Bank or to cease operations, or has no redlistic aternative but to do so. The Managing Board should disclose events and
circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility isto plan and perform an audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit opinion aims to provide reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high but not absolute level of assurance
which makesiit possible that we may not detect all misstatements. Misstatements may arise due to fraud, or error. They are
considered to be materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
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Materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified

misstatements on our opinion.

A more detailed description of our responsibilitiesis set out in the appendix to our report.

Amsterdam, the Netherlands, 13 March 2019
PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V.

Original has been signed by R.E.H.M. van Adrichem RA

Appendix to our auditor’s report on the financial statements 2018 of CoGperatieve
Rabobank U.A.

In addition to what isincluded in our auditor's report, we have further set out in this appendix our responsibilities for the audit
of thefinancial statements and explained what an audit involves.

The auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have exercised professional judgement and have maintained professional scepticism throughout the audit in accordance
with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements. Our objectives are to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. Our audit consisted, among other things, of the following:

Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the intentional override of internal control.

Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Managing Board.

Concluding on the appropriateness of the Managing Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting, and based on
the audit evidence obtained, concluding whether a material uncertainty exists related to events and/or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Bank’ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosuresin the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report and are made in the context of our opinion on the financial statements as awhole. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in amanner that achieves fair
presentation.

Considering our ultimate responsibility for the opinion on the Bank’s financial statements, we are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. In this context, we have determined the nature and extent of the audit
procedures for components of the group to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. Determining factors are the geographic structure of the group, the significance and/or risk profile of
group entities or activities, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the group operates. On this basis,
we selected group entities for which an audit or review of financial information or specific balances was considered necessary.

We communicate with the Supervisory Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit. In this
respect, we also issue an additional report to the audit committee in accordance with Article 11 of the EU Regulation on
specific requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities. The information included in this additional report is
consistent with our audit opinion in this auditor's report.
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We provide the Supervisory Board with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communi cated with the Supervisory Board, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our

auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
not communicating the matter isin the public interest.
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